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[ Defmltlve Information Statement

SECURETIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 20 IS -

(¥

A

SE EXOH
INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO.SECTION 20 ti HAN

OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE }
1A I

Check the appropriate box:

_' Prelim'lnary Information Staiement

._'Name of Reglstrant as specn‘“ed inits charter . -. g ROXAS ﬁOL[_)_ING.S, INC. s
.:ﬁPrownce countryor other Junsdl_ctlon _of_ o _ _' ' . _ o
: mcorporatlon or organlzabon O T L :-Philippines S
: '_SEC Identn‘lcatlon Number _ : S :-'_: : 15 A
B__IR__Tax _Identlf_to_at:lon__Qo_de_. s - : 000—290 538 ' _
_'__:Ad_d:fees ;f prm;ip'a'{afébe'_: D .: :' .' R 14F, Net One Genter, 26" cor. i Avenue,

A Bomfac:lo Giobal Clty, Tang, Metro Manzla .

Regtstrants telephone number o o . o (632) 771 7800 '
Date, tlme and place ofmeetmg AT TR S SRR
of secunty holders G U :Aprii 30, 2018

A TS T <40:00 am

Turf Room, M.anlla Polo CEub : '
McKmIey Road, Forbes Park, Makati City .

_’ Approximate date on \uhich the'Pro.xy Sta{ement Ll
: '|s flrst to be sent or: given to secunty holders . ' Apn] 4 20'19

Securltues regastered pursuant to Sectlons 8. and 12 of the Code as of 30 September 2018

Tltle of Each C!ass ' Number of Shares of Stock Outstandlng
: _ - And Amount of Debt. Outstandmg
-.Common_ 3. o 1,547,935,799
Debt -~ _ B i None registered

Are any or all of the Regis_tr_ant_’_s_ securities listed on a Stock Exchange? -

If $0, d_isclose_n_a_m_e of the Exchange ' : Philippine S_t_o_ck Exchange



ROXAS HOLDINGS INC.
INFORMATION STATEMENT

GENERAL INFORMATION

WE ARE NOT ASKING. YOU FOR A PROXY AND YOU ARE REQUESTED NOT TO SEND us a
PROXY

DATE TIME AND PE_ACE OF MEETING OF SECURITY HOLDERS

_Date S o A '-Apnl 30 2019
o Time - - - ool 1000am '
-'Place TP S - Turf Room, Mamla Polo Club -
. : BTN lV[cKrnIey Road Forbes Park Makau Clty
' Address of pnncrpal o '
S -offlce of the company e ST M4 Net One Center, 26th corner 3rd Avenue

e o e Bontfacro G[obal Clty, Tagurg Metro Mamla :
L -Approxrmate date on whrch the. :
-+ -“Information Statement isfirst to
" besent or given to secunty B R R
B holders : i Coesr s April 4, 2019

.' _'DISSENTER’S RIGHT OF APPRAISAL -

SUA drssentmg stockholder shall have the right of appralsai in the lnstances authorlzed under Sec 81 of the i
‘Corporation Code and in accordance with the procedure set out in Sec. 82 of the same Code. There are
no matters mcluded |n the Agenda of the meetmg WhICh would glve rige to an exercrse of the rrght of .=

E appraisal S _ . . . :

- 'INTEREST OF CERTAIN PERSONS IN IIIIATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON

_ The mcumbent drrectors and offlcers of the company, smce the begrnnrng of the Iast fiscal year do not
" ‘have substantial interest, direct or indirect, by security holdtngs ar.otherwise, ‘in ‘any matter to be acted
" upon other than elechon fo ofﬂce :None of the incumbent directors, who are all hominated for re-election
- ‘informed in writing that he |ntends to oppose any action to. be taken dunng the annual meetlng of

' shareholders : .

CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATEON

VOTING SECURITIES AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS THEREOF - B

' _a) The number of shares outstandlng and entrtled to vote at the stockholders meetrng is 1, 547 935 799 _
* ‘common shares . : _ .

'b) The record date for the purpose of determ;nrng stockholders entltled to vote at the annuat meetlng of
sharehoiders is February 28, 2019 : : . :

C) Stockholders are entrtied to a cumulatlve voting in the electron of dlrectors Section 24 of the
'Corporatlon Cade of the Phﬂlppines provides that every stockholder entitled to vote shall have the.
right to vote, in person or by proxy, the.number of shares of stock standing, at the time fixed in the
by-laws, in his own name in the stock books of the corporation, or where the by-laws are silent, af the
time of the election and the stockholder may vote such number of shares for as many persons as
there are directors to be elected or he may cumulate said shares and give one candidate as many
votes as the number of directors to be elected multiplied by the number of his shares shall equal, or
he may distribute them, on the same principle, among as many candidates as he shall see fit.



' .F'ér.ali other matters to_b_e acr_ed.'upon. ea_ch _s’ha'r'e: is entitled to one'(d) vote. o

d) Secunty ownershtp of certam record and benefrcral owners and management

(1} Security ownersh!p of certain record and benefrclal owners of more than 5% of Reqlstrant _
C secuntles as of Februarv 28 2019. . :

' Title of Class

'Name and Add_re_ss_'of _Ov\rner.

Number and Nature of Ownersh:p
{Indicate Record andlor Beneficial}

Percent of -
Class .

“Common

Roxas & Company,Inc. .~

St, i_egaspl Vlliage Makatr
Clty
(Sharehoider)

7/F CG Building, 101 Aguirre .

318,341,705 |

.~Record and
--Beneficial --

- 20.58%

. Common .

“Holdings BV

JB Amsterdam, The
Netherlands
;(Shareholder)

First Pacific Natura! Resources' :

505,667,566

| Prins Bernhardplein 200 1007 |

: _Be_nef_i_cial "

T 3269% | -

“Common

{ First Agri Holdings Corp. -
10™.Floor, MGQ Building, De .-

City -
' (Shareholder)

467,854,834

1la Rosa cor Legaspl St Makatr L

N ._Ben_efioial

7T 3024%

- Comimon

| PCD Nominee Corp. -

: _.37F Tower 1 The Enterprlse

_ Center, Ayala Ave., Makati Crty:
. (Sharehoider)

[ 44747576

. Beneficial -

TRBI%

. 'The members of the Board of Dlrectors of Roxas & Co Inc (RCI) are Antonlo J Roxas Pedro E Roxas

~.’Carlos R.- Elizalde, Francisco Jose R. Elizalde, Fernando L. ‘Gaspar, Guillermo D. Luchangco and

_*_Corazon De La Paz- Bernardo. : Collectively,: they have the _power to decide how the shareholdings of RCI.
. in RHl shaII be voted Pedro E Roxas is authonzed to vote the shares of RClinthe annua[ meeting :

(2) Securrtv Ownershlp of Manaqement as of Februarv 28 2019

The followmg are the number of shares owned of record by. the Dtrectors and the PreS|dent & Chref

' Executwe Offlcer (PCEO) and the percentage of shareholdlngs of each:

Number and Nature of

Title :Of. Class. Name of Benefrcra! Owner : Cirizenship - Ownership - Peéoaeg; of
Common gﬁgffmini‘ﬁﬁz Bond Flllprno e .6_.2.6,6_4_0 (_r.é:&._b)_ | 00004%
o (SRS | g | s | avors
Cdﬁfno_ﬁ_ | F'#’e*_’s?éteﬁyg‘é%" | -' "r:iriprno '-ss,'sss (r &_b_) 0.0000%
“Common | §2Y ¢ Espinosa - Filipino 430,831 (r & ) 0.0002%
‘Common Bt & Fider s Filipino _ '5o,ooo 0 o 0.0000 %
‘Common | Santiago R. Elizalde Filipino 100,000 (1) 0.0000%
Common _ g]r;gz:g;raherH Young British 61,54_7 {n 0.0000 %
Common EIZ‘;T);‘:] flado Filipino 50,000 (1) 0.0000 %
Comimoen David L. Balangue Fi_lipi_n_o_ 861,547 (N 0.0000 %




T_r‘_tle' of Class Neme of Benefr‘ciel (.).wner. | Cftfze'nsh_r'p = -Nun_tbgzvk;nedstxzfure_ of -} P‘?gjjg; of
' Independent Director . " ' . T _ L
T TOTAL Ul 1,825 507 {r&b) 0.0006% -

(3) Vottng Trust Holders of 5% or-More. =

The company is not aware. of any voting trust or sumtar arrangements among persons hoidlng
~more than 5% of a class of shares o

'(4) Changem Control _ _ _
. Flrst Pacrﬂc Natural Resources Holdlngs BV and 1ts Phrllppme afflliate Flrst Agrl Holdlngs .
Corporatlon (the -First " Pacific ‘Group), have acqmred a total of ‘973,522,400 common shares

. corresponding to 62.93% equity ownership ln the company. The totaE eqwty ownershlp of Roxas_ '
L and Company, tnc (RCI) is 20 58% o _ . _ . '

Market mformatron '

 The high and low prices of ROX shares for each quarter of fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016 and o

the ftrst quarter of FY 2019, as reported by the PSE are shown below

FY2019 FY2018 FY2017 FY2016

."'Q_u_arter High | Low. ""'ngh - .-Lowz_' ;:Htgh.- Low - _:H[gh;-__- ._Low.-_'_

1 325/ 261| 413 | 400 | 3.04 298 1| 5.86 | 443

2 | [ 342 [ 328 | 300 | 287 | 6.19 | 4.00
3 || 1"286 | 282 | 383 | 367 | 465 | 4.01

A e 1214 [ 419 | 410 | 398 | 3.19_
Stockholders L R O

' _There were about 2 093 holders of the companvs common shares as  of Februarv 28 2019 The
top twenty (20 holders of the common shares as of sard date were: :

~Slookioider ] Nationally | Tl o ofShares | %

PCD Nominee Corporation " Filipino L 902,716,201 57.66
""PCD Nominee Corporation : ~Non- Flhplno ' © 523,038,800 33.47
“Roxas and Company.Ing. | = " Filipino i 99,624,995, .- 636
Insular Life Assurance Co., Ltd. " Filipino 1,198,520 008

- Jose A. Manzano Jr. ' " Filipino 01,029,007 Tl 07

o GilpertLivs o D Filiping o cE 1014000 - 007

- Emilio Pantoja - .- o CFilipine -} 785078 - ‘0.05 .
~Armando M. Medina - 1 " Filipino 70640 ' 0.05
‘Leonardo T.:Siguion Reyna CCFiliging o p - 808400 0.04
~ RaufS.Roco. -~ 1 . cFilipino - ] - 488,720 L -0.03
"0, Ledesma & Co., Inc. Fllipino 446,180 - - "0.03
BMI Holdings Corporation Filipino S 431,964 0.03
~ Antonio.G. Nieto * * ©. Filiping .~~~ 367,450 S -0.02
Corona Rgi'rtgo%a'gg:e'wme”f . Filipino 365040 | 002,
Lorna Perez Laurel Filipino ~ 0 354,900 0.02
Abel Z. Silva il Filipino : . 354,900 0.02




‘Elaine Villar Rivilla Filipino L 346,788 . 0.02
Rodolfo W. Antonino .~ Filipino ' 338,000 0.02
~_Emma Lopez {1 - Filipino : 324,804 - 0.02 . -
20. Evelina M. Boongaling Filipinc j 321,214 0.02
©. ' Subtotal - { " 1,535823,581 99.13
. Qther Shareholders. ' ' . 13,422,086 1087

_GrandTotal ~ -} ' 1,649,245 667 _ -.'.100%

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

._.a)

Nommees for election to the Board of Directors

: The foElowmg have been nomlnated for eiect:on to the Board of Dlrectors

'Messrs Pedro E, Roxas Manuel V. Pangrlman Hubert D. Tubro Ray C. Esplnosa Alex Erhto s.

~-Fider, - Christopher 'H. Young, Oscar J. Hilado (Independent Director), ~Arlyn~-S." Villanueva - ¥

- (Independent Director) and Santiago T. Gabionza, Jr, {Independent Director} have been ‘nominated
.- ‘for-election to the Board of Directors. * All nominees, except Ms Vlilanueva and Mr Gablonza are .
' mcumben’t members of the Board of Dlrectors S A _ . . FER L

the implementlng Rules and ‘Regulations ‘of  the : Revised . Securities Regulatlon ‘Code, SEC

"Messrs Oscar J.: H|Iado and Santlago T, Gablonza Jr and Ms Ariyn S. Vlllanueva are nomlnees .

and are eligible for election as Independent Directors of the company in. accordance wrth Rule 38.1 of

. .Memorandum Circular No. 16, Series of 2006 and. SEC Memorandum Clrcular No 9 Senes of 2011 :
: 'and the rewsed Manual on Corporate Governance L

'_Arlvn Slcanqco Vlllanueva is 62 years old and is a Flllprno She is current[v a member of the =
- Professional Regulatory Commlssmn s.Board of. Accountancv (BOA). ~She.is.a partner of Srcangc

‘Founded in 1960, SMV is one of the most prominent, largest and " °
- frusted auditing firms in_Metro Angeles-Clark area. She sits ‘as an independent director of the Metro- -
- Pagcific Transport Corporation (MPTC)since 2009 and the Manila North ToEIwa yS Cor oratlon MNTC s

Menor. ananueva CPAs (SM

since 2014. She chairs the audit commlttees of both companses

Dr. Villanueva has:been in. ‘practice for more than.35 years, ‘with her fie[d of competence bemq m AN

audit ‘and: manaqement consultancv She is IikeW|se involved -in ‘accreditation, performance

evaluation, strategic planning and development, as . well as. forecastmq and budqetmq ormects for .

- academic mstltutlons ‘being exposed to the academe for more than 30 years. .

~.(HAU)}, which she had served for 33 ears_ Before being installed as University President in August -
. 2006, she had been the Dean_and full professor of the College of Business ‘& ‘Accountanc '

In_June 2014, Dr. Villanueva concluded her 8-year term as ‘President of the 'Hoiv Anqel Umversrtv :

- biggest deoartment in_the university) for 25 years, where she taught Cost Accounting; Financial
' Accountan. Taxation, -Auditing, Corporate_Governance and Risk Management: and the Graduate
- ‘School:{where she tauqht Organization Theorv Strateqrc Manaoement Flnanclat Manaqement and
" Leadership) of the same University for 10 years.

-She _has held various positions at the Philippine Instltute of Certifred Publlc Accountants (PICPA)
-both at the local and national level.. It was “durin her term as PICPA President of the An eles:Cit

Chapter in 2004 that said Chapter received the most coveted ‘Most - Outstandlnq PICPA Chapter
Awardin the Philippines and Most Outstanding President for the same year. - '
She was President of the Phlllpplne Association of Collegiate Schools of Business (PACSB) in 2005
and 2006. ‘She_received in 2010 -the -Outstanding CPA in Education. Award in recoqnltlon of ‘her
outstanding achievement and distinguished performance as an accounting educator.” -In 2012, she
received the Honorary Life Member Award, given to a PICPA member with_national prominence or
one whose outstanding contribution has national impact. Dr. Vlilanueva was admitted as 3 Fellow of

the ]nsﬂtute of Corpcrate Dlrectors tiCD) in August 2014,

Dr. Villanueva obtained her Accounting degree (BSC) from Holy Angel University in Angeles City in
1977 and successfully passed the CPA licensure examinations the year after.

-.'Stockho'!der ' T Nationality" T Total No. of Shares o] e :




" She pursued her studies ‘and took her. Master's Degree in Business 'Manadement from the Atengo -

Graduate School ‘of Business in Makati in 1982, She . took her Doctorate Degree in Business
Administration from the De La Salle Graduate School of Business in Manila where she graduated in

2003 “With Distinction”, 1n 2011, she Qursued her post-doctorate studies and completed the Advance
Management Program (a program desrgned for top executives from all over the world} at the Harvard

Business ‘School (AMP181) in Boston, Massachusetts; and in_ December 2014, she com leted the

-one-year Challenges of Leadershi ip Proqramme Craftmq Reflectwe Leaders at the Insead Busmess _

School in Fontamebleau France

'She is marrled fo Attv Cesar L. Vlllanueva former Chalrman of the Governance Commlssmn for
GOCCs (GCG) and the former Dean of the Ateneo de Man:la Law Schooi - -

j' Santra oT _Gabronza Jr is 61 years old and is a F:n ino. Heis a Senror Foundrn Partner of .
" the Law Firm VILLANUEVA GABIONZA & DY and was the Managing Partner of the Firm from =

i 1691-2001. ‘From 2010 to 2013, he ‘served ‘as Consultant to: members of: the. House of

. Att .
- Company, Inc. from 2009 ‘to ‘2013. He.was a member_ of the Board. of Trustees “of the =

© " Metropolitan Waterworks - and ~Sewerage - Svstem from 2009 to 2011 He served as .

. 'Rehabilitation .Receiver of the Steel Corporation of the Phrll ines from_ 2006 to 2010 and was L
. OIC PresrdentIDlrector of the Maymi ad Water Serv:ces in 2006 ' : 3

‘Representatives,. the Nat|onal Irrlqation Admrnistratlon and the Department of Public Works o
o ndnghways . L BT P

Gabronza was formerl the Cor orate Secretar IRehabrIrtatron Counsel of Vrctorlas Mlliin .

S He is ‘a FeIIow of the 1nstrtute of Corporate Drrectors (ICD) and a member of the Board of_ o
- Directors - of - various corporations. such as Stratos Holdings, “Inc.. ‘Apo. Associated Radio = -
Electronics ‘and Communication ' Company.,. Inc., Capitol Masonic_Corporation, Kontak One -
~Management Exchange. (KOMEX), Inc., “Econo-Tech Investments, Inc.; Herma Trading, Inc.,”
. Mask Trading, Inc.. Jahro Holdings, ‘Inc., LingapKawal Foundation, inc.; VGS Properties, In¢., . -
" Saga & Sons, Inc.; VGS Land, Inc., VBG Insurance Agency, Inc., Rajah Tours Phils.. Inc., VGS -
-.Holdings

‘Inc.. Trustee ‘of Masonic ‘Charities -for Crippled _Chlldren

Inc
Secretarv of Laboratorv of Computer Medlcrne Phrls Eno S T

_and_ Cor _orate

Attv Gabronza is_a Irfetrme Member of the lnteqrated Bar -of the Phlllpplnes and was a

S Pre5|dent of Integrated Bar of the. Philippines-Makati Chapter from 1999, to 2005.:In 2012, he

b)

~ was .the Centennial Grand. Master of the .GRAND LODGE OF.-FREE AND ACCEPTED

MASONS OF. THE PHILIPPINES. He received the followmg awards; “Most Qutstanding Mason
in the Field of Corporate Law” on 10 April 2008, “Grandmaster s_ Centennral Award” on 22 Aor;l

. 1999, and "Grand Master 5 Award of Ment" on 28 Agnl 1994

Atty. Gabionza obtarned h|s Bachetor of Arts Economlcs deqree from the Coquro De San Juan
‘De Letran (Summa Cum Laude) in 1977 and his Bachelor of Laws Degree (LL.B.) from Ateneo

- De Manila_University (Second Honors, Silver Medal) in 1981. He sat- for_the _Phlli__

Examsnatlons in November 1981 and was admltted to the Bar in 1982

: Atty Gabronza is_ a member of Asia Pacific Lawyers Assocratlon, Phlllpp_ine Lawyers Literary

Club, Inc., Asean Law As_s_oc_:l_a_tro_n of the Philippines, and Phl_l_p_p_lne Trial Lawyers Association.

Procedure for nomination and election of ditectors,

Chapter Ill of the By-Laws of the Corporation provides: . .

Article 13.0. Qualifications and Disqualifications for Directors. - Any stockholder having at least fifty
thousand (50,000} shares registered in his name may be elected as Director, provided, however, that

any stockholder who possesses any of the disqualifications enumerated in the Manual on Corporate
Governance which was approved and adopted by the Board of Directors of the Corporation on 25

7



' September 2002 moludlng any amendments thereto shall be dtsquallfled from belng elected as a
Director of the Corporation; Provided, moreover, that no. person shall qualify or be eligible for
nomination or election to the Board of Directors if he is engaged in any busmess whlch competes
with or |s antagonrstlc to that of the corporatlon S .

Article 14.0. Nominations for Director. = In addltlon to the right of the Board of Dlrectors of the
Corporation to make ‘nominations for the election of Directors, nominations. for the election of
. Directors . may be made by any shareholder entitied to .vote for the elaction of Drrectors |f that
sharehoider complles W|th all of the prov|3|ons of thls Artlc]e '

1.0. Nommatrons shall be recelved by the. Charrman of the Board of Directors (which nomlnatlons
‘may be sent to the Chairman through the Secretary of the Corporation) at least fifteen (1 5) workmg .
days pnor to any meetlng of the shareholders called for the election of Drreotors

U 2.0 Each nommation under Artaole 14 0 par 1 0 sha]t set forth (|) the name age busmess address _
“‘and, .if known, residence address. of ‘each nominee, (i) the: principal occupatron or employment of

" ‘g@ach nominee, (m) the number of shares of stock of the corporation which are benefncrally owned by . B
. each such nominee, and (iv) the. interests and positions ‘held by each nominee in other corporations.”. .
~in addition, the shareholder makmg such nomrnatrons shall promptly provrde any other :nformatlon PR R

'reasonably requested by the corporatlon

'_ 3 0. The Board by a majonty vote unless a greater majonty is requured under these By—Laws may,_ :
“in ts. dlscretlon determine ‘and declare - that ‘a nomination was not.made in accordance with the

foregolng procedures and/or that'a nominee is drsquahfied for election as Director under these By- -

. Laws ‘and. if the Board ishould ‘so determlrse the defective nommatlon and the nommatlon of a_-
- dlsqualifled person shall be dlsregarded : . . :

' Moreover the lVlanuaI on Corporate Governance of the corporatlon provrdes s
23 1 Quallfioatlons of Dlrectors . . o

g 311 in add|t|on to the quahflcatrons for membershlp in the Board as prowded for in the By—t_aws of -
the Company, the Corporatlon Code, Securities Regulation Code and other relevant laws, the

."Board may provnde for addrtlonal qualrﬂcatlons whrch may mclude among others the_ SRR

foliowmg
N 3111 College education_orequiva_lent _a_cade_rn_ic deg_re_e;
3.1_.1..2. P_recti_cal_.un.derstandtng of the.business of the Company;

~3.1.1.3. Membership in good standlng m relevant industry, business or professional
orgamzatlons and S : R

: ‘3.1.14. Prevlous busmess expenence
3. 8 Board Commlttees _ | |
.The Board shall malntaln the followmg Commlttees to assist it in good corporate governance _
3.8.1 Executwe Commlttee \ SRR

The Executive Commiftee shalt be composed of three (3) Directors to be elected by the Board. The
Executive Committee shall have the functions that the Board will delegate.

3.8.2 Corporate Governance Committee
The Board shall establish a Corporate Governance Committee that is tasked to assist the Board in

the performance of its corporate governance responsibilities, including the functions that were
formerly assigned to a Nomination and Remuneration Committee. It shall be composed of at least

8



three members, all of whom should be independent directors including the Chairman, or at least a..
majority thereof, until such time as an additional director from the Company s current number of two
(2) independent dtrectors is properly vetted, nomlnated and eEected in the Board by the Company 5
shareholders S . : : _

3,8.3. _Audit Committee
The committee should be composed of at least three appropriately qualified non-executive directors,
the majority of whom, including the Chairman, should be independent. All of the members of the
~committee must have relevant background, knowledge skills, and/or experience 'in the areas of
- ..accounting, auditing and finance, The Chairman of the Audit Commtttee should not be the chatrman
~oof the Board or of any other commlttees : . :
. "3 8 4 Compensatlon Comm:ttee o
N _'-'_The Compensat[on Commlttee shal] cons;st of at Ieast three (3) votlng Dlreotors one (1) of whom
' must be an mdependent dlrector oy : . . L
:_o) Board of Directors and Officere _
B '--Board of Dlrectors & Corgorate Secretagg SRR
: Board of Drrectors & Corgorate Secretag_v y

: _'Pedro E Roxas is 62 years old and isa Flltpmo He has been a member of the Board of Dlreotors
“since year 1982, Mr. Roxas is the Chairman of the Board of Directors and is the Chairman of the -

- Executive - Commrttee and the Nomination, Election & Governance Committee. . He was elected as -
. Acting President & Chief Executive Officer of the company on October 23, 2015.  He is also the

- Chairman of the operating subsidiaries of the company, namely CADPI, CACI, Roxol, SCBI, and
 RHI Agri-Business - Development ‘Corporation - (RHI-ADC). ‘Mr. Roxas is JikeW;se the ‘Executive
Chairman | and the President & CEQ of Roxas & Co., ‘Inc., _Chairman ‘of Hawaiian Philippine -
Company, Club. Punta -Fuego Inc.; Pre5|dent of Fundamon Sanﬂago ‘Chairman-of the Philippine
Sugar Millers . Association, Inc.,”an Independent Director of Philippine Long Distance Telephone

_Company (PLDT) and the Manlla Electric Company (Meralco), and Banco. de Oro (BDO) Private * -

- Bank, Director. of Brlghtnote Assets Corporation and a Trustee of Philippine Business for Social
jProgress Mr. Roxas was educated at Portsmouth Abbey School, Rhode. Island,: USA, and at the
'Un;versny of Notre Dame in tndtana USA where he obtalned hls degree in Busmess Admmrstratlon

Manuel V. Pangilman is 72 years old and is a Flllpino ‘He was eleoted to the Board of Dlrectors on
December 3, 2013 and is the Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors, a member of the Executive
Committee and the Chairman of the Executive Compensation Committee. 'Mr. Pangilinan founded
First Pacific Company Limited in 1981 ‘and served as ‘Managing Director until 1999. - He was
appomted Executive Chairman until June 2003 when he was named as CEO and. Managlng
Director. - Within the First Pacific Group, he holds the position of President Commrssmner of P, T
Indofood Sukses Makmur Tbk, the Iargest food company in Indonesia. .

In the Phtl]ppmes Mr., Pangllman is the Chairman of the Phlllpptne Long Distance Telephone
Company (PLDT) and the Manila Electric Company {Meralco). He is also the Chairman of Smart
Communications Incorporated, PLDT Communications and Energy Ventures Incorporated (formerly
Piltel), Beacon Electric Asset Holdings Incorporated, Metro Pacific Investments Corporation, Landco
Pacific Corporation, Medical Docters Incorporated, Colinas Verdes Corporation (operating the
Makati Medical Center and Cardinal Santos Medical Center) Davao Doctors Incorporated, Riverside
Medical Center Incorporated in Bacolod City, Our Lady of Lourdes Hospital, Asian Hospital,
Incorporated, Maynilad Wafter Services Corporation (Maynilad) Mediaguest incorporated,
Associated Broadcasting Corporation (TVE), Philex Mining Corporation, Philex Petroleum
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| corporat'ioﬁ and Manila 'Nort'h.Toliways' Corpora't'ion' |

Out3|de the First Pacific Group, Mr. Pangilinan was a member of the Board of Overseers of the
Wharton School-of Finance & Commerce, University of Pennsylvania, USA. He was Chairman of
the Board of Trustees of the Ateneo de Manila University. He is currently the Chairman of the Board
of Trustees of San Beda College. ‘He also serves as Chairman of PLDT-Smart Foundation, Inc. and
the Philippine Business for -Social Progress. He also serves as Chairman of the Hong -Kong
Bayanihan Trust, a non-stock, non-profit foundation which provides vocatronal social ‘and cultural

activities for-Hong Kong’s foreign domestic helpers. - 'On February 5, 2007, Mr. Pangrlrnan was -
* ‘named the President of the Samahang Basketbol ng Pilipinas (SBP), a national ‘sport association for
- _basketball. ‘In January 2009,-Mr, Pangrlanan also assumed the Chairmanship. of the Amateur Boxing .
‘Association of the Philippines (ABAP) a governing body of the amateur boxers in the country. Also,

in October 2009, Mr. Panglllnan was appointed as Chalrman of the. Phrlrppme Disaster Recovery

" Foundation (PDRF), a ‘non-stock .non-profit foundation establrshed to formulate and ‘implement . a . '

g reconstruction strategy to ‘rehabilitate ‘and rebuild areas devastated by recent floods ‘and other_-_:. S

o -_calamrtles Mr.: Pangr[man is ‘Chairman of the Phll:ppme Business for. Social Progress (PBSP), a." =
- social action organization made’ up of the oountrys largest corporatrons Vice-Chairman of the:

Foundation for Crime Prevention, ‘a ‘private sector group organized to assist the. government with

. crime prevention, and:a member of the Board of Trustees of Caritas Manila and Radio Veritas-' =
_'.'-Globai ‘Broadcasting Systems Inc., a former. Commissioner of the Pasig River. Rehablirtatron . '
" Commission and a former Governor ‘of the Phrlrppme Stock Exchange in June . 2012 he was '«
appornted as ‘Co-Chairman ‘of the newly organized 'US-Philippines Business Society, a non-proflt_ S
*-spciety which seeks 1o broaden the relationship | between the. United states and the Phlllpplnes m the L

-_-areas of trade rnvestment educatlon forelgn and secunty pollcres and cutture

M F’angliznan has. recelved numerous presttglous awards mchdrng Ten Outstandmg Young Men of

. the Philippines (TOYM) Award for International Finance {1983), The Presidential Pamana ng Pilipino
- “Award by the Office of the President of the Philippines (1996), Best CEO in the Philippines by the -
. _Instltutronal Investor (2004), CEO of the Year (Philippines) by Biz News Asia (2004), People of the -
Year: by ‘People Asia - Magazine (2004), Distinguished World Class Busrnessman Award by the -

- Assaciation -of Makati - Industries, Inc. '(2005), Management Man of the Year by the Management

.. . Association of the Phlllppmes (2005), Order of Lakandula (Rank of Komandante) by the Office of the =
"'President of the  Philippines (2006). - -He was voted .as Corporate Executive Officer of the Year.

(Phllrpplnes) and Best Executive (Philippines) at the 2007 .and 2008 Best-Managed Companres and
. Corporate Governance Polls conducted by Asia Money. Most recently, Mr. Pangilinan received the
‘Best CEQ award from Finance Asia Magazine (2012) and the Executrve of the Year Award from the
Phtllpplne Sports erters Assomatlon (PSA) (2014) : :

'Mr Pangllrnan has been awarded four (4) Honorary Doctorate degrees in Humamhes (Honorls
‘Causa). ~First to confer him was San Beda College in 2002; second was the Xavier University in
2007; Holy Angel University in Pampanga in 2009 and the Far Eastern University in 2010. Mr.
Pangilinan_ graduated cum laude from the Atenec de Manila University, with a Bachelor of Arts

Degree in Economics, ‘and obtained his Master's degree in Business Administration from Wharton . -

-’School of Frnanoe and Commerce Unwersrty of Pennsylvama Ph|Iadelphia USA

Santrago R Ellzalde is 54 years old and is a. Flllplno He has been a member of the Board of -

Directors since year 2000 and is a member of the Compensation Committee. - Mr. Elrzalde is the
Chairman of the 24 Hour Vendo Machine Corporation, Vice-Chairman and member of the Executive
Committee of ELRO Commercial & Industrial Corporation and Club Punta Fuego, Inc. ‘He is also
the President & CEQ of Roxaco.Land Corporation, President of CGB Condominium Corporation and
Fuego Hotels and Management Corporation, Chairman of Roxas Foundation, Inc., Vice-Chairman
and a member of the Executive Committee of ELRO Commercial and Industrial Corp_oraiion and of
Club Punta Fuego, Inc. and a Director of CADPI, CACI, ELRO Land Corporation, Punta Fuego
Village Homeowners Association, Punta Fuego Village Foundation, Terrazas de Punta Fuego
Village Homeowners Association, and Fundacion Santiago. Mr. Elizalde obtained his Bacheior of
Arts in Economics from Denison University in Ohio, USA.
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Oscar J. Hilado is 81 years old and is a Filipino. He has been a member of the Board of Directors.
since May .11, 2016 .and is a member of the Audit & Risk Committee. He is the Chairman of the
Board of Directors of Phinma Corporation. He is also.the Chairman of the Board of Directors of
Phinma, Inc., Holcim Philippines, Inc., Trans Asia Oil and Energy Development Corporatlon Phlnma
Property Holdrngs Corporatlon and Un;on Galvasteel Corporation

_.Mr Hilado is. aiso a drrector of A Sorrano Corporation Fil’St Philippine Holdings Corporatlon Philex
.Mtnmg Corporatlon Manila Cordage Corporation, ~Smart Communications, . - Inc., ~Digitel
Telecommunications Philippines, Inc., Beacon Property Ventures, Inc. Pueblo de Oro Development

" Corporatlon Unlted Pulp and Paper Co lnc and Seven Seas Resorts and Lelsure Inc, .

g -Mr Hllado was a Sm|th MundthuIEbnght scholar at the Harvard Graduate School of Busmess where o
‘he obtained his Masters Degree in Business Admmlstrauon in 1962, He is a Certified Public - -
_Accountant (CPA) with a Bachelor of Science in Commerce degree from the De La Salle College in

Bacolod in 1958. He earned his Doctorate in Business. Management Honoris Causa, from the De

" 'La Salle University in" 1992 ‘and ‘in 2003 attalned hiS Doctorate of Law Honorls Causa from the' '
'Unlvers:ty of St La Salle ' : . . RN . R _

: | -:Davnd L. Balangue is 67 years old and is a Flllpmo He has been a member of the Board of i
-"Drrectors since February 12, 2012 and is.a member of the Audit & Risk Committee Mr. Balangue is -
an accountlng and auditing ° professmnal whose ‘career - spanned :38. years ‘at SGV:& Co., the .

~Philippines™ largest audit-and. accounting professronal services firm. 'He'is a former. Chairman &

‘Managing -Partner of the firm, after being admitied to partnersmp in 1982.-Mr. Balangue holds'a... .-

" Bachelor's Degree in Commerce, major in Accounting, Magna Cum Laude, from Manuel L, Quezon -
_ Universny and a Master of Management degree, with dlst|nct|on from the Kellogg Graduate School
“of Management of Northwestern University in Evanston, illlinois, USA, as ‘an SGV scholar where he.
‘received a. Drstrngurshed Scholar - Award and elected to the Beta Gamma Sigma, .an excluswe -
_honors fratermty He placed second hlghest in the 1972 Phllipplne CPA Board Exammahons

-~ He served as Presrdent of the Manrla Polo Club Inc. (20‘14—2015) Frnancral Executlves Instltute of '
the Phll;ppmes (2006); Philippine Institute of Certified Public Accountants {2005); and Management -
Association ‘of the Philippines (2004). At present, he is the Chairman of NAMFREL, the Philippine "
Center for Population and Development, ‘Inc. (since 2014) and Coalition Against Corruption :(since -
. 2006); Member of the Board .of Trustees of Habitat for Humanity Philippine. Foundation, Inc. -(since - -
. 2012), -Chairman/President _of - Makati Commercial -Estate - Association, ‘Inc. * {(since May 2010),
“President of -‘Makati Parking Authority - {since 2012) -and .Chairman of the Philippine . Financial -
-Reporting Standards Council (since February 2010). He is a hon-executive Independent Director of
‘the following listed companies: Trans-Asia Qil and Energy Development Corp., Philippine Bank of .

Communications, Manufacturers Life" Insurance Company, and Holcim *Philippines, “Inc. . Mr— 7 -

Balangue is also a non-executive lndependent Director .of the company and has possessed all the
qualifications and none of the dlsquallficatlons ©of ‘a Director. ssince he was first nominated and

elected as an Independent. Director of the company. .- Mr.. Balangue has a reguEar column at :

Phlllppme Dally Enqwrer He is marned to Arlene Tan Balangue

Ray C. Espmosa is 62 years old and is.a Filipino. He was elected to the Board of Directors :on
December .3, 2013 and is a member of the Nomination, Election & Governance Gommittee. . Alty.
Espmosa is the Chairman of Philstar Daily, Inc., and Businessworld Publlshlng, Inc., and the Vice- -
Chairman .of the Board of Trustees of the PLDT Beneficial Trust Fund. ‘He is also an Associate
Director of First Pacific Company Limited and the Head of -Government Regulatory Affairs and
Communications Bureau for. the Philippines. He also serves as a Director- of Philippine Long
Distance Tel_ephone Company (PLDT), Manila Electric Company (Meralco), Meralco PowerGen
Corporation, Wolfpac Mobile, Inc. and Metro Pacific Investments Corporation, and an Independent
Director of Lepanto Consolidated Mining Corporation. - He also serves as General Counsel of
Meralco and Head of Regulatory Affairs and Policy and Group Joint Executive Committee of PLDT.
Prior to joining the PLDT Group in 2000, Atty. Espinosa was a law partner in SyCip Salazar

11



Hemandez & Gatmaitan, the largest law firm in the Philippines, until June 2000 and was a member- -

of the.firm's Executive Committee. He was a law lecturer at the Ateneo de Manila School of Law
from 1983 to 1985 and in 1989. Atty. Espinosa finished his Bachelor of Laws degree at the Ateneo
de Manila University, graduating salutatorian, and his Master of Laws degree at the University of
Michigan Law School. Aftet finishing his Master of Laws degree, he worked as a foreign associate
in Covington & Burling, the largest law firm in Washington, D.C., USA, from September 1987 fo
August 1988. Atty Esprnosa placed frrst in the Phrlrpprne Bar Examrnatlons of 1982 E .

Alex Erlito S Frder is 65 years old and isa Frlrprno He was elected to the Board of Drrectors on
December 3, 2013 Atty Fider graduated from the University of the Phalrpprnes with degrees .in
Economlcs and Law. - He was admitted to the Philippine Bar in 1985 and ‘undertook specialized . -
courses in Strategrc Economrcs ‘and. Corporate Governance -in- ‘the Phr[rpprnes ‘and -Australia,

respectlvely His legal experrence spans 30 years of mvolvement in corporate transactions : and o

“projects. ‘His legal work -extends to an array. of corporate and financial matters -to companies
-involved .in publrc rnfrastructure water, ~and ‘power utilities,” tetecommunrcatrons ‘mass ‘media, "
banking and finance, real estate development and agriculture. ‘He is a, specralrst in the various

' fields ‘of commercial,’ crvrl ‘telecommunications and public’ utilities faw. Atty. Fider is a Director and =+
. '__'Corporate Secretary of . several Phrlrpplne corporatrons mcludrng Metro Pacific Tollways
- Corporation,: Metro. F’acrfrc Tollways Development Corporatron ‘Manila North Tollways Corporatron .
" Tollways. Management Corporatron Smart Communications, Inc. and Maynilad Water Services, Inc.
- He is actively involved in the Financial Executr\res lnstrtute of the Phrlrppmes (F[NEX) and ]nstltute of. o

. ':Corporate Drrectors of which he is a Fellow '

e :Chrrstopher H. Young is. 61 years old and is a Bntrsh crtrzen ‘He was. elected as a member of the o

" "'Board of Directors on May 13, 2015 and as a member of the Audit & Risk Committee on August 19,

2015, He is presently the Chief Financial Officer. of .First Pacific.Company Limited, a Hong Kong

. " based investment management and holdrng company with operations in the Asia Pacrfrc He is also .
- presently a director and Chief Financial Advisor and Head of the PLDT Finance Group..Mr. Young
- was formerly the Finance Director. of the Metro Pacific Corporation, the group Financial Controller of -
. First Pagcific Company Limited and a Senior Audit Manager of Price Waterhouse in Hong Kong He
: -has been a member of the Instrtute of Chartered Accountants in England and Walee smce 1982

:Hubert D. Tubro is 64 years old and isa Frlrprno He was elected as a rnember of the Board -of LR

" Directors on December 16, 2015 and as President -and Chief. Executive ‘Officer of the Group _
effective January 1, 2016. He is ‘a ‘member of the Board of Trustees of the Philippine Sugar.
Research Institute (Phrlsurrn) and the Philippine Sugar Millers Association (PSMA); and a member

~of the Board -of Directors of : ‘Negros College, Inc. Mr. Tubio has .an extensive and varied career _' .

‘occupying senior Ieadershrp roles in sugar, telecommunrcatrons arrErnes tradrng, and international .
accounting/auditing industries. He was the Chairman of the Board of Directors of Bioeq Energy
‘Holdings, :Inc., a vertically ‘integrated bioenergy company. ‘He. served -as President and Chief
Operating Offrcer of Victorias Milling Co., Inc. from 2009 to 2014; President of Philsurin; Member of
the Board. of Directors of Globe Telecom President of Consultancy by Technicus Corparation - o
subsidiary of Deutsche Telekom A. G. of Germany, Consultant of PAi_ Holdrngs Inc and Vrce—

Presrdent of Jardrne Davies, Inc. : . : :

Mr. Tubro is a CPA, He graduated Cum Laude wrth a degree in Bachelor of Scrence in Busmess
Administration (BSBA), Major in Accounting, from the University of the East and was a consistent
university scholar. He ranked 10th in the Philippine CPA Board Examinations conducted in October
1975. ‘He is also recognized as the “Most Exalted Alphan” of Tau Alpha Sigma - an exclusive
fraternity for Accounting Honors at the University of the East Manila in 1972. He also belongs to the
Top 10% of the 36th Management Development Program of the Asian Institute of Management in
1991 with Superior Performance Award. '

Cynthia L. Dela Paz is 56 years old and is a Filipino. She has been the Corporate Secretary of the

Group since February 15, 2017, Aity. de la Paz is a senior partner at Picazo Buyco Tan Fider &
Santos. She has been in the practice of corporate law and taxation for the last 27 years. She has
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‘been a Director of Tax Management Association of the Philippines (TMAP) for the last 10 years,
Atty. de la Paz holds a law degree.from the University of the Phrtlppanes and graduated from the
same unwersny with a degree in Psychology .

The directors hold office for one (1) year from election until their successors are elected and
qualrfred . :

The members of the Board attended semmars on Corporate Governance in complrance with SEC
ruies and regulatrons :

B Board of Advrsors '

'_-Vlcente S Perez is 60 years old and is a Flllplno He was elected as a member of the Board of _
- Advisors “on March 25, 2009. -Mr, Perez is presentIy the President .of Alternergy Partners, ‘a -

‘renewable power company.for. emerging -‘Asian countries, and the Chairman of Merritt Partners, an R

energy ! advrsory firm. * Mr. Perez :served ‘as Philippine - Energy ‘Minister from 2001 to 2005, the

8 f-'-youngest to have held the post : and one of the highest Cabinet achievers. He boosted energy self-
sufficiency from 45% in 2000 to.51% .in 2004. - As Energy Secretary, he ‘actively promoted energy .
-~ investments such that energy accounted for 5% of total hational investmenits registered in 2004." "
He served briefly in early 2001 as. Deputy Mlnrster (Undersecretary) at the Department of Trade and =
- '-lndustry and Managrng Head of the Board of Investments Mr. Perez has deep knowledge of, and_. -
“expertise -in, corporate frnance with “over 17 . years -of |nvestment banking ‘experience. His

- experience includes :Latin ‘American .debt ‘restructuring at -‘Mellon “Bank in Pittsburgh, and. debt

. trading, capital markets and - private eqwty in ‘emerging countries at Lazard in-London, New York
: and Slngapore At 35, IVIr Perez became a General Partner at the New York 1nvestment bank '

. _Srngapore from 1995 until 1997 In- 1997 he founded Next Century - Partners (NCP Advrsors s
‘Philippines), a: prrvate equrty firm ‘based in Srngapore and Manila, and invested in companres such
~as :Del ‘Monte : Pacific, - Fastech, ‘and ~Smart ‘Communications. In 2000, - he “founded ~Asian
. Conservation Company, a quadruple bottom line venture philanthropy company which acqurred El

.- Nido Resorts, an award-winning ‘eco-tourism destination in Palawan, which was sold to AyaIa L.and
" 1in:2013.: In 2005, he co-founded Merritt Partners, ‘an advisory firm for ¢ energy companies in Asia. He

- “also co- “founded Alternergy, a wind power developer, and:SolarPacific, a solar power developer. He - '

also currently serves as an independent director of SM Investments Corporatron a holding company

. with the Phrlrppmes Iargest market capltalrzatlon and of ST Telemedia; the Temasek media -
. telecoms holding company. He is Chairman of WWF-Philippines, member of the WWF-International

‘Board, and Vice-Chair of Stiftung SoIarenergre Mr. ‘Perez also serves as a member of the advisory
boards of Coca-Cola FEMSA ‘Philippines, Geneva- based Pictet Clean Energy Fund, and the Yale
Center for Business and Environment. He has advised ADB, IFC, and various international energy,
companies investing in Asia. Mr. Perez obtained an MBA from the Wharton Business School of the -
University of Pennsylvania in 1983 and a Bachelor's Degree in Business Economics from the
University of the Philippines in.1979. He was a 2005 Woild Fellow at Yale Unrversrty where . he
lectured an MBA class on renewable power at the Yale School of Management :

Senen C Bacanl is 73 years old and is.a Fllrplno He was formerly a member of the Board of
Directors and was elected as . a member of the Board of Advisors on December 11, 2013. : Mr.
Bacani is the President of Ultrex Management & Investments Corp., ‘Chairman & Presrdent of La
Frutera, Inc., Chairman of Trully Natural Food Corporation, a Director -of .Swift Foods, Inc.,

AgriNature, Inc Philippine Chamber .of Agriculture & Food, ‘Inc., Philippine Chamber. of Food
Manufacturers, Inc lcebox Logistics Services, Inc., a member of the Board: of Advisors of East
West Seed PhrIrppmes Inc., a Private Sector Representative of APEC Policy Partnership.on Food
Security, ABAC Philippines, a member of the Board of Trustees of the Philippine Rice Research
institute, and the Vice-Chairman of the Technical Advisory Committee of the PCARRD (DOST),
among others. Mr. Bacani obtained his degree in Bachelor of Science in Commerce at the De La
Salle University and his Masters in Business Administration at the University of Hawaii, USA.
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Corgorate Of*ficers._ :
Pedro E. Roxas (See above)
- Hubert D. Tubio (See above)

Arcadio S. Lozada, Jr. is 64 years old and is a Filipino.  He is currently Executive Vice-
President/CO0O - Sugar Business Unit, having Jomed the Group .on -January 1, 2014. - He was
formerly the Vice-President for ‘Manufacturing -of - Victorias Milling .Company, Enc a Technical
‘Manager of Bronzeoak Philippines, Inc., and an Engineering Manager at the Central Azucarera de
“Tarlac, -among others. 'Mr."Lozada is a licensed Mechanical Engineer and has compieted a short
course in raw sugar manufacturmg at the Nrcholis State Unrversriy in Loursrana USA '

'-Celso T. Dlmarucut is 57 years oid and is a Frhp;no He was appornted as EVP CFO and Group .

" Head of Fmance effective December 1, 2015. ' Mr. Dimarucut prior 1o joining the. company served as
" Senior- Executwe Vice President and Chief Flnance Officer of Landco Pacific Corporation and its

- “subsidiaries, Senior Vice President and: Group Chigf Finahce Officer: of Mediaguest ‘Holdings, Inc. -~

. and its subsidiaries, Senior. Vice President and. ‘Group Chief. Finance Officer .of ePLDT, Inc. and -

‘Subsidiaries, ‘First Vice President and Group Controller of PLDT: Group, First Vice-President and
: 'Group Financial Controller for domestlc subsidiaries of Metropolltan Bank ‘& Trust Company ‘and .
“Finance Head of Pifipino Telephone Corporatron (Prltel) Mr Dimarucut has more than 10 years . of -

o professronal audlt and business. advisory experience gamed from SyCip, ‘Gorres Velayo & Co.and

" Prasetio ‘Utomo & Co. {Jakarta, Indonesia). He graduated Cum Laude at the Polytechnic University -

- ‘of the Phlllpplnes W|th a degree of BS Commerce Major |n Accountmg He is-a Certtfled Publlc
'._Accountant R : _

: George T Cheung is 45 years old and is a Flllplno He was appomted as SVP for Marketlng &. .
- Trading on January 5, 2015. ‘He was. former[y a Managing Partner in Commochty Partners Pte, Ltd., -
' 'Head of Domestic Coal Tradsng of Trafigura Investment China, Ltd, based in Shanghai, Assocrate E
- Director - & General ‘Manager-Sugar. Division of ‘Wilmar Sugar: Pte. .L:td/Yihai Commercial Eagle
'_Tradmg, General Manager at the Greater China. Regron of ED&F Man, a global. supplrer of sugar, -
and a Trading Manager of the Sugar Divigion in Hong Kong of Cargill, among others. - Mr. Cheung -

* obtained his’ degree in Bachelor of Science in Food Sciences and Technology at.the University .of -

.- British Columbia in Vancouver British. Columbia, Canada, his, Diploma in Business Administration at
* the International Correspondence Schools, and his Master in Business Admlnlstratlon (IVIBA) Global :
: _Executlve program at the Duke Universlty in Durham North Carohna USA S

-.Frederlck E. Reyes is 57 years old and is a Flllplno He was. appomted as AVP- & Deputy Head of

‘Human Resources on February 1, 2014 and was promoted to VP & Deputy - Head of Human
Resources oh January 5, 2015. Mr. Reyes was formerly the Dlrector for Human Resources Services
of Manila Water Company Inc. He has a 29-year experience in HR Operations having been in
Vitarich in ‘charge of Training, QC & Employee Relations. :He joined Globe Telecom during its
transition to become a 'wireless’ telephone company in charge .of Training and Development from
1990 thru 1997, and also in Manila Water during its “privatization” years in 1997 thru 2012.  Mr.
Reyes obtained his degree in Industnai Engmeermg from the Unrversﬁy of Sto. Tomas and isa
Ilcensed Industnal Eng;neer : :
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Jose Manuel L. Mapa is 51 years old and is a Filipino. He was appointed as VP-General Manager
of RH| Agribusiness Development Corporation on January 8, 2018. Mr. Mapa obtained his MBA with
High Academic Honors from the University of St. La Salle Graaduate School in Bacolod and holds a
Bachelor degree of gribusiness Management from the University of the Philippines Los Bafios. Mr.
Mapa served 2GQ Group, Inc. fr 20 years where he made major contribution as EVP. for. Key
Accounts .and Supply Chain Solutions (2015-2017) and EVP for Freight Sales and Operations —
Luzon (2011-2014). Prior to that, he also. worked as EVP for Corporate Sales at Negros Navrgatron
Co., and-as Operations. Manager at Waterman Bacolod Inc He also manages a sugarcane farm in
Talrsay, Negros Occrdental : . : .

'Jaynel R. Sulangr is 42 years old and is a Flllpmo He was appornted VPIHead of lnformatron &

. ‘GCommunications Technology on March 21, 2018. Mr, Sulangi graduated Cum Laude with Bachelor -

. -of Science in Industrial Engineering degree at the Unlversrty of the Philippines. Mr, Sulangr was VP
- for SAP-Project Management at Deutsche Bank group before j joining Roxas. Holdrngs Inc. He also -
~worked at PLDT and Smart Communications, Inc. For seven years ‘as Senir Manager, 1T-Resource

" Planning .(ERP) and later, as Solutions Architect, Program Management Offrce He also worked at

: ~SAD, SSIP and Business Applrcatrons and Network Technologres He is a Certlfred SAP Consultant':: -

i :in Plannlng Producﬂon Plannrng srnce 1997

' Jose B Vrtlanueva Ill is 48 years old and is a Ftlrprno He was appornted VPIChref Manufacturlng
" Officer of ‘Alcohol SBU on July 2, 2018. Mr. Villanugva - graduated ‘with a degree in Mechanical

- Engineering at the De.La Salle Unrversrty Mr. Villanueva has over 23 yeas of ‘work experience .-

.-:spannlng, among others, ‘the ‘areas of Operatrons “Supply Chain, ‘Human Resources and Project

- Management. He is currently an Industry Advisior to the Mecha ical Engineeing Department of De La .. -
- Salle. Unrversaty in Taft, " Manila. He spent erght (8) years in. Mondelez International (formerly Kraft T
‘Food Phils., Inc.) where he held various roles. usch as Site Manager Category Operatrons & T

. Developmen Manager Marntenance Manager & Manufacturing Business Development Maager. He
-was a former Reliability Manager of Lafarge Cement, looking after five (5) Plants across the country.
" He also worked ‘at -Sanko Systems ‘Servies and as. Engmeerrng -Manager. ‘at ‘Avon Products -
.'-Manufacturrng,_ Inc. He ‘spent 10 years ‘with the food :goup -of  Unilever Philippines, ‘handling
“leadership roles across Operatrons and Human, Resources He was also part of th team that burlt a ..
_'world class manufacturlng facrlrty o . : . L R

'..Esteban H. Coscolluela is 66 years old and is a Filipino. He was appornted as VF’IGM for Central .
_'Azucarera de la Carlota, Inc. on May 11, 2016. He was a former Director and Executive Committee .
‘Chairman of PNOC Coal Corporation. He was also a former VP.at Union Bank. He occupied various -
leadership roles in planters'-associations, farmers’ oooperatrves “and the Chamber of Commerce
and Industry, in Negros Occidental, -Mr. CoscoEEueIa also .served as Mayor of Murcia in Negros
Occidental. He graduated with a dedres in BS Management at the . Unrversrty of St. La Salte He 0§
an MBA Graduate at the Asran Instrtute of Management . o S

Veromca C Cortez is 39 years old and is a Filipino. She was appornted AVP of Finance on

February 10, 2018. She has over 10 years of experience in external auditing. She worked with SyCip -
Gorres Velayo & Co. (SGV) as Senior Director from September 2009 to 2015. She started her career

with SGV as an Associate and moved to become Senior Associate, Associate Director and then

Director. She also worked as a Senior Associate in the Resource Sharing Program of Ernst & Young

Houston, Texas Office. Ms. Cortez graduated with a degree in BS Accountancy from San Sebastran o
College Recoletos de Cavite and is a Certified Public Accountant. w .

Anna G. Yu is 50 years old and is a Frlrpino She was appointed as AVP- Head of Treasury and
Chief Risk Officer and Chief Credit Officer on Fehbruary. Ms. Yu is a certified public accountant and
obtained her degree in Bachelor of Science in Commerce (Cum Laude), major in Accounting at the
St. Scholastica’s College. She was previously AVP-Treasury of Rustans Supercenters, Inc. She also
worked for Emerson Electric Asia, Ltd.
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Daisy - Perpetua A. 'Bo:is 55 years old ‘and 'is a Filipino. ..She was ‘appointed as ‘AVP for
QA/Safety/EMS/IE -on May 11, 2016. Ms. :Bo was formerly .a QA Manager at Alaska Milk
Corporation. She also worked previcusly at Coca Cola Export.Corporation as Area Quality Manager
for the Visayas and Mega Manila and as Concentrate Plant QA Manager. She was also a former
Product Support Business Team Leader at Avon Products Manufacturing. She graduated with a
degree in BS Chemistry from the University of Santo Tomas, and took some MBA units at the De La
Salle Unrversny Shej isa Ercensed chemrst since 1987 : : '

‘Ma. Hazel L. Rabara-Retardo is 38 years old and is a Frhplno She was appornted as AVP for
. Corporate Governance and Deputy Complrance Officer on September 20, 2016. Prior to joining RHI,

- Aity. Rabara—Retardo was Vice President - ‘Legal & Administrative Affalrleorporate Secretary of

.'Advanced Merchant Payments Lendtng Corporatlon an ‘affiliate of Amplifi Capital (HK) Ltd. and
AMP Credit Technologies, ‘Ltd, where ‘she " likewise prowded support in ‘legal ‘and contracts-

. management.and other roles for the AMP ‘Group ‘which has ‘operations in Hong Kong, ‘Singapore - | -

“and the United Kfngdom :She also worked as Court Attorney V at the Office of the PreS|d|ng Justice

~“Ernesto ‘Acosta of the Court of Tax' Appeals Atty. Rabara- Retardo also worked as ‘an associate in" "

'. “the Tan Venturanza Valdez Law Office where she was assrgned as Corporate. Secretary of various i
- private and publicly-listed ‘companies. She obtained her Bachelor of Laws degree and Bachelor of

E : '."Arts Major in: Polltrcat Scrence at the Un[versﬂy of the Phalippmes- Dlllman Quezon Clty

Jaypee V. Jlmenez is. 34 years old and is a Flirplno He was appomted AVPIHead of Procurement &

. Materials Management of - February 15, 2018. Mr. Jimenez - graduated with a B.S. ‘mechanical - -

- Englneenng degree at the Polytechnic University of the Phlllpplnes and -later-took up Masters in
~ Business Administration at the De La Salle Umversrty He is affiliated with the Philippine Somety of o
“Mechanical Engineers -and Philippine . Institute of Supply -Management, ‘Mr,  Jimenez was Senior -

- 'IVEanager of Procurement at Roxas Holdlngs Inc. from June 2016 to February 2018, serving both -

~the sugar and bioethanol units. Prior to that, he was Manager for MR Procurement at Aboitiz Power
" ‘Corporation. “He "also ‘served . as ‘Supervisor for Procurement -at ‘AP Renewables, inc., as
.- Procurement -Engineer at- Bilfal ‘Heavy Industries at the Krngdom of Saudl Arabla and as . =

- Engzneermg Buyer at the Asran Termrnals Incorporated

e Josephme M Logrono rs 42 years old and is a FI|Ipan She was appomted as AVP and Group

Head of internal Audit on February 1, 2018 ‘Ms. ‘Logrofio graduated with a degree in BS -

: Accountancy from the Unlversny of Sto. Tomas, She is a Certified Public Accountant and a Certified
- Internal Auditor. Ms. Logrofio was formerly the Audit Manager at Arthaland Corporation (2016-2017)
. -and Shang Properties Inc. (2013-2018). She has over 16 years of experience in both internal and
. external auditing. She worked with Holcim Philippines, Inc. as a Finance ~ Process Solution Officer
and. as an Internal Auditor from 2003-2010. She also served as an Assocrate Audrtor at SyCIp, '
Gorres Velayo (SGV) &Co from 1999-2003 B Cer - '

-Srgmfrcant Employees

The Group is not highly dependent on the services of an empioyee who is not an Executlve Offrcer :
50 as tobe akey in the busrness

Famrly Re.'afronshrps |

Messrs. Pedro E. Roxas and Santrago R. Elrza[de are relat:ves _within the fourth degree of
consangumrty . :

Legal Proceedings
The Group is not aware of any legal proceeding/s during the last five {5) vears up to the present,

involving the members of its Board of Directors, Executive Officers or their property before any court
of law or administrative body in the Philippines or elsewhere. Moreover, the company is not in
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possession of any information indicating that the members of its Board of Directors or Executive =~

Officers have been convicted by .final ;udgment of any offense punishable under the Iaws of . the
Phlhppmes or.of any other country ' :

a) Certaln Relatlonshlps and Related Transactlons

Mr Manuel V. Pangt[man Atty. Ray C. Espmosa and Mr. Christopher ‘H. Young hold the

- . ‘positions .of CEO and Managing Director, ‘Associate Director and Chief Financial Officer,

respectively of First Pacific Company Limited. . The First Pacific Group, through First Pacific

. ‘Natural Resources Holdings BV (FPNRHBV) and First Agrr Holdings Corp., owns 50, 90% of the

'_"h).'_

:outstanding capital stock of the company as of 31 December2015. ‘Mr. Pedro F. Roxas is also
.- the Executive Chairman ‘and the ‘President & CEO of Roxas and Company, Inc. (RCI). 'RCI
_ .owns 30, 96% of the outstandlng capltal stock of the company as of 31 December 20‘15 RN

'There |s no transactron or proposed transactlon durrng the Iast two (2) frsca] years to whrch the_

" 'company was or is to be a party in relation to: any ‘director, any nominee for election as director, any
'_'securlty holder of certain record or beneﬂmal owner or management or any member of the rmmedrate o

_ famllles of the dlrectors R : . AR .

Drsagreement W|th the Company

L No drrector has dec!med 1o stand. for re- electron to the Board of Directors since the date of the Iast 3
" mesting of shareholders because of a dlsagreement wrth the. company on any matter re[atrng to |ts .
_operatlons poI|C|es and practtces _ : : _ .

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTEVE OFFICERS E

- 'b) Dlrectors

Art. 19 of the By—Laws of the company prowdes that the Board of Drrectors shal[ be glven 6% of the'

b)

" net income of the corporatlon before tax to be dlstnbuted as fees in the fotlowmg manner: 2% to the- :
o 'Executwe Committee and 4% to the Board of Directors. 'Each member of the Board of Dlrectors and
. " the Board 'of Advisors. receives a per:diem of 25,000 for every meeting attended. Likewise, each
. ‘member of the Executive Committee, Audit Committee, Executive Compensation Committee .and
: Corporate Govemance Commrttee recelves a per dlem of 225 000 for every meetinq attended

Executlve Offlcers

Fiscal | . ' ' L L Other_Anﬁn‘aE :

.. ‘Name and Principal pesition Year Salary . - [ - Bonus -| Compensation
The CEQ and four most highly .~~~ | 2018 AR A
compensated Executive Officers: ' L o SR =

" Hubert D. Tubio - Presrdent and o . - ' : '

CEO

:Celso T. Dimarucut - EVP and CFO
“Arcadio S. Lozada - EVP-COO, .
Sugar Business Unit '

Luis O. Villa-Abrille - EVP-COQ,
Alcohol Business Unit - '
Florencio M. Mamauag, Jr. - VP-
Legal, Compliance Cfficer and
Chief Information Officer P52,271,928 6,413,994 $720,000

All other officers and directors as a

group unnamed® 29,680,332 2,473,361 960,000

The CEO and four most highly 2017

compensated Executive Officers: P45,383,196 P5,741,933 P3,180,000
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o Hubert D. Tubib_President and

.. CEO

» CelsoT. Dlmarucut EVP and CFO

+  Arcadio S. Lozada - EVP-COO, '
Sugar Business Unit

e Luis O. Villa-Abrille - EVP- COO

-+ Alcohol Business Unit

» “Fiorencio M. Mamauag, Jr. - VP-
" Legal, Compliance Officer and
-Chief Information Officer -

‘| CEO and four most highly compensated
-{ Executive Officers for the ensuing year:.
RN HubertD Tublo Premdent and o

| . .Celso T Dlmarucut . EVP. and CF_O

e . Luis O. Villa-Abrille - EVP_ COO

The estimated compensation ofthe - | 2019 -

“CEQ-

e Arcadio S. Lozada - EVP COO
o 3Sugar Busmess Unit : s

-__AIcohoIBusmessUnlt B L BT ol : L
e GeorgeT. Cheung -.SVP.... .. - | - 547352912.00 '-?789215200 o P

All other officers and d|rectors as a

Loroupurnames 7 | ] 24610400 - 409386400

iE Fees and remuneratlon of the members of the Board of Directors and Board of Advnsors

ELECTION OF EXTERNAL AUDITORS

_ -The Audlt Commlttee recommends the re elec’uon of the Audltmg Flrm of SyC|p Gorres Velayo &
" Company as external auditors -for fiscal year 2018-2019, -The audltlng firm was elected as external -
sauditors “during - ‘the . ‘annual - meeting . of “the ‘company’s . 'shareholders on \February 15, 2017."
- 'Representatives of the firm are expected to be present at the annhual meeting of stockholders on April 3,
2018, “They will be given the opportunity to make a statement and.are expected to be available to -
:respond to approprtate quest[ons ‘Ms.. Aileen L. Saringan is the Partner assigned to handle the
-._'companysaccount : T SRR I I S,

External Audit Fees and Serwces

_ L Audlt & Related Fees " ‘TaxFees = |  Other Fees )
Aggregate fees billed by .~ ' Lo N
Auditors for the last two (2) - Php5 940 957 00 Php2,778,600.00 Not Applicable . -
Fiscal Years T '

Pohmes and Procedures

The Audit Commlttee (the Committee) confers WIth the external auditors.at the beglnnlng of every flscal
year to discuss the audit plans and programs for the year. - After the audit plans and programs are
approved, the Committee then determines the reasonableness of the fees proposed by the -external

auditors for audit and other related services. The Committee approves the quarterly financial statements - '

of the company before they are presented for the approval of the Board of Directors and thereafter
submitted to the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE)
as part of the company’s compliance with the requirements of the Revised Securities Regulation Code
{SRC). The Committee also approves the yearly audited financial statements of the company before they
are submitfed for the consideration and approval of the Board of Directors and thereafter submitted to the
Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR), the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and the Philippine
Stock Exchange (PSE} as part of the company's compliance with the requirements of the Philippine
internal Revenue Code and the Revised Securities Regulation Code (SRC).
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The Committee is tasked under its revised Charter fo a) develop and maintain free and open means of
communication with the Board, the independent auditors, the internal auditors, and the financial and
general management of the company; b) to perform any other activities as the Committee deems
appropriate, or as requested by the Board, consistent with its Charter, the company’s By-laws and other
applicable laws; ¢) to maintain and update, as approptiate, its Charter; and d) fo report reguiarly to the
Board and io update the Board on any significant issues that arise with respect to financial reporting and
disclosures and other material issues. -~ Additionally, the Committee provides . oversight on financial
reporting and disclosures, oversight on risk management over31ght on internal audit functlon and mternal
controls and over3|ght on external aud:t : :

- There has. been no drsagreement with the external audltor, Sycrp Gorre's Velayo & Co., on aecountmg,

financial concerns, and any. disc[osures in the’ Consohdated Fmancral Statements sznce rts first e]ectlon as
: extema! audltors of the company on Februa[y 15, 2017 : o R S : i

B Flnanclat Statements and other Reports

The flnanc:lal statements and other fmanmal disclosures for the fi scaE year end[ng September 30, 2018 '

and First Quarter ending December 31, 2018 are ‘contained in the. company’s Consolidated Financial U

_Statements with correspondlng e Managements Discussion and Analysis .or Plan of Operatmns for the

'same periods. These are attached as Annex "A” SEC Form 17-A Annual Report for the Flscal Year-

:endlng December 31 2018 i

.'Items for Ratlf' catlon AII Acts and Resolutlons of the Board of Dnrectors |

.. _Matertal actlons or resolutlons submltted for ratlflcatlon are summanzed be[ow

: '-_October 27, 2017 Res:gnatlon of Mr PauE Edwm Lazaro as Assmtant Vlce Premdent - Internaf Audlt
.'Decembers 2017 Board Actlons . | |

1 Approved RHI s Audlted Ftnancra! Statements and Management Dlscussmn and Analysrs for the
tlscal year, endmg 30 September 2017 and ' : o .

2. Approved the. holdlng of the Annual Stockho]ders Meeting on 21 February 2018 to be held at = -

the. Manrla Polo Club and settlng the Record Date for the sard Meetlng on 29 December 2017

January 8, 2018 — Appomtment of Mr. Jose Manuet L Mapa as VIce-Presrdent and General Manager of
Agnbusmess Development Corporatlon (ADC) : :

January 10, 2018 Restgnatlon of Earl Eric Nestor H. Ferrer as Vice Pres:dent - Informatlon and
Commumcataon Technology : : .

January 23, 2018 ~ Appointment of Jhoel F’ Raquedan as Vice Pre5|dent Group Head, Legal &
Corporate Affalrs : . _ _' :

February 1, 2018 - Appomtment of Ms Josephme M. Logrono as Assistant ViCB Pre3|dent and, Group
Head of Internal Audlt . .
February 7, 2018 — Board Approvals:

1. Approved RHi's Interim Financial Statements and Management Discussion and Analysis for the
First Quarter ending 31 December 2017,

2. Approved the Press Release of the Corporation:

19



3." Approved the postponement of the Annual Stockholders Mesting from 24 February 2018 to 26
March 2018 still to be held at the Turf Room Manlla Polo Club, McKmley Road, Forbes Fark,
_Makatr Clty,

4, C_onf_l_rmed the_appoin_tme_nt of the following office_rs to the po_sitions as stated:

a. Jose Manuel V. Mapa as Vlce-Pres|dentheneral Manager RHl Agri-Business Development
Corporation; '
-b. Atty. Jhoel P, Raquedan as Assrstant Corporate Secretaryl Vrce Presrdent  Group Head Legal and .
‘Corporate Affairs/ Compliance Officer; - . .

. ©. Josephine M, Logrofio as AVP- Group Head, Internal Audit; and : ' ' :
- d. Atty. Ma. Hazel L. Rabara-Retardo as Data Protection Oﬁrcer in addltlon to her role as AVP =
'._Governance and ComplrancelAsmstant Corporate Secretarleeputy Compllance Offrcer and

. .5 Approved the amendment of Artrcle 8 of the By-l_aws of the Corporatron changrng the date of the

R annual sharehotders meetmg to every second Wednesday of March of each tlscal year

S February 15 2018 Promotlon of exrstmg offrcers of the RHI Group to Executlve rank posrtlons '

Jaypee V Jlmenez as AVP Head Procurement and Materlals Management RHl
~:Simon P. Turno, Il as AVP = Factory Operahons Head, CADPI; :

Genaro B. Bernabe as AVP - - Factory Operations Head, CACI; and s
Damaso T Agudeo as AVP — Factory Operatlons Head SCBl '

.March 2, 2018 Postponement of Annuaf Shareholders Meetlng prevlously scheduled on March 26, 2018 o .

o 'toAprrl 11,2018..

S March 21 20‘1 8= Appolntment of Mr Jaynel Sulangr as V|ce-Presrdent Information_& Commp_nica_tions_ '
__Technolongead T T ST

Apl"ll 11 2018 Results of the Organrzahonal Board Meetrng of Roxas Holdmgs Enc

' rMay4 2018 Board Approvals

R Approved RHl s Interlm Flnan0|al Statements and Management Drscussron and Analysrs for o
- the Second Half of the current Fiscal Year, ending 31 March 2018 Do :

12, Approved the Press Release of the Corporation; and, - : ' '

3. - Confirmed the appomtment of Mr Jaynel R Sulangr as VlCE Presrdent Informaﬂon and -
Communlcaﬂons Technclogy o

AugustB 2018 Board Approvals .
“1.  Approved RHI's Interim Financial Statements and Management Dlscuss|on and Analy5|s for
the Third Quarter of the current Fiscal Year, ending 30 June 2018; ' .

2. Approved the Press Release of the Corporation; and, '

3. Confirmed the appointment of Mr. Jose B Vlllanueva i as Vice Premdent—Chref Manufactunng
Offlcer Alcohol Busrness Unit. R . : . '

VOTING PROGEDURES

(a) The vote required for approval or election.

(1) Minutes of Previous Stockholders’ Meeting - majority of the shares represented at the
meeting

2) Chairman’s and President's Report - majority of the shares represented at the meeting

(3) Audited Financial Statements - majority of the shares represented at the meeting
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' (4) - '-Ratlfrcatron of Ail Acts -and Resolutrons of the Board of Dlrectors - majonty of the shares .
represented at the meeting

(3) . Election of Directors - plurality of vote of the stookhotders owning or represen’ung a majorlty
' of the outstanding shares :

(6) :Election of External Auditors - plurality of the shares represented at the meetlng
(b) The method by whioh votes wrl[ he counted

Subject to cumulatlve votlng in the eleotlon of Dlreotors each stockholder shall: have one vote for each
share of stock entitied to vote and registered in his name at record date. Countlng of votes will be done
:by representatives of. Banco de Oro - Trust & lnvestments Group, the company’s. stock. transfer agent,
and Atty. ‘Ma. Hazel Rabara-Retardo in her capacnty as Assistant Corporate Secretary, all of whom shall

o ‘serve as members of the e[ectlon commt’ttee Votlng sha[l be done through ralsmg of hands

THE COMPANY UNDERTAKES TO PROVIDE WITHOUT CHARGE A COPY OF fTS _I-\_NNUAL

. 'REPORT FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2018 ON SEC FORM 17-A

' PLEASE ADDRESS ALL REQUESTS FOR COPIES OF THE AFORESAID REPORTS TO ATTY MA R

; ."HAZEL L RABARA-RETARDO 14F Net One Center 26“‘ cor 3"’ Avenue, Bonlfacro Global C|ty, IR

| Tagmg, Metro Manila

SIGNATURE

S 'Pursuant to the requwements of the Securitles Regulat:on Code the issuer has duly caused this report to. . '
.- be sagned on |ts behalf by the undersrgned hereunto du[y authorrzed . ch '

ROXAS HOLDINGS iNC

. :_B'y; ._

‘March 26, 2019 .
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Number of Shares Repres'ented
PROXY N
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS

k 'That l, the underS|gned a stockholder of Roxas Ho]drngs Inc., a corporat;on duly organrzed and
emstmg under.and by wrtue of the Iaws ‘of the Repubhc of the Philippines, 'do hereby. name,

constitute. and appornt o : _, orin his absence, the Chalrman of the Meeting, . :

. as my contrnurng proxy, with. raght of substttut[on and revocat:on to represent me and vote all.shares .

-registered in my name in the books of Roxas Holdings, ‘Inc. or owned by me, ‘at the annual. meet:ng N

: :'of stockholders to be held on Aprrl 30 2019 and any adjournment/s thereof upon the foltowrng

(1)"_- CalltoOrder R ; :

" {2) . . Certification of . Notlce and Quorum _ ' B ' :

(3} - Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Meetrng of Stockholders held on Aprrl 11, 2018
R 3] '.:Presentatlon and- Approval of the Annual Report to Stockholders - ' _
~-(5) - Ratification of All Acts and Resolutions of the. Board of Dlrectors and Management SRR

:(6) - Election of the Board of Directors .-~ - S R TN R P
) - Appomtment of. External Audrtors
-1 (8)... - OtherMatters . .~

"(9).._' -Adjournment e

as fully to aII ;ntents and purposes as i mrght do |f present and actmg in. person wrth thrs proxy bemg S

: _suspended in every instance where 1 personally attend ‘and formally register my. presence at the o
‘meeting. - This proxy revokes any- and all'proxies which | may have previously executed in favor ofa
- person or persons other than the person named above.  This proxy shall remain ‘in full force and

- effect until specrﬂceily revoked by me through. notice in-writing Iodged wrth the Corporate Secretary _'3 -

- of Roxas Ho]dlngs inc. before the scheduled trme of the meetmg

IN WITNESS WHEREOF I have hereto set my hand thrs . day of R ':201'9.5# o L

_-Signetpre O\__rer Printeq_Nam_e -

'Add_ress of Stoc_kho.ld_e_r. T

' (N B lf a Proxy is rssued by a corporatron it should be in the form of a Board Reso.'utron L
certified -by - the. Corporate -Secretary or, ‘in lieu thereof, please attach the Secretarys
- :Certificate . quotrng the Board Reso.'utron author.'zmg the Corporate Offrcer to execute the -

Proxy )
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SEC Registration Number
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_ No of Stockholders
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Name of Contact Person

- (Business Address: No._ Street City/T own/Provinge) .- B

‘Department requiring the
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. COMPANY INFORMATION

Company’s Telephon_e Number/s

(02) 771-7800

"Annual Meeting
Month/Day

2nd Wednesday of March

' Second_ary Licen_oe Type, If

o Mobite Nomber.

-Appl_ica_ble
IN[1IA]

. Fiscal Year
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'.CO_NTACT PERSON INFORMATION -

" The designed contact person MUST be an Officer of the Corporation ;

- Email Address

Telephone Number .

Ma. Hazel L. Rabara-Retardo

hazel rabara@rhl com ph

_ Mobile Number

) Contact Person’s Address

{02) 771-7800 .

14th Floor Net One Center, 26th cor. 3rd Avenue Bonifacio Globai Clty, Tagung, Metro Mamla

Note: In case of death, resxgnatlon or cessation of office of the officer designated as contact person, such
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.OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION.CODE AND .SECT
~OF THE CORPORAT?ON CODE OF THE PHILIPPINES :

SEC FORM 1?-A AS‘ AMENQED

I —
PR R up
A AR R Ly

. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 201 _
_SEC Edentlflcatlon Number 15-A.,.....; 3 BIR Tax Identlflcatlon No 000~290 538

3 Exact name of issuer. as speclfled in lts charter ; ROXAS HOLDINGS INC

(SEC Use Only)
- tndustry __assrflcatlon Code

14th Floor, Net One Center, 26th corner 3rd Avenue, SR e Ly
~Boniifacio Global City, Tagulig, Metro Nlanlla T A 1634 .
'Address ofpnnclpat offlce S R " Postal Code -

(02)771-7800 : . '
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.Securltles reglstered pursuant to Sectlons 8 and 12 of the SRC, or Sec 4 and 8 of the RSA
'Tltte of Each Cfass EEEENE R 'A " Number of Shares of Common Stock -

e Outstandlng and-Amount of Debt Outstandrng

Common Shares UETE S D 1,565,579,279
Are any or aII of these securlttes listed ona Stock Exchange
Yes [x} No[ ] |

I yes, state the name of such stock exchange and the classes of securttles listed therein:
PhlitQane Stock Exchange, Inc SRR : Common Shares '
Check whether the issuer: . o ' L .

{(a) has filed aII reports requlred to be filed by Section 17 of the SRC and SRC Rule 17.1
thereunder or Section 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule 11(a)-1 thereunder, and Sections 26 and
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for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports);

Yes[x] = Nol]
(b) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past ninety (90) days.
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B -13 State the aggregate market value of the votmg stock hefd by non-at‘fihates of the reglstrant The
" aggregate market value shall be computed by reference to the price ‘at which the 'stock was sold, -
or the average bid and asked prices of such stock, as of a specified date within sixty (60) days
prior to the date of filing. If a determination as to whether a particular person or entity is an affiliate
cannot be made without involving unreasonable effort and expense, the aggregate market value of
the common stock held by non-affiliates may be calculated on the basis of assumptions - '
reasonable under the circumstances, prowdecl the assumptlons are set forth in thrs Form. (See _
_deflmtion of affilrate in "Annex B’ ) - :

Assumlng that the number of shares held by non- afflllates as of December 31, 2018 is
:254,546,187 and assuming further that the closing trading price as of the same date is .
£2.67 per share then the aggregate value of votrng shares held by ncn—afflllates as of the sald
" date is P679, 638 319 29. _ : : -
14, Check whether the |ssuer has flled aI! documents and reports requrred to be flled by Sectlon 17 of
“the Code subsequent to the distrlbutlon of securrtles under a plan conflrmed by a court or the e,
_ Comm;ssron ' : ..

-'._'Yesr] No{] ';:'_’_-thAppiicable-rxr' _-

DOCUMENTS ENCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

15, If any of the fotlowmg decuments are mcorporated by reference brrefly descrlbe them and |dent|fy e
R _the part of SEC Form 17~A |nto which the document is mcorporated ' : S

{a )Any annual report to securrty holders RN
(b) Any mformatron statement flled pursuant to SRC Rule 20;

' ( ) Anyr prospectus flled pursuant to SRC Rule 8 1.



PART | - BUStNESS ANE) GENERAL INFORMATEON

itemn 1.
Htem 2.
‘Hem 3.
) _Item 4.

Busmess _

Property -

Legal Proceedings '

Submrssmn of Matters to a Vote of Securlty Holders I

'_ PART n OPERATIONAL AND F!NANCIAL INFORMATION _'

B Item 5.

L ltem6
ol ltem 7
wo ltem 8

Market for Issuers Common Equrty and Related Stockholder NEatters .

- Mahagement's Discussion and Analysrs or: Pian of. Operatlon
:Financial Statements S

‘Changes in and D:sagreements wrth Accountants on Accountlng and

Flnanmal Drsclosures e

L PART EII CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATEON - L

| 'Item 9.

Drrectors and Executrve Offlcers of the Issuer

' fltem 10. ‘Executive Compensatlon

~"Item 11. ‘Security Ownership of Certain Beneflcrat Owners and Management _ -

}!tem 12 Certaln Relatronshlps and Related Transactrons L

"_'-PART rv CORPORATE GOVERNANCE '

ZItem 13 Corporate Governanoe

_. 3PART V EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES

. .Item 14 Exhibrts and Reports on SEC Form 17-C

- Page

5_10

.M

11
13-

20

200
29

- i

31




| PART1-BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORNATION
!tem 1. Business
Busmess Development

Roxas Holdings, Inc.. (RHI or the Parent Company), doing busmess under the name -and style of
CADP - Group, was organized in the Philippines and registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) on.October 30, 1930 for the purpose .of holding and investing in corporations
‘engaged in the business of manufactunng sugar and allied products. The corporate Ilfe of the. Parent _
Company has been extended for another 50 years untll November 'I 2030 o :

B In Ju!y 1996 the Parent Company offered its shares to the pubi;c through an |n|t|al publlc offermg On
August 8, 1996, the shares of stock of the Parent Company were trsted |n the Phlllpplne Stock -
. Exchange (PSE) as "ROX" R

Through the years RHI became an mtegrated sugar company that has expanded its: bu_sine_ss'f'
mterests to mclude b!oethanol and co- generatron RHI has the followmg subs:drarles R

: Percentageowanershlp . - Noncontrultlng Interest - St .' R Pilncipal Place of
0m amr Coms ame 2017 016 ¢ 7 NatureofBusiness - . Business
” Central Azucarera Don Pedro, Inc. (CADPI) 10000% . 100.00% '-m_n.oo%_. S e - R - . Production and selling of zaw . "Tago!gCItyand L
T L L : : s P and refined sugar, mol Nasugbu, Batang;
- and refated products LT
+ Contral Azucareradala Carlote, Inc. (CACY) . 100.00% . 10000% - 10000% .~ .0 i = productionand sellingof raw " TagulgCityand
BT P B T AR L ’ ' el : _“sugar and molasses . ° NaglosOcc_l_d_emal_" :
| CADP Insurance Agency, Inc. (CIAL} - :_ B 100,00% . - 100.00% 100.00% E o . = P Insurance agency '. MakatiCity
Roxal Bleenergy Corp. (rac)t R . . iOO._OD% 100.00% 100.00% - g - - Productlon and seliing Nagros Occldentai

-of bicethanal fusl and trading of -
e _gaods stich as sugar
- * and related products

L 'CADP PortServi;:es_, tng, (cpsu '_ 100.00% 100,00% - 100.00% - - 0 - e e Providing anclllary services .~ Makati City
: RHE Agri Business Development Curporation _ '100.00% 100,00% - 100.00% . Lo- S - . - Ag;iculturalbuslnes_s . Makati City ’

: : (RABDC) . ol . . : : . . o o T

Roxas Pacific Bloenergy Corporation (RPBC) CW0.00% . 100.0_0% 100.00% ' ) - - = Holding company for Nagros _Occldental

bioethanol investmants

RHI Pacific Commerciat Corp, [RHIPCC) ™ -100.00% . 100.00% ° 100.00% - - - . *. " sellngarmofproducts - - Makati City
L B S : T : : . : . : . ofREiiGroup R
San Carlos Bloenergy, Inc. (SCBN ™ . .93,35% 9335% . 9335% " 6.65% 6,65% '6.65% Production  Negros Occidental

and seIIlng of hloatbanol fuej

Nalalln Agei Vantures, lnc. (NAVI) 95.82_%_ 95.82% - 8B.91% 4.18% 4.18% 13.69% . Agricultural and industrial Negros Cccidental
. s . L B : . Lo . . T : ’ : ; development - :
Roxas Power Carperation (RPC) . ’ 50,00% -50.00% 50.00% . 50% ©50% 508 . -Saleofelectricly - Masugbu, Batangas
Nonhsastem Port Stumge Corporation - 100.00%  100.00% B - =~ ' .~ " Owningthedapotandstorage  Negros Occldental
(NPSC) . . SR : . ¢ facffities used by SCBI S :

™ Direct ownarship of 20.53% and indirect ownershin through CADP! of 79.47%.

:’; Incorporated wholly owned subsrdrarres in 2018, RABDC started commemfaf operations in 2018 whrla RHIPCC has yel | ro start commercral
operations.

B Acquired in April 2015 through RPBC.

Shortened corporale term fo Seplember 30, 2016.

:1; Indirect ownership through RPBC.
M

RHI also holds a 45.09% equity [nvestment in HPCO, a sugar company located in Silay City, Negros
Gecidental.

[3H]

RHI and subsidiaries, together with its affiliate, Hawaiian-Philippine Company (HPCO), collectively
referred herein as “the Group”, is one of the biggest raw sugar producers in the country with a
dbmbined capacity of thirty six thousand five hundred (36,500) metric tons cane per day. The Group
a]so owns the second !argest sugar refinery wrth a capamty of eighteen thousand (18,000} Lkg. per
1
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:"_""day and the two blggest ethanol producers m the country wrth a comblned darly productlon capaclty of' & :E::. :": G

two hundred eighty five thousand (285,000) liters,

Amid the challenges that come with the ASEAN integration, RHI thrlves in a strong end young
domestrc market and is gradually settlng |ts srghts in the region. '

Changes in Corporate Struotur

As at September 30 2013, the Parent Company is 66% owned by Roxas and Company, Inc. (RCI), a
publicly-listed- company mcorporated and domiciled in the Philippines. . On November 29, 2013, RCI ..
- 'sold its 27% equity interest in the Parent Gompany to First Pacific Natural Resources Holdings BVI
~Limited. (FPNRHBV), a submdrary of First Pacific Company, Ltd. (First Pacific), a Hong Kong -based
- 'company RCI remarned the major shareholder of the Parent Company wrth 35% eqmty -

'On February 28 2015 F|rst Pacrfrc Agn Holdrngs Corpora’non (FPAHC), a Phllapplne affrlrate of .
'.:FPNRHBV acqwred 241,780, 709 -treasury shares of ‘the ‘Company amounting - to 1.7 billion

) .___representrng 24% interest in the Company As a result equrty mterest of RCI in the Parent Company | :
- was further dlluted from 35% to 28% _ . Co e

| ':On May 2016 the Parent Company oompleted |ts stock rrghts offermg for 266 753 974 outstandlng '

- common shares of RHI, with par value of #1.00 each, on a pre-emptive basis to holders of common. -

_‘shares of the capital stock of RHI as of May 4, 2016 (the "Record Date") at an offer prrce of 4,19 per . |

- o Rights Share (the “Offer Prlce")

L On June 8, 2016 the SEC approved the amendment in the Parent Company s artrcles of rncorporatlon
~“fo change the registered address to 14F, Net One Center 26th cor. 3rd Avenue, Bonifacio Global City,

: '.Tagurg, Metro Maniia from 6th Floor Cacho Gonzales Bu:ldrng, 101 Agurrre Street Legaspr Vrllage I _. .

- Makati. Crty

Oon. February 1 2017, the BOD approved the rssuance of convertlble debt securltles amountlng to - E
523,750,000 to FPNRHBYV, convertible to 125, ODO 000 mrli:on common shares of RHE at the optron of
the’ holder and bears annual rnterest at 3% SRR : P _ S

On February 15 2017 the shareholders approved the amendment of the Parent Company s artrcles of o

| “incorporation to increase the. authorrzed capital stock from :1,500,000,000 to 2,000,000,000 divided

- “into 2,000,000,000 with par value of £1 .00 per share. On February 17,2017, FPNRHBV exercrsed its |

. gonversion r;ghts in respect of the convertible debt securities to be issued out of the increase in
-authorized . capital . stock :at -a conversion rate of P4 19 for every common share or a total of
125,000, 000 new common shares ERR : : :

On JuEy 14 2017, the Parent Company 8 applrcatron for increase in authorrzed cap|tal stock usrng the
-convertlble debt securrues as payment for subscrlption was approved by SEC. L _

_Busmess Descﬂptron _ -'

RHiis the Eargest integrated sugar busmess and the brggest ethanol producer in the Philippines. At the
forefront of the Philippine sugar .and ethanol industries, it is -a trusted brand recognrzed for |ts _
contrrbutrons and legacy in the areas of sugar and bio- ethanol productron . . :

With a history that is close to a century, RHI owns and operates the largest milling operations in the
Philippines as well as the second largest sugar refiner, and two of the country's pioneering bioethanol
plants. Together, the complementary locations of the sugar mills and ethancl plants enable RHI to
setve customers throughout the Philippines. ' '



(@

'.3;":Tollmg/Refmmg The Group, through CADPI offers toEIrng or reflnlng serwces to raw sugar : R

Principal Products, Markets and Relative Con't_rib_ution_ to Consolidated .Ret_renue B

RHI has reorganized its four subsidiaries to form iwo Strategic Business Units (SBUs) defined
along its two core product imes sugar and bloethanol offerlng the foliowmg prlnclpai products and
services: : . _

1. Sugar The Group produces raw and reflned sugar in different grades Big mdustrlal Users,

including food and beverage and pharmaceutical companies, prefer the Group's premium raw
~.sugar for blending in their own products, Customers with unique product specifications, such

as packaging and cfellvery also rely on the Group to. prowde them wrth customlzed sugar -
.'sotut:ons ' : . :

o 2 Broethanol The Group, through |ts subsutlarres RBC and SCBI produces ethanoi for Iocal orI

companies in compllance w1th the Brofuels Aot of 2006 whlch mandates the blendrng of 10% _ i
_ -.ethanol in gasoirne S . s S _ _ :

B :OWHEI’S

“The . relatlve contr;butlon of. each pnnmpal product and service -to consohdated revenue for the_'_-.
. -years ended September 30, 2018 2017 and 2016fo||0w o o D :

F-'rscal Year Ended September 30 L

R L - 2018 2017 . 2016 ..

: .-'Reflned sugar T R '..'--_47.-2% e 383% o 31.9%

CBioethanol o e i 2706% e 32.9% 0 34.9%
Rawsugar. - 0 0 194% - 0 21.8% ¢ : 27 9%

L Others . ¢ C69% T T.0% 5.3%.

1000%_' - 1000% 1000%

'.:.CADPI and CACI seII sugar maznly to the domesttc market but cater to forelgn buyers when '_
. opportunity arises. -On the other-hand, molasses is sold by CADPI and CACI only. to the domestlc o

»

8 - -_market RBC and SCBI seII anhydrous aIcohoE dlrectly to domestlc oil compames

Drstrrbutron Methods

' Dlstrlbution is through dlrect seliing to various traders and mdustnaE ‘users. They are not-
E 'dependent on specmc entlties for the dlstrlbutlon of thelr products :

" 'RBC and SCBI sell bioethanol fuel to the domestlc market darectly to 0|I companles Majonty of .
: _the ma}or 0|I companles purchase therr ethanol reqwrements from the Group : .

(c)

_Competrtron S

--Over the years, RHI has developed SO|Id relatlonshaps with high. quallty tler one customers
Through its excellent level of service and reliability, and quality products, RHI has established a
long-term . relationship with its customers, whlch mclude multlnatlonal food and beverage and
pharmaceutlcal compames .

CADPI and CAC!H supply sugar to entities engaged in pharmaceutical, food, and beverage
businesses, among others. Raw sugar is also supplied to households and small and medlum—
sized enterprlses through wholesalers and retailers.

Raw sugar producers in the country include URC-Balayan in Batangas and Victorias Milling
Company, Inc., Binalbagan-lsabela Sugar Company, HPCO and Lopez Sugar Corporation in
Negros. The main competitors of CADPI's refined sugar production are Victorias Milling Company,
Inc., Lopez Sugar Corporatlon and Centfral Azucarera de Tarlacin Centrat Luzon



G '."':_RBC and SCBI suppty broethanol fuel to 0|I companies Som - f:.'IfS competrtors are Green_ L
‘Futures Innovations, Inc., Leyte Agri Corp and Cavrte Biofuels Producers Inc, -0 : -

(d)

Sources and Availability of Raw Malerials

CADPI and CACI source its sugar cane requirements from planters and traders in Batangas and
Negros, respectively. RBC sources its molasses requirements from CAC| and from various
planters and traders in Negros SCBI also sources its sugar cane and molasses requrrements
from RBC, pianters and traders m San Carios Clty, Negros Occrdental : :

_Sourcmg of cane has been chaIIengmg in previous. crop years As such, the management created

:_ RHI-ADC to assist in cane sourcing requrrements of the Group. RHI-ADG aims to improve farm .

"productnnty in the rnllllng dlstrrcts lncrease the volume of canes delrvered to RHI mrt]s and create -

© . hew revenue streams. = . *

';The Groups prrnczpal supphers are . (i) AII A5|an Countertrade (u) Flrst Farmers Holding"

- -Corporation (iif) Phoenix Petroleum Phifippines, Inc..(iv). Hawaiian Philippine.Company (v) Lopez ...

'-"-Sugar Corporation (v} -Dos : Hermanas - Multi- -purpose .cooperative - (vu) Universal . Robma '
: -Corporatron (\IIII) Oro Allado Commoditles lnc and (lx) Sagay Central Inc T s

o The Group S maln contracts W|th prmmpat supplrers are as follows

1 "Haulmg Ser\nces Contracts

| _ The Group has agreements wuth varioys service prowders for haulmg ser\nces for the '

"transport of sugarcane from the plantatrons to mllllng facmties Haulrng expenses are recorded L

'_'as part of the cost of. raw and reflned sugar so!d

2. Manpower Supply Contract |

B "The Group has vanous agreements wuth serwce prowders for the suppty of manpower for the o :

'upkeep, malntenance and contrnuous operatlon of the Group s sugar mrtts

3 '.Mziimg Contracts o

(&)

0

The Group has mllilng contracts with the planters whrch prowde for a 35%. and 65% shar:ng
~ between the Mills and the planters, respectlvely, of sugar,” molasses and other sugar cane by-
B '-'products excludmg bagasse produced every crop year :

“In December 2017, m|II|ng contracts of CADPI with the ptanters were rewsed fo prowde for a
" 32% and. 68% shanng between CADP! and the planters respectively. This agreement is
~ effective until crop. year 2021 to 2022 Renewat |s upon mutual consent of both partres_
: thereafter : :

Dependence to Smgfe ora Few Customers

The Group has establlshed Iong term relationships with various customers and is not dependent

ona srngle or a few customers to generate revenue, -Most of these customer retatlonshlps have
been in place for as Iong as 15 years, with some companies sourging sugar from RHI since its
inception. Furthermore, 'with its ‘wide nefwork of customers, the Group enjoys customer
diversification and is not reliant on only a select group of clients. '

Transactr_ons with and/or Dependence on Related Pan‘res

Please refer to Note 19, Refaled Pan‘y Transactions and Balances to the consolidated financial
statements.



(g) Patents Trademarks and Copynghts R DR PR

RHI, CADPI, CACI and Roxol have the followmg reglstered trademarks

Company 3 Trademarks

Roxas Holdmgs Inc ' RHI doing busmess as CADP Group and Device -

' ' ' | Gentral Azucarera Don Pedro, Inc. and Device

Central Azucare_ra Don_ Pedro, Inc. | Nature Sweet (Stylized) Don Pedro Emblem o
S R s o G Speclal Raw Sugar '

- S T S o 3Central Azucarera de La Carlota Inc
i Central Azucarera de La Carlota, Inc. - ‘Cane Best '
o e aneraw Speoral Raw Sugar

o 'ROXO] Bloenergy Corporatlon BRI -:Roxol B|oenergy Corporataon and-Device

(h) Need for government approva.fs of ,ormcrpa! products = _' S 3-'j : :

_ "-'The Group s sugar busmess prmmpally reguiated by Republrc Act No 10659 othervwse known as. R
- the Sugarcane Industry Development Act of 2015, and the policies and the rules and regutatrons S
' _of ‘the ' Philippine Sugar 'Reguiatory -Administration . ("SRA") ‘while -its - bioethano! ‘business is .~ -
‘principally regulated by RA 9367, otherwise known as the Biofuels Act of 2008, and the rules and_ ¥

regulatlons tssued by the Phlllppme Department of Energy (“DOE”)
| (i) Effect of exrstmg or probable governmental regu!atrons on the busmess - 5 -

'Republrc Act No 10963 Tax Reform for Acceleratlon and Inclusnon (TRAIN}

= _The Iaw lmposes an ex0|se tax of six pesos (Php 8, 00) per llter on sugar sweetened beverages N .

. and twelve pesos (Php 12. 00) per:liter on sweetened beverages using ‘high fructose comn syrup,
--among others. It tasked the Food and Drug Administration to requrre manufacturers and importers

of swestened beverages to indicate the type of sweetener used in the label, and the equivalent
* volume of liter per serving if the beverage is in powder form. The law resulted to a.decrease in the -

. __'use and.importation of ‘high - fructose corn syrup domestically, and the resurgence of the use of
C 'sugar by manufacturers of. sweetened beverages N : . ; :

| Sugar lndustry Development Act )

Repubhc Act No. 10659 otherwrse known as the Sugar Industry Development Act of 2015

(“SIDA™) was . eénacted to .law on 27 March 2015, The SIDA was passed {0 promote the
. .competitiveness . of ‘the ‘sugarcane - mdustry by . providing for the establishment . of various -

B government-led .program which ‘aim to maximize the utilization of sugarcane ‘resources, and

increase the incomes of -farmers through .improved productivity, product diversification, job

generation, and increased efficiency of sugar mills. On 4 August 2015, the lmplementmg Rules
and Regulahon of the SIDA (the "SIDA IRR") were approved . '

The Productrvlty Improvement Programs under the SIDA mclude the Block Farm Program wherem

small farms can consolidate to be able {o take advantage of the economies of scale in the
production of sugarcane. Those who will not qualtfy for the Block Farm Program, can avail of the
Farm Support Program which will include the provision of socialized credit, farm management and
technical assistance, and professmnal services. On the other hand, the Farm Mechanization
Program focuses on encouraging and training farmers to utilize appropriate -agricultural

machineries and equipment necessary for the efficient planting, cultivation, care and maintenance,

harvesting and handiing of sugarcane. Finally, to facilitate the transport of sugarcane fo mills and

distilleries and enhance the marketing and export of sugar and other products derived from
sugarcane, farm-to-mill roads and |rr|gat|on facalltles shall be prowded :



| '.""'."':'-':The SRA under the Department of Agrrculture |s the marn agency overseerng the sugar rndustry AT
‘With the ‘enactment of the SIDA, the regulatory. functions of the SRA as provrded for in Executive - "

Order No. 18 s. 1986 were mgmfrcentty increased.

First, the SRA established a supply chain monltorrng system from sugarcane to sugar at the retail
level to ensure sufficiency and safety of sugar. In line with this objective, certain individuals and
entities -are now required -to tegister with the SRA. Second, the SRA was tasked to classify
imported sugar according to its appropriate classification when imported at a time that domestic
production is sufficient to meet domestic sugar requirements, Third, it now provides for extension
‘services such as technical assistance ‘and: advice, . conduct of ' fests, : propagation, ahd
~dissemination of- high -yielding varieties, -and operatron ‘of ‘demonstration - farms. LastEy, .

: ._coordmatron wrth the DOST 1t mtensrfred research and development rn thrs area. c

o :Laws Related to Sugar Trade '

In August 1987 the SRA rssued Sugar Order No.1 whloh served as the basrs for the annuaE sugar ol
‘allocation for sugar. produced in ‘the Phllrpprnes .The 'said order ‘allocated the country’s total . . =~
- "domestic sugar into the following categorres “A"for export to the US,"B" for domestrc sugar, "C” i
" for reserve.sugar, and “D" for-export to other forergn markets. These allocations -are determined . p
by the SRA Board at the beginning of ‘every crop year. These same allocations affect the total

o amount of -raw . sugar ‘available -for domestro refineries. ' The SRA. releases Sugar Orders .all

' - throughout - every year . after its creation. As part of ‘the ‘US - sugar. 1mport quota system .the .

~Philippines is ‘also given annual: sugar export ‘allocations which vary for every crop year. Early
2017, the SRA issued Sugar Order No. 3.and Sugar QOrder No.3-A, regulating and- providing the

: _-gurdelrnes in importing Hrgh-Fruotose Corn .Syrup (HFCS) and: Purely Chem|cal Fructose which o

' .'_products are commonly used by beverage companres as sugar substltute

o ..-On 17 June 1997 Executrve Order No 420 was lssued WhICh modrfred the rates of duty on. sugar '
.. ‘as provided under the Tariff and Customs Code of 1978, ‘as amended, in order to implement the .
- ~ASEAN preferentlal rates of duty on cane sugar and beet sugar, among others. Under the Order, *

- ithe tariff on these products was placed at 65% from 1997 .up to 1998; after which, 'sugar could be
. placed under the sensrtrve list altowmg the gradual phase-down of tariffs. Addltronally. it provided
- that the marglns “of . preference (MOP) "accorded ‘under the ASEAN ' Preferential Trading
- 'Arrangements (PTA) will no tonger be extended to any of the products covered under the same :
"_Order R _ AT : : . '

: 'On g January 2004 Executrve Order No.. 268 was . |ssued whrch modrfred the rates of duty on

other sugars under Section 104 of the Tariff and Customs Code of 1978, as amended, in orderto -

" implement the commitment fo reduce the tariff rates on sixty percent. (60%) of the products in the

iinclusion list to zero percent {0%) under the Common Eﬁ’ectrve Preferentral Tarrff (CEPT) scheme .

for the Asean Free Trade Area (AFTA)

On 3 March 2004 Executlve Order No. 295 was |ssued whrch provrded that sugar wh;ch are
_ entered and withdrawn from warehouses in the Philippines for consumption shalf be levied the
MFN (Most Favored Nation) rates .of duty therein prescribed. Moreover, the Order provides that
. sugar which are entered and withdrawn from warehouses in the Philippines for consumption shall
be imposed the ASEAN CEPT rates of duty therein prescribed subject to qualification under the
Rules of Qrigin as prowded for i in the Agreement on the CEPT Scheme for the ASEAN Free Trade.
Area o

B|ofuels Act of 2006

Republic Act No. 9367, also known as “The Biofuels Act of 2006", aims to reduce the dependence
of the transport sector on imported fuel with due regard to the protection of public health, the
environment and natural ecosystems consistent with the country's sustainable economic growth
that would expand opportunities for livelihood by mandating the use of biofuels as a measure to
develop and utilize indigenous and sustainably—sourced clean energy sources, and to mitigate
toxic and greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions, increase rural employment and i income and ensure
the availability of alternatlve fuels. '



i ¥ T he iaw provrdes that ail ||qurd fuel_ .for motors and englnes sotd in the Phrlipplnes shall contam*t e

locally “sourced . biofuels ‘components.. It further provides  that within ‘two(2) ‘years from “the =
effectivity of the law, at least 5% bioethanol shall comprise the annual tofal volume of gasoline fuel
actually sold and distributed by . each and every oil company .in the country, subject o the
requirement that ail bioethanol blended gasoline shall contain a minimum of 5% bioethanol fuel by
volume. ‘Further, the law mandated that alt gasoline fuel sold by every oil company in the
Phrlrppmes should contaln a mlnlmum 10% blend of b|oethanol startrng August | 6 2011.

Department Circular No. DC 2007- 05 006 was 1ssued by. the DOE on 17 lVlay 2007 to implement
the Biofuels Act of 2008. It covers the production, ‘blending, storage, ‘handling, transportation,
drstrlbut:on use, and sale of brofuels biofuel- blends and brofuel feedstock in the thppmes

: ln 2008 a Jornt Admlnlstratlve Order known as the "Gurdelmes Govermng the Biofuel Feedstock _
~Production and :Biofuels and: Biofuel Blends Production, :Distribution and -Sale” (the "Gu;delmes") =

| ‘was issued by various Philippine government agencies. The Guidelines were issued to govern the .
. biofuel feedstock ‘production and. biofuels :and biofuel blends. productlon distribution and sale of . -

biofuels. The objectives of the Gwdellnes are to develop and utifize mdrgenous renewable and

"-'sustamably—sourced clean: green energy sources 1o reduce dependence on. imported oll, to._'_'
mitigate ‘toxic and GHG. emissions, to increase . rural employment and income, ‘to .promote the

“development of .the ‘biofuel mdustry in-the country and to encourage private sector participation
and to. institute ‘mechanisms which will fast track -investments in the brofuet mdustry and to
: i_promote blofuel workers welfare and protectron among others ' Lo .

L '_Other Iaws and regulatrons related to the busmess

Forelgn Investment Act of 1991

'The Forergn Investment Act of 1991 (“FiA") Ilberalrzed the entry of forelgn |nvestment mto the Sl
- Philippines. Under the FIA, forelgners can own as ‘much as 100% equity .of domestic market

~ enterprises, except in areas specified in the Forergn Investment Negative List. This Negative List . j
- .enumerates industries and activities which have fore|gn ownershrp limitations under the FIA and
. other existing laws. The oil reftmng and drstrrbutlon busmess is not found in the Iatest Sth Negatlve. :
- List of the FlA.- ' : . . S -

n connectlon with the ownerslnp of prrvate land, however the Phlllpplne Conshtutlon states that
no private land shall -be transferred or conveyed except to . citizens of -the Philippines or ‘to
_corporatlons ‘or associations organrzed under the laws of the Phllipplnes at Ieast 60% of whose
_ caprtal is owned by such crtrzens ' . .

For the purpose of complylng with natlonahty laws the term “Phrlrpprne Natlonal" is defmed under
the FIA as any of the followung ' : . :

(a) a cmzen of the Phrhppmes
_ (_l)) ' a domestrc partnershlp or assocraﬂon wholly owned by crtrzens of the Phlllpplnes

{c) a corporatron orgamzed under the laws of the Phrlrpplnes of whrch at Ieast 60% of the
' capital stock outstandmg and entitied to vote is owned and held by mtrzens of the o
Phlllpprnes .

(d} a corporation organlzed abroad and registered to do business in the Philippines
under the - Philippine Corporation Code, of which 100% of the .capital stock
outstanding and entitled to vote is wholly owned by Filipinos; or

{e} a trustee of funds for pension or other employee retirement or separation benefits,
where the trustee is a Philippine National and at Ieast 60% of the fund will accrue to
the benefit of Philippine Nahonals .

For as long as the percentage of Filipino ownership of the capital stock of the corporation is at
least 60% of the fotal shares outstanding and voting, the corporation shall be considered as a
100% Filipino-owned . corporation. .A corporation with more. than 40% foreign equity may be

Shdsl ; _ 7



S ':""allowed to tease prlvate Iand for a perlod of 25 years renewable for another 25 years

Local Government Code

The Local Government Code ("LGC”) establishes the system and -powers of provingial, city,
municipal, and barangay governments in the country. The LGC general welfare clause states that
every local -government ‘unit ("LGU”) shall exercise the powers expressly granted, those
“necessarily implied, as well as powers necessary, appropriate, or incidental for its efficient and

_ effectlve governance and those whlch are essentrat to the promot:on of the generai welfare o

'LGUs exercise pollce power through thelr respectlve Ieglslatlve bodles Specrtlcally, the LGU :
- through its legislative body, has the authority to enact such ordinances as it may deem necessary .~

and .proper for sanitation and ‘safety, the furtherance of the prospenty ‘and the promotion of the

--morality, peace, good ‘order, comfort,: convenierice, and general welfare of the locality and its

e inhabitants. ‘Ordinances can reclassrfy land, -order the closure of business estabtishments and

L require permlts and ncenses from. busmesses operatrng wrthm the terrrtonal Jurlsdrctlon of the :

Enwronmental Laws

1Deveiopment pro;ects ‘that are classmed by taw as envrronmentaily crrtlcal or prOJects wathm o

~statutorily . defined enwronmentally critical areas are -required - fo "obtain: an ' Environmental

. . Compliance : Certificate (the “ECC") prior to commencement The. DENR through its regional :_ N
- offices or: through the . Environmental, Management Bureau (the “EMB"), determlnes whether a ..

.'prcject is enwronmentally critical .or Jocated.in an env:ronmentally critical area ‘and processes all

' 'apphcatlons for an ECC, Asa requrrement for the issuance of an ECC, an envlronmentally critical D

~project :must - submit .an Enwmnment Impact Statement {"ElS”) to.the 'EMB ‘while .a non-
~environmentally critical project in an envrronmentally critical area is generally requ1red to submitan
- Initial Environmental Examination {the “IEE”) to the proper EMB regional office. In the case. ofan
envzronmentally critlcal prOJect W|th|n an enwronmenta[ly crltlcal area, an EIS is. reqmred '

. The EIS refers to both the document and the study of a prOJect‘s envrronmental impact mcludmg a

discussion of the scoplng agreement identifying critical issues and concerns as validated by the . 5

~EMB, enwronmental risk assessment - if determined necessary. by EMB .during the ‘scoping,
. environmental‘ management program, direct and indirect consequences to human welfare and the
"ecological as well as environmental -integrity. The [EE refers to the document and the study -
" “describing the . envrronmental impact, including mltrgation and_ _enh_ancem_ent measures, for -
.prOJects in enwronmentattycr:tlcat areas. Lo T SRR

_ 'Whrle the terms and condltrons of -an EIS or an lEE " may vary from prorect to prOJect as a
. “minimum it contains all relevant information regarding the project's environmental effects. The -
. _entire process of organization, administration and assessment of the effects of any prOJect on the
'quallty of the physical, ‘biological .and socio-economic ‘environment as well as the design of -
‘appropriate preventive, mitigating and enhancement measures is known as the EIS System. The
EIS System successfully culminates in the issuance of an ECC. The issuance of an ECC is a
Philippine -government certification that the proposed project or undertaking will not cause a
significant "negative . envrronmental impact; that the proponent. has complied - with -all - the
requirements of .the EIS System; ‘and ‘that the proponent is committed to implementing its

{ approved Environmental Management Plan in the EIS or, if an IEE was required, that it shall = -

comply with the mitigation measures provided therein before or dunng the operatrons of the
prOJect and in some cases, durlng the prOJect’s abandonment phase : '

Project proponents that prepare an EIS are required to establish an Environmental Guarantee
Fund when the ECC is issued for projects determined by the DENR {0 pose a significant public
risk to fife, health, property and the environment or where the project requires rehabilitation or
restoration. The Environmental Guarantee Fund is intended to meet any damage caused by such
a project as well as any rehabilitation and restoration measures. Project proponents that prepare
an EIS are required to include a commitment to establish an Environmental Monitoring Fund when
an ECC is eventually issued. In any case, the establishment of an Environmental Monitoring Fund
must not occur later than the initial construction phase of the project. The Environmental
Monitoring Fund must be used to support the activities of a multi-partite monitoring team, which



e WI|| be organrzed to monrtor complrance wrth the ECC and apphoable laws rules and regulatlon =

0

Phstlppme Ctean Water Act of 2004

in 2004, Republlo Act No 9275 or the “Philippine Clean Water Act’, was enacted to streamline
processes.and procedures in the prevention, control, and abatement of pollution in the country’s
water resources and provide for a comprehensive water poliution management program focused
on poliution prevention. The law pnmanly applies to the abatement and contro! of water. pollut|on
from land based sources. The EMB, in partnership with other Philippine government agencies and

the respective local government units, is tasked by the implementing Rules of the Philippine Clean

Water Act to identify existing sources .of water pollutants and strictly monitor poIIutron sources

whroh are not in oomp]lanoe W|th the effluent standards provrded in the law -

Researoh and Develogment

: CADPI and CACI contnbute ?2 00, per Lkg. of sugar produced to the Phllippme Sugar Research

-f-lnstutute Foundatron Inc (PHILSURIN) m oompllance wrth SRA Sugar Order No 2 Serres of_ - _'

'1995

: CADPI was the flrst sugar factory in the country WhICh volunteered in the lndustnal Envrronmental S
" Management Project (IEMP) funded by the United States Agency for Industrial Development (US-:

" AID) under:the 'supervision of the DENR.. IEMP advocates waste mmrmrzatron through Pollutlon _
L Management Appralsals(PMA) s S

)

: .The Group is- subject to varlous enwronmental Iaws related to clean air and water quallty, proper. o

Cost and Effeots of Comgl'rance wrth Envrronmental’ Law _

handling and disposal of solid, hazardous and chemical wastes, DOE's Renewable Energy Safety

“Health and Environment Rules and Regulations (RESHERR). AII subsidiary plants, CADPI, CACI,

RBC, and SCBI are covered by Environmental Compliance .Certificates issued by Environmental

Management Bureau DENR All plants also have valld wastewater D|scharge perrmts rssued by .

_ EMB DENR

"Followmg are the sugnlflcant envrronmental programs |mplemented to comply wrth varlous
_reqmrements : . : -

. Installatlon of wastewater treatment and |mpound|ng faCIlltleS pnor to dlsposal as land fertlllzer .

~or for irrigation. -

2 Instaliation of air pollutron control dewces for eqmpment emlttlng regulated air pollutants le

wetf gas scrubbers.

'_ 3. Regular sampllng and testing of air. and water samples based on regulatory requlrements and

()

“secure permit to operate from responsible government agencies.

ca ‘Implement “solid ‘waste “‘management program -that includes waste segregatron and

““construction of material recovery facility (MRF) proper dlsposal to accredlted sanitary Iandflll
and reuse of solid waste as fertilizers.
5, __Implement hazardous waste management program that mchdes proper segrega’non storage
disposal and mventory of materials categorized as hazardous waste. '
8. Implement an environmental management -system that is aiigned with ISO 14001:2015
standards. ~This system helps the company to |dent|fy manage, monrtor and contrel the
emnronmental issues ina hollstlc manner.

Total number of empl'ovees and number of full-time employees

As at September 30, 2018, the Company has the following number of empioyees:

No. of Employees

Executive _ 20
Managers 287
PT/MRF/DRF 902
Total 1,209



'CADPI has a standing Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) with the Batangas Labor Union - -

(BLU) for a period of five years from July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2021. For the past three years, the
labor union of CADPI has not staged a strike. -~~~ . ' . o

CAC| has a CBA with the Mag-lsa Mag-Ugyon Asosasyon Sang Mamumugon Sa Central
‘Azucarera de la Carlota (MAMCAC) for a period of five years from June 1, 2015 to | ay 30, 2020.
For the past three years, the labor union of CACI has not staged a strike. - SR
' RBC e_mpl'oy_e_es recently formed a union known as RBC Workers Union. =~ - '

* RHI and SCBI are not unionized.

. ':lt_e'm 2. EPrq'p'e'rt'i'.e_S o :

-.-The:::Paréht : Co'mparjy_-;.oy_\'ms:of .-_-a.__pai‘c':éi_'--bf_: land located .in -Nasugbu, ._B‘atah.ga_s_. \}éluéd__-ﬁt_._ S
'$3,572.7 million -as at September 30, 2018. - The land is currently the subject.of .a sale to Universal - - - .
. ‘Robina : Corporation (URC). ‘The. consummation . of the Sale Transaction -is -subject -to  satisfactory =

" completion of certain conditions, iincluding the approvals of the Philippine Competition-Commission -
.. (PCC) and creditor banks, The Sale Tra_ns_ac’tion_is_ currently undergoing review with the PCC.- .

~The Parent Cqmp_a'ny'ﬁi'(_'é\@_'isé_ invested in oroperties in Bacolod City, Negros Occidental and in Barrio
- Emanente, Nasugbu Batangas '

with net book value of £30.0.million as at September 30, 2018.
* GADP! is the owner of sugar milling and refining facilies, machineries and fumiture and fixtures,
{transportation equipment and tools Jocated in'Nasugbu, Batangas. - As at September 30, 2018, these

‘subjectofasaletoURC. -

CACI is the _O..Wh'er.of.su'g'a!"_milling"fa:c:_ilitie's'__inél_udin_'g parcels of land jocated in.Ba'r_a:n'g'aiy'CQ'nsueio, la

_properties ‘are valued, inet of depreciation, ‘at ©3,196.0 million. These properties -are currently the R e

“Carlota City and in the Municipalities of La Castellana and Pontevedra in Negros Occidental as well as - - .

-improvements, - machineries, furniture ‘and “fixtures, = transportation -equipment -and tools. ‘As at © -

" September 30, 2018, ‘these properties are valued, net of depreciation, at P4,216.6 million. These -

 properties are presently mortgaged with banking institutions to secure certain loan obligations. "

" RBC is the owner of a biogthanol plant and of parcels of land located in Brays. La Granja, Esperanza

and Cubay, La ‘Carlota .City, Negros Occidental, ‘and of improvements, ‘machineries, fixtures and
transportation equipment. As at September 30, 2018, these properties are valued, net of depreciation,
‘at £1,658.6 million. These properties are presently mortgaged to banking institutions to secure certain -

loan obligations. .~ e T P
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"""":-'SCBI s’ the owner of a bloethanol plant as’ weII as parcets of Iand and machmerres frxtures and'.:"g- : -:
'transportatlon equipment located in Brgys. Punao and Palampas, ' San Carlos Caty, Negros Ocmdental S

As at September 30, 2018, these propertles are valued, net of deprec;atlon at .
$2,853.9 m;iiion . _ .

NAVI is the owner of a parcel of land in Brgy. Nagasi, La Carlota City, Negros Occidental, including

various buildings, improvements, ‘machinery and other equipment. As at September 30, 2018 the _
propertles are valued net of deprematlon at‘P‘ISO 3 mlliion .

ttem 3 Legal Proceedlngs

In the ordmary course of :ts busmess the Parent Company and its subsrdlarles are . engaged in .
litigations either as complainant or defendant. In the oplmon of the Group, these cases do not have
_any materrei adverse effect on |ts fmanclal condrtlon SRR : : :

- --:Item 4 Submlss:on of Matters to a Vote of Secur:ty Holders

~No. matter was submltted to a vote of secunty holders through sohmtatron of prox:es or. otherW|se o
: 'durlng the fourth quarter of the fiscal year covered by thrs report U RS

' '-.Etem 5. Market for Issuer s Common ECIuﬂ:y and Related Stockhoider Matters ::_ S
" 3'Market mformatron L " ' | _' _ |
' 'The Company 5 common shares are iisted in the Phlllpplne Stock Exchange The high and tow prices

-+ of ROX shares for each quarter of flscal years 2018 2017 and 2016 as reported by the PSE are g
shown below: e _ . 2 . [ R -

FY2018 1 FY2017 -FY20_16

Quarter | - .ngh | low 'Hrgh " Low High ] low
1 413 -4.00 3.04 2.98 5.86 - 443
2 3.42 3.28 300 o 287 B.19 4.00
3 286 282 . 383 | 367 | 485 4,01
-4 "219 B '.'214 S 4‘19 | '410 1. 398 318

As of November 30, 2018, the closmg pnce of RHI’s shares is ’PZ 80 per Share
:Stockholders -' g e

There were about 2, 094 holders of the companys commaon shares as of September 30 2018 The
top twenty (20) holders of the common shares as of said date were: :

Stockholde_r - Natlonallty | Total No. of Shares %

1. | PCD Nominee Corporation - . | Filipino - ' 902,716,201 ~ 57.66
2. |'PCD Nominee Corporation .~ Non-Fihptno 523,938,800 - 3347
3. | Roxas and Company, Inc. Flilplno. e B 99,624_,995 : 6.36
4| nsular Life Assurance G0 iiping | 1,198,520 0.08
5. | Jose A, Manzano Jr, . | Filipino -~ 1,029,007 0.07
6. | GilbertLiu = Filipino 1,014,000 0.07
7. | Emilio Pantoja ' Filipino 785,078 0.05
8. | Armando M. Medina Filipino - 770,640 0.05
9. | Leonardo T. Siguion Reyna Filipino 608,400 0.04
40, | Raul 8. Roco Filipino 486,720 0.03
11.1 O. Ledesma & Co., Inc. Filipino : 446,160 0.03
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= Stoc}(ho]der o

o — TNationaiily © | ToliNo.ofShares | % |
12.| BMI _H_o’ldin'g's Corporation Filipino ™ -~ [ e a3 984 0,03 R
13. | Antonio G. Niefo Filipino 367,450 0.02
14, gg:ggraa?::"‘y & Development | iy 365,040, 0.02
15. | Lorna Perez Laurel Filipino - 354,900 0.02
16. | Abel Z. Siva lll |- Filipino . 354,900 | 0.02.
17. | Elaine Villar Rivilla_: Filipino ' 346,788 0.02
.18. | Rodolfo W. Antonino 1 Filipino 338,0001 - 0.02
19.1 Emma Lopez - Filipino - 324804] - 0.02].
20. | Evelina M. Boongaling | Filipino Cooa214 - 0.02)
Subtotal - s '1,535,823,581| = 99.13
| Other Shareholders : 113,422,086 0BT S
| Grand Total . 1,549,245.667| " 100%| -
‘Dividends ="

) History ofdiVIdendS paid:

‘| 'Declaration Date . .- - " "Record Date | Type and Amount of Dividends | -

o 28June2006 . - 1 14 July 2006 ' " Cash - P0.06 pershare -~
| 27 September 2006 - |12 October 2006 Cash - £0.06 per share -~ -

- [20June2007 - -} 13 July 2007 S - “'Cash - P0.06 per share - -

- | 19.September 2007 - | 15 October 2007~ -~ ‘Cash -£0.05 per share "~
[ 25June2008 - - 1 15July2008 - Cash -P0.06 per share - -
13 October 2008 ~ 115 October 2008 - Cash - £0.06 per share -
124June2009 - [ 15July2009 . - _Cash - P0.06 per share -

'{ 17 September 2012 - . | 01.October 2012 1 - Cash-P0.06 pershare -

112 December2012 = | 28 December2012 “Cash - P0.04 per share -
| 07 August 2013 -~ 30 August2013 | Cash-P0.06 pershare |
| 06 November 2013 |20 November 2013 - = ~Cash -P0.06 pershare - |

‘| 06 August 2014 - ‘| 22 August 2014 L ~ Cash -P0.12.per share
05 December 2014 | 22 December 2014 -~ - “Cash -P0.12 per share - -
19 August2015 -~ .- | 04 September2015 | ~ Cash - £0.12 per share

~The Parent Company’s ability to declare and pay dividends on its common equity is generally
limited by the Corporation Code of the Philippines such as the prohibition on capital impairment
and the limitation on the discretion of the Board -of Directors to declare dividends based on their
fiduciary duty, among others. The Parent Company's policy is to declare a minimum of 35% of its
“annual earnings as cash or stock dividend. payable out of its unrestricted retained earnings. ~

' Recent Sales of :Unr_egfstéred.Secarities SRR
é) Securities 'Sold ' |

A Stock Rights Offering of 266,753,974 Common Shares was conducted by the Company and
sold during the Offer Period of May 12-18, 2016 to its stockholders of record as of May 4, 2016.
The Offer Price is P4.19 per Rights Share at an entitlement ratio of 1 Rights Share for 4.33
Common Shares held as of record date. After the Offer Period, all shares were fully subscribed.
These shares were likewise listed with the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE). o

On February 1, 2017, the BOD approved the issuance of convertible debt securities amounting to
£523,750,000 to FPNRHBYV, convertible to 125,000,000 million.common shares of RHI at the
option of the holder and bears annual interest at 3%. - h ' :

On February 15, 2017, the shareholders approved the amendment of the Parent Company's
articles of incorporation to increase the authorized capital stock from 1,500,000,000 to
2,000,000,000 divided into 2,000,000,000 with par value of #1.00 per share. On February 17,



& ";2017 FPNRHBV exerc:sed 1ts conversmn nghts in respect of the convertrble debt securrtles to be
'issued out of the increase in ‘authorized ‘capital stock at'a conversion rate of P4 19 for every

b)

common share, or a totaE of 125 000 000 new common shares.

On July 14, 2017, the Parent Company 5 app!scatlon for increase in authorized capital stock using

the convertible debt securities as payment for subscription was approved by SEC. On November .

9, 2017, the PSE approved the listing’ of these newly—subscnbed 125 000, 000 common shares

-Exemptron from Regrstratlon Clarmed

- On: July A2, 2013 the Securrttes and Exchange Commlss1on (SEC) rssued a Resolutlon

fexemptlng the issuance of Thirty Five Milion (35,000,000) common shares for the Group's _

' : .Employee Stock Optron Plan 1 (ESOP 1) from the reglstratron requrrement of the Commlssron

-Also ‘on lVIay 6 2014 the SEC 1ssued a Resolutlon exemptrng the 1ssuance of Thlrty Mrllron

i (30 000 000) common shares for the Group S ESOP 2 from the reglstratlon requrrement of the o

'{ On IVIarch 30 2016 the SEC approved the Parent Companys Request for Conf;rmatron of. =
.Exemption from Registration of 266,753,974 Common_Shares from the registration requirements

under the SRC Rules These shares were subject of the Stock nghts Offerrng as descrrbed

D above

E

- On July 14 2017 the Parent Company 8 applrcatron tor mcrease in authorrzed caprtal stock usrng RREREEE
S ‘the convertible debt securities as payment for subscnptron was approved by SEC, together wrth s
a confrrmatlon of exemptlon from regtstrataon of these 125 000 000 common shares : o

Descrrptron of Reglstrant s Securmes

: The author;zed capltaE stock of the company is Two Brllron Pesos (ez 000 000 000 00) Phlllpplne
- -currency, _consrstmg of Two_Billion {2,000,000,000) common shares with par. value of One Peso .~
- (P1.00) per share. As of September. 30, 2017, the company's fotal. outstandmg capltal stock is .

1,546 955 666 shares Shares in treasury total 17 643 480 common shares

. '-'-The shareholders do not have ‘pre- emptrve nghts to subscrrbe to issues -or dlsposmon of the _ B

" shares of stock .of the company of any class unless the Board ‘of Directors decides otherwise.
" .There are no provisions in its Charter or By -laws, whrch would delay, _defer or prevent a change in o

L '.the control of the company
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B ": :'Item 6 Management‘s Dzscuss:on and Analyszs or Plan of Operatron
| FULL FISCAL YEAR 2017-2013

The Group entered into an Asset Sale and Purchase Agreement with URC for the sale of the Group’s
sugar milling and refining operations in Batangas. The consummation of the Proposed Sale
Transaction is subject to the parties being able to secure the requisite regulatory approvals, corporate
approvals, and other third party consents. As of January 14, 2019, the Proposed Sale Transaction is
still under review by the. PCC. The PCC review is customary for similar transactions. However,
‘management is commrtted to the Proposed Sale Transactron and expects it to be completed aﬁer

_ PCC approval is secured :

g ___Fmanclal ngh!rghts and Key Performance Indlcators o

September:m RIS,
i : ' 2018 2017 Increase (Decrease)
"Amounts in Thousands except CIosrng Pnce per o T B A
- Shares SO L (Audlted} (Audited) CoAmount %
: -.-Frxed assets T . P15 614 626 ?15 398 735 o P215,891 _:_'1_%

- Goodwifl R ST 1,079,815 1079615 . = =%
Totalassets - . 125,763,131 23,896,17_3 1,866,958 - 8% .
' Shareholders equrty S 10,908,705 10,544,108 364,957 3%

. 'Net debt - o Y 10 728 821 '1_0,0_92-,31_7-' j- ‘636,504 6%
: ""Equrty ratao DR, 42, 3% ' 44 1% - (0 02) - (4%)
" “Net debt as % of equ;ty = R 0 98x 3 0 96X - B O 02 2%
- ‘Shares - - TR R _ s N
.“Market capitallzatron o S R 4643 807 : 6806 605 (2 162 798) (32%) -
- Total sharesissued = - - . ... - 1547936 ' 1546956. .  980. . 0%
~Closing price.per.share -~ " LT 300 _._._;..4_40 e '..'-(1.4) “32%
A AT S Years Ended September 30 Increase (Decrease) _
'Amounts in Thousands except Operatronal Data 2018 S 2017 _ Amount %
- 'Revenues and Earnmgs P : ‘ ' R
“Revenues .- L S P_11,811,289- P‘IO 947 533 - '_P863,7_56 - B%
- Gross profit .- s 1,254,437 - 1,414,283 . ¢ (159,848) - (11%)
Depreciation and amortlzatlon ' e 773,473 950,839 (177,368) . (19%)
Operating expenses - Lo . 930,531 1,065,806 - (132,275) {13%)
Interest .~ . : R . 502,073 444,257 - 57,816 13%
Netincome =~ - S T 55503 120,040 {68,537)  (54%)
Core net income s - .B5503 240,221 (184,718) * (77%)
Returnonequity =~~~ . . 0.51% ©1.14% (0.63%)  {55%)
Earnings per share _ 004 008 (0.04) .© “(56%)
Cash Flow and Investments .~~~ " AR RO
Cash flow from used in operations . 1,214, 658 - (624,163) . 1,838,811 - 295%
Investment in fixed assets 1,185,332 1,140,984 44,348 4%
Operational Data (volume in thousands) ' R S k S P
Tons cane milled : 2,991 - 3,461 (470) {14%)
Production: ' g R .
Raw sugar (Lkg) 5,269 . 6,497 1,228 (19%)
Refined sugar {Lkg) 2,977 3,507 {630) (15%)
‘Ethanol (liters) : - 74,354 £9,540 4,814 7%

{1} Net debt is derived by deducting cash and cash equivalents from total debf (short-term borrowings and fong-term debt,
including current portion).

The Group's financial performance is determined to a large extent by the following key results:
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G '.:'::3_.1.-‘" :Raw sugar produc’slon -a prmcrpal determmant of consohdated revenue and computed as the :" e

gross amount of raw sugar output of CADPI'and CACl as consolidated subsidiaries. It pertains to
production capacity, ability - to source .sugar canes, - efficiencies and . the productwrty of
manufacturmg facmtles o . o L

2. Refined sugar production - the most important determinant of revenue and computed as the gross
volume -of refined sugar produced by the CADPI refmery both .as .direct sales fo industrial
customers and traders or as tolling manufacturlng service, fimited by production capactty and by

- the abrltty of the Group to market lts ser\nces to both types of customers

-3 :Ethanot productlon a measure of ethanol productlon yield compared to unlt and cost of input and
s computed as. ethanol produced (in. Ilters) from each ton of feedstock undergorng fermentation .
: 'dlstrllatron and dehydratlon processes . . '

4, 'Return on Equrty denotes the capabllaty of the Group to generate returns on the sharehoiders_ SR
B _:fund computed as apercentage of net mcome to total equrty L T

"Results of Operatrons
o _-'Revenu_e_ N
Years Ended September 30 R Increase (Decrease)
: R : A S 2013 o R B L
g Amounts in Thousands B Contmumg Duscontmued . Total - ..2017 " Amount - '5%
_ Refinedsugar- - P1,469,426 ~ P4,105,083 ?5574,509--.e4,'192,991 TP1,381,518: 33%
- Rawsugar - o0 1417,376 - 2,174,529 1 2,291,905 . 2,384,628 . (34,867) (1%)
. Molasses. -~ . S 7,703 B36,686..- . 544,389 - 474,805 - - L 69,584 - 15%
- .Tol]rng fees o 408 - 97,214 97,712 - 243,546 {145,834) " (B0%) -
B - 1,595,003 ¢ . 6,913,512 . 8,508,515 - 7,295970 11,221,080  17% '
CAeohol . 3aaa®18 - . = 3244018 3602242 . (367,324) (10%) . .
CoPower o 29,8640 0 = 29564 16,366 - . 13,198 81% . .
. Farm services ©. .~ .~ -: o 18 436 - e _318,_4_36 20,844 0 (2,408 (12%)
Car__bondioxtde_ : 9,856 - ' oo 9 8Be T U211 (2,268) (19%)

P4 897 777 PS 913 512 P11 811 289 P10 947 533 _' . PBB3, 756 - 8%

-Consolldated revenue amounted to Pﬂ 811 3 mrllron in 2018 an increase of 1?863 8 mLEhon or 8% '
" versus P10,947.5 million in 2017. The increase is due to increase in average selling prices and
- volume sold_of refined sugar. Sugar operations contributed #8,566.4 million or 73% of total revenue in
;2018 whlle PS 244 8 mlllron or 27% of total revenue came from aEcohoE operatrons RERRET

Sugar Revenue from sugar operatrons 1ncreased by ‘P‘l 221 1 miiilon or-17% agamst Iast years .
revenue of P7,345.3 million, primarily due to increase in volume sold and average selling prices of raw -
_and refined sugar. “Raw sugar sales volume decreased by 58 Lkg or 3% this year from 1,776 Lkg in -
2017 while refined sugar sales volume increased by 655 L.kg.or 30% versus last year's sales volume

of 2,213 Lkg. -Average selling prices per Lkg of raw and refined sugar in 2018 amounted to ?1 334 .
and ?1 944 respectwely, from ?1 343 and 1, 895 respectlvely in 2017

Alcoho! Revenue from alcoho! operatrons amounted fo 3,244, 9 miflion and £3,602.2 million in 2018
and 2017, respect;vely The decrease is due to Iower volume sold and average selllng pnce in 2018.
by 3,059 Irters and ?Sllrter ' - : .

Gross Income :

Consolidated gross income in 2018 decreased by P159.9 milion or 11% from £1,414.3 million last
fiscal year and gross profit rate declined from 12.9% in 2017 to 10.6% in 2018. The decreased gross
profit is attributable ‘to sugar operations’ higher manufacturing cost resulting from decreased
production volume due to decreased ton canes milled and factory breakdowns. Totel TCM in 2018
and 2017 amounted to 2,991 and 3 461 metnc tons (MT), respeotrvely L :
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Years Ended September 30

. 2018 S . lncrease (Decrease)
Amounts in Thousands Continuing Discontinued Totai 2017 _ 'Amount %
Salaries, wages and other .- e S T ' '
ermployee benefits Lo P395,236 . P45,486 P440 722 $399,888 F’40,834 10%
Outside services 81,275 ©79,844 41, 118 “ 113,797 C27.322 - 24%
Taxes and licenses. - . - - 70,692 . 32,543 .. 103,235 117,571 (14,336) (12%)
Selling expenses 120,802 73,013 - 93,815 ‘57,858 35,957 62%
:__Prowsmnforprobable co A o S S o
losses - e = . = 74,572 (74,572) (100%) - -
Depreciationand -~ . S Lo T . N R
amortization -0 o . 47,485 . - 6,494 . 53,949 - 71,753 - (17,804} - (25%)
| Travel and trensportatlon - . 16,638 - 5,770 .. '22,408 . - 22,545 - . (137) - (1%)
‘Rent - : S m3es B4 21,429 27951 e (6522) - (23%)
= r_Communlcatlon Ilght and' R D e R T o
Coowater oL '20 538 S =0 20,538 020,800 - (271) (%) -
“Repairs and maintenance 6 811 U877 16,488 0 4866 01,9220 3%
* - Provision for (reversal of) T o T S T A
.-+ impairment losseson = L R Ll e e
“recelvables . . _- "6,2_72 08,5297 14,801 T (9,257) .- 24,088 260%
CRepresentation and T e DB 2T
- entertainment - U 6,682 - 0. . 325 - 6,987 . 13,880 e 81%
_Corporate'social -~ - . o L D e
. “responsibility ... ... .- 3,867 . 2822 6679 . - /5161 4,518 . - 29%
-+ Materials and consumables 3,020 C2,188 5AT9 6,020 (850) . (14%) -
§ --Others i oo 75,208 - 1,785 76 998 < .. 96,000 (19101) (20%).

' "P75'5,'806 U P268,541 P1,024,347 _'_'F1',02_3,_202 S P,145 (0.1%)

_. -'_Operatmg expenses decreased by 21, 145 or 0 1% from £1,023.2 m|II|on in 2017 to '
A P“I 024 3 mit!;on m 2018 R _ _ -

CInterest Interest

Interest expense for the current flscal year amounted to P502. 't mllhon versus =13'444 3 m[lluon in 2017 o '

_ attrlbuted to ava:iment of short term !oans and mcrease in mterest rates in 2018

'.'.Share in Net Earnlnqs of an Assocuate - R : i _
Due to lower net income ‘of HPCo. arlsmg from the decrease in market price of raw sugar, the

3_Companys share tn the Iatters earnlngs decreased to ?55 9 mrlhon |n 2018 from ?678 million.in . '

-2017

Net Income

.Consolidated net income after tax decreased by #64.5 million or 54% versus P120.0 mllllon in 2017 E

due to tower gross mcome and mcrease in rnterest expense in 2018.
Fmanc.-al Posrtron

Consolldated total assets as at September 30, 2018 amounted to ©25,530.5 million egamst

©23,896.2 million as at September 30, 2017 Thrs mcrease is due to the movements in the toltowmg

accounts: : :

a} increase in refined sugar mventory

b) increase in accounts receivables

c) increase in materials and supplies inventory due to purchases of spares for plant maintenance
activities; ' '

d) acquisitions of property, plant and equipment carried at cost; and

e) appraisal increase on property; plant and equipment at appraised values.

Consolidated fotal liabilities as at September 30, 2018 amounted to #14,767.6 million, hlgher by
£1,415.5 million than last year's balance of 13,352, 1million.

Book value per share increased to $6.95 as at September 30, 2018 from £6.82 as at
' ' 16



o _-1‘;“September 30 2017 .

Off-Ba.'ance Sheet Arrangements

The Group is not aware of any materlal off-balance sheet transaotlons arrangements, obligations
(including contingent obligations), and other relationshlps with unconsolrdated entities or other persons
created cfunng the reportlng perlod : oo :

FULL FISCAL YEAR 201 6-2017

' -On February 1 2017, the BOD approved the |ssuance of oonverttble debt securttles amountlng to. .'
£523,750,000 -to -First ‘Pacific ‘Natural ‘Resources Holdings, B.V." (FPNRHBV) convertibie -to

| 3%

' '-.On February 15,2017, the sharehotders approved the amendment of the Parent Company s artlcles of
©incorporation .to increase the authorized -capital stock from.1,500,000,000 to 2,000,000,000 divided - -
into 2,000,000,000 with par value #1.00 per share. 'On February 17, 2017, FPNRHBV exercised its -
'_'-_conversmn Trights in respeot of the ‘convertible debt securities 1o -be issued ‘out of the increase in
- ‘authorized capital. stock ata conversmn rate of F4 19 for every common share or a total of

R 125, 000 000 new common shares : : S : : L

3 'On Juty 14 201? the Parent Companys appllcatzon for mcrease in authorlzed capltal stock usmg the S
.'.convertlble debt securltles as. payment tor subscrlptton was approved by SEC :

o __Fmanclai nghhghts and Key Performance Endlcators

September 30 ' ' :
. : : 2017] T 2016 lncrease (Decrease)
- Amounts in Thousands except Closmg Pnce per . SERE . :
. “Shares _ L (Audlted) (Audlted) . Amount ' .%
_"-Batances_heet__ L ' e IR
- Fixedassets .~ 0 P15 398 735 ets 032 413 - P368, 322 2%
Goodwill . - o 1,079,615 1,079615 — =%
Totalassets =~ S 23,896,173 21,658,024 2,33_7,636 1%
'Shareholders equ:ty S 10,544,108 9,773,619 . 770,489 - 8%
‘Net debt ¢ oo 10,092,317 8,645,337 1,446,980 - 17%
Equity ratro : o A% 451% ) (2%
Net debt as % of equlty o S 0 96x ' 0 88x : 0.08 9%
Shares .~ - AR = L
Market capitalization - S 806 605 S 4 819 897 2,064,339  43%
Total shares issued - L 1,546,956 1,421,798 142,801 10%
Closing price per share L L 440 ' 339 0 101 30%

17
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“Incréase (Decrease)

" Years Ended September 30

Amounts in Thousands except Operational Data 2017 2016 Amount %
Revenues and Eammgs R : R o
Revenues - - P10,947,533 £12,050,234 (P1,102,701) (9%)
Gross profit 1,456,887 1,073,496 - 383,391 36%
Depreciation and amortization 950,839 -927,513 . 23,326 3%
Operating expenses 1,065,806 .965,639 100,167 10%
Interest ' ‘444,257 . 382,770 61487 16%
Net i mcome . 120,040 . 101,591 218,449 -18%

* - Core net income. 240,221 101,581 - 138,630 136% .
‘Returnon equity - 114% . - 21.04% 0 010% - - 10%

.~ Earnings per share . 008 - 007 - 0.01 10%

- Cash Flow and Investments .- EREREEE T T .
' :Cash flow from used in operatlons a - {624,153) -{6,595) - (581,671) (8820%) .
“Investment in fixed assets - 1 140 984 - - 911, 832 257,182 28% '
* 'Operational Data (volume in thousands) T " R S
~Tons cane milled -~ S - 3 461 2 748 T X I 26% -
Production: N

“Raw. sugar(Lkg) . 6,491 _ -'_.5,041 s .-_:1;456 29% .
Refined sugar(Lkg) o 3,507 - 2,833 674 24%
“Ethanol (liters) 69 540 - 70,418 (878)_ SO 1% -

o B (1) Net debt is derived by deductmg cash and cash equrvafents from tota! debt (shon‘ term borrowmgs and long -term debt

L mc!udmg current portron)

IR The Group s fmanmal performance IS determmed to a Iarge extent by the foIIowmg key resutts B

5,

production capacrty, ability to source sugar canes efftcrenmes and the productlwty of' &
'manufacturing facmtles . S e S i

gross amount of raw sugar output of CADPI and CACI as consolidated subsidiaries. It pertains to

-volume of refined ‘sugar ‘produced by the ‘CADPI. refinery both -as . direct sales to industrial
‘customers and traders or as tolling manufacturmg service, limited by production capamty and by

' the abrhty of the Group to market |ts services to both types of customers

| Ethanol produchon .a measure of ethanol production yleld compared fo unlt and cost of input. and
*“is.computed as ethanol produced (in trters) from each ton of feedstock undergomg fermentatlon _
. _d:stlllatlon and dehydratron processes ' - . o . -

:Return on Eqmty denotes the capabliity of the Group fo generate returns on the shareholders

;'Raw sugar productlon -2 prlncrpal determinant of consolldated revenue and computed as the

_:Refmed sugar productton the most lmportant determmant of revenue and computed as the gross :

' fund computed asa percentage of net income to total equaty

Results of Operatrons -

Reve_n_ue

Years Ended September 30

~_Increase (Decrease)

. 2017 - Do :

Amounts in Thousands ‘Continuing Discontinued _Total 2016 “Amount %
Refined sugar "P7,548 P4,185443  P4,192,991  P3,843,345 349,646 9%
Raw sugar 1,695,517 689,111 2,384,628 3,357,272 (972,644) (29%)
Molasses 155,010 = . . 319,795 ‘AT4,805 353,756 121,049 . 34%
Tolling fees - 243,546 243,546 252,979 {9433y (4%)

. R ' 1,858,076 = 5,437,886 7,286,970 7,807,352 (511,382} 17%
Alcechol 3,602,242 : - 3,602,242 4,201,052 (599,710) (14%)
Power 16,366 - - 16,366 30,966 (14,600} (48%)
Farm services 20,844 - 20,844 1,749 49,085 109%
Carbon dioxide . 12411 - 12,111 8,215 3,806 47%
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i Years Ended September 30
: : 2017

“ " Increase (Decrease)

Amounts in Thousands Contmqu Dlscontmued P .T_o_ta[ SR 2016 Amount

0

P5 509 638 ?5 437 895 P10 947, 533 ' P12 050 234 : (P‘l 102 TO‘I) "9%

Consolldated revenue amounted to ?10 ,947.5 million in 2017, a decrease of #1,102.7 million or 9%
versus ©12,050.2 million in 2016. The decrease is due to decrease in average selling prices of sugar
and alcohol. . Sugar -operations confributed 7,345.3 million .or 67%. of total revenue in 2017, while
£3.602.2 million or 33% of total revenue came from alcohol operatlons and the remamlng from sale of
power and COQ : . :

."Sugar Revenue from -sugar operatlons decreased by ?503 0 m:lllon or 6% agalnst last year s revenue

- “of £7,848.3 million, primarily due to decrease .in volume sold and average selling prices of raw and ~
o reflned sugar Raw sugar ‘sales volume decreased by 70 Lkg or 4% this year from 1,846 Lkg in 2016 ~

- while refmed sugar sales volume increased by 337 Lkg or 18% versus last year's sales volume of - o
1,876.Lkg.- “Average selling prices per Lkg of raw and refined sugar in _2_017 amounted to P, 343 and_.

'-?1 895 respectlvely, from Pl 817 and FZ 161 respect:vely in 2016

- _'.'Al’cohol Revenue from alcohol operatlons amounted to ?3 602 2 mllllon and P4 202 0 m|ll|on in 2017 '

~-and 2018, Tespectively. - “The decrease is due to lower volume sold and average sellmg pnce |n 2017_ .

: _by 1, 466 llters and P?IIlter

" . Gross Income S

_‘Consolidated groes lncome in 2017 mcreased by P383 4 m:EEton or 36% from ‘Pl 073 5 mlllton last

- fiscal year. while gross profit rate. |mproved from 8.9% in'2016 to 13.3% in 2017. The improved gross

- proﬂt is attributable to sugar operations’ lower manufacturing cost resulting from mcreased production -

‘volume due ‘to plant efficiencies from ‘confinuouis capltal expenditures and increased ton canes milled

~ from improved partnerships with planters Total TCiVl in 201? and 2016 amounted o 3, 461 and 2 748.._ S

metrlc tons (lVlT) respectively.

'Onera_tmct_Exnenses -

Years Ended September 30

2017 S lncrease (Decrease)

Amounts in Thousands : Contmu J Dlscontmued ' Total 2016 Amouni Y
" Salaries, wages and T R
‘other employee benef ts P363 056 ' .P_36,83_2 _ P399 888 . P306,323 ¢ - P94,56_5 31%
Taxes and licenses - 85,790 - 21,781 - 117,571 192,086 - . 24585 26%
- Outside services - ..~ 4bB,288 - - 67,609 .. 113,797 - 117,003 Co(3,208) . (3%)
'Prowswnforprobable Lo Co s o S
losses ~ .- EREE 20,770 - - 53,802 - 74,572 122,000 - 52,572 - 239%
Deprecrationand B I ERER SRR R
-amortization . L . 64,264 © 7,489 . 74,753 . 69,208 2,455 4%
Selling expenses : S 78,608 . -49,250 . 57,858 . 69,440 {11,582) (17%)
“Rent it ' 27,682 - 1369 27,951 . 27,867 B4 0%
Travel and transportatlon ) 18,342 4,203 -2_2_,'54_5 © 029,334 -(6,789)  (23%)
Communication, I|ghtand e o ' SRR R CE o
water .- -20,809 - 20,808 - 33,403 (12,594} (38%)
Repairs and ma:ntenance .7 '8,962 . - " 5,604 14566 - . 14982 - (416} (3%)
Provision for (reversal of) Do R s o
mparrmentlosses on - o _ . : ' '
receivables 67 (9,324) {9,257) 5,831 (15,088) (259%)
Materials and consumables ' 3,695 2,334 6,029 7,733 (1,704) (22%)
Corporate social ' C B - B
responsibility 3,177 1,984 5,161 7,024 (1,863) (27%)
Representation and ' - ‘
entertainment 3,296 . 564 3,860 4,082 (222)  (5%)
Others - 83,239 - - 14,219 96,099 124,704 {28,605) (23%)
' P?BT 845 P256, 716 P't 023 202 F931 010 92,192 10%

Operatmg expenses increased by 9100 2 million or 10% from ‘P965 6 million in 2016 to
#1,065.8 million in 2017. The increase is due to higher salarres wages and other employee beneflts
taxes and licenses and prowsmn for probable Eosses
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Interest expense for the current flscat year amounted {o, P444 3 mllllon VETsus 1'5‘382 8 mllllon in 2016
attrrbuted to avarlment of short—term Ioans in 201 7. . _ :

Share in Net Earnings of an Associate '
Due to lower net income .of HPCo arising from the decrease in market price of sugar, the Company’ s
share in the latter's earnlngs decreased to P67.8 mrllton in 2017 from P212.3 million in 2016 .

; Net Income S ' ' ' : '
Consolidated net mcome after tax lmproved by P18. 5 miflion or 18% versus £101.6 million in 2016
: _.due to higher gross mcome and increase in other income in 2017 :

-Flnanc.-al Posrt.'on

: "Consolldated total assets as at September 30 2017 amounted to ?23 8962 m;iiaon agarnst-
+ $21,658.0 mrtlron as at September 30 2016 Th|s mcrease IS due to the movements m the fo!iowrng

. accounts: -

- ) -sncrease in, reflned sugar mventory
.g) increase in. accounts receivables - C ' e
“h). increase in rnaterlals and supplles lnventory due to purchases of spares for ptant masntenance

.- activities; AR

R | acqursrtrons of property, p!ant and equrpment carried at cost and _' '

B J) appralsat increase on property plant and equrpment atappralsed values. -

- -Consoildated total Ilabllltles as at September 30 2017 amounted to P13 3521 mllllon hlgher by o
i P‘I 440 7 mlilton than Iast years balance ofF11 884 4 mai!ron R . _ SRR

T -Book value per share deoreased to P8, 82 as at September 30 201 7 from PES 87 as at
September 30 2016 ' - .

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements
' _ The Group is not aware of any materral off balanoe sheet transactrons arrangements obllgatlons -

.~ {including contlngent ob!rgations) and other relatronshlps W|th unconsolldated entitles or other persons_
' created durrng the reportlng perlod s . . : . :

-Item? Fmanclal Statements :

Refer to the attached Audlted Consolldated Frnancrat Statements

'-Item 8 Changes in and Dlsagreements wrth Accountants on Accountmg and Fmanc:al
Dlsclosures R . . - _ '

There has been no drsagreement with the external auditor, Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co on accountlng,
ftnancral congerns, and dlsciosures |n the Consolldated Finanmal Statements attached herem
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Item 9. Directors and_Executive_ Officérs _of the Issuer
Directors and__E}(e_cb_t_ive Ofﬁcer_s bf the fs_suer_

Board of Directors & Corp _brat_e Secretary

Pedro E. Roxas is 62 years old and is_a Filipino. He has been a member of the Board of Directors
since year 1982. Mr. Roxas is the Chairman of .the Board of Directors and is the Chairman_ of the -
‘Executive Committee and the Nomination, Election & Governance ‘Committee.  He was elected as -

- " Acting President & Chief Executive ‘Officer of the company-on October 23, 2015. He is also the
“ Chairman of the operating subsidiaries of the company, namely CADPI, CACI, Roxol, SCBI, and RHI -

" Agri-Business Development Corporation (RHI-ADC). Mr. Roxas is likewise the Executive Chairman - -

" “and.the President & CEO .of Roxas & Co., Inc., Chairman of Hawaiian Philippine Company, Club .-~ -
_Punta ‘Fuego Inc.,  President 'of . Fundacion Santiago, Chairman ‘of the Philippine -Sugar Millers . -~~~

. /Association, Inc.; an:Independent. Director of Philippine Long Distance Telephone:Company (PLDT) .

“and the Manila Electric Company (Meralco), and ‘Banco de ‘Oro (BDO) Private :Bank," Director .of - G

" .. 'Brightnote ‘Assets Corporation and a Trustee of Philippine Business for Social Progress.  Mr. ‘Roxas L

- was educated at Portsmouth Abbey School, Rhode Island, USA, :and at the University of Notre Dame -
**_in Indiana, USA where he obtained his degree in Business Administration. -~ SRS
. Manuel V. :Péhgi!ih"a_h_fifs_.?z years old and is a-'Fiiipi_hé._ He was elected to the Board of Directors on -

- December 3,:2013 and is the Vice-Chairman of ‘the Board of Directors, a member of the Executive . -

Committee and the Chairman of the Executive Compensation Committee. Mr. Pangilinan founded - - -

‘First Pacific Company Limited.in 1981 and served as Managing Director until 1999. He was appointed

. "Executive Chairman until June 2003 when he was hamed as CEO and Managing Director. Within the

* Makmur Thk, the largest food company in Indonesia. -

In the 'P'hilip;'oinés, Mr. F"_:ang_i.li'n'éh is thefChaifrhah of ‘the_Philippine Long Distance Telephone
-Company (PLDT) and the Manila Electric Company {(Meralco). He is also. the Chairman of Smart

“First “Pacific ‘Group, he holds the position of President Commissioner -of P. T. Indofood ‘Sukses - e

Communications Incorporated, PLDT Commuinications and Energy Ventures Incorporated (formerly ... o

"Piltel), Beacon Electric Asset Holdings Incorporated, Metro Pacific Investments Corporation, Landco
- "Pacific Corporation, Medical Doctors Incorporated, Colinas Verdes Corporation (operating the Makati -
‘Medical Center and Cardinal Santos Medical Cénter) Davao Doctors Incorporated, Riverside Medical -~
‘Center Incorporated in Bacolod City, Our Lady of Lourdes Hospital, Asian Hospital, Incorporated, -

Maynilad Water Services Corporation (Maynilad) Mediaquest Incorporated, Associated Broadcasting
‘Corporation (TV5), Philex Mining Corporation, -Philex Petroleum -Corporation ‘and Manila North
“Tollways Corporation ~++ - c re T

. Qutside the F_ir_st P_a_éific Group, ‘Mr. Pangilinan wés a.'m.er'ﬁ_ber_ of the Board of Ovéfséers 6f the

Wharton School of Finance & Commerce, University of Pennsylvania, USA. ‘He was Chairman of the - -

Board of Trustees of the Ateneo de Manila University. He is currently the Chairman of the Board of
Trustees of San Beda College. - He also serves as Chairman of PLDT-Smart Foundation, Inc. and the
Philippine Business for Social Progress. 'He also serves as Chairman of the Hong Kong Bayanihan -
Trust, a non-stock, non-profit foundation which provides vocational, social and cuitural activities -for
Hong Kong's foreign domestic helpers. - On February 5, 2007, Mr. .Pangilinan was named. the
President of the Samahang Basketbol ng Pilipinas (SBP), a naticnal sport association for basketball.
In January 2009, Mr. Pangilinan also assumed the Chairmanship of the Amateur Boxing Association
of the Philippines (ABAP), a governing body of the amateur boxers in the country. Also, in October
2009, Mr. Pangilinan was appointed as Chairman of the Philippine Disaster Recovery Foundation
(PDRF), a non-stock non-profit foundation established to formulate and implement a reconstruction
strategy to rehabilitate and rebuild areas devastated by recent floods and other calamities. M.
Pangilinan is Chairman of the Philippine Business for Social Progress (PBSP), a social action
organization made up of the country's: largest corporations, Vice-Chairman of the Foundation for
Crime Prevention, a private sector group organized to assist the government with crime prevention,
and a member of the Board of Trustees of Caritas Manila and Radio Veritas-Global Broadcasting
Systems, Inc., a former Commissioner of the Pasig River Rehabilitation Commission.and a former
Governor of the Philippine Stock Exchange. In June 2012, he was appointed as Co-Chairman of the
newly organized US-Philippines Business Society, a non-profit society which seeks to broaden the



":'-"relatronshrp between the Unrted states and the Phlllpplnes m the areas of trade rnvestment educatron '.3:::'5_."' i

foreign and securlty potrores and cu!ture

Mr. Pangilinan has received numerous prestigious awards including Ten Outstanding Young Men of
the Philippines (TOYM) Award for International Finance (1983), The Presidential Pamana ng Pilipino
Award by the Office of the President of the Philippines (1996), Best CEQ in the Philippines by the
Institutional tnvestor (2004), CEQ of the Year {Philippines) by Biz News Asia (2004), People of the
Year by People ‘Asia Magazine (2004), Distinguished World ‘Class Businessman Award by the
Association of Makati Industries, Inc. (2005), Management Man . of the Year by the Management
Association of the Philippines (2005), Order of Lakandula {Rank of Komandante) by the Office of the
_President of the Philippines (2008). He was: voted as Corporate Executive Officer of the Year
' -(Phri:ppmes) and Best Executive (Philippines) . at the 2007 and 2008 Best Managed Companles and
- ‘Corporate Governance Polls conducted by Asia Money. -Most recently, Mr. Pangiiinan received the

‘Best CEO award from Finance Asia Magazine {2012) and the. Executlve of the Year Award from the_ L

L Phllrppme Sports erters Assocratlon (PSA) (2014)

" '_Mr Panglllnan has been awarded four (4) Honorary Doctorate degrees in Humanstres (Honorls

o Causa). Firstfo. confer him was San Beda College in 2002; second was the Xavier Unrvers;ty in2007;

‘Holy Angel University in Pampanga in 2009 and.the Far Eastern Umversrty in:2010. “Mr, Pangmnan

- ‘graduated cum laude from ‘the . ‘Ateneo ‘de - Manila Un1versrty, ‘with _a_Bachelor “of Arts Degree ‘in

_Economlcs and obtained. hls Nlasters degree in. Busrness Admlnlstratron from Wharton School of__ '

' :-Sant:ago R Ehzalde ts 54 years old and rs a Flllprno He has been a member ‘of the Board of_ L

. Directors since year 2000 and is a. member of the Compensation Committee, -Mr, Elizalde is the -
. Chairman of the 24 Hour Vendo Machine.Corporation, Vice-Chairman and member of the Executive
“."Committee of ELRO. Commercial & Industrial Corporation and Club.Punta Fuego, Inc. ‘He is also the -
- President & :CEO of Roxaco ‘Land Corporation, ‘President -of CGB.Condominium Corporatlon and .
.~ Fuego Hotels and Management Corporation, Chairman of Roxas Foundation, Inc., Vice-Chairman and - _
- ‘a member of the Executive Committee of ELRO Commercial and Industrial Corporatlon and of Club -
- Punta Fuego, inc. ‘and a Director ‘of CADPI, ‘CACI, ELRO Land ‘Corporation, Punta Fuego Village

-~ ‘Homeowners - Association, : Punta . Fuego Village - Foundatlon Terrazas de’ Punta Fuego Village - |

- Homeowners -Association, -and Fundacron ‘Santiago. ‘Mr. Ei:zalde obtarned hls Bacheior of Arts in __: '_

: '; Economrcs from Denlson Un;versaty in Ohro USA '

) 'Oscar J Hliado is 81 years oId and is @ F|I|p|no He has been a member of the Board of Directors '

~since May 11, 2016 and is 2 member of the Audit & Risk Committee. He is the Chairman of the Board

- of Directors of Phinma Corporation. He is also the Chairman of the Board of Directors of Phinma, inc.,
‘Holcim . Philippines, ‘Inc., Trans Asia ‘Ol and ‘Energy Deve!opment Corporatlon thma Property
Z.Hotdlngs Corporatron and Unron Ga!vasteel Corporatlon : :

.'Mr Hilado is also a director of A. Sonano Corporatron Ftrst Phlllpprne Holdlngs Corporatron Phllex

Mining "Corporation, ' Manila ‘Cordage ‘Corporation, Smart ~Communications, - Inc., - Digitel = - .
Telecommunications Philippines, Inc., Beacon Property Ventures, Inc. Pueblo de Oro Development .

Corporatlon Umted Pulp and Paper Co Inc and Seven Seas Resorts and Lersure Inc

Mr. Hllado was ‘a Smtth Mundt/FulIbrrght scholar at the Harvard Graduate School of Busmess where
he obtained his Master's Degree  in Business Administration .in 1962. ‘He is a Certified Public
Accountant (CPA) with'a Bachelor. of Science in Commerce degree from the De La Salle College in
Bacolod in 1958. He earned his Doctorate in Business Management, Honoris Causa, from the De La
Salle University in 1992 -and in 2003 atta:ned hrs Doctorate of Law Honorls Causa from the
Unrversrty of 8t La Salle. - - . . .

David L. Balangue is 67 years old and is a Filipino. He has been a member of the Board of Directors
since February 12, 2012 and is -a member of the Audit & Risk Committee. Mr. Balangue is an
accounting and auditing professional whose career spanned 38 years at SGV & Co., the Philippines’
largest audit and accounting professional services firm. He is a former Chairman & Managrng Partner
of the firm, after bemg admitted fo partnership in 1982. Mr. Balangue holds a Bachelor's Degree in
Commerce, major in Accounting, Magna Cum Laude, from Manuel L. Quezon University and a Master
of Management degree, with distinction, from the Kellogg Graduate ‘School of Management of
Northwestern -University in Evanston, Ilinois, USA as an SGV scholar where he received a
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g "-:Dlstrngmshed Scholar Award a
He placed second' hrghest in the 1972 Phrlrppme CPA Board Examrnauons

He s_erved as President of the Manila Polo Club, Inc. (2014-2015), Financial Executives Institute of the
Philippines (2008); Philippine Institute of Certified -'P_ublic Accountants (2005); and Management
Association of the Philippines (2004). At present, he is the Chairman of NAMFREL, the Philippine
Center for Population and Development, Inc. (since 2014) and Coalition Against Corruption (since
2006); Member of the Board of Trustees of Habitat for Humanity Philippine Foundation, Inc. (since
2012), Chairman/President of Makati Commercial Estate Association, Inc. (since May 2010), President
of ‘Makati - Parking Authority (since 2012) and Chairman of the ‘Philippine Financial ‘Reporting
Standards Coungil {since February 2010). He is a non-executive independent Director of the following ..
listed companies: Trans-Asia Oil and Energy Development Corp., Philippine. Bank of Communications,

elected to the Beta Gamma Slgma an exclusrve honors fraternity' o ':' =

~ - Manufacturers ‘Life insurance Company, and Holcim Philippines, ‘Inc. - Mr. Balangue is also a non- o
- executive lndependent Dlrector of the company. and has possessed all the gualifications and none of .

. +the drsquallfrcatlons of a Director since he was first nominated and elected as an Independent Director -
- of the company. . Mr. Balangue has a regular column at Phlllppme Dally lnqurrer He is marrled to .
o Arlene Tan Balangue R e o _ S S

'_ :Ray C. Esplnosa is: 62 years old and is a Flllplno He was elected to the Board of Drrectors on_'. |
December.3, 2013 and is.a. member .of the Nomination, Election & Governance Commrttee “Atty.

o fEspmosa is the Chairman .of Philstar Daily, -Inc., ‘and Busrnessworld Publ:shmg, inc., and the Vice-:. -
. .Chairman of ‘the : Board of Trustees of the PLDT Beneficial Trust Fund.: He is also an Associate

Director - of First Pacific. ‘Company Limited and the Head of Government ‘Regulatory Affairs ‘and
Communications Bureau for the Philippines. He also serves as a Director of Philippine Long Distance

__Telephone Company (PLDT), Manila Electric: Company (Meralco) ‘Meralco PowerGen Corporation, -«
. Wolfpac Mobile, Inc. and :Metro. Pacific -Investments Corporation, and_.an .Independent Director of .-
‘Lepanto Consolidated Nl:nrng Corporatron He also serves as General Counsel of Meralco and Head_ -

- of Reguiatory Affairs and Policy and" Group Joint Executive Committee ‘of PLDT. . Prior to joining the.
“PLDT Group in 2000, Atty. Espinosa was a law partner in SyCrp Salazar Hernandez & Gatmaitan, the

largest faw firm -in the . Philippines, until June 2000 and was a member of the firm’s ‘Executive - B

Committee.: He was a law lecturer at the Aterieo de Manila School of Law from 1983 to 1985 and in
1989, - ‘Afty. ‘Espinosa finished his -Bachelor of Laws degree at the ‘Ateneo de -Manila - University,
- graduating salutatorian, -and-his Master of Laws degree at the University.of Michigan Law School.
- After finishing his Master of Laws degre€, he worked as a foreign associate in Covington & Burlmg, the
largest law firm in Washlngton D.C., USA, from September. 1987 to August 1988 Atty Esplnosa._ :
: placed frrst in the Ph|l|pp|ne Bar Examlnatrons of 1982 S

:Alex Erllto S Frder is 65 years oid and is a F|l|p|no He was elected to the Board of Directors on .
‘December 3, 2013. Atty Fider graduated from the ‘University of the Phifippines with degrees in -

‘Economics -and Law. - He ‘was -admitted to the Philippine Bar in 1985 and undertook specialized -
courses in Strategrc Economics and Corporate - Governance . in the Philippines -and ‘Australia,
respectrvely His legal experience spans 30 years of involvement in corporate transactions -and
prorects His legal work extends to an array of corporate and financial matters to companies involved
in publrc infrastructure, water, and power utilities, telecommunications, mass media, banking and
finance, real estate development and .agriculture. - He 'is a specralrst in the various fields ‘of
commercial, civil, telecommunications and publrc utilities law. Atty. Fider is a Director and Corporate
Secretary -of .several Philippine corporations, including Metro Pacific ‘Tollways Corporation, : Metro
Pacific Tollways Development Cotporation, Maniia North Tollways Corporation, Tollways Management
Corporation, Smart Communications, Inc. and Maynilad Water Services, Inc. He is actively involved in
the Financial Executives Instrtute of the Phlllpplnes (FINEX) and lnstrtute of Corporate Directors of
wh|ch he is a Fellow

Chrrstopher H. Young is 61 years old and is a British citizen. He was elected as a member of the
Board of Directors on May 13, 2015 and as a member of the Audit & Risk Committee on August 19,
2015. He is presently the Chief Financial Officer of First Pacific Company Limited, a Hong Kong
based investment management and holding company with operations in the Asia Pacific. He is also
presently a director and Chief Financial Advisor and Head of the. PLDT Finance Group. Mr. Young was
formerly the Finance Director of thé Metro Pacific Corporation, the group Financial Controller of First
Pacific Company Limited and a Senior Audit Manager of Price Waterhouse in Hong Kong. He has
been a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales since 1982.
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' "”’"-.'-"_Hubert D Tubro is’ 64 years old and isa. Frllpmo He was elected asa member of the Board of-.-.-"-":': o

Directors on December 16,2015 and as President and Chief Executive Officer of the Group effective - - S

January 1, 2016. He is a member of the Board of Trustees of the Philippine Sugar Research Institute
(Philsurin) and the Philippine -Sugar :Millers Association .(PSMA); and a member of the Board .of
Directors of Negros Coliege, Inc. Mr. Tubio has an extensive and varied career occupying senior
leadership roles in sugar, telecommunications, airlines, trading, and international accounting/auditing
industries. He was the Chairman of the Board of Directors of Bioeq Energy Holdings, Inc., a vertically
integrated bicenergy company. He. served as President and Chief Operating Officer of Vrctorras Milling
Co., Inc. from-2009 to 2014; President-of Philsurin; Member of the Board of Directors -of Globe

'_Telecom President of: Consultancy by Technicus Corporatron - ‘a subsidiary of Deutsche Telekom

AG.of Germany, _Consultant of F’AL Holdrngs Inc.; and Vice- Presadent of Jardlne Davres Inc

g lVlr Tubro isa CPA He graduated Cum Laude with a degree in Bachelor of Sclence in Busrness
- Administration (BSBA) :Major in Accounting, from the University .of the East and was a consistent

“university :scholar.-He ranked :10th in the Phrlrpplne CPA Board Examinations .conducted in October. "

1975, He is also recognized as the “Most Exalted Alphan” of Tau Aipha Sigma - an exclusive fratermty

. _forAccountrng Honors at the University of the East Manila in 1972. He also belongs to the Top 10% of . _' B
“the 36th Management Development Program of the A51an Instrtute of Management m 1991 wzth BERURRARA

_ Superror Performance Award

- .Cynthla L Dela Paz is 56 years old and is a Frllpmo She has been the Corporate Secretary of the _

- Group since February 115, 2017. Atty ‘de la*Paz is.a senior partner at Picazo Buyco Tan Fider & . o

- Santos. She has been in the practice of corporate law and taxation for the last 27 years. She has been
& Director of Tax ‘Management Association of the Philippines (TMAP) for the last 10 years. Atty. de la -

‘Paz holds a law degree from the UmverStty of the Phrhpprnes and graduated from the same unlver3|ty L

3 w;th a degree |n Psychotogy -
- 3The drrectors hcld offrce for one (1) year from e!ectron untll therr successors are elected and quallfred R

- The members of the Board attended semmars on Corporate Governance in comphance wrth SEC '-

--.rulesand regulatlons EEEARA

- £ Board of Advrsors

'.Vicente S Perez is 60 years old and is. a Frhprno ‘He was elected as a member of the Board of__

Advisors on March 25, 2009."Mr. Perez is presently the President of Alternergy Partners, a renewable
“‘power company for .emerging -Asian countries, and the Chairman of -‘Merritt Partners, ‘an energy

-advisory firm. -Mr. Perez served as Philippine Energy Minister from 2001 to 2005, the youngest fo
- have held the post and one. of the highest Cabinet achievers. He boosted energy self-sufficiency from -

45% in 2000 to 51% in 2004. - As Energy Secretary, he actively promoted energy investments such
that energy accounted for 65% of total national investments registered in 2004. He served: briefly in
‘garly 2001 as Deputy Minister -(Undersecretary) at the Department of Trade and Industry -and
_Managrng Head of the Board of Investments. Mr. Perez has deep. knowledge of, and expertise in,
corporate. finance, with over. 17 years of investment banking experience. His experience includes Latin
American debt restructurlng at Mellon Bank in Pittsburgh, and debt trading, capital markets, and
private equity in emerging countries at Lazard in. London, New York and Singapore. At 35, Mr. Perez
became a General Partner at the New York investment bank Lazard Fréres as head of its Emerging
Markets Group. He was Managing Director of Lazard Asia in Singapore from 1995 until 1997. 1n 1997,
he founded Next Century Pariners. (NCP. Advisors Philippines), a private equity firm based ‘in
Singapore and Manila, and invested .in companies such as Del Monte Pacific, Fastech, and Smart
Communications. In:2000, he founded Asian Conservation Company, a quadruple bottom fine venture
philanthropy company which acquired El Nido Resorts, an award-winning eco-tourism destination in
Palawan, which was sold to Ayala Land in 2013. In 2005, he co-founded Merritt Partners, an advisory
firm for energy companies in Asia. He also co-founded Alternergy, a wind power developer, and
SolarPacific, a solar power developer. He also currently serves as an independent director of SM
Investments Corporation, a holding company with the Philippines’ largest market capitalization, and of
ST Telemedia, the Temasek media telecoms holding company. He is Chairman of WWEF-Philippines,
member of the WWE-International Board, and Vice-Chair of Stiftung Solarenergie. Mr. Perez also
sefves as a member of the advisory boards of Coca-Cola FEMSA Philippines, Geneva-based Pictet
Clean Energy Fund, and the Yale Center for Business and Environment. He has advised ADB, IFC,
and various mternatlonal energy compames investing in Asia. Mr. Perez obtained an MBA from the

24



i ""Wharton Busrness Schoot of the Unrversrty of F’ennsylvama in- 1983 and a Bachetors Degree ln i .
“Business Economics ‘from the University of the Philippines in 1979. He was 'a 2005 World Fellow at -

Yale Umversrty where he Iectured an MBA class on renewable power at the Yale School of
Management :

Senen C. Bacani is 73 years old.and is a Filipino. ~He was formerly a member of the Board of
Directors and was elected as.a member of the Board-of Advisors on December 41, 2013. Mr, Bacani
is the President of Ultrex Management & Investments Corp., Chairman & Pre3|dent of La Frutera, inc.,
Chairman of Trully Natural Food Corporation, a Director -of Swift Foods, Inc., AgriNature, .Inc.,
‘Philippine Chamber .of Agriculture & Food, .Inc., Philippine Chamber of Food Manufacturers Ineg.,
Icebox Logistics Services, Inc., a ‘member of the Board of Advisors of East West Seed Philippines,
_Inc., a Private Sector. Representatlve of APEC Policy Partnership on Food Security, ABAC Philippines,
.a member of the Board of Trustees of the Philippine Rice Research Institute, and the Vice-Chairman

o the Technical Advisory Committee of the PCARRD (DOST) among others. Mr. Bacani obtamed hIS__ o

- degree in Bachelor of Science in Commerce at the De La Satle Unrversrty and hIS Masters in Busrness -

- ._ "Admlnrstratron at the Unrversrty of Hawan USA

i Corporate Offrcers

-._Pedro E Roxas (See above )
."Manueiv Pang;lman (See above) o
o HubertD Tublo (See above)

"Arcadlo S Lozada, Jr is 64 years old and is a Flllpmo He is ourrently Exeoutlve Vice- S

_Pre3|dentICOO - Sugar Busmess Unit, havmg jomed the Group on January 1, 2014, He was formerly SR

"'the ‘Vice-President for- Manufacturing of Victorias Milling Company ‘Inc., a Technical Manager. of.
S Bronzeoak Philippines, -Inc.,-and an Engineering: Manager at the Central Azucarera de Tarlac, among - :
_-others. ‘Mr. Lozada is a. Ilcensed Mechanloal Engineer and has completed a short course in raw sugar .
. manufacturlng at the. Nlcholls State Umversrty in Lou|S|ana USA - '

: 'Celso T Dimarucut |s 57 years old and is a Frhplno He was appomted as EVP CFO and Group '

. Head of Finance effectlve December 1, 2015. :Mr. Dimarucut prior to joining the company served as - '

Senior .Executive . Vice President ‘and Chlef Flnance Officer of Landco. Pacific Corporatron and its -
‘subsidiaries, Senior. Vice President and Group Chief Finance Officer of Mediaquest Holdings, Inc. and

its “subsidiaries, * Senior . Vice President -and Group Chief -Finance Officer of :ePLDT, : Inc. and -

. Subsidiaries, First Vice President and Group Controller .of PLDT Group, First Vice-President and
Group Financial Controller.for domestic -subsidiaries of Metropolitan Bank & Trust ‘Company and .
Finance Head of Pilipino Telephane Corporation (Piltel). Mr Dimarucut has more than 10 years of
professional audit and business advisory experience gained from SyCip, Gorres Velayo & Co. and
Prasetio Utomo & Co. (Jakarta, Indonesia). He graduated Cum Laude at the Polytechmc University of .
the ‘Philippines with a degree of BS Commerce IVtaJor in Accountmg He is a Certified Public
'Aooountant : SRR o I

George T. Cheung is 45 years otd and is a FI|Ime He was appomted as SVP for Marketing &
Trading on January 5, 2015."He was formerly & Managing Partner in Commodlty Pariners Pte, Lid.,
Head of .Domestic. Coal Trading of Trafigura Investment China, Ltd, based in. Shanghali, Assocrate
Director & General Manager-Sugar Division of Wilmar Sugar Pte. Ltd/Yihai Commercial Eagle Trading,
General Manager at the Greater China Region of ED&F Man, a globai supplier of sugar, and a Trading
Manager of the -Sugar Division in Hong Kong of Cargill, among others. ‘Mr. Cheung obtained his
degree in Bachelor of Science in Food Sciences and Technology at the University of British Columbia
in Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada, his Diploma in Business Administration at the Interational
Correspondence Schools, and his Master in Business Admlnlstrat:on {MBA) Global Executive program
at the Duke Umversrty in Durham, North Caroima USA.

Frederlck E. Reyes is 57 years old and is a Filipino. He was appointed as AVP & Deputy Head of
Human Resources on February 1, 2014 and was promoted to VP. & Deputy Head of Human Resources
on January 5, 2015. Mr. Reyes was former!y the Director for Human Resources Services of Manila
Water Company Inc. He has a 29-year experience in HR Operations having been in Vitarich in charge
of Training, QC & Employee Relatlons He joined Globe Telecom during its transrtlon to become a
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wureless telephone company in charge of Trammg and Deve!opment from 1990 thru 1997 and also mf_: _;
““Manila‘Water: during its “privatization” ‘years ‘in 1997 thru:2012. “Mr. Reyes obtained his degree m S

Industrral Englneerlng from the Unlversny of Sto Tomas and is a Ircensed Industnal Engmeer

Jose Manuel L. Mapa is 51 years old and is a Fllrptno He was appomted as VP General Manager of
RHI Agribusiness Development Corporation on January 8; 2018. Mr. Mapa obtained his MBA with
High Academic Honors from the University of St. La Salle Graaduate School in Bacoled and holds a
Bachelor degree of gribusiness. Management from the Umversrty of the Philippines Los Bafios. Mr.
Mapa served 2G0O Group, Inc. fr 20 years where he made major contribution as EVP for Key Accounts
and Supply Chain Solutions (2015-2017) and EVP for Freight Sales and Operations ~ Luzon (2011-
2014). Prior to that, 'he. also worked as EVP for Corporate Saies at Negros Navigation Co., and as
. “Operations Manager at Waterman Bacolod lnc He also manages a sugarcane farm in Talrsay

' Negros Oomdental SN B . ; SRR R

Jaynel R Sulangl IS 42 years old and is a. Flllplﬂo He was appornted VPIHead of lnformatlon &.'_' '
" Communications Technology on March 21,°2018. Mr.-Sulangi graduated ‘Cum Laude with Bachelor of -
“Science in_Industrial Engineering degree at the Unrversrty of the Philippines. Mr. Sulangl was VP for -

o SAP Project Management at Deutsche Bank group before j jommg Roxas: Holdlngs tnc: He also worked =
. &t PLDT and Smart Communications, :Inc. For seven years as Senir: Manager 1T-Resource Planning -

. {ERP) and later, as Solutions Architect, Program Management Office. He -also worked .at SAQ, SSIP. . |

and. Business Applications ‘and Network Technologres He is.a Certtfted SAP Consultant in. Piannmg o
' Productron Plannmg smce 1997 EERRTEAR : R Y

'Jose B thlanueva lll is 48 years oId and is a Filipino, He was appomted VPlChlef Nlanufactunng T

- Officer of ‘Algohol -SBU :on .July ‘2,-2018. Mr. " Villanueva graduated with -a. degree in ‘Mechanical . =
~.~Engineering at the De La Salle- Umver5|ty Mr. Villanueva has over.23 yeas of work experience .
~ “:spanning, ‘among others, ‘the areas of Operations, Supply . Chain, :Human Resources -and . Project ..
Management. He is currently an Industry Advisior to the Mecha ical Engmeelng Department ofDela

‘Salle University in Taft, Manita. He spent eight (8) years in Mondelez International (formerly Kraft Food
* Phils., Inc.) where ‘he held various roles usch as Site Manager, Category. Operations & Developmen :

fManager Maintenance Manager & Manufactunng Business Development Maager. He was a former
- Reliability Manager of Lafarge Cement, looking after five. (5) Plants across the country.. He also worked -

"at Sanko ‘Systems ‘Servies and .as ‘Engineering ‘Manager at Avon- Products ‘Manufacturing, Inc. He -
“spent 10 years with the food goup:of Unilever Philippines, handiing leadership roles across Operatlons_ :
: -and Human Resouroes He was also partof th, team that built a world class manufactunng facmty

: Bemard Jose S Lachlca is. 48 Years old and is a FlllpInO He was appomted VP/Chief Manufactunng
Officer ‘of :‘Sugaar ‘SBU. on October 1,:2018, - Mr. Lachica graduated with .a .degree in Mechaical -
Engineering at the Unversity of Santo Tomas. He is a regrstered Mechanical Engineer. Mr Lachica has
more than 20 years of extenisive work experience, Prior to joining Roxas Holdings, Inc., he was Chief
Operating Officer (COOQ) of SariMonde Fodds Corporation, a joint venture of Monde lesm Corporation
Philippines and Nippon Indosari Corpindo of Indonesia.. As previous Reglon Operat|ons Directory of
Coca Cola FEMSA Phlllppnes ‘Mr. Lachica managed the entire bottling and power operations of nine

facilites. in Luzon. He also had a short assignment in Mexico. He capped his stint at Mead Johnson -

Nutrituin :by serving as OIC ‘Supply Chain Directory after three years as Plant Manager and follwing -
three Regional Excellence in Action and two Local Excelience in Action Awards. Mr. Lachica spent 10
years at Unilever Philippines, where he started his career as Technical Management Trainee with
assignments in Production, ‘Engineering, Finance, Sales, HR, Packaging Development, Safety,
Projects .and Marketing. He then moved up as Manager of Total Productive -Maintenance (TPM),
Cavite Gateway Plant Manager Foods Manufactumg Manager and Manufaoturlng Lead for Dressm in
Asra :

Esteban H. Coscolluela is 66 years old and is a Filipino. He was appointed as VP/GM for Central
Azucarera de la Carlota, Inc. on May 11, 2016. He was a former Director and Executive Committee
Chairman of PNOC Coal Corporation. He was also a former VP at Union Bank. He occupied vatious
Iea‘dership roles in planters’ associations, farmers’ cooperatives, and the Chamber of Commerce and
Industry, in Negros Occidental. Mr. Coscolluela also served as Mayor of Murcia in Negros Occidental.
He graduated with a degree in BS Management at the University of St. La Salle. He is an MBA
Graduate at the Asian Institute of Management.
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* Veronica C. Cortez fs 390 years old and s a Filpino. She was appointed AVP of Finance on -~

February 10, 2016. She has aver 10 years of experience in external auditing. She worked with SyCip -
Gorres Velayo & Co. {SGV) as Senior Director from September 2009 to 2015. She started her career
with SGV.as an Associate and moved to. become Senior Associate, Associate Director and then
Director. She also worked as a Senior Associate in the Resource Sharing Program of Ernst & Young
Houston, Texas Office. Ms. Cortez graduated with a degree in BS Accountancy from San Sebastian

College Recoletos de Cavite and is a Certified Public Accountant. . ~ c R A

'Kathrina'.Es_trella L.'Se'baé_tian is .4.4 years old and is a Filipino. She was appointed .a_é_ A_VP.— Hea_d of
Treasury and Chief Risk Officer and Chief Credit Officer on December 16, 2015. Ms. Sebastian was

“previously the Head of Development Organizations and the Relationship Manager/Associate Director

~of Financial institutions ‘of Standard Chartered Bank. She also worked for Citibank, N.AA. and G & S~
.~ Transport Corporation.:Ms. Sebastian obtained her degree in Bachelor of Science in Management at
'the Ateneo De Manila University and her MBA in International Business at the Manchester Business
' Daisy. Perpetua ‘A. Bo is 55 years old and is ‘a Filipino. - ‘She was appointed as AVP for -

p - QA/Safety/EMS/IE on May 11, 2016. Ms.: Bo was formerly a QA Manager at Alaska Milk Corporation. - SRR

She also worked previously at. Coca Cola’'Export Corporation as Area Quality Manager for the Visayas - 3

. -and Mega Manifa and as Concentrate Plant QA ‘Manager. She was also :a former Product Support

~ Business Team Leader at Avon ‘Products - Manufacturing. She graduated with a degree in BS -
of Santo Tomas, -and took some MBA units at the De la Salle .-

~Chemistry from the University of Santo ~
__-Uniye__rs'ity‘ Sheisa licenseql_c_he_mist_s_ince 1987.
' Ma, EHa_Z_"e_!_. L. 'Réba;_’a'-'Reta'r_d.o is 38 years old and is a Filipino. ‘She ';Was'.-éppoin"té'd__ as AVP.for -
“Corporate Governance and Deputy Compliance Officer.on September 20, 2016. Prior to joining RHI, -

Aty Rabara-Retardo was Vice President - Legal & Administrative -Affairs/Corporate Secretary :of -

~“Advanced Merchant Payments Lending Corporation, an affiliate of Amplifi Capital (HK) Ltd. and AMP - o

Credit Technologies, Ltd, where she likewise provided support in legal and contracts management and

“other -roles for -the ‘AMP.Group which has operations .in Hong -Kong, Singapore and the United
“Kingdom. She also worked as Court Attorney V at the Office of the Presiding Justice Ernesto Acosta ' -

of the Court of Tax Appeals. Atty. 'RabaraQRetardo also worked as an associate in the Tan Venturanza . :
- Valdez Law Office where she was ‘assigned as ‘Corporate Secretary of various ‘private and publicly-. - -

'~ -Science at the l_J_nIv_ersity_ of the Philippines- Diliman, Quezon City.

~Jaypee V. Jimenez is 34 years old and is a Filipino. He was appointed AVP/Head of Procurement &
‘Materials Management .of February 15, 2018, Mr. Jimenez graduated with :a B.S. mechanical
'Engineering ‘degree at the ‘Polytechnic University -of the Philippines .and later .took up Masters in
Business Administration at the De La Salle University. He is affiliated with the Philippine Society of
Mechanical -Engineers. and . Philippine ‘Institute of - Supply Management. Mr. Jimenez was -Senior
Manager of Procurement at Roxas Holdings, Inc. from June 2016 to February 2018, serving both the
sugar and bioethanol .units. Prior to that, he was Manager for MR Procurement at-Aboitiz Power
“Corporation. He also served as Supervisor for Procurement at AP Renewables, Inc., as Procurement -
‘Engineer at Bilfal Heavy Industries at the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, and as Engineering Buyer at the

Asian Terminals Incorporated. .

Josephine M. Logroiio is 42 years old and is a Filipino. She was appointed as AVP .and Group Head
of Internal Audit on February 1, 2018, Ms. Logrofio graduated with a degree in BS Accountancy from
the University of Sto. Tomas. She is a Certified Public Accountant'and a Certified Internal Auditor. Ms.
Logrofio was formerly the Audit Manager at Arthaland Corporation (2016-2017) and Shang Properties
Inc. (2013-2016). She has over 16 years of experience in both internal and external auditing. She
worked with Holcim Philippines, Inc. as a Finance — Process Solution Officer and as an Internal
Auditor from 2003-2010. She also served as an Associate Auditor at Sycip, Gorres, Velayo (SGV) &

Co. from 1999-2003.
Significant Em_ployee_s

The Group is not highly depe‘ndenf on the services of an employee who is not an Executive Officer so
as to be a key in the business. C
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 Family Relationships

Messrs.. Pedro E. Roxas and Santlago R. Ehzalde are refatives . within the fourth degree of

consangumity

Legal Proceedmgs :

The Group is.not aware of any Iegal proceedingls during the last flve (5) years up to the present
involving the members of its Board of Directors, Executive Officers or their property before any court of

. law or administrative body ‘in the Philippines or elsewhere.

- Moreover, the company is ‘ot in

- possession of .any information indicating that the members. of its ‘Board of Directors -or .Executive
. 'Officers -have been ‘convicted by ﬂnal judgment of any offense pumshable under the Iaws of the_.

_ .Phlllpplnes or of any other country

= ':Item 10 Executlve Compensation

:".Compensat.'on ofExecutlve Off:cers S i

RS EEE RIS S | Fiseal | . o0 = | Other Annuali -
' Name and Principal position |~ | Year |  Salary Bonus - | Compensation.
| The CEO and four most highly compensated 2018 | SRR RN BN
: Executwe Officers: N Sl
| e " Hubert D, Tubio - Premdent and CEO J
| = ' Celso T. Dimarucut - EVP.and CFO.: | - L
1 o " Arcadio S. Lozada EVP COO Sugar 1 T
+ - Business Unit S O
‘le GeorgeT. Cheung SVP Ccmmerc:al e
. Operafions - .
s - Bernard JoseS Lachlca VP Chlef _ _ :
‘Manufacturing Off cer—Sugar Bus:ness_ FEETER RTINS o Lo
. Unit - : 952,020,288 P8671548 1 . P
' All other officers and dlrectors asagroup R FERENEE
unnamed® R 33,766,056 5,627,676 -
-| The CEO and fourmost h:ghly compensated 2017 SR el '
Executive Officers: : : B
.|'s “Hubert D. Tubio - Pre3|dent and CEO
1e . CelsoT. Dlmerucut EVPand CFO .
e Arcadio S. Lozada - EVP- COO Sugar _
Business Unit . :
e Luis O, V|ila-AanEe EVP—COO Alcohol
. Business Unit :
* - Florencio M. Mamauag.Jr -VP Legal -
- Compliance Officer and Chief - : ' - ' : '
Information Officer P52,271,928 6,413,994 - P720,000
All other officers and dlrectors as a group N R : o '
unnamed* 29,680,332 2,473,361 960,000
The CEO and four most htghly compensated 2016 R c R
Executive Officers: ' : '
e “Hubert D. Tubio - President and CEC -
e Celso T. Dimarucut- EVP.and CFO
e Arcadio 8. Lozada - EVP- COO Sugar
Business Unit -
e Luis O. Villa-Abrilie - EVP-COO, Alcohol
Business Unit
+  Florencio M. Mamauag, Jr. - VP-Legal.
Compliance Officer and Chief
Information Officer ' £45,383,196 P5,741,933 £3,180,000
All other officers and directors as a group
unnamed* 26,799,600 2,233,300

Compensation of Directors

5,160,000
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Artlcle 19 of the By-i_aws of th Parent Company provades that the Board of D|rectors shall be glven:' ""f_: - :

6% of the net income of the corporatron before tax to be distributed as fees in the following manner:
2% to the Executive Committee and 4% to the Board of Directors. Each member of the Board of
Directors and of the Board of Advisors receives a per diem of £25,000.00 for every meeting attended.
Each member of the Audit & Risk Committee, Compensation Committee, and Nomination, Election &
Governance Committee, receives a per diem of £25,000.00 for every meeting attended. Except for the
Chairman, the members of the Executrve Commtttee receive a per drem of P25, 000 00 for every
meeting attended : . . .

Item 11 Secunty Ownershtp of Certain Benefrclal Owners and Management
' .Securrty Ownershrp of Cerfam Record and Benefrcrai Owners |

. .'The table below shows persons of groups known to ihe Group as of November 30 2018 to be dlrectly
- or mdirectly the record or. beneftcrat owner of more than 5% of the Parent Company S votlng securrtres

“Title of_'-'- ERS I B AR Numberand Nature owanershrp Percent
Class Name and Address of 0wner .' -} {Indicate Record andior Benefrclai) ofClass |
Common . _'Roxas & Company, inc. . o) 318,341,705 | Record and | 20.58%
L TIF CG Building, 101 AgurrreSt A4t Beneficial o
-| Legaspi Village, Makatl City R RTINS B PR,
S -~~~ | (Shareholder) : R R I - R
| .Common | First Pacific Natural Resources Holdlngs |- . 505,667,566 | Beneficial | 32.69%

. Pnns Bernhardpleln 200 1097 JB
| Amsterdam, The Netherlands
- " | (Shareholder) . o : . X S e
Common .| First Agri Holdrngs Corp R -1 467,854,834 | ‘Beneficial | 30.24%
© 40" Floor, MGO Building, DetaRosacor R S A B
|| Legaspi St., Makati Clty ' _ _
o s .(Shareholder) : . L ' L s . Lo
:1--Commen | PCD Nominee Gorp. - ' oo 446,747,616 | Beneficial - 38.71%
| 87F Tower 1 The Enterpnse Center ' S ol e o
Ayala Ave.; Makati Clty :
(Shareho!der) "

The members of the Board of Drrectors of Roxas & Co., Inc, (RCI) are Antonlo J Roxas Pedro E

Roxas, Carlos R. Elizalde, Francisco Jose R. Elizalde, Femandc L. Gaspar Guillermo D. Luchangco,

and Corazon De La Paz-Bernardo. Coliectively, they have the power to decide how the shareholdmgs
of RCl:in RHI shall be voted Pedro E Roxas |s authonzed to vote the shares of RCI ;n the annual_
meetlng : : .

Secunty Ownershrp of Management as of November 30 201 8.

The followmg are the number of shares owned of record by the Directors and the Pres:dent & Chref e
Executlve Officer (PCEO) and the percentage of sharehotdmgs of each '

Title of _Class Name of Beneﬁcra! Owner : Citizen_shr_‘p_ N ”mbg’;&”e‘i sNh?;”r oo | P Qg;:g; of
Common Eﬁg:meaHR(;‘;"tf‘i Board Fiipino | 626,840 (r & b) 0.0004 %
Common | Manuel V. Panglinan O éra Filipino 61,547 (1) 0.0000 %
Common Erjebs?dteatfglé%o | : Filipino 83,395 (r &b} 0.0000%
Common Sﬁ‘égofs?‘”?sa Fiipno 430,831 ( & b) 0.0002 %
Common S{f:c'fg'r'“’ S. Fider Filipino 50,000 (1) 0.0000 %
Common gf‘rgﬂffrc’ R. Elizaide Filipino 100,000 (1) 0.0000 %
Comman | Simetopher H. Young British 61,547 (1) 0.0000 %
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|- Title of Class -| -- Name of Beneficial Owner . ; . ._-c,_f,;en_s_h,p_ st | Class. | R
Oscar J. Hilado - T i B : .
Common | independent Director Filipino - 50,000 (1) 0.0000 %
' David L. Balangue o : o . —
Common. Independent Director -Filipino | 61,547 _(r_) : | 0.0000 %
' o FotAL - | 1525507(&b) 0.0006% _

_l't_em 12. Certa'i_n Rel..'_:i'tio_n_s_hi_ps_'ah_d R_ela_téd Tra_n_s_a_ctio__ns

Mr. Manuel V. Pangilinan, Atty. Ray C. Espinosa and Mr. Christopher H. Young hold the positions of
- CEO .and Managing Director, Associate. Director and Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer,

- respectively of First Pacific Company Limited. - The First Pacific Group, through First Pacific Natural
. Resources Holdings BV (FPNRHBV) and First Agri Holdings Corp., owns 62,93% of the outstanding

capital stock of the company as of November 30, 2018. ‘Mr. Pedro E. Roxas is also the Executive

Chairman ‘and the President & CEOQ of Roxas and Company, inc. (RCI). RCI owns 20.58% of the

" oultstanding capital stock of the company as of November 30, 2018.

. There is no transaction or proposed transaction during the last two fiscal years to which the Group was - -
“or.is to be a party in relation to any director, any nominee for election as director, any security hoider of

NumberandNatuneof P Percentof T

certain record or beneficial owner or management or any member. of the immediate families of the .~ -

~ directors.
* Item 13. Corporate Governance

“n c_orr._u.)'liancé with SEC .Memo:rand.um :C__ircular_ No. .2 dated April 5, .2002, the_ Gf_oup submitted ifs

Manual on Corporate Governance on August 30, 2002. - Since iits effectivity on January 1, 2003, the

“-company complied with the principles contained in the Manual insofar as they may be relevant fo its

‘businesses. It likewise - established -an evaluation system . to measure or determine the level of - -

. ‘compliance of its Board of Directors and top-level management with the Manual.. Measures are also

‘being undertaken by the company to ensure full compliance with the leading practices it has adopted L

* in the Manual such as the constitution of the Executive Committee, Audit & Risk Committee, Executive
‘Compensation Committee .and the Nomination, Election & Governance Committee, the election of the

required number of independent directors to its Board of Directors and the amendment of Article 13 of . - '

its By-Laws on the qualifications and disqualifications of its directors.in order to adopt the provisions of
the Manual. The company has not deviated from or violated the provisions of the Manual and it will
improve on its corporate governance as may be required by law or the exigency of business. A revised
‘Manual on Corporate Governance was submitted .on May 25, 2017 -fo. comply with the directive of

‘Memorandum Circular No. 19, series of 2016 of the SEC. =~
Insider Trading Policy - | |

The Company has an Insider Trading Policy which prohibits the purchase, sale, or trading in securities
of the Company or.another. corporation while'in possession of material non-public information. The
Policy likewise prohibits the giving of material non-public information, directly or indirectly, to anyone.
A violation of the Policy subjects the member of the Board of Directors, Board of Advisors, officer, or

employee to disciplinary action in addition to possible civil and criminal actions.
Whistle Blowing Policy |

The Group has a public interest disclosure or a whistle biowing policy whereby all employees have the
right and moral responsibility to report improper actions and omissions. A workplace cuiture is
developed in which employees who act in good faith and in compliance with the law are protected from
interference in- or retaliation for reporting .improper actions and cooperating with subsequent
investigations and proceedings. Public Interest Disclosure is required when employees, in good faith,
believe superiors or colieagues are engaged in an improper course of illegal or unethical conduct, and
they must be able to disclose such conduct free from fear or intimidation or reprisal.
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PART V- EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES

ttem 14 Exhrblts and Reports on SEC Form 17 C

Exh.'brts

(1) Aud|ted C_onsolldated F:nanmai Statements for the years ended September 30 2018 2017 and

:_ _'.'('2)

o w: .. ...:_t ‘e 4 t .

2016

. _Statement of Managements Responmb;!sty for. Consolrdated Fmancaai Statements '

Independent Auditor's Report : .
_Consolidated Statements of Fmanmal Posmon o
* Consolidated Statements of Income .. o
* Consolidated Statements of Comprehensuve Income

‘Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equlty
'Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows "~ e
" Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements R - I
' Supplementary Schedule of Adoptlon of Effectlve Accountmg Standards and Interpretatlons '- L
upptementary Schedules . o _ o
- ‘Required by SRC Rule 68 1 As Amended

» " 'Schedule A. Financial Asset ' s ' ' R S
. . '-Schedule B. Amounts . Receivable from Dtrectors Offlcers Employees Related Partres s

. ‘and Principal Stockholders (Cther than. Related Parties) S

. -Schedule C. Amounts, Receivable from: Related Partles whlch are Ellmtnated E o

“during the Consolidation of Financial Statements :

. Schedule D. Intanglble Assets OtherAssets

* Schedule E. Long-term Debt * .-
Schedule F. Indebtedness to Re!ated Parties : N

" Schedule G. Guarantee of Secuntles of Other tssuers :

‘s -Schedule H. Capltal Stock L

. :Schedule of Financial Soundnesslndlcators -

. '.Corporate Structure -
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S -':_'Repor‘ts on SEC Form 17-C =

Material actlons or resolutlons are summanzed below
October 27, 2017 - Resrgnatlon of Mr. Paul Edwin Lazaro as Assistant Vice President — Internal Audit
December B, 2{)17 Board Actlons | -

‘l Approved RHIs Audited Fmancnal Statements and Management Discussron and Analysrs for, the '
frscal year endlng 30 September 2017; and, ' _ . : '

L 2 Approved the holdmg of the Annual Stockholders Meetlng on 21 February 2(}18 to be held at the
: Manrta Polo Club and settlng the Record Date for the said Meetlng on 29 December 2017. o

L January 8 2018 Appomtment of lVlr Jose Manuel L Mapa as Vlce Pre5|dent and General Manager: .

SRS of Agnbusrness Development Corporatton (ADC)

1January 'lO 2018 Resrgnation of Earl Enc Nestor H Ferrer as Vice Presmtent - Informatlon and e
: Communlcatron Technology L . _ . - _

'-'January 23 2018 Apporntment of Jhoel P. Raquedan as Vlce Presu:tent - Group Head Legal & ..
: Corporate Affalrs . L R _ N

. February 1, 2018 Appoantment of {Vis Josephlne M Logrono as Assrstant Vlce Pre3|dent and Group
' -Head of Internal Audlt o _ : _ . : o
- February 7 201 8 Board Approvals

N Approved RHI's interim Flnanmal Statements and Management Dlscussron and Analysrs for the_ -
. 'Frrst Quarter endang 31 December 2017 S . : . Lo

-2._-;Approved the Press Release of the Corporatlon

3. Approved the postponement of the Annual Stockholders Meetmg from 21 February 2018 to 26 S -

““March 2018. strll to be held at the Turf Room Manlla Polo Club McKlnley Road Forbes Park
'Makatr Clty p . '

4. Conﬂrmed the appomtment of: the followmg officers to the p05|t|ons as stated

‘a. Jose Manuei V. Mapa as Vlce PresrdentIGeneral Manager RHI Agrl Busmess Devetopment
Corporation; .-

‘b. Atty. Jhoet P, Raquedan as Assrstant Corporate Secretary! Vice- PreS|dent Group Head -

: Legal and Corporate Affairs/ Compliance Officer; L
_¢. Josephine M."Logrofio as AVP- Group Head, Internal Audit; and B '
.. 'd. Atty. Ma. Hazel L. Rabara- Retardo as Data Protection Officer, in addltion fo her role as AVP
- Governance and CompllancelA55|stant Corporate Secretarleeputy Compllance Officer;

' and o :

5. Approved the amendment of Artlcle 8 of the By~Laws of the Corporatron changing the date of the
annual shareholders’ meettng to every second Wednesday of March of each fiscal year.’

February 15, 2018 - Promotion of exrstlng officers of the RHI Group to. Executive-rank positions

Jaypee V. Jimenez as AVP — Head Procurement and Materials Management RHI
Simon P. Turno, Il as AVP — Factory Operations Head, CADPI; -

Genaro B. Bernabe as AVP — Factory Operations Head, CACI; and

Damaso T. Agudeo as AVP — Factory Operations Head, SCBI

March 2, 2018 - Postponement of Annua! Shareholders Meetmg previously scheduled on March 26,
2018 to Aprrl 11, 2018,

32



“Maich 21,2018 '~ Appointment ‘of ‘Mr.  Jaynel Sulangi as *Vice-President - Information &. =~

Communications Technology Head

April 11, 2018 - Results of the Or_gani_zational Board Meeting of Roxas Holdings, Inc.

December1 2016 Board Actions

1.

.Approved RHI's Audlted Flnancral Statements and Management Drscussron and AnaEysrs for the
o -frscal year endlng 30 September 2016 : D . o

. _'Approved the holdmg of the Annuai Stockholders Meetlng on 15 February 2017 to be held at the o
. Turf Room, :Manila Polo Club McKlnIey Road, Forbes Park Makatl C|ty and settmg the Record
'Date for the sald Meetrng on 28 December 2016 S : o S

._Approved the inorease in Authorlzed Caprtal Stock of RHI from One B|II|on Frve Hundred Mllllon .
-Pesas {Php1,500,000, 000. 00) to Two Billion Pesos (Php2; 000,000, 000. 00) dlvrded |nto Two Bllllon i
'Common Shares wrth par value of One Peso (Php 1 .00). per. share _ R '

Approved the Issuance of at least Twenty Flve Percent (25%) common shares out of the above o

‘Increase in :Authorized - Capltal Stock (the . “Initial Shares). through ‘private placement of existing .. . "
L 'majonty shareholder -or ‘sharehalders and. submit :for approval of the - RHI Shareholders the- L
- _--foIIOWIng matters in the next Annual Stockholders tVIeetmg . : L

“a. Delegatlon of the authonty to determlne the terms and condrtlons of. the In|t|al Shares E
' lncludmg the offer prlce of. the pnvate placement to the Board of Dlreotors .

b Warver of any publrc offerrng requrrement over the Inrtral Shares and

¢ . ApprovaE to Erst the Inrtlal Shares wrth the Phlllpprne Stock Exchange

. .Approval of the recommendatron of the Aud|t Comrnrttee to appomt and thereafter submlt for the

approval .of the- ‘Shareholders,” the change in the external auditor of RHI from Reyes, Tacandong

. -and Company to SyC|p Gorres Velayo & Co as RHI 5 external audrtors for the fiscal year 1 October

E ._-2016 30 September 2017’ and

Conflrmed the appomtment of IVis Ma Hazel L. Rabara-Retardo as AVP, Govemance and Deputy S

: .Complrance Officer.

December 6 2016 Resngnatron of Ms Jesselyn P. Panis as SVP Deputy Sugar Busmess Unrt Head

January 3, 201 7= Appomtment of Servlllaro Jose L Dunglao as VP for Admm;strative Services

February1 201? Board Actrons

2. Approved RH! ] Intersm Flnancral Statements and Managemeht Discussion and Analy5|s for the_

Flrst Quarter endmg December 3, 2016 of the current flscal year;

'Aut_honzed the Company to enter into a Convertible Note Instrument with an affiliate, First Pacific

Natural Resources Holdings BV, for an estimated principal value of Five Hundred Twenty Three
Million Seven Hundred Fifty Thousand Pesos-(Php523,750,000.00) convertible into equity, upon the
submission and approval of the increase in authorized capital stock of RHI {o its shareholders and
the Securities and Exchange Commission; and,

Confirmed the appointment of Mr. Serylllano Jose 1. Dunglac as RHI's Vice-President,
Admmrstrative Services. ' '

February 16, 2017: Results of Annual Shareholders Meeting:
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& '-.1 The shareholders approved the Consohdated Flnancrat Report of RHi to the shareho!ders for the.'-'-E

flscal year ended September 30, 2016

2. The shareholders approved the. amendment of Article VIl of the Articles of tncorporatlon of RHI to
increase the authorized capital stock from One Billion Five Hundred Million Pesos
(Php 1,500,000,000.00) divided into One'Billion Five Hundred common shares to Two Billion Pesos
(Php 2,000,000,000.00) divided into Two Billion common shares, still with a par value of One Peso
(Phpt 00) per share and in connectlon therewath approved the below actlons _

‘a. Converswn |nto equrty of the Converttble Note to be |ssued to Farst Pacmc Natural Resources

“‘Holdings, B.V., in the principal amount of Five’ Hundred Twenty Three Million Seven Hundred
Fifty Thousand Pesos (PhP523,750,000.00} at a conversion rate of Four Pesos and Nineteen

- Centavos. (Php 4.19) of the value of Convertible ‘Note, for.every. One (1) common share, ora.
totat of One. Hundred - Twenty Five Million new. common shares out of the mcrease m_

_'authonzed caprtai stock ("Converted Shares”) and

b Llstlng of the Converted Shares W|th the Phsttpplne Stock Exchange

Results of Organrzatlonal Meetlng of the Board of Dlrectors

The Board of Dlrectors of Roxas Holdmgs Inc in |ts orgamzatlonal meeting heid on o
February 15 2017 elected the followmg ofﬂcers B o

s Name

' -'Nlr PedroE ‘Roxas L .:
Vlce Chairman of the Board of . Dlrectors

‘Mr: Manuel V. Pangilinan -
- Mr. Hubert D. Tubio .. - _

- Alty. Cynthla Y. Lrgeraide- Dela Paz—

. Mr. Celso T. Dimarucut ==~ -

Mr. ArcadtoS Lozada, Jr. .

M. Luis Q. Villa-Abrille. R
~ .'Mr.George T.Cheung =~~~ * -

'Atty FlorenmoM Mamauag‘ Jr -

M. Fernando H Corpuz -
Mr. Esteban H. Coscolluela -
Mr. Mintado A, Roflo -~~~ -

“Mr. Jose Rojo G. Alisla -~~~ . -

.~ 'Mr. Frederick E. Reyes = = -~
. Mr. Servillano A. Dunglao -

. Mr. Paul Edwin V. Lazaro -~
“Ms. Kathrlna Estrella L Sebastlan

Ms. Ver_omca C_anela-Cor_tez_ .-
Ms. Daisy Perpstua A. Bo
Atty. Ma. Hazel L. Rabara-Retardo -

* Infarmation Offrce_r o

Posltton :
Cha;rman of the Board of. Drrectors

Presmtent & Chief. Executlve Offlcer

_Corporate Secretary - .-
EVP/Chief Finance O_ff_lcer Lo
- EVPRICOO, Sugar Business Unit
- EVP/COO, Ethano! Business Unit
SVP, Commercial Operations .~
- Asst, Corporate Secretary; VP, Legal &

Corporate - Affairs; C_o_rnpl_lanc_e Oﬁlcer

VPIGM, CADPI

VP/GM, CACI -~ .

. VP/GM, ADC/Plantation -

VP, 'Agro-Industrial Research .
~and Development/Farm Operatlons
- VP, 'Human Resources -

VP, Admrmstratrve Servrces

AVP, !nternai Audit =
-AVP, Treasury, Chlef Rrsk & Credlt

Ofﬂcer .
AVP, Finance Head

“AVP, QA/Safety/EMS/IE
- ‘Asst. Corporate Secretary, AVP. Governance &
-Deputy Complrance Ofﬂoer oo .

_Ch_ief o
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The Board _of Dlrectors also e!ected the foEIowrng Dlrec ors-"to'the standrng Commrttees of RH[ as.'._"f' it

follows:
Executive Committee:

‘Mr. Pedro E. Roxas © .- “Chairman

Mr. Manuel V. Pangilinan - “Member -
Mr. Davrd L. BaIangue ' BT Member(lndependent Drrector)
Audrt Commrttee | |
-IVIr David L. Balangue L Charrman (Independent Drrector) :
.M. Christopher H. Young - Nlember o
M. OscarJ Hriado = Member(tndependent Dlrector)
' E-Corporate Governance Commrttee (formeriy, Governanoe Nomrnatron & Electron Lo
.Commlttee) S TR S : e
g '.IVIr. Oscar-d._Hr_I_ado R RN '-Charrman (Independent Drrector) o
. Mr.PedroE.Roxas. - . - . Member : :
' -._'IVIr Davrd L Balangue T 'Member(lndependent Drrector)

_ ;Compensatron Commrttee

"-_'Mr ManueIV Pangrllnan - _.':Chairman STURT

_ '_ - 'Mr.-Santiago R. Elizalde - -+ - - Member S
o) Mr OscarJ HlEado SRR e Member(lndependent Drrector)

"Mr Davrd L BaIangue was Irkewrse elected as Lead Independent Director of the Company

- Aprrl 17, 2017 —The Company has appornted IVIr Earl Eno Nestor H Ferrer as Vrce- Presrdent
Informatlon and Communroatlon Teohnology, effectlve AprrI 17 2017 . :

-'May 2 2017-~ Resrgnatron of ‘Mr. Servrllano Jose I DungIao as VP- Admmrstratlve Servroes :
'_(Adm|nrstratronlSecuntleSRlCorporate Safety) : o : . .

-May 11, 2017 Board Acttons

S Approved RHI’s Interrm Financial Statements and. Management Drscuss:on and Analysrs _
for the Second Quarter of Flscal Year endmg September 30 2017

2. Approved the Revrsed Manual on Corporate Governance in complranoe wrth SEC
'Memorandum Circular No. 19 serles of 2016 and .

‘3. Conﬂrmed the appomtment of II.IIr Earl Eric Nestor H Ferrer as RHIs Vrce-F’resrdent,
_ Informatron and Communrcatron Technology .

August 10 2017 The Board of Directors of Roxas: HoIdlngs Inc approved RHI's interim Financial
Statements and Management Discussion and Analysrs for the Third Quarter (ending June 30, 2017) of
FrsoaIYear endrng September 30, 2017 : ' :

September 29, 2017 - Resignation of Mr. Jose ROJO G Alisla as VP/GM, RHI Agri-business
Development Corporatron
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 17 of the Code and Section 141 of the Corporation
Code, this report is signed on behalf of the issuer by the undermgned thereunto duly authonzed in
the Clty of Tagulg on____ 20 . : _

HUBEU)TUBIO

Chajrman ofthe Bnard N P Pres;dent and Chief Executive. ol
R Offlcer '_j o

CELSOT DIMARUCUT SRR
EVP and Chtef Fmance Oﬁfcer —

. Compliance Officer, .
' .'A531stant Corporate Secretary

(UWW

VERONICA C. d’onTEz
AVP Flnance _' R

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this 'd_ayf!;i‘JAN 2019 2018 affiants
~exhibiting to meihear govemment—:ssued le as fo!lows e e e

Names CoEi ID No Date of lssue Lo Pla_ce_b_f_lssue

DocNo. _ 4
Page No. _ M
Book No, - ‘

Series of 9

P L;Eemz@ Mé i X
fareing Lavel Dels 8

' ?g%m Fgsa 55, Lagg}&wwi?&&e
T makat a:izy



ROXAS HOLD!NGS iNC ANB SUBSIDIARIES IR
lndex to the Consolldated Fmanmal Statements o
As at and For the Year Ended September 30, 2018

Schedule | : Supplementary schedules required by Annex 68-E .

- -Schedule L - _'Descrip_t_ion.

AL -FmancualAssets :
B .. Amounts Receivable from Dlrectors Off;cers Employees _
“Related Partles and Prmcnpal Stockholders (Other than Related o
" Parties) 2
€+ Amounts Receivable from Related Partles whlch are ellmmated TN
oduring the. consolldatlon of the fmancnal statements G
“D . Intangible Assets OtherAssets > : A
B “Long-term Borrowmgs ' . : o B
R _-"lndebtedness to Related Partles (Long-term Loans from Related_ SRR
. Companies) - N/A . R : SRR
G ;_-Guarantees of Securltles of Other lssuers N/A

: H '. | '__CapltaIStock
- :'Se_h.eglul'e. Il : -::__éupplemeetartf schedules of flnenc:ial sountieees mdlcators
| :.'éclledule-lll. : Sclledule of all etfectlee .s.taa.qdards arld |ntel'pretat|on lRart. 1, 4])
: Schedule lV | ':"Nlep. of the relatlonshlps ol the compen.les .Wlthln the gtoup |
: ..j-.:'_S'ch_e‘.?].ulé_ V Reconclllatlon of Retamed Earmngs Avallable for ledend Declatatlon G

'. (Partl 4C Annex 68 C)

- N/A=Notapplicable -~
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ROXAS HOLD!NGS INC AND SUBSIDIAR!ES

FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS
SEPTEMBER 30 2018 and 2017

12018 - 2017

. .Fmanmai Ratios requlred under Loan ; S

-.-Covenants S o
‘Debt to Equity Ratio (not more than2 33) _' Ca370. 127
Detherwce Coverage Ratlo (at least125) ...0.80 o o182 -

-'Others R R e
. ‘Return on Eqwty S T 0.98% .. ©1.14%
Returnon:Asset oo CLU041% - 050%
 Asset-to-Equity. Ratio i o237 o227
' CurrentRatio. .o L03T o - 0.88
' "BookValue perShare_; S pe9s ©P6.82



_ SCHED.ULE mn

ROXAS HOLDINGS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF ADOPTION OF

EFFECTIVE ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATiONS
- SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 '

-.Framework for the Preparatlon and Presentatinn of Fmanmai S
Istatements : L -

o Conceptua| Framework Phase A Objectwes and quailtatwe T
: charactensttcs i o ol '

:._:PFRS Practlce StatementManagement Commentarv AR o

hlhpplne Fmanual Reportmg Standards

'_ PFRS 1 : F;rst-tnme Adoptlon of Phlhppme Fmanmal Reportnng S
_(Re\_ns__ed__) O Standards e _ _ 1o
s - |amendments to PFRS 1 and PAS 27:Costofan ]

: :investment |n a Subs:dlary, Jomtly Controlled Entlty .
' orAssocnate SO Lo o S

- mendmentsto PFRSl Addltlonal Exemptlons for 1 . SEREUIRTINY EEE R
“[First-time Adopters: A Do 1o B B R

: Amendment to PFRS 1: Limtted Exemption from S
: Comparatwe PFRS 7 Dlsclosures for F]rst tlme R : S R
Adopters R _ , : _ S . RV

'-_-Amendments to PFRS 1: Severe Hypermflatlon and - - _
* Remaval of Fixed Date for First-time Adopters . o L v

-'Amendmentsto PFRSl Governmentl_oans e _ B v

PFRS 2 _: '.Share based Payment A . B v

Amendments to PFRS 2: Vestmg Condntlons and
f'Cancellatrons R . : - v

: Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settled Share- - _
- lbased Payment Transactions -~~~ ' v

|Amendments to PFRS 2: Defmrtlon of Vestmg _
- Condition 'A . _ v

ZAmendments to PFRS 2: CIassnflcation and
Measurement of Share- based Payment Transactlons ‘ v

PFRS 3 Busmess Combinations o v
(Revised) '

Amendments to PFRS 3 : Accounting for Contingent
Consnderatlon in a Business Comblnatlon v

Amendments to PFRS 3 : Scope _Exceptlons_ for Joint
Arrangements _ ' ' _ v




~“lInsurance Contracts -

PFRS 4

L Amendments to PAS. 39 and PFRS 4 Fmancnal
L Guarantee Contracts o

o Amendments o PFRS 4 Applymg PFRS 9 Fmancm!
“-{Instruments, with PFRS 4

pFRSS

' Non current Assets Heid for Sale and Dlscontmued
' Operatlons :

- '_Changes in Method of Dlsposai

<

-:PFRS"G

Exploration for and Evaluatlon of Mlneral Resources

PERST

Fmanmal Instruments Dlsclosures :

Amendments to PFRS7 Transntlon S

_f : Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7 Recla551f|cat|on
lof Fmanmal Assets '

e Amendments t0 PAS 39 and PFRS 7 Reclasssflcatlon
- of Fmanaal Assets - Effectwe Date and Transition -

o - _Amendments to PFRS 7: Improvmg Dlsclosures about
- |Financial !nstruments

. Amendments to PFRS 7 Disclosures Transfers of :
: Flnanmal Assets w

'Amendments to PFRS 7 Disclosures Offsettlng .
fFinancial Assets and Financial Liabilities - '

. K Amendments to PFRS 7 Mandatory Effective Date of
“IPFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures '

' 'Amendments to PERS 7: Apphcablhty of the -
IAmendments to PFRS 7 to Condensed Interlm
: FmanuaIStatements L

_-Amendments to PFRS 7: Serwcmg Contracts

PFRS 8

Operatmg Segments

- Amendments to. PFRS 8: Aggregataon of Operatmg
- Segments and Reconcmatlon of the Total of the
Reportable Segm ents Assets to the Entity s Asset

PFRS 9

Financial lnst_ruments




PFRS 10

“|Consolidated Financial Statements

Amendments to"F"'FR”S' 10: Tra'nsiti'on Guidance

- Amendments to PFRS 10 PFRS 12 and PAS 27
: Investment Entlttes

R Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 28
- - linvestment Entitles Applylng the Consolidatton
Exceptlon '

B Amendments to PFRS 10 and ?AS 28 Sale or _
' Contnbut!on of Assets between an lnvestor and 1ts .
"Assomate or Joint Venture o Lol

PFRS 11

g :'Jomt Arrangements .

- 'Amendments io PFRS 11 Transmon Gu1dance o

o _Amendments to PFRS 11 Accountmg for o
" |Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operatsons

|prRS 12

| D_lscl_osur__e of-_lnter_es_ts_l_n Ot_he_r_Ent_ltles_ i

Amendmen:ts to' PFRS 12 Transiti'on Gdidance

- lamendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 27: S
; Investment Entltles SRS :

Amendments to PFRS 10 PFRS 12 and PAS 28,

. finvestment Entltles Applylng the Consolldation S

Exception

PFRS13

- Clarlfscatlon of the Scope of the Standard .

_ Falr Value Measurement

Amendments to PFRS 13 Portfollo Exceptlon -

PFRS14 .

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

PFRS 15 '

' Revenue from Contracts wsth Customers

PFRS 16 =

B Leases

Phlilppme Accountmg Standards '

?AS 1

. Presentatlon of Flnanctal Statements

(Revised)

Amendment to PAS 1 Caplta_i Discl_osure_s

Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liguidation

Amendments to PAS 1: Presentation of ltems of
Other Comprehensive Income .

Amendments to PAS 1, Disclosure Initiative

<

PAS 2

Inventories’




PAS 7 *Istatement of Cash Flows
L g Amendments to PAS 7 Dtsc!osure Initiative
PAS 8 - N ;" Accountlng Pohcres, Changes in Accountlng o
o -:|Estimates and Errors ..
- [PAS 10 . ; Events after the Reportmg Penod
PA511 - "'Constructlon Contracts :
'-PAS_iZ.-"_ ._ _:!ncomeTaxes RSB TR
' i '_"_Amendment to PAS 12: Deferred Tax Recovery of
B Underlymg Assets : R .
o Amendments to PAS 12: Recognltlon of Deferred Tax
_ S “{Assets for Unreahzed Losses A L
PPAS16 - - ' B roperty, Plant and Equ1pment _
' . ";Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS. 38 Clarlﬂcatlon of
Acceptabte Methods of Deprematlon and e :
~|Amortization . :
: Amendments to PAS 16. and 38: Proportlonate
_ Restatement of Accumu!ated Amortlzatlon
2 mendments to PAS 16 end PAS 41 Bearer Plants
Ipas _3.7_..-' _ _Leases G
.PASlB_" |[Revenue .
PAs 19 ' _Empioyee Benef;ts .
{Re\rl‘eed)._ Amendments to PAS 19: Actuana! Gams and Losses,
o {Group Plans and Disclosures
Reglonal Market Issue Regardmg Discount Rate
Amendments to PAS 19 Deflned Benefrt Plans
_ _ Employee Contributions
PAS 20 - : Accountlng for Government Grants and Dlsclosure of
a Government Assistance '
PAS 21 - - Irhe Effects of Changes in Foreign- Exchange Rates

Amendment Net Investment ina Forelgn Operatlon




PAS 23 .

~[Borrowing Costs

(Revised) _ : _
PAS 24 SARN Related'Party Disciosdres : v
3 (R?y.s.?e). o |Key Management Personnel o Y
: .pAs 2% - |accounting and Reportmg hy Retrrement Benefrt B
o Plans . o o
PAS 27 Separate Flnancra! Statements _' _ [ : \/
'_ (Ame"d‘*d)-- - |Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 27: Lo
L Investment Entltres PRI sl
o Amendment Equ:ty Method in Separate Fmancmt
RERRUERE Statements o HRSPRRY
“|PAS 28 S Investments in Assocaates and Jomt Ventures v
 {(Amended) | mendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 2,
: e Investment Entltres Appiymg the Consolldatlon
o Exceptaon o S
Amendments to PAS 28: Measurrng an Assocrate or
R - JorntVenture at Fair Value -~ S :
' PAS 29 o _Fmancral Reportmg in Hyperanflatlonary Economies R o
PpAS 32 _' 'Finanua! Instruments: Dlsc]esure and Presentation | - v
) o Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Fmanc:al o
“Instruments and Obllgatlons Arising on i.iquidatron v
: : Amendment to PAS 32: Classification of nghts 1ssues v
: Amendments to PAS 32; Offsetting Fmancual Assets - e
_ and Fmanmal Lleballtles Y
IPAS 33 i Earmngs per Share v
PAS 34 . - _Interlm Financial Reportmg v
3 'Disclosure of Informatmn ’Elsewhere in the Intenm -
IFinancial Report’ -~ : : : v
PAS 36 himpairment of Assets - v
' Am;endrnent to PAS 36; Impairment of -
Assets - Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-
Financial Assets ' ' ' v
PAS 37 Provisions, Contlngent Lrabmties and Contmgent
Assets v




: Intang|ble Assets

' Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 38: Clanflcatmn of

Acceptable Methods of Depreaatlon and

- Amortlzation

PAS 39

Fmancuallnstruments Recognltlon and T
Measurement -- -

w Amendments to PAS 39; Transmon and lﬂltla|

Recognatlon of Fmanmal Assets and Fmanaai

: _ Llabmtles

Amendments to PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge
- Account;ng of Forecast Intragroup Transactlons

Amendments to PAS 39; The Falr Value Optlon o

. -_Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4 Fmanc;al
‘JGuarantee Contracts '

B Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7 Reciassmcatton '-
of. Fmanc;al Assets S

: Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassmcatlon

Jof Financial Assets Effectwe Date and Transation

= :Amendments to Phllappme lnterpretatlon
- IFRIC-9 and PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives

| Amendment to PAS 39: Eiigible Hedged items

Amendment to PAS 39 Novation of Derlvatlves and
: Contlnuat:on of Hedge Accountlng : :

PAS 40

* lInvestment Property L

B Interre!atlonshtp between PFRS 3 and PAS 40

: ~lamendments to PAS 40 Transfers of lnvestment
- |Property

PAS 41

' Agrlculture' '

Phi!lpplne Interpretatlons

-IChanges in Existing Decommlssmnmg, Restoratlon

IFRICL .
e and Similar Liabilities _
IFRIC 2 IMembers’ Share in Co-operative Entities and Similar
Instruments - ' :
IFRIC 4 Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a

Lease




IFRICS -

_ 'nghts ta Interests arasmg from Decommlssmnmg,
' Restoration and 00
' _Enwronmental Rehabllltatmn Funds

. . v
IFRIC6 : : Llabilmes ansmg from Partlctpatang ina Specific Lo
e Market - Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment v
“lIFRIC7 . "-:Applymg the Restatement Approach under R S
cnto T |PAS 29 Financial Reportmg |n Hypermﬂationary I
_ ' -_-Economles REOERS - "
CUERICS Reassessment of Embedded Derwatwes R v
- o Amendments to Phtllppme Interpretatron _ : .
I ~[IFRIC- 9.and PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives - v
'IFRIC';I_.Q L tnterlm Finanual Reportlng and impalrment B »
'I_F'RIC__'i_Z L -Ser\nce Concessmn Arrangements v
E IFRIC&I._S‘_ RN Customer Loyalty Programmes v
: _i'FBIICI 14'_' o " IThe lelt ona Deflned Benefat Asset Mmlmum _. . :'
i Funding Reqwrements and thelr lnteract;on -
' Amendments to. Phrhppme Interpretatlons o S
IFRIC- 14, Prepayments ofa Mlnimum Fundmg D o
S Requwement R . ~ _ .
MFRICLS .Agreements for the Constructlon of Real Estate R
{IFRIC 16 > He_dg_es of a Net !n_vestm_ent an__a Foretgn Operat_l_on v
IFRIC _17 g Dijstrib_dtio_n_sef Non-cash Assets to Owners '. . 5/
IFRI_C' 18 Tra'nsfers of Assets from Custerners BREE v
IFRIC 19 . _' : Extmgulshmg Fmanmal Lrabllrtles W|th Equtty B
o Instruments . v
IFRIC 20 - . _'Strapplng Costs in the Product:on Phase of a. Surface
' ' Mine. . v
FRIC21 [levies |
IFRIC 22 : Forelgn Currency Transactlons and Advance ' g
' Consideration ' : : v
SIC-7 ' introductlon of the Euro v
SIC-10 ‘IGovernment Assistance - No Specufrc Relation to '
Operating Activities v
SIC-15 Operating Leases - Incentives
SIC-25 Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity
or |ts Shareholders v




SIC-27 " _ EvaEuatmg the Substance of Transactaons lnvolvmg
<o the Legal Form of aLease - _
; SIC-29 R '.Service Concession Arrangerﬁents: Disdosurés .
_.SIC-_él_ -Revenue Barter Transactions Invol\nng Advertismg _
: Services, g
' Intanglble Assets Web Slte Costs .

lsic32
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ROXAS HOLDINGS INC

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF RETAINED EARNINGS

AVAI].ABI.E FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION =
o AS CF SEPTEMBER 30 2018 '

. 'Retamed earnmgs, begmmng

94,279,428,283

.':Cumuiatlve unreahzed falr value gam on mvestment propertles net of tax SRR A o
beginning L : - (1,462,442,556) ©
Revaluatron ancrement on' !and transferred to retamed earnmgs on deemed- ot R S
“cost. ad;ustment net of tax : 8 (958,591,519) " .
> Treasury stock PR -+ {52,290,236)
. Deferred i mcome tax assets, begmnmg S (24,623,248) R
- Retamed earnlngs available for dividend declaratlon beglnmng Y 1;781,48@,724.'_ Y
_ Net income earned durmg the year 167,306,752
. Deduct unrealized income:. : : S o
Unreahzed fair value | gam on mvestment properties, net oftax T '18 071,538 -
~Increase in deferred i mcome tax assets | . : o _ _ ' 1 369 062 N
' Unappropraated retarned earmngs avarlable for. dwadend declaratlon at end R e
ofvear 5 : C _® 868 228 075
Reconcﬂlatlon S S SRR
_ Retamed earnmgs at year end as shown in the separate fi nanual . B4,346,735,035
‘statements " - .
: Unreallzed fair value galn on mvestment propertles net of tax +(1,444,371,018)
Revaluatlon increment on land transferred to retamed earnmgs on {958,591,519)
deemed cost adjustment net oftax - SRR
Treasury stock - .(52,290,236)
Deferred income tax assets (23,254,186 ..

R1,868,228,076
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Roxas Holdings, Inc.

14th Floor, Net One Center

26th cor. 3rd Avenue, Bonifacio Global City
Taguig City, Metro Manila

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Roxas Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries

(the Group), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at September 30, 2018
and 2017, and the consolidated statements of income, consolidated statements of comprehensive income,
consolidated statements of changes in equity and consolidated statements of cash flows for the years then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at September 30, 2018 and 2017, and its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Matter

The consolidated financial statements of the Group as at and for the year ended September 30, 2016 were
audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on
December 1, 2016.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

VG

A member firm of Ermnst & Young Global Limited
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2.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidarted Financial Statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Accounting for Completeness of Quedan

The Group’s raw sugar business follows the quedan system, which is unique to the Philippine sugar
industry. A quedan is a warehouse receipt document which shows ownership of a specified amount of raw
sugar in a warehouse or sugar central. Accordingly, the Group’s physical possession or delivery of raw
sugar may not necessarily indicate ownership, or sales or purchase transaction, respectively. We
considered accounting for quedan as a key audit matter due to the volume of the transactions covered by
this unique system, which impacts sales and inventory accounts which are material and significant to the
consolidated financial statements.

The disclosures about quedan accounting are included in Notes 9 and 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Audit Response

We have confirmed our understanding of the Group’s quedanning system and tested the relevant controls
on the information system and manual processes. We observed the inventory count procedures of the
Group to establish the physical existence of raw sugar as of count date and reviewed the rollforward
procedures to arrive at the physical quantity as of reporting date. We reviewed the reconciliation of the
physical quantity and quedan accountability report to test the quantity reported, which are supported by
quedans, as the Group’s inventory and those which are held in trust for the planters and traders.

Impairment Testing of Goodwill

Under PFRSs, the Group is required to test the goodwill annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. As at September 30, 2018, the
Group’s goodwill is attributable to its investment in San Carlos Bioenergy, Inc., the cash generating unit
(CGU). The goodwill amounted to P1.08 billion, which is considered significant to the consolidated
financial statements. In addition, management’s assessment process requires estimation of value-in-use
based on the expected future cash flows of the CGU. Such process involves significant management
Jjudgment about future market conditions and estimation based on assumptions, such as forecasted
bioethanol price, forecasted sales volume, expected gross profit and discount rate.

The disclosures about goodwill are included in Notes 5 and 6 to the consolidated financial statements.
Audit Response

We involved our internal specialist in evaluating the methodology and the discount rate used. We
evaluated management’s key assumptions used in preparing the cash flow forecast such as forecasted

bioethanol price, forecasted sales volume, and expected gross profit by comparing them against the
CGU’s historical performance and current industry outlook.

VUGN
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We obtained and evaluated management’s sensitivity analyses to ascertain the impact of reasonably
possible changes in key assumptions. We performed our own independent sensitivity calculations to
quantify the downside changes to management’s models required which will result in impairment. We
also reviewed the Group’s disclosures about those assumptions to which the outcome of the impairment
test is most sensitive; specifically those that have the most significant effect on the determination of the
recoverable amount of goodwill.

Valuation of Land Stated at Fair Value

The Group carries its parcels of land, which are accounted for as property, plant and equipment at
revaluation method and investment properties at fair value method in its consolidated financial statements
as of reporting date. As of September 30, 2018, the carrying value of land amounted to B1.85 billion,
representing 7% of the Group’s consolidated assets. Management obtains the services of external
appraisers to determine the land values whose calculations involve certain assumptions such as sales
prices of similar properties and adjustments to sales price based on internal and external factors. In
addition, this requires significant management judgment and estimates. Thus, we considered this as key
audit matter.

The disclosures relating to these parcels of land are included in Notes 12 and 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Audit Response

We compared the property-related data in the appraisal reports against the Group’s records. We involved
our internal specialist in reviewing the scope, methodology and the assumptions used by the Group’s
external appraisers. We evaluated the competence, capabilities and qualifications of the external
appraisers by considering their qualifications, experience and reporting responsibilities. We compared the
assumptions used, specifically the sales price of comparable properties, against relevant external
information. We also discussed with the external appraisers the nature and magnitude of the adjustment
factors. We also reviewed the Group’s disclosures with respect to the fair values of the land under
property, plant and equipment and investment properties.

Estimating Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment

Under PFRSs, the Group is required to review the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment
at least at each reporting period. In 2018, the Group changed the estimated useful lives of buildings and
building improvements, and machinery and equipment, in view of management’s assessment based on
examination of the structural condition and functional reliability of these assets that the remaining useful
lives can be extended. The carrying values of buildings and building improvements, and machinery and
equipment totaled to 6.4 billion, which account for 25% of the total consolidated assets as of September
30, 2018. Given that the change in estimated useful lives involves significant management judgment and
estimate, we considered this is a key audit matter.

The disclosures on the estimated useful lives of the property, plant and equipment are included in Notes 4
and 5.
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Audit Response

Our audit procedures included obtaining an understanding of management’s basis for the change in the
estimated useful lives of buildings and building improvements, and machinery and equipment. We
reviewed management’s internal memorandum discussing the factors considered which resulted in the
change in estimated remaining useful lives. We compared the revised useful lives against market data
and industry information. We tested the computation of depreciation expense based on the revised useful
lives. We also reviewed the Group’s disclosures regarding the change in the estimated useful lives of
buildings and building improvements, and machineries and equipment.

Assessment of Contingent Liabilities and Estimation of Provisions from Claims

The Group is involved in certain claims by regulatory bodies and other parties. The inherent uncertainty
over the outcome of these claims is brought about by the difference in the interpretations and
implementation of the relevant regulations. The assessment of whether the provision should be
recognized and the estimation of the potential liability resulting from these assessments require significant
judgment by management. As of September 30, 2018, total provisions recognized by the Group
amounted to 7.55 million.

The disclosures on management judgment on assessment of contingent liabilities and estimation of
provisions and amounts recognized are included in Notes 5, 16 and 28, respectively, to the consolidated
financial statements.

Audit Response

We inquired of the Group’s legal counsels and management about the status and potential exposures of
the significant claims and obtained legal opinion from the legal counsels, including their assessment of
the likely outcome, and representation from the Group management. We also inspected relevant
correspondences with the regulatory bodies and other relevant parties, and reviewed the minutes of
meetings of the Board of Directors and Audit Committee. We involved our internal specialist in the
evaluation of management’s assessment on whether provision should be recognized and the estimation of
such amount.

Accounting for Investment in Hawaiian-Philippine Company (HP Co.)

The Company has a 45% investment in HP Co., an associate, with carrying value of B642.69 million as of
September 30, 2018. The investment is accounted for using the equity method. We consider the
accounting for this investment as a key audit matter because it contributed £54.67 million to the
consolidated net income and B56.83 million to the consolidated total comprehensive income. HP Co. also
operates in the sugar industry business; thus, is subject to the same risks as the Group.

The disclosures on the investment in HP Co., are included in Note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Audit Response

We sent instructions to the statutory auditors of HP Co. to perform an audit on the relevant financial
information of HP Co. for the purpose of the Group’s consolidated financial statements. These
instructions contained a discussion on their scope of work, risk assessment procedures, audit strategy and
reporting requirements. We performed procedures to assess HP Co. statutory auditors’ competence. We
discussed with HP Co. statutory auditors about their key audit areas, planning and execution of audit
procedures, significant areas of estimation and judgment, and results of their work for the year ended
September 30, 2018. We reviewed the working papers of the statutory auditor of HP Co., focusing on the
procedures performed on quedan accounting. We reviewed the appraisal report of the valuation of land
accounted for as property, plant and equipment and recomputed the Group’s share in appraisal increase
on land of associate. We also obtained the financial information of HP Co. as of and for the year ended

September 30, 2018 and recomputed the Group’s share in net income for the year ended
September 30, 2018.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the

SEC Form 17-A for the year ended September 30, 2018 but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report,
and the SEC Form 20-IS (Definitive Information Statement) and Annual Report for the year ended
September 30, 2018, which is expected to be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audits, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of
this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with PFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

VAR
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements. :

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Aileen L. Saringan.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

-

Qe &, rsamgon.
Aileen L. Saringan

Partner

CPA Certificate No. 72557

SEC Accreditation No. 0096-AR-4 (Group A),
August 18, 2016, valid until August 18, 2019

Tax Identification No. 102-089-397

BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-58-2018,
February 26, 2018, valid until February 25, 2021

PTR No. 7332610, January 3, 2019, Makati City

January 14, 2019



ROXAS HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Amounts in Thousands)
September 30
Note 2018 2017
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 7 #295,149 R571,377
Trade and other receivables 8 3,040,355 2,258,083
Inventories 9 2,646,085 2,539,526
Other current assets 10 1,204,288 829,203
7,185,877 6,198,189
Assets Held for Sale 12 6,525,072 -
13,710,949 6,198,189
Noncurrent Assets
Investment in an associate 11 642,690 606,768
Property, plant and equipment: 12
At cost 7,595,865 10,303,421
At revalued amount 1,376,627 4,746,047
Investment properties 13 347,591 349,267
Goodwill 6 1,079,615 1,079,615
Retirement assets — net 17 44,938 62,129
Deferred tax assets — net 26 440,817 270,839
Other noncurrent assets 10 291,423 279,898
11,819,566 17,697,984
225,530,515 R23,896,173
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Short-term borrowings 14 26,210,857 R4,608,359
Current portion of long-term borrowings 15 4,813,113 1,234,803
Trade and other payables 16 2,279,766 1,188,567
Income tax payable 2,350 1,605
13,306,086 7,033,334
Liability directly associated with the assets held for sale 12 1,024,465 -
14,330,551 7,033,334
Noncurrent Liabilities
Long-term borrowings - net of current portion 15 - 4,820,532
Retirement liabilities -net 17 249,953 316,758
Deferred tax liabilities - net 26 185,793 1,180,141
Other noncurrent liabilities 6 1,300 1,300
437,046 6,318,731
Total Liabilities 14,767,597 13,352,065

(Forward)
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September 30
Note 2018 2017
Equity Attributable to the Equity Holders
of the Parent Company
Capital stock 18 #1,565,579 R1,564,599
Additional paid-in capital 2,840,370 2,826,554
Treasury stock 18 (52,290) (52,290)
Revaluation increment on land under assets held for sale 12 2,390,419 -
Other equity items and reserves 18 1,177,585 3,419,147
Retained earnings 2,781,402 2,733,738
10,703,065 10,491,748
Non-controlling Interests 59,853 52,360
10,762,918 10,544,108
#25,530,515 R23,896,173

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



ROXAS HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 AND 2017
(WITH COMPARATIVE FIGURES FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016)

(Amounts in Thousands, except Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share)

2017 2016
(As restated, (As restated,
Note 2018 Note 12) Note 12)
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
REVENUE 21
Sale of goods R4,849,279 R5,470,843 R7,638,288
Sale of services 48,498 38,795 32,715
4,897,777 5,509,638 7,671,003
COST OF SALES AND SERVICES 22 (4,090,338) (4,893,958) (7,410,843)
GROSS INCOME 807,439 615,680 260,160
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 23 (735,003) (760,596) (747,038)
SELLING EXPENSES 23 (20,801) (8,608) (22,445)
INTEREST EXPENSE 14,15 (200,721) N (173,297) .. (192,213)
SHARE IN NET EARNINGS OF AN ASSOCIATE 11 55,834 67,777 212,258
OTHER INCOME 25 70,161 47,250 34,271
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX FROM
CONTINUING OPERATIONS (23,091) (211,794) (455,007)
INCOME TAX BENEFIT (EXPENSE) 26
Current 180,629 129,671 114,234
Deferred (52,486) 319 104,674
128,143 129,990 218,908
NET INCOME (LOSS) FROM CONTINUING
OPERATIONS 105,048 (81,804) (236,099)
NET INCOME (LOSS) FROM DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS 12 (50,380) 201,844 337,690
R54,668 R120,040 R101,591
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Equity holders of the Parent Company R47,664 R119,777 R101,244
Non-controlling interests 7,004 263 347
_ R54,668 R120,040 R101,591
EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
COMPANY 27
Basic £0.03 R0.08 R0.07
Diluted 0.03 0.08 0.07
EARNINGS PER SHARE FOR CONTINUING
OPERATIONS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT COMPANY 27
Basic R0.06 (R0.06) (RO.17)
Diluted 0.06 (0.06) (0.16)

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ROXAS HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 AND 2017
(WITH COMPARATIVE FIGURES FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016)
(Amounts in Thousands)

2017 2016

(As restated, (As restated,

Note 2018 Note 12) Note 12)

NET INCOME R54,668 R120,040 R101,591

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) 18
Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement gain (loss) on retirement

assets and liabilities [net of tax effect of 34.4

million in 2018, 9.8 miillion in 2017

and (R17.9 million) in 2016) 17 80,249 22,876 (41,814)
Share in appraisal increase on land

of an associate (net of tax effect

of R51.0 million in 2018) 11 56,813 - -
Appraisal increase on land (net of tax

effect of R4.6 million in 2018, R50.0

million in 2017 and R77.8 million in 2016) 12 10,782 116,561 181,462
Share in remeasurement gain (loss) on

retirement liability of an associate [net of

tax effect of R0.6 million in 2018,

R0.02 million in 2017 and (R1.3 million) in

2016] 11 1,501 39 (3,030)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME R204,013 R259,516 R238,209
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Equity holders of the Parent Company R196,520 R257,488 R237,658
Non-controlling interests 7,493 2,028 551
R204,013 R259,516 R238,209

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ROXAS HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 AND 2017

(WITH COMPARATIVE FIGURES FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016)

(Amounts in Thousands)

2017 2016
(As restated, (As restated,
Note 2018 Note 12) Note 12)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income (loss) before income tax from
continuing operations (R23,091) (R211,794) (R455,007)
Income (loss) before income tax from
discontinued operations 12 (67,870) 320,190 481,856
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization 12 775,308 950,839 927,513
Interest expense 14, 15 502,073 444,257 382,770
Retirement benefits 17 64,777 65,951 48,733
Share in net earnings of an associate 11 (55,834) (67,777) {212,258)
Unrealized gain on fair value adjustment
on investment properties 13 (27,531) (13,406) (27,529)
Employee stock option 20 12,355 2,020 1,440
Interest income 25 (2,600) (3,384) (3,401)
Net unrealized foreign exchange gains 25 (1) (187) (389)
Loss (gain) from disposal of property, plant
and equipment 38 (18) (2,481)
Operating income before changes
in working capital 1,177,624 1,486,691 1,141,248
Decrease (increase) in:
Trade and other receivables (782,272) (1,029,549) 91,247
Inventories (106,559) (937,709) (100,992)
Other current assets (127,261) (230,042) (243,284)
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables 1,083,077 118,185 (858,193)
Net cash generated from (used in) operations 1,244,609 (592,424) 30,026
Income taxes paid, including final taxes (32,550) (34,921) (36,771)
Interest received 2,600 3,385 3,401
Retirement benefits paid 17 (350) (193) (3,251)
"Net cash flows provided by (used in) operating
activities 1,214,309 (624,153) (6,595)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to:
Property, plant and equipment 12 (1,185,332) (1,140,984) (911,749)
Investment properties 13 - - (83)
Proceeds from:
Dividends received 11 78,226 212,408 132,468
Disposal of property and equipment 7,117 9,448 7,068
Increase (decrease) in other noncurrent assets (258,999) 17,752 (38,515)
Acquisition of non-controlling interest 4 - (15,188) (19,000)
Net cash flows used in investing activities (1,358,988) (916,564) (829,811)

(Forward)
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Years Ended September 30

2017 2016
(As restated, (As restated,
Note 2018 Note 12) Note 12)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 31
Net availments of short-term borrowings R1,602,498 R1,694,020 R1,045,738
Payments of:
Long-term borrowings 15 (1,242,222) (380,185) (1,364,691)
Interest (494,266) (430,591) (383,193)
Proceeds from:
Exercise of stock option 20 2,440 391 6,972
Convertible debt securities - 523,750 -
Issuances of common shares from stock
rights offering, net of transaction costs 18 - - 1,113,298
Availments of long-term borrowings - - 920,000
Net cash flows provided by (used in) financing
activities (131,550) 1,407,385 1,338,124
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (276,229) (133,332) 501,718
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE
CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 1 187 389
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR 571,377 704,522 202,415
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR 7 R295,149 R571,377 R704,522

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



ROXAS HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information

Roxas Holdings, Inc. (RHI or the Parent Company), doing business under the name and style of CADP
Group, was organized in the Philippines and registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) on October 30, 1930 for the purpose of operating mill and refinery facilities to
manufacture sugar and allied products. The corporate life of the Parent Company was extended on
May 6, 2016 for another 50 years until November 1, 2030.

In July 1996, the Parent Company offered its shares to the public through an initial public offering. On
August 8, 1996, the shares of stock of the Parent Company were listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange
(PSE).

As at September 30, 2015, the Parent Company is 31% owned by Roxas and Company, Inc. (RCl), a
publicly listed company incorporated and domiciled in the Philippines, 27% owned by FP Natural
Resources Holdings B.V. (FPNRH), a Hong Kong based company and a subsidiary of First Pacific
Company, Ltd. (First Pacific), and 24% owned by First Agri Holdings Corporation (FAHC), a Philippine
affiliate of FPNRH.

RHI completed its stock rights offering in May 2016 for 266,753,974 outstanding common shares of
RHI, with par value of 1.00 a share, on a pre-emptive basis to holders of common shares of the capital
stock of RHI as at May 4, 2016 (the "Record Date") at an offer price of P4.19 per Rights Share (the
“Offer Price”) (see Note 18). As a result, the equity interest of FAHC in RHI increased from 24% to 33%
while the equity interest of RCI decreased from 31% to 22%.

On February 1, 2017, the Board of Directors (BOD) approved the issuance of convertible debt
securities amounting to 523,750,000 to FPNRH, convertible to 125,000,000 million common shares
of RHI at the option of the holder and bears annual interest at 3%.

On February 15, 2017, the shareholders approved the amendment of the Parent Company’s articles
of incorporation to increase the authorized capital stock from £1,500,000,000 to £2,000,000,000
divided into 2,000,000,000 with par value of R1.00 per share. On the same day, the shareholders
approved the subsequent application of the convertible note as subscription to 125,000,000 common
shares arising from the increase in authorized capital stock at a conversion rate of #4.19 for every
common share.

On July 14, 2017, the SEC approved the Parent Company’s application for increase in authorized
capital stock using the convertible debt securities as payment for subscription. Accordingly, FPNRH
interest on the Parent Company increased from 27% to 32%.

The corporate office of the Parent Company is located at the 14th Floor, Net One Center, 26th cor.
3rd Avenue, Bonifacio Global City, Taguig, Metro Manila while the manufacturing plants of its
operating subsidiaries are in Barrio Lumbangan, Nasugbu, Batangas, Barrio Consuelo, La Carlota City,
Negros Occidental and San Carlos Ecozone, San Carlos City, Negros Occidental.
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Approval of the Consolidated Financial Statements
The consolidated financial statements of RHI and subsidiaries, collectively referred to herein as

“the Group”, as at September 30, 2018 and 2017 and for each of the three years in the period ended
September 30, 2018, as reviewed and recommended for approval by the Group’s Audit and Risk
Committee on December 3, 2018, were approved and authorized for issue by the Parent Company’s
BOD on January 14, 2019.

Basis of Preparation and Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared on a historical cost basis,
except for land under property, plant and equipment which is measured at revalued amount and
investment properties and retirement assets that are measured at fair value. The consolidated
financial statements have been presented in Philippine Peso, which is the functional currency of the
Parent Company and its subsidiaries. All amounts are rounded to the nearest thousands, except for
number of shares and unless otherwise indicated.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in compliance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) issued by the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards Council
and adopted by the Philippine SEC, including the SEC provisions.

The financial reporting framework includes the PFRS, Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) and
Philippine Interpretations from International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC),
including the SEC pronouncements.

Summary of Changes in Accounting Policies

The accounting policies adapted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except for
the adoption of the following amendments to PFRS which are effective for annual periods beginning
January 1, 2017 (October 1, 2017 for the Group):

e Amendments to PFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, Clarification of the Scope of the
Standard (Part of Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle)

The amendments clarify that the disclosure requirements in PFRS 12, other than those relating to
summarized financial information, apply to an entity’s interest in a subsidiary, a joint venture or
an associate (or a portion of its interest in a joint venture or an associate) that is classified (or
included in a disposal group that is classified) as held for sale. These amendments do not have
any impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

e Amendments to Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) 7, Statement of Cash Flows -
Disclosure Initiative

The amendments require entities to provide disclosure of changes in their liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes (such as
foreign exchange gains or losses). The changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from its financing
activities are presented in Note 31 of the consolidated financial statements.
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As allowed under the transition provisions, the Group did not present comparative information
for the years ended September 30, 2017 and 2016.

e Amendments to PAS 12, Income Taxes, Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses

The amendments clarify that an entity needs to consider whether tax law restricts the sources of
taxable profits against which it may make deductions upon the reversal of the deductible
temporary difference related to unrealized losses. Furthermore, the amendments provide
guidance on how an entity should determine future taxable profits and explain the circumstances
in which taxable profit may include the recovery of some assets for more than their carrying
amount.

These amendments did not have any impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

New Accounting Standards, Interpretations and Amendments to Existing Standards Effective

Subsequent to September 30, 2018 »
The standards, interpretations, amendments and improvements to the standards that are issued, but

not yet effective, up to date of issuance of the financial statements are disclosed below.
The Group intends to adopt these, if applicable, when these become effective. Unless otherwise
specified, these will not have an impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Effective for Fiscal Year 2019

e PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, establishes a new five-step model that will
apply to revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under PFRS 15, revenue is recognized at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring goods or services to a customer. The principles in PFRS 15 provide a more
structured approach to measuring and recognizing revenue. The new revenue standard is
applicable to all entities and will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under
PFRSs. Entities can choose to apply the standard using either a full retrospective approach, with
some limited relief provided, or a modified retrospective approach. The Group is currently
evaluating the impact of adopting PFRS 15 on the Group’s milling and tolling agreements, among
other revenue arrangements.

e PFRS9, Financial Instruments, reflects all phases of the financial instruments project and replaces
PAS 39 and all previous versions of PFRS 9. The standard introduces new requirements for
classification and measurement, impairment, and hedge accounting. Retrospective application is
required, but providing comparative information is not compulsory. The adoption of PFRS 9 will
have an effect on the classification and measurement of the Group’s financial assets and
impairment methodology for financial assets, but will have no impact on the classification and
measurement of the Group’s financial liabilities. The Group does not expect that PFRS 9 will
impact the classification of its financial instruments. However, the Group anticipates impact on
the adoption of the expected credit loss.

e Amendments to PAS 40, Investment Property, Transfers of Investment Property, clarifies when an
entity should transfer property, including property under construction or development into, or
out of investment property. The amendments state that a change in use occurs when the
property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment property and there is evidence of

[T



the change in use. A mere change in management’s intentions for the use of a property does not
provide evidence of a change in use. The amendments should be applied prospectively to changes
in use that occur on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first
applies the amendments. Retrospective application is only permitted if this is possible without
the use of hindsight. The Group is currently assessing the impact of adopting these amendments.

Amendments to PFRS 2, Share-based Payment - Classification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions, address three main areas: the effects of vesting conditions on the
measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction; the classification of a share-
based payment transaction with net settlement features for withholding tax obligations; and the
accounting where a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment
transaction changes its classification from cash settled to equity settled.

On adoption, entities are required to apply the amendments without restating prior periods, but
retrospective application is permitted if elected for all three amendments and if other criteria are
met. Early application of the amendments is permitted.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of adopting these amendments.

Amendments to PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts - Applying PFRS 9, Financial Instruments, with PFRS 4,
address concerns arising from implementing PFRS 9, the new financial instruments standard
before implementing the new insurance contracts standard. The amendments introduce two
options for entities issuing insurance contracts: a temporary exemption from applying PFRS 9 and
an overlay approach. The temporary exemption is first applied for reporting periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2018. An entity may elect the overlay approach when it first applies PFRS
9 and apply that approach retrospectively to financial assets designated on transition to PFRS 9.
The entity restates comparative information reflecting the overlay approach if, and only if, the
entity restates comparative information when applying PFRS 9.

The amendments are not applicable to the Group since the Group does not have any activities
related to insurance contracts.

Amendments to PAS 28 - Measuring an Associate or Joint Venture at Fair Value

The amendments clarify that an entity that is a venture capital organization, or other qualifying
entity, may elect, at initial recognition on an investment-by-investment basis, to measure its
investments in associates and joint ventures at FVPL. They also clarify that if an entity that is not
itself an investment entity has an interest in an associate or joint venture that is an investment
entity, the entity may, when applying the equity method, elect to retain the fair value
measurement applied by that investment entity associate or joint venture to the investment
entity associate’s or joint venture’s interests in subsidiaries. This election is made separately for
each investment entity associate or joint venture, at the later of the date on which (a) the
investment entity associate or joint venture is initially recognized; (b) the associate or joint
venture becomes an investment entity; and (c) the investment entity associate or joint venture
first becomes a parent. The amendments should be applied retrospectively, with earlier
application permitted. The Group is currently assessing the impact of adopting these
amendments.
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Philippine Interpretation based on International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee
(IFRIC) 22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration, clarifies that in determining
the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or
part of it) on the derecognition of a nonmonetary asset or nonmonetary liability arising from
advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which an entity initially
recognizes the nonmonetary asset or nonmonetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, then the entity must
determine a date of the transactions for each payment or receipt of advance consideration. The
interpretation may be applied on a fully retrospective basis. Entities may apply the interpretation
prospectively to all assets, expenses and income in its scope that are initially recognized on or
after the beginning of the reporting period in which the entity first applies the interpretation or
the beginning of a prior reporting period presented as comparative information in the financial
statements of the reporting period in which the entity first applies the interpretation. The Group
is currently assessing the impact of adopting this Interpretation.

Effective for Fiscal Year 2020

Amendments to PFRS 9, Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

The amendments to PFRS 9 allow debt instruments with negative compensation prepayment
features to be measured at amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income.
Earlier application is permitted. The Group is currently assessing the impact of adopting these
amendments.

PFRS 16, Leases, sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-statement of
financial position model similar to the accounting for finance leases under PAS 17, Leases. The
standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees - leases of 'low-value’ assets (e.g.,
personal computers) and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less).
At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognize a liability to make lease payments
(i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the
lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset).

Lessees will be required to separately recognize the interest expense on the lease liability and the
depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will be also required to remeasure the
lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events (e.g., a change in the lease term, a change in
future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine those
payments). The lessee will generally recognize the amount of the remeasurement of the lease
liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

Lessor accounting under PFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from today’s accounting under
PAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in
PAS 17 and distinguish between two types of leases: operating and finance leases.

PFRS 16 also requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under PAS 17.
Early application is permitted, but not before an entity applies PFRS 15. A lessee can choose to
apply the standard using either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The
standard’s transition provisions permit certain reliefs.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of adopting the new standard on its office spaces
lease agreements.
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Amendments to PAS 28, Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures, clarify that entities
should account for long-term interests in an associate or joint venture to which the equity method
is not applied using PFRS 9. Earlier application is permitted. The Group is currently assessing the
impact of adopting these amendments.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve
uncertainty that affects the application of PAS 12, Income Taxes, and does not apply to taxes or
levies outside the scope of PAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to interest
and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments.

The interpretation specifically addresses the following:

* Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately

e The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation
authorities

* How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax
credits and tax rates

¢ How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances

An entity must determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or
together with one or more other uncertain tax treatments. The approach that better predicts the
resolution of the uncertainty should be followed. The Group is currently assessing the impact of
adopting this Interpretation.

Effective for Fiscal Year 2021

PFRS 17, Insurance Contracts, establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of Insurance contracts within the scope of the Standard. The
objective of is to ensure that an entity provides relevant information that faithfully represents
those contracts. This information gives a basis for users of financial statements to assess the
effect that insurance contracts have on the entity's financial position, financial performance and
cash flows.

Some contracts meet the definition of an insurance contract but have as their primary purpose
the provision of services for a fixed fee. Such issued contracts are in the scope of the standard,

unless an entity chooses to apply to them PFRS 15 and provided the following conditions are met:

(a) the entity does not reflect an assessment of the risk associated with an individual customer
in setting the price of the contract with that customer;

(b) the contract compensates the customer by providing a service, rather than by making cash
payments to the customer; and

(c) the insurance risk transferred by the contract arises primarily from the customer’s use of
services rather than from uncertainty over the cost of those services

PFRS 17 is not applicable to the Group since the Group does not have any insurance contracts.



Deferred Effectivity

o Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments address the conflict between PFRS 10 and PAS 28 in dealing with the loss of
control of a subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture. The
amendments clarify that the gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that
constitute a business, as defined in PFRS 3, between an investor and its associate or joint venture,
is recognized in full. Any gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that do not
constitute a business, however, is recognized only to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests
in the associate or joint venture.

On January 13, 2016, the FRSC postponed the original effective date of January 1, 2016 of the said
amendments until the International Accounting Standards Board has completed its broader
review of the research project on equity accounting that may result in the simplification of
accounting for such transactions and of other aspects of accounting for associates and joint
ventures.

Summary of Significant Accounting and Financial Reporting Policies

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Parent Company and its
subsidiaries, which it controls as at September 30 of each year. The Parent Company has control over
the investee when the Parent Company is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee.

Presented below is the list of the subsidiaries.

P of Ownership Noncontrolling Interest Principal Place of
2018 2017 2016 2018 2017 2016 Nature of Business Business
Central Azucarera Don Pedro, Inc. 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% - - - Production and selling of raw Taguig City and

{CADP1) and refined sugar, mol Nasugbu, B

and related products

Central Azucarera de la Carlota, Inc. 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% - - - Production and selling of raw Taguig City and
(CACl) sugar and molasses Negros Occidental
CADP Insurance Agency, Inc. (CIAl) 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% - - - Insurance agency Makati City
Roxol Bioenergy Corp. (RBC) ) 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% - - - Production and selling Negros Occidental

of bioethanol fuel and trading of
goods such as sugar
and related products

CADP Port Services, inc. (CPSI) 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% - - - Providing ancillary services Makati City
RHI Agri-Business Development 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% - - - Agricultural business Makati City
Corporation (RABDC)?

Roxas Pacific Bioenergy 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% - - - Holding company for Negros Occidental
Corporation (RPBC) bioethanol investments

RHI Pacific Commercial Corp. 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% - - - Selling arm of products Makati City
(RHIPCC) @ of RHI Group

San Carlos Bioenergy, Inc. (SCBI) & 93.35% 93.35% 93.35% 6.65% 6.65% 6.65% Production Negros Occidental
and selling of bioethanol fuel

Najalin Agri Ventures, Inc. (NAVI) 95.82% 95.82% 86.91% 4.18% 4.18% 13.09% Agricultural and industrial Negros Occidental
development

Roxas Power Corporation (RPC) 50.00% 50.00% 50.00% 50% 50% 50% Sale of electricity Nasugbu, Batangas

Northeastern Port Storage 100.00% 100.00% - - - - Owning the depot and storage Negros Occidental
Corporation (NPSC)® facilities used by SCBI

(@
(2]
&)
(4)

Direct ownership of 20.53% and indirect ownership through CADPI of 79.47%
As at September 30, 2017, RHIPCC has not yet started commercial operations
Acquired in April 2015 through RPBC (see Note 6)

Indirect ownership through RPBC (see Note 6]



In March 2016, NAVI reacquired 63,248 common shares from the non-controlling shareholders
for a total consideration of R19.0 million effectively reducing the non-controlling interest by
R16.4 million, which represents 9.64% decrease in ownership of non-controlling shareholders in
NAVI. Consequently, equity interest of the Parent Company in NAVI increased to 86.91%. The excess
of the fair value of the consideration paid over the amount by which the non-controlling interest is
reduced amounting to 2.6 million was recognized directly in equity attributable to the equity holders
of the Parent Company.

In November 2016, NAVI reacquired 55,696 shares from non-controlling shareholders for a total
consideration of R13.6 million. As at September 30, 2018, there are only 22,656 remaining shares
from the non-controlling shareholders which represent 4.18% of the total shares.

On February 1, 2012, the BOD of RHI approved a resolution to shorten the corporate life of CPSI, CIAI
~ and RPC effective September 30, 2012. On the same date, the BOD also approved the merger of CCS|,
CFSI and JOMSI, which are non-operating subsidiaries and collectively referred to as “Absorbed
Companies”, with CADPI. This decision was in line with the Group’s move to rationalize its operations.
On April 14, 2014, the SEC issued the Certificate of Filing of Articles and Plan of Merger approving the
merger of CCSI, CFSI and JOMSI with CADPI, as the surviving entity. In 2015, management changed
its intention and decided to continue the corporate existence of RPC and requested the cancellation
of the application for its business closure from the Bureau of Internal Revenue. As at September 30,
2018, the applications for the cancellation of the business of CPSI and CIAl are still pending approval
from the pertinent government agencies.

The Parent Company has control over RPC because it has the power to cast the majority of votes
through its representatives in the BOD, has rights to variable returns from RPC and has the ability to
affect those returns.

Each entity determines its own functional currency, which is the currency that best reflects the
economic substance of the underlying events and circumstances relevant to that entity, and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the Parent
Company. The Group is using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in
similar circumstances. All significant intercompany balances and transactions including inter-group
unrealized profits and losses, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from
the date when the Parent Company obtains control and continue to be consolidated until the date
when such control ceases. The results of operations of the subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in profit and loss from the date of acquisition or up to the date of disposal, as
appropriate.

Changes in the controlling equity ownership (i.e., acquisition of non-controlling interest or partial
disposal of interest over a subsidiary) that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions.

Any excess or deficit of consideration paid over the carrying amount of the non-controlling interests
is recognized in equity of the Group in transactions where the non-controlling interests are acquired
or sold without loss of control. This is recognized as part of “Other equity items”. If the Group loses
control over a subsidiary, it: (a) derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary; (b) derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests; (c) derecognizes the
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cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; (d) recognizes the fair value of the
consideration received; (e) recognizes the fair value of any investment retained; (f) recognizes any
surplus or deficit in profit or loss; (g) reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously
recognized in OCI to profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets of NAVI, RPC and SCBI
not held by the Group, directly or indirectly, and are presented separately in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income and within the equity section of the consolidated statement of
financial position and consolidated statement of changes in equity, separately from the Parent
Company’s equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed to the portion held by the Group and to
the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit.

Business Combination and Goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at fair value on acquisition
date and the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree. For each business combination,
the acquirer measures the non-controlling interest in the acquiree at its proportionate share in the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed and included in
general and administrative expenses. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the
Parent Company’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of
acquisition is less than the fair value of the Parent Company’s share of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, the difference is recognized directly in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s

previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date
through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognized at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration which is
deemed to be an asset or liability will be recognized in accordance with PAS 39 either in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is classified as equity,
it should not be remeasured. Subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. In instance
where the contingent consideration does not fall within the scope of PAS 39, it is measured in
accordance with the appropriate PFRS.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred and the amount recognized for non-controlling interest over the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If this consideration is lower than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognized in profit or loss. If the initial accounting for
business combination can be determined only provisionally by the end of the year by which the
combination is effected because either the fair values to be assigned to the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities or contingent liabilities or the cost of the combination can be determined only
provisionally, the Group accounts the combination using provisional values. Adjustments to these
provisional values as a result of completing the initial accounting should be made within 12 months
from the acquisition date. The carrying amount of an identifiable asset, liability or contingent liability
that is recognized as a result of completing the initial accounting should be calculated as if its fair
value at the acquisition date had been recognized from that date and goodwill or any gain recognized
should be adjusted from the acquisition date by an amount equal to the adjustment to the fair value
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at the acquisition date of the identifiable asset, liability or contingent liability being recognized or
adjusted.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned
to those units. Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation.
Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on the relative values of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.

Common Control Transactions. Where there are business combinations in which all the combining
entities within the Group are ultimately controlled by the same ultimate parent before and after the
business combination and that the control is not transitory (“business combinations under common
control”), the Group accounts such business combinations under the acquisition method of
accounting, if the transaction was deemed to have substance from the perspective of the reporting
entity. In determining whether the business combination has substance, factors such as the
underlying purpose of the business combination and the involvement of parties other than the
combining entities such as the non-controlling interest, are being considered.

In cases where the business combination has no substance, the Parent Company accounts for the
transaction similar to a pooling of interests. The assets and liabilities of the acquired entities and that
of the Group are reflected at their carrying amounts. The difference in the amount recognized and
the fair value of the consideration given, is accounted for as an equity transaction (i.e., as either a
contribution or distribution of equity). Further, when a subsidiary is transferred in a common control
transaction, the difference in the amount recognized and the fair value of consideration received, is
also accounted for as an equity transaction.

Cash and cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks that earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Cash
equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts
~ of cash with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition and are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Financial Instruments

Date of Recognition. The Group recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the consolidated
statement of financial position when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade date,
i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of the assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the market place.

Initial Recognition of Financial Instruments. Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value
of the consideration given (in the case of an asset) or received (in the case of a liability). Transaction



-11-

costs are included in the initial measurement of all financial assets and liabilities, except for financial
instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL). Fair value is determined by reference
to the transaction price or other market prices. If such market prices are not readily determinable,
the fair value of the consideration is estimated as the sum of all future cash payments or receipts,
discounted using the prevailing market rate of interest for similar instruments with similar maturities.

Day 1 Difference. Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value
from other observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation
technique whose variables include only data observable from the market, the Group recognizes the
difference between the transaction price and fair value (a day 1 difference) in profit or loss unless it
qualifies for recognition as some other type of asset. For each transaction, the Group determines the
appropriate method of recognizing a day 1 difference amount.

Classification of Financial Instruments. Financial instruments are classified as liabilities or equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement. Interest, dividends, gains and losses
relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability, are recognized as expense
or income. Distributions to holders of financial instruments classified as equity are charged directly
to equity, net of any related income tax benefits.

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: FVPL financial assets, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments and available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets. The
Group classifies its financial liabilities as either financial liabilities at FVPL or other financial liabilities.
The classification of financial instruments depends on the purpose for which these were acquired and
whether these are quoted in an active market. The Group determines the classification of its financial
assets and liabilities at initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates such
designation at every reporting date.

The Group does not have financial instruments classified as financial assets or liabilities at FVPL, HTM
investments and AFS financial assets as at September 30, 2018 and 2017.

Loans and Receivables. Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and maturities that are not quoted in an active market. These are not
entered into with the intention of immediate or short-term resale and are not designated as AFS
financial assets or financial assets at FVPL.

Subsequent to initial measurement, loans and receivables are carried at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment in value. Any interest earned on loans and receivables
is recognized as part of “Interest income” recognized in profit or loss on an accrual basis. Amortized
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are
integral part of the effective interest rate. The periodic amortization is also included as part of
“Interest income” recognized in profit or loss. Gains or losses are recognized in profit or loss when
loans and receivables are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization process.

Loans and receivables are included in current assets if maturity is within 12 months from the reporting
date. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets.

Classified as loans and receivables are cash in banks, trade and other receivables, except for advances
to planters, as at September 30, 2018 and 2017 (see Notes 7, 8 and 19). Trade receivables with
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average credit terms of 15 to 120 days are recognized and carried at original invoice amount less any
allowance for impairment losses.

Other Financial Liabilities. Other financial liabilities pertain to financial liabilities that are not held for
trading and are not designated at FVPL upon the inception of the liability. These include liabilities
arising from operating (e.g. trade and other payables, excluding statutory liabilities and provision for
probable losses) and financing (e.g. short and long-term borrowings, due to related parties, dividend
payable) activities.

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and are
subsequently stated at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognized in profit or loss over the term of the borrowings using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of reporting year.

Trade and other payables are recognized in the year in which the related money, goods or services
are received or when a legally enforceable claim against the Group is established. These are measured
at amortized cost, normally equal to nominal amount.

Other financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and are subsequently carried at
amortized cost, taking into account the impact of applying the effective interest method of
amortization (or accretion) for any related premium (or discount) and any directly attributable
transaction costs.

This category includes trade and other payables (excluding statutory liabilities and provision for
probable losses) and short-term and long-term borrowings as at September 30, 2018 and 2017
(see Notes 14, 15, 16 and 19).

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities. A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset expired;

e the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation

to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement;
or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to pay.
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A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or has expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss.

A modification is considered substantial if the present value of the cash flows under the new terms,
including net fees paid or received and discounted using the original effective interest rate, is different
by at least 10% from the discounted present value of remaining cash flows of the original liability.

The fair value of the modified financial liability is determined based on its expected cash flows,
discounted using the interest rate at which the Group could raise debt with similar terms and
conditions in the market. The difference between the carrying value of the original liability and fair
value of the new liability is recognized in profit or loss.

On the other hand, if the difference does not meet the 10% threshold, the original debt is not

extinguished but merely modified. In such case, the carrying amount is adjusted by the costs or fees
paid or received.

Impairment of Financial Assets. The Group assesses at the end of each reporting year whether a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. Objective evidence includes observable data that comes to the attention of
the Group about loss events such as, but not limited to, significant financial difficulty of the
counterparty, a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
or the increasing probability that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization.
Ifitis determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, the asset is included in the group of financial assets with similar
credit risk and characteristics and that group of financial assets is collectively assessed forimpairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is recognized
are not included in a collective assessment of impairment. The impairment assessment is performed
at the end of each reporting year. For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial
assets are grouped on the basis of such credit risk characteristics such as customer type, payment
history, past due status and term.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables has been incurred, the
amount of loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. The amount of impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables, together with the related allowance, are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realized. If, in a subsequent period, the amount
of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed. Any
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subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss, to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date.

Offsetting Financial Instruments. Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal
right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The Group assesses that it has a currently enforceable
right if the right is not contingent on a future event, and is legally enforceable in the normal course of

business, event of default and event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group and all of the counter
parties.

Fair Value Measurement

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active market for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting year.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained in the foregoing

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair value is included in the following
notes to the consolidated financial statements:

* Note 5, “Significant Judgments, Accounting Estimates and Assumptions - Determining the
Revaluation Amount of Land and Determining the Fair Value of Investment Properties”
Note 12, “Property, Plant and Equipment”

¢ Note 13, “Investment Properties”

¢ Note 30, “Fair Value Measurement”

AR
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Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV).

Raw and Refined Sugar, Molasses and Alcohol. Cost is determined using the weighted average
method. Production cost is allocated using the NRV of each of the joint products (i.e., raw sugar,
refined sugar and molasses). The cost of alcohol includes direct materials and labor and a proportion
of manufacturing overhead costs with unit cost determined using the moving average method. NRV
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs to complete
the production and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Materials and Supplies. Cost is determined using the moving average method. NRV is the current
replacement cost.

Provision for inventory losses and obsolescence is provided for slow moving, obsolete, defective and
damaged inventories based on physical inspection and management assessment.

Other Current Assets
This account consists of creditable withholding taxes (CWT), input value-added tax (VAT), advances to
suppliers and prepayments.

CWT. CWT represents the amount withheld by the Group’s customers in relation to its income. CWT
can be utilized as payment for income taxes provided that these are properly supported by certificates
of creditable tax withheld at source subject to the rules on Philippine income taxation.

VAT. Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities are recognized net of the amount of VAT, except where
the VAT incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in
which case the VAT is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense
item as applicable. Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of VAT included. For sale
or purchase of services, related VAT is deferred until the related receivable or payable from the
transaction has been collected or paid.

The net amount of VAT recoverable from taxation authority is presented as part of “Other current
and noncurrent assets” in the consolidated statement of financial position. The net amount of VAT
payable to taxation authority is included in “Trade and other payables” in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

Prepayments. Prepayments are expenses paid in advance and recorded as asset before these are
utilized. Prepayments are apportioned over the period covered by the payment and charged to
appropriate expense accounts in profit or loss when incurred. Prepayments that are expected to be
realized for no more than 12 months after the financial reporting year are classified as current assets.
Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets.

Advances to suppliers represent prepayment to suppliers for goods or services to be delivered /
rendered in the future. A reclassification is made to the appropriate account (e.g. supplies, inventory,
property and equipment) once the supplier has fulfilled the performance obligation. The classification
as to current or noncurrent is determined by the usage or realization of the asset to which the
advances were paid for.

A N
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Investment in an Associate
Investment in an associate initially recognized at cost, is subsequently accounted for using the equity
method.

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant influence but not control, over the financial
and operating policies. Significant influence is presumed to exist when the Group holds between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights of the entity.

The share of its associate’s post-acquisition profits or losses is recognized in profit or loss, and its share
of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognized in equity. The Parent Company’s share in net
appraisal increase resulting from the revaluation of land of an associate is presented as “Share in
revaluation increment on land of an associate,” net of related deferred tax, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity as other comprehensive income. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment.

When the share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognize further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments in behalf of the associate. Unrealized gains on transactions between
the Group and its associate are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate. Unrealized
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. The financial statements of the associate are prepared for the same reporting year of
the Parent Company. Adjustments, where necessary, are made to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

The Group classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale if their carrying amounts
will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. Non-
current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Costs to sell are the incremental costs directly
attributable to the disposal of an asset (disposal group), excluding finance costs and income tax
expense.

The criteria for held for sale classification are regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable
and the asset or disposal group is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Actions
required to complete the sale should indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the sale will
be made or that the decision to sale will be withdrawn. Management must be committed to the plan
to sell the asset and the sale expected to be completed within one year from the date of the
classification.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are not depreciated or amortized once classified
as held for sale.

Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately as current items in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

L
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A disposal group qualifies as discontinued operation if it is a component of an entity that either has
been disposed of, or is classified as held for sale, and:

* Represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations

e Ispartof a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations; or

¢ |sa subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale

Discontinued operations are excluded from the results of continuing operations and are presented as
a single amount as net income (loss) after tax from discontinued operations in the consolidated
statement of income.

Additional disclosures are provided in Note 12. All other notes to the consolidated financial
_ statements include amounts for continuing operations, unless indicated otherwise.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are carried at historical cost less accumulated depreciation,
amortization and any impairment in value, except for land, which is stated at revalued amount.

The initial cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties
and nonrefundable purchase taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use. Cost also includes the cost of replacing part of
such asset when the recognition criteria are met, and the estimated present value of the cost of
dismantling and removing the asset and restoring the site. Borrowing costs incurred during the
construction of a qualifying asset is likewise included in the initial cost of property, plant and
equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the items can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to profit or loss in the year incurred.

Construction in progress pertains to properties under construction and are stated at cost. Cost
includes costs of construction, labor, borrowings and other direct costs. Construction in progress is
depreciated only from such time as the relevant assets are completed and put into operational use.
Construction in progress are reclassified to the appropriate fixed asset category upon completion.

The net appraisal increment resulting from the revaluation of land is presented as “Revaluation
increment on land,” net of related deferred tax, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity as
part of other equity items and reserves. Any resulting decrease is directly charged against the related
revaluation increment to the extent that the decrease does not exceed the amount of the revaluation
in respect of the same asset. All other decreases are charged to profit or loss. Valuations are
performed frequently enough to ensure that the fair value of land does not differ significantly from
its carrying amount.
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Depreciation and amortization are calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost over
the estimated useful lives, as presented as follows:

Number of Years

Asset Category 2018 2017
Buildings and building improvements 30 25
Land improvements 10to 25 10to 25
Machinery and equipment:

Factory machinery and installations 17 to 28 17 to 25

Safety equipment 5 5
Office furniture, fixtures and equipment 3to5 3to5
Depot and storage facilities 15 15
Transportation equipment 3to6 3to6

Depreciation and amortization commence when an asset is in its location or condition capable of
being operated in the manner intended by management. Depreciation and amortization cease at the
earlier of the date that the item is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale) in accordance with PFRS 5, Noncurrent Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations, and the date the asset is derecognized.

Major repairs and maintenance that qualified for capitalization are depreciated and amortized over
the remaining useful life of the related asset.

The asset’s estimated useful lives and depreciation and amortization method are reviewed
periodically to ensure that these are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from
items of property, plant and equipment.

Fully depreciated property and equipment are retained in the books until these are no longer in use.

When an asset is disposed of, or is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposal, the cost and accumulated depreciation, amortization and impairment
are derecognized. Gains and losses on retirement or disposal are determined by comparing the
proceeds with carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in profit or loss.

Software Cost

Software cost, which is presented as part of “Other noncurrent assets,” is initially measured at cost.
Following initial recognition, software cost is carried at cost less accumulated amortization and any
impairment losses. The software cost is amortized on a straight-line basis over its estimated economic
useful life of three years and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
software cost may be impaired. The amortization commences when the software cost is available for
use. The period and the method of amortization for the software cost are reviewed at each financial
year end.

Gains and losses arising from derecognition of software cost are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in profit or loss.

AL AV
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Investment Properties

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in
fair value of investment properties are included in profit or loss in the year in which these arise.

The fair value of investment property is the price at which the property could be exchanged between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s-length transaction. Fair value specifically excludes an
estimated price inflated or deflated by special terms or circumstances such as typical financing, sale
and leaseback arrangements, special considerations or concessions granted by anyone associated
with the sale. The fair value of investment property should reflect market conditions at the end of
the reporting year.

Derecognition of an investment property will be triggered by a change in use or by sale or disposal.
Gain or loss arising on disposal is calculated as the difference between any disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the related asset, and is recognized in profit or loss.

Transfers are made to investment property when, and only when, there is change in use, evidenced
by cessation of owner-occupation or commencement of an operating lease to another party.
Transfers are made from investment property when, and only when, there is a change in use,

evidenced by commencement of owner-occupation or commencement of development with a view
to sell.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets

The carrying amounts of investment in an associate, property, plant and equipment, and other
nonfinancial assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, except for goodwill acquired in a business
combination which is reviewed for impairment annually. An impairment loss is recognized for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Nonfinancial assets other than goodwill that suffered
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss under the expense category consistent with the
function of the impaired asset. Impairment loss recognized during interim period in respect to
goodwill or investment, cannot be reversed at year end.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the
last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased
to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in profit or loss unless the asset is
carried at revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as an appraisal increase. After such
a reversal, the depreciation and amortization are adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset’s
revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.
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Equity

Capital Stock and Additional Paid-in Capital. Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares
issued. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a
deduction from proceeds. The excess of proceeds from issuance of shares over the par value of shares
are credited to additional paid-in capital. The Parent Company also recognizes a corresponding

increase in additional paid-in capital when services are rendered in an equity-settled share-based
payment transaction.

Treasury Stock. Where the Parent Company purchases its own capital stock (treasury stock), the
consideration paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs (net of related taxes), is
deducted from equity until the shares are cancelled, reissued or disposed of. Where such shares are
subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly attributable incremental

transactions costs and the related taxes, is included in equity attributable to the equity holders of the
Parent Company.

Retained Earnings. Retained earnings represent the cumulative balance of net income or loss,
dividend distributions, effects of the changes in accounting policy and other capital adjustments.

Dividend Distribution. Dividend distribution to the Parent Company’s and subsidiaries’ stockholders
and the non-controlling interests is recognized as a liability and deducted from equity in the year in
which the dividends are declared as approved by the BOD of respective entities. Dividends that are
approved after the reporting year are dealt with as an event after the reporting year.

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Other comprehensive income (loss) comprises items of income and expenses (including items
previously presented as other equity reserves under the consolidated statement of changes in equity)
that are not recognized in profit or loss for the year in accordance with PFRS. These are presented as
part of other equity reserves in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Other
comprehensive income (loss) includes revaluation increment on land, cumulative remeasurement loss
on net retirement assets and liabilities and cumulative loss on remeasurement loss of retirement
assets of an associate.

Employee Stock Option (ESOP)

Regular employees (including directors) receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services in exchange for rights over shares (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value of
the stock options at the date at which these are granted. The fair value of the stock options is
determined using an option-pricing model, further details of which are presented in Note 20. In
valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is taken of any performance conditions, other than
conditions linked to the price of the shares of RHI (“market conditions”), if applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognized, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period until employees become fully entitled to the award (“vesting date”). The cumulative
expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the best estimate of the number of
awards that will ultimately vest. The change or credit for a year represents the movement in
cumulative expense recognized as at the beginning and end of that year.
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No expense is recognized for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for awards where vesting is
conditional upon a market condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the
market condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, an expense, at a minimum, is recognized
as if the terms had not been modified. An expense is recognized for any increase in the value of the
transactions as a result of the modification, as measured at the date of modification. Where an
equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognized for the award is recognized immediately. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and designated as a replacement award on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if these were modifications of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding stock option is reflected as additional share dilution in the
computation of earnings per share (see Note 27).

Revenue Recognition
Revenue comprises the fair value of the sale of goods and services in the ordinary course of the
Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of output VAT, returns and discounts.

The Group recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow into the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of
the Group’s activities as described below. The amount of revenue is not considered to be reliably
measured until all contingencies relating to the sale have been resolved.

Sale of Raw Sugar. Sale of raw sugar is recognized upon (a) endorsement and transfer of quedans for
quedan-based sales and (b) shipment or delivery and acceptance by the customers for physical sugar
sales.

Sale of Refined Sugar and Alcohol. Sale of refined sugar and alcohol is recognized upon shipment or
delivery and acceptance by the customers.

Sale of Molasses. Sale of molasses is recognized upon transfer of molasses warehouse receipts, which
represents ownership title over the molasses inventories.

Bill and Hold Sales. Bill and hold sales are recognized when all criteria are met:

a. ltis probable that delivery will be made;

b. The item is on hand, identified and ready for delivery to the buyer at the time the sale is
recognized;

c. The buyer specifically acknowledges the deferred delivery instructions; and

d. The usual payment terms apply.

Revenue from Tolling Services. Revenue from tolling services is recoghized when the equivalent
refined sugar is produced from raw sugar owned by tollees.

Rental Income. Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight line basis over the
lease term.
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Interest Income. Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

Other Income. Other income is recognized when the earning process is complete and the flow of
economic benefit is reasonably assured.

Cost and Expense Recognition
Cost and expenses are recognized in profit or loss upon receipt of goods, utilization of services, or at
the date the cost and expenses are incurred.

Cost of Sales. Cost of sales includes direct materials and labor costs, and those related indirect cost
incurred upon processing of the Group’s products and rendering of its tolling services. Itis recognized
as expense when related goods are sold or the related services are rendered.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling expenses are costs incurred to sell or distribute
goods. General and administrative expenses are costs of administering the business such as salaries
and wages of administrative department, outside services, rental, utilities and general office
expenses. These expenses are recognized when incurred.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction of a qualifying asset,
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to prepare for its intended use are included in the
cost of that asset. Such borrowing costs are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset when it is
probable that these will result in future economic benefits to the Group and the costs can be
measured reliably. Other borrowing costs are recognized as expense when incurred.

Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended during extended period in which the Group suspends
active development of a qualifying asset and ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use are complete. An asset is normally ready for its
intended use when the physical construction of the asset is complete even though routine
administrative work might still continue.

Leases

The determination of whether the arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of
the arrangement at inception date of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the
use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. A reassessment
is made after inception on the lease only if one of the following applies: (a) there is a change in
contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement; (b) a renewal option is
exercised or extension granted, unless the term of the renewal or extension was initially included in
the lease term; (c) there is a change in the determination of whether fulfiliment is dependent on a
specified asset; or (d) there is substantial change to the asset.

Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting commences or ceases from the date when the
change in circumstances gave rise to reassessment for scenarios (a), (c) or (d) and at the date of
renewal or extension period for scenario (b).

Operating Lease - The Group as a Lessee. Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks

and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating lease. Operating leases are
recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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For income tax reporting purposes, operating lease payment under operating lease agreements is
treated as deductible expense in accordance with the terms of the lease agreements.

Operating Lease - The Group as a Lessor. Leases where the Company does not transfer substantially
all the risks and benefits of ownership of the assets are classified as operating leases. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating operating leases are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and amortized over the lease term on the same basis as the rental income. Contingent rents are
recognized as revenue in the year in which these are earned.

Employee Benefits

Short-term Employee Benefits. The Group recognizes a liability, net of amounts already paid, and an
expense for services rendered by employees during the reporting year. A liability is also recognized
for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit sharing plans if the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided
by the employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Short-term employee benefits liabilities are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as
the related service is provided.

Retirement Benefits. The retirement benefits cost is determined using the projected unit credit
method, which reflects services rendered by employees to the date of valuation and incorporates
assumptions concerning employees’ projected salaries.

The retirement benefits cost comprises of the service cost, net interest on the retirement liability or
plan asset and remeasurements of retirement liability or plan asset.

The Group recognizes service costs, comprising of current service costs, past service costs, gains and
losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and interest cost or income in profit or loss.

Net interest on the retirement liability or plan asset is the change during the year in the retirement
liability or plan asset that arises from the passage of time, which is determined by applying the
discount rate based on government bonds to the retirement liability or plan asset.

Past service costs are recognized in profit or loss on the earlier of the date of the plan amendment or
curtailment, and the date that the Group recognizes restructuring-related costs.

Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest on retirement liability or asset) are recognized
immediately in other comprehensive income in the year in which these arise. Remeasurements are
not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent years.

The plan assets are generally funded through payments to trustee-administered funds as determined
by periodic actuarial calculations. Plan assets are not available to the creditors of the Group, nor can
be paid directly to the Group. The fair value of the plan assets is based on the market price
information. When no market price is available, the fair value of plan assets is estimated by
discounting expected future cash flows using a discount rate that reflects both the risk associated with
the plan assets and the maturity or expected disposal date of those assets (or, if they have no
maturity, the expected period until the settlement of the related obligations). If the fair value of the
plan assets is higher than the present value of the retirement liability, the measurement of the
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resulting retirement plan asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the
form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.

The retirement liability or asset is the aggregate of the present value of the retirement liability and
the fair value of plan assets on which the obligations are to be settled directly. The present value of
the retirement liability is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest

rate on government bonds that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related
retirement liability.

Actuarial valuations are made with sufficient regularity so that the amounts recognized in the
consolidated financial statements do not differ materially from the amounts that would be
determined at the reporting date.

Termination Benefits. Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before the
retirement date, or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits.
The Group recognizes termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either: terminating
the employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of
withdrawal; or providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after end of reporting year are discounted to
present value.

Related Party Relationship and Transactions

Related party relationship exists when one party has the ability to control, directly, or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, or exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions. Such relationships also exist between and/or among entities which
are under common control with the reporting entity, or between, and/or among the reporting entity
and its key management personnel, directors or its stockholders. In considering each possible related

party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship, and not merely to the
legal form.

Foreign Currency-Denominated Transactions and Translations

Items included in the consolidated financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the functional currency.

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded using the exchange rate at the date of
the transaction. Outstanding monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated using the closing rate of exchange at the end of reporting year. Foreign exchange
differences are credited or charged directly in profit or loss.

Income Taxes

Current Tax. Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rate and the tax
laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting year.

Deferred Tax. Deferred tax is provided on all temporary differences at the end of reporting year

between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, including asset
revaluations. Deferred tax liability is not recognized when it arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit or loss nor taxable profit or loss. However, deferred tax liabilities
are not provided on non-taxable temporary differences associated with investments in domestic
subsidiaries and associates. Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward benefits of unused tax credits (excess of minimum corporate income taxes
or MCIT over regular corporate income taxes or RCIT) and unused tax losses (net operating loss
carryover or NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that sufficient future taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences and carryforward benefits of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting year and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed
at the end of each reporting year and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting year.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off the deferred
tax assets against the deferred tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss.
Deferred tax items are recognized in relation to the underlying transaction either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Provisions and Contingencies

Provision are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount can be reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise lease
termination penalties and employee termination payments. Provisions are not recognized for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognized
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is
recognized as interest expense.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting year and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate.
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Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. These are disclosed
in the notes to consolidated financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits is remote. A contingent asset is not recognized in the consolidated
financial statements but disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial statements when an inflow
of economic benefits is probable.

Earnings per Share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share. Basic earnings per share is calculated by
dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during the year, excluding common shares purchased by the
Parent Company and held as treasury shares. Diluted earnings per share is calculated in the same
manner, adjusted for the effects of all the dilutive potential common shares.

Segment Reporting
For purposes of management reporting, the Group’s operating businesses are organized and managed

separately on a per company basis, but are grouped into strategic business units (SBU) defined along
the Group’s core main product lines, namely: sugar and alcohol.

Operating segments are components of the Group: (a) that engage in business activities from which
these may earn revenue and incur expenses (including revenue and expenses relating to transactions
with other components of the Group); (b) whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the
Group’s senior management, its chief operating decision maker, to make decisions about resources
to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance; and (c) for which discrete financial
information is available.

Events after the Reporting Date

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Group’s financial position at the
end of reporting year (adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated financial statements when
material. Post year-end events that are non-adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to
consolidated financial statements when material.

Significant Judgments, Accounting Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires the Group to exercise judgment,
make estimates and use assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses and related disclosures. The Group makes estimates and uses assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual
results. Future events may occur which will cause the assumptions used in arriving at the estimates
to change. The effects of any change in estimates are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements as these become reasonably determinable.

Judgments, estimates and assumptions are continuously evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group believes the following represent a summary of significant judgments, estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities, as well as to the related revenues and expenses, within the next fiscal year, and
related impact and associated risk in the consolidated financial statements.
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Judgments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management exercised judgment on the
following items, apart from those involving estimations, which has the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

Determining the Operating Segments. Determination of operating segments is based on the
information about components of the Group that management uses to make decisions about
operating matters. Operating segments use internal reports that are regularly reviewed by the Parent
Company’s chief operating decision maker, which is defined to be the Parent Company’s BOD, in order
to allocate resources to the segment and assess its performance. The Parent Company reports
separate information about an operating segment that meets any of the following quantitative
thresholds: (a) its reported revenue, including both sales to external customers and intersegment
sales or transfers, is 10% or more of the combined revenue, internal and external, of all operating
segments; (b) the absolute amount of its reported profit or loss is 10% or more of the greater, in
absolute amount, of (i) the combined reported profit of all operating segments that did not report a
loss and (ii) the combined reported loss of all operating segments that reported a loss; and (c) its
assets are 10% or more of the combined assets of all operating segments.

Management assessed that the Group’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately
according to core main product lines, namely: sugar and alcohol. Consequently, reportable operating
segments as at and for the years ended September 30, 2018, 2017 and 2016 are sugar, alcohol and
others (see Note 32).

Determining the Existence of Control in Investee Companies. Control is presumed to exist when the
Parent Company owns, directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, more than half of the voting power
of an entity unless, in exceptional circumstances, it can be clearly demonstrated that such ownership
does not constitute control. The Parent Company has the power to cast the majority of votes through
its representatives in the BOD. Management has determined that despite having only 50% ownership
in RPC and no equity ownership yet in NPSC, the Parent Company has control over RPC and NPSC by
virtue of its rights to variable returns from the subsidiary and ability to affect those returns.

Determining the Classification of Lease Arrangements. Management exercises judgment in
determining whether substantially all the significant risks and benefits of ownership of the assets held
for lease are retained by the Group. Lease contracts in which the Group retains substantially all the
risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item are accounted for as operating leases.
Otherwise, these are considered as finance leases.

e Operating Lease - The Group as a Lessee. The Group, has various property being leased covering
several heavy handling equipment, service vehicles and office space of RHI, where it has
determined that the risks and benefits of ownership over these properties are retained with the
lessors. Accordingly, these lease agreements are accounted for as operating leases (see Note 28).

Rent expense amounted to R248.3 million, R210.8 million and R184.4 million, respectively,
included in “Cost of goods sold” and “General and administrative expenses” accounts, in 2018,
2017 and 2016, respectively (see Notes 22 and 23).

- e Operating Lease - The Group as a Lessor. Leases where the Group does not transfer substantially

all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Rentincome
is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term of the lease, as applicable (see Note 13).
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Determining the classification of assets held for sale and discontinued operations. On May 23, 2018,
the Group has reached an agreement with Universal Robina Corporation (“URC”) for the sale of the
Group’s sugar milling and refining operations in Batangas (the “Proposed Sale Transaction”).
Management believes that the assets subject to the Proposed Sale Transaction are available for
immediate sale and can be sold to URC in its current condition as of September 30, 2018. Further,
management believes that the PCC approval is required in relation to similar transactions. As of
January 14, 2019, the Proposed Sale Transaction is still under review by the PCC. Nonetheless, the
Group remains committed to the Proposed Sale Transaction. The agreement between the Group and
URC represents a disposal of a separate major operating segment of the Group hence, the disclosure
as discontinued operations.

As at September 30, 2018, assets held for sale amounted to R6,525.0 million (see Note 12).

Determining the Classification of Properties. Management determines the classification of a property
depending on its use. The Group classifies its owner-occupied properties as property, plant and
equipment. Properties held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation are classified as investment
properties. The change of use of properties will trigger a change in classification and measurement
of these properties.

The Group classified and accounted the land of NAVI, SCBI and the Parent Company held
for rent or capital appreciation as investment properties. As at September 30, 2018 and 2017,
the carrying amount of investment properties amounted to R347.6 million and £349.3 million,
respectively (see Note 13).

Estimates and Assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the

end of reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next fiscal years are discussed below.

Estimating Impairment Losses on Receivables. The provision for impairment losses on receivables is
estimated based on two methods: specific identification and collective assessment. The amounts
calculated using each of these methods are combined to determine the total amount to be provided.
First, specific accounts are evaluated based on information that certain customers may be unable to
meet their financial obligations. In these cases, the Group applies judgment, in recording specific
allowances against amounts due to reduce receivable amounts expected to be collected, based on
the best available facts and circumstances, including but not limited to, the length of relationship with
the customer and the customer’s current credit status based on third party credit reports and known
market factors. These specific allowances are re-evaluated and adjusted as additional information
received impacts the amounts estimated. Second, a collective assessment of historical collection,
write-off, experience and customer payment terms is determined. The amount and timing of
recorded expenses for any year could therefore differ based on the judgments or estimates made. An
increase in the Group’s allowance for impairment of receivables would increase its general and
administrative expenses and decrease its current assets.

As at September 30, 2018 and 2017, trade and other receivables amounted to #3,040.4 million and
R2,258.1 million, respectively (see Note 8). Allowance for impairment losses of trade and other
receivables amounted to £90.8 million and #76.0 million as at September 30, 2018 and 2017,
respectively (see Note 8).
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- Determining the NRV of Inventories. The Group’s estimates of the NRV of inventories are based on
the most reliable evidence available at the time the estimates are made of the amount that the
inventories are expected to be realized. These estimates consider the fluctuations of price or cost
directly relating to events occurring after the end of the reporting period to the extent that such
events confirm conditions existing at the end of the reporting period. When the circumstances that
previously caused inventories to be written down below cost no longer exist or when there is a clear
evidence of an increase in NRV because of change in economic circumstances, the amount of the
write-down is reversed so that the new carrying amount is the lower of the cost and the revised NRV.

As at September 30, 2018 and 2017, the inventories carried at lower of cost and NRV amounted to
R2,646.1 million and #2,539.5 million, respectively (see Note 9). Allowance for inventory losses and
obsolescence amounted to R57.8 million and R30.1 million as at September 30, 2018 and 2017,
respectively (see Note 9).

Allocating the Cost to Molasses Inventory. Management uses judgment to measure and allocate
cost to the molasses inventory. When the costs of conversion of each product are not separately
identifiable, these are allocated among the products on a rational and consistent basis. The allocation
is based on the NRV of cane products at the completion of production.

As at September 30, 2018 and 2017, portion of molasses inventory amounting to R68.3 million and
R5.9 million, respectively, pertains to allocated cost from the total production costs of milled raw and
refined sugar (see Note 9).

Estimating the Provision for Unrecoverable Creditable Withholding Taxes. Provision for unrecoverable
creditable withholding taxes is maintained at a level considered adequate to provide for potentially
unrecoverable claims. The Group, on a continuing basis, makes a review of the status of the claims,
designed to identify those to be provided with any impairment loss. In these cases, management uses
judgment based on the best available facts and circumstances. The amount and timing of recorded
loss for any period would differ based on the judgments or estimates made.

As at September 30, 2018 and 2017, the carrying amount of creditable withholding taxes (net of
allowance amounting to R 12.2 million as of both years) amounted to R 794.5 million and
R597.5 million, respectively, (see Note 10).

Determining the Revaluation Amount of Land. The land is carried at revalued amount, which
approximates its fair value at the date of the revaluation. The valuation of land is performed by
Philippine SEC accredited appraisers. The fair value was arrived at using the Market Data Approach
based on the gathered available market evidences. Revaluations are made on a regular basis to
ensure that the fair value does not differ materially from its carrying value.

Land carried at revalued amount as at September 30, 2018 and 2017 amounted to R1,376.6 million
and R4,746.0 million, respectively (see Note 12). Appraisal increase, net of tax, amounted to
£10.8 million, R116.6 million and R181.5 million in 2018, 2017, and 2016, respectively.

Estimating Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment. The useful life of each of the items of
property, plant and equipment is estimated based on the year over which the asset is expected to be
available for use. Such estimation is based on a collective assessment of practices of similar
businesses, internal technical evaluation and experience with similar assets. The estimated useful life
of each asset is reviewed periodically and updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due
to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use
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of the asset. It is possible, however, that future results of operations could be materially affected by
changes in the amounts and timing of recorded expenses brought about by the changes in the factors
mentioned in the foregoing. A change in the estimated useful life of any item of property, plant and
equipment would impact the recorded cost and expenses and noncurrent assets.

In 2018, the Group'’s review indicated that the estimated useful life of buildings and improvements
and machinery and equipment, mostly pertaining to the production plants, should be extended from
25 years to 30 years, and 18-25 years to 18-28 years, respectively, effective October 1, 2017. This is
based on the Group’s reassessment of the expected period over which the Group will benefit from
the use of these assets. Management, with the involvement of its project engineers, performed
internal technical evaluation, in determining the estimated useful life of these assets. There were no
changes to the estimated useful lives of other items of property, plant and equipment.

The change in estimated useful life reduced the current year depreciation expense by R119.5 million.
Estimated increase on future annual depreciation expense amounted to 77.9 million in 2019 to 2023
and R52.0 million in 2024 to 2028 while estimated decrease amounted to R249.4 million in 2029
onwards.

The carrying amount of the depreciable property, plant and equipment as at September 30, 2018 and
2017 amounted to £6,731.7 million and R9,849.6 million, respectively (see Note 12).

Determining the Fair Value of Investment Properties. The fair value of the investment properties was
determined by Philippine SEC accredited appraisers using Market Data Approach based on gathered
available market evidences. The latest appraisal reports were made on various dates in 2018.

Investment properties stated at fair value amounted to R347.6 million and R349.3 million as at
September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively (see Note 13). The unrealized gain on fair value
adjustment of investment properties amounted to #27.5 million, 13.4 million and R27.5 million in
2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively, recorded under “Other income” in the consolidated statements of
income (see Note 25).

Estimation of fair value less costs to sell of assets held for sale. The assets classified as held for sale
are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. The determination
of fair values requires estimates of economic conditions and other factors. The fair value was based
on the appraisal values of the assets, while the cost to sell is primarily the documentary stamp tax
related to the sale of assets. As at September 30, 2018, assets held for sale are measured at its
carrying amount of £6,525.1 million, which is lower than its fair value less costs to sell.

Assessing Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets. The Group assesses at the end of each reporting year
whether there is any indication that the nonfinancial assets listed in the next page (except goodwill)
may be impaired. If such indication exists for nonfinancial assets other than goodwill, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the asset, which is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and its value-in-use. In determining fair value, an appropriate valuation model is used, which
can be based on quoted prices or other available fair value indicators. Goodwill is tested for
impairment at least on an annual basis or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that it may be impaired. For goodwill, annual impairment test requires estimation of value-
in-use of the cash generating unit to which goodwill relates. In estimating the value-in-use, the Group
is required to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash generating unit and
also to choose an appropriate discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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Determining the recoverable amounts of the nonfinancial assets which involves the determination of
future cash flows expected to be generated from the continued use and ultimate disposition of such
assets, requires the use of estimates and assumptions that can materially affect the consolidated
financial statements. Future events could indicate that these nonfinancial assets and goodwill may
be impaired. Any resulting impairment loss could have a material adverse impact on the financial
condition and results of operations of the Group.

While the Group believes that its assumptions are appropriate and reasonable, significant changes in
these assumptions may materially affect its assessment of recoverable values and may lead to future
additional impairment changes.

Nonfinancial assets that are subject to impairment testing when impairment indicators are present
such as obsolescence, physical damage, significant changes to the manner in which the asset is used,
worse than expected economic performance, a drop in revenue or other external indicators, are as
follows:

Note 2018 2017
Property, plant and equipment 12 R7,595,865 R10,303,421
Investment in an associate 11 642,690 606,768

There are no indications of possible impairment on the nonfinancial assets. Accordingly, the Group
has not recognized any impairment losses on nonfinancial assets in 2018, 2017 and 2016.

Goodwill relates to the excess of consideration of Group’s acquisition of SCBI over the latter’s
identifiable assets and liabilities in 2015. Goodwill amounted to 1,079.6 million as of September 30,
2018 and 2017 (see Note 6).

The recoverable amount has been determined based on the value-in-use calculations using cash flow
projections from financial budgets covering as approved by management a five-year period of
projection. The projected cash flows were based on expectations on future outcomes taking into
account past experiences, adjusted for anticipated revenue growth based on management’s future
plans. The key assumptions used in determining the recoverable amount as of September 30, 2018
and 2017 are as follows:

Sales growth (average of less than 1% year on year) - Management based the projected sales growth
on the production capacity of its plant over the forecast period.

Terminal growth rate (2.2%) - Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated growth rate
using a 2.2% which is within the long-term average growth rate for bioethanol industry.

Alcohol selling price (average of less than 1% year on year) — Management based the unit price of
bioethanol on the average historical experience in the market.

Feedstock yield (average of less than 1% year on year) - Management based the feedstock yield on
the Group’s historical experience in bioethanol produced over feedstock used.

Manufacturing costs ratio (averaging at 72% over the forecast period) - Management based the ratio
of production costs over feedstock margin on its historical experience.
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Operating expenses ratio (averaging at 6% over the forecast period) — Management based the ratio
of operating expenses over feedstock margin on its historical experience.

Discount rate (11.45% and 8.8% in 2018 and 2017, respectively) - The discount rate applied to the
cash flows is based on the risk free rate for 10-year bonds issued by the government in the respective
market, adjusted for a risk premium to reflect both the increased risk of investing in equities and the
systematic risk of the specific Group operating company. In making this adjustment, inputs required
are the equity market risk premium (that is the required increased return over and above a risk-free
rate by an investor who is investing in the market as a whole) and the risk adjustment beta, applied
to reflect the risk of the specific Group operating company relative to the market as a whole.

In determining the risk-adjusted discount rate, management has applied an adjustment for the
systematic risk to the acquiree’s operations determined using an average of the betas of comparable
listed companies across the world. Management has used market risk premium that takes into
consideration studies by independent economists.

Management believes that no reasonably possible change in any of the above assumptions would
cause the carrying value of the goodwill to exceed the recoverable amount of the related cash
generating unit.

Based on management’s assessment, the recoverable amount of the goodwill is higher than the
carrying value, thus no impairment loss was noted on the goodwill on SCBI with carrying amount of
R1,079.6 million as of September 30, 2018 and 2017 (see Note 6).

Determining Retirement Benefits and Liability. The determination of the cost of retirement benefits
and related retirement liability is dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by the
actuary in calculating such amounts. Those assumptions, which include among others, discount rates
and future salary increase rate are described in Note 17.

Actual results that differ from the assumptions are accumulated and are recognized as other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity. While management believes that the assumptions
are reasonable and appropriate, significant differences in the Group’s actual experience of significant
changes in the assumptions may materially affect the retirement liability.

As at September 30, 2018 and 2017, net retirement assets amounted to R44.9 million and
R 62.1 million, respectively, while net retirement liabilities amounted to R 249.9 million and
R316.8 million as at September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively (see Note 17). Net retirement
benefits expense amounted to R64.8 million, 66.0 million and #48.7 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016,
respectively (see Note 17).

Assessing Realizability of Deferred Tax Assets

The Group reviews the carrying amounts at the end of each reporting year and reduces the amount
of deferred tax assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized.

Total deferred tax assets amounted to £638.1 million and R472.7 million as at September 30, 2018
and 2017, respectively (see Note 26).
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Deferred tax assets were not recognized on certain deductible temporary differences and
carryforward benefits of excess MCIT over RCIT with income tax effect amounting to £10.0 million and
R12.8 million as at September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively (see Note 26). Management believes
that it may not be probable that future taxable profit will be available in the near future against which
the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

Evaluation of Provisions and Contingencies

The Group provides for present obligations (legal or constructive) where it is probable that there will
be an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits that will be required to settle said
obligations. An estimate of the provision is based on known information at the end of reporting
period, net of any estimated amount that may be reimbursed to the Group. If the effect of the time
value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the
risks specific to the liability. The amount of provision is being re-assessed at least on an annual basis
to consider new relevant information.

The Group is involved in various other labor disputes, litigations, claims and tax assessments that are
normal to its business. Based on the opinion of the Group’s legal counsels on the progress and legal

_grounds of certain claims and assessments, the Group has recognized outstanding provision for
probable losses amounting R7.6 million and R96.6 million as at September 30, 2018 and 2017,
respectively (see Notes 16 and 28).

Business Combination

In April 2015, the Group entered into a Sale and Purchase Agreement (SPA) for the acquisition of
93.35% equity interest in SCBI through RPBC, a wholly owned subsidiary, for a total consideration of
£1,737.6 million. The SPA also provides the transfer of assets of NPSC to RPBC, whether through
merger with, acquisition of NPSC or direct asset sale, without additional consideration to the Group.
Consequently, the Group effectively acquired the business of NPSC without holding equity interest
yet. The assets of NPSC mainly include depot and storage facilities, which are included in the
consolidated statements of financial position. In 2017, deeds of assignment covering the shares held
by NPSC’s previous stockholders were executed in favor of RPBC.

The total consideration includes the purchase of the receivable of the former stockholders of SCBI
from NPSC amounting to 122.0 million. All closing conditions have been substantially met in May
2015. In 2016, after finalizing the purchase price allocation, total consideration was adjusted to
£1,679.9 million and the fair value of the noncontrolling interest amounted to 34.9 million. The fair
values of the identifiable assets and liabilities amounted to £635.2 million. Accordingly, goodwill
recognized amounted to R1,079.6 million.The goodwill primarily relates to expected synergy arising
from acquisition.

Cash and cash equivalents

This account consists of:

2018 2017

Cash on hand R3,148 £1,040
Cash in banks 289,988 520,334
Cash equivalents 2,013 50,003
R295,149 R571,377
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Cash in banks and cash equivalents earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates.

Interest income earned from cash in bank and cash equivalents amounted to R 0.7 million,
£0.8 million and £1.0 million in 2018, 2017, and 2016, respectively (see Note 25).

Trade and Other Receivables

This account consists of:

Note 2018 2017

Trade 19 R2,811,084 R2,013,752
Due from:

Planters and cane haulers 28 159,717 130,792

Employees 58,046 63,274

Related parties 19 37,369 57,821

Others 64,931 68,435

3,131,147 2,334,074

Allowance for impairment losses (90,792) (75,991)

#3,040,355 R2,258,083

Trade receivables are unsecured, noninterest-bearing with credit terms ranging from 15 to 120 days.

Due from planters and cane haulers pertain to interest-bearing cash advances, which will be settled
in the form of raw sugar from the planters and through services to be rendered by the cane haulers,
respectively. Interest income amounted to 1.7 million, 2.4 million and 1.9 million in 2018, 2017
and 2016, respectively (see Note 25).

Due from employees include housing and educational loans which are collected through salary
deduction, and advances for business purposes subject to liquidation.

Other receivables mainly include claims from a former stockholder of SCBI which are noninterest-
bearing and covered by an escrow agreement. The amount is expected to be collected within the next
year.

Details and movements of allowance for impairment losses on trade and other receivables
determined through specific identification are presented in the following tables:

2018
Due from
Planters and Due from
Note Trade Cane Haulers Employees Others Total
Balance at beginning of year R18,732 R46,472 P1,929 P8,858 R75,991
Provision 23 14,387 259 155 - 14,801
Balance at end of year R33,119 R46,731 R2,084 18,858 R90,792
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2017
Due from
Planters and Due from
Note Trade Cane Haulers Employees Others Total
Balance at beginning of year R39,176 R37,743 R733 R8,858 R86,510
Provision (reversal) 23 - (9,322) 65 - (9,257)
Write-off (1,262) - - - (1,262)
Reclassifications (19,182) 18,051 1,131 - -
Balance at end of year R18,732 R46,472 R1,929 R8,858 R75,991
Inventories
This account consists of:
2018 2017
At NRV:
Materials and supplies R560,676 R541,014
Alcohol 46,227 46,153
At cost:
Refined sugar 1,383,012 1,324,000
Molasses 488,319 335,046
Raw sugar 108,897 283,887
Others 58,954 9,426
R2,646,085 R2,539,526

Raw sugar quantities reported as inventories are supported by quedans held by the Group. The Group
also has raw sugar quantities, which are also supported by quedans, held in trust for third parties (see
Note 28). A quedan is a warehouse receipt document which evidences the ownership of specified
quantity in a warehouse or sugar central.

Cost of inventories valued at NRV is shown below:

2018 2017

Materials and supplies R600,713 #571,051
Alcohol 63,948 46,227
R664,661 R617,278

Details and movements of allowance for inventory losses and obsolescence are as follows:

2018

Materials and
Alcohol Supplies Total
Balance at beginning of year R74 #30,037 #30,111
Provisions 17,646 10,001 27,647
Balance at end of year #17,720 #40,038 £57,758
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2017
Materials and
Alcohol Supplies Total
Balance at beginning of year - £29,985 R29,985
Provisions 74 52 126
Balance at end of year R74 £30,037 £30,111

Provisions for inventory losses and obsolescence amounting to #27.6 million and R0.1 million, are
presented as “Others” under “Cost of goods sold” and “General and Administrative Expenses” in 2018
and 2017, respectively (see Notes 22 and 23).

Cost of inventories recognized as expense and presented as “Direct materials used” under “Cost of
sales” amounted to R1,575.8 million, 2,086.7 million and £4,259.7 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016,
respectively (see Note 22). Cost of inventories recognized as expense included as part of “Cost of sales
and services” of discontinued operations amounted to R4,918.6 million, #3,108.0 million and
£1,985.7 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note 12).

10.

Other Assets

Current portion of this account consists of:

2018 2017

Creditable withholding taxes, net of allowance for
probable losses of R12.2 million R794,453 R597,480
Advances to suppliers 261,040 103,682
Input VAT 37,550 70,395
Prepayments 35,932 18,211
Refundable deposits 14,410 14,315
Others 60,903 25,120
R1,204,288 £829,203

Input VAT, which includes deferred input VAT, arises from other purchases of capital goods and
services for operations.

Noncurrent portion of other assets consist of:

2018 2017

Input VAT R273,023 R256,661
Refundable deposits 16,842 16,842
Others 1,558 6,395
R291,423 £279,898

Noncurrent portion of input VAT mostly arises from construction services relating to the Ethanol Plant.
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11. Investment in an Associate

The Parent Company has 45.09% ownership interest in Hawaiian-Philippine Company (HP Co.), an
entity incorporated in the Philippines, which is engaged in manufacturing and trading of raw and
refined sugar, molasses and other sugar by-products.

Movements in investment in an associate are as follows:

Note 2018 2017
Acquisition cost R127,933 R127,933
Accumulated share in net earnings:
Balance at beginning of year 280,509 322,648
Dividends declared (78,226) (109,916)
Share in net earnings 55,834 67,777
Balance at end of the year R258,117 £280,509
Cumulative share in remeasurement loss
on retirement liability: 18
Balance at beginning of year (9,166) (9,205)
Share in remeasurement gain 1,501 39
Balance at end of the year (7,665) (9,166)
Share in revaluation increment of land: 18
Balance at beginning of year 207,492 207,492
Share in revaluation increment 56,813 -
Balance at end of the year 264,305 207,492
R642,690 R606,768

Cash dividends declared by HP Co. are as follows:

Amount Stockholders of
Date Approved per Share Total Amount Record Date Date Paid
March 1, 2018 R£2.74 £173,528 February 28, 2018 April 12, 2018
February 10, 2017 3.85 243,768 February 28, 2017 April 6, 2017
September 29, 2016 3.59 227,306 October 31, 2016 November 10, 2016
February 11, 2016 2.42 153,224 February 29, 2016 April 7, 2016

Dividends declared attributable to the Parent Company amounted to 78.2 million and £109.9 million
in 2018 and 2017, respectively.

The associate has no contingent liabilities or capital commitments as of September 30, 2018 and 2017.

Summarized financial information of HP Co. are as follows:

2018 2017
Current assets R743,060 £1,000,976
Noncurrent assets 1,360,903 1,388,505
Current liabilities (887,343) (1,044,500)
Noncurrent liabilities (324,419) (406,395)
Net assets 892,201 938,586
Revenue 2,314,515 2,136,579
Net income 100,520 150,314
Other comprehensive income - remeasurement loss
on retirement benefit obligation 283 86
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12. Property, Plant and Equipment, Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details and movements of property, plant and equipment, valued at cost, are shown below:

2018
Office
Machinery F , Depot and
Buildings and and Fixtures and Storage  Transportation Construction
Imp quip p Facilities in Progress Total
Cost
Balances at beginning of year #3,875,305 R16,555,068 R753,221 R189,007 R274,552 R453,851 #22,101,004
Additions 8,977 151,040 14,048 - 5,970 997,850 1,177,885
Retirement and disposals - - - - (8,524) - (8,524)
Reclassifications 18,886 385,811 38,444 - 39,014 (482,155) -
Reclassifications to asset held for sale (1,654,002) (6,050,696) (142,452) - {125,967) (105,347) {8,078,464)
Balances at end of year 2,249,166 11,041,223 663,261 189,007 185,045 864,199 15,191,901
Accumulated Depreciation
and Amortization
Balances at beginning of year 2,079,402 8,834,351 662,274 68,199 153,357 - 11,797,583
Depreciation and amortization 106,718 598,801 33,868 11,379 18,916 - 769,682
Retirement and disposals - - - - (1,445) - (1,445)
Reclassifications to asset held for sale (1,105,853) (3,671,323) (78,348) - (114,260) - (4,969,784)
Balances at end of year 1,080,267 5,761,829 617,794 79,578 56,568 - 7,596,036
Net Carrying Amount #1,168,899 R5,279,394 R45,467 #109,429 128,477 R864,199 17,595,865
2017
Office
Machinery Furniture, Depot and
Buildings and and Fixtures and Storage  Transportation Construction
p Equir Equi Facilities Equipment in Progress Total
Cost
Balances at beginning of year #3,357,857 R16,277,444 £739,017 #173,387 #155,045 R537,797 R21,240,547
Additions 20,162 248,520 32,565 1,750 3,254 613,510 919,761
Retirement and disposals - (17,919) - - (1,375) - (19,294)
Reclassifications 490,463 78,175 (1,660) - 117,641 (684,619) -
Adjustments 6,823 (31,152) (16,701) 13,870 (13) (12,837) (40,010)
Balances at end of year 3,875,305 16,555,068 753,221 189,007 274,552 453,851 22,101,004
Accumulated Depreciation
and Amortization
Balances at beginning of year 1,519,967 8,600,074 664,667 52,199 71,819 - 10,908,726
Depreciation and amortization 184,766 689,746 17,933 16,000 17,578 - 926,023
Retirement and disposals - (9,252) - - (574) - (9,826)
Reclassifications 377,291 (438,440) (3,399) - 64,548 - -
Adjustments (2,622) (7,777) (16,927) - (14) - (27,340)
Balances at end of year 2,079,402 8,834,351 662,274 68,199 153,357 - 11,797,583
Net Carrying Amount R1,795,903 87,720,717 290,947 #120,808 121,195 R453,851 #10,303,421

Construction in progress mainly pertains to the on-going plant improvements and milling and refinery
equipment for inspection and installation, which are to be completed in 2019. As at September 30,
2018 and 2017, the Group has contractual commitment for the on-going construction projects

amounting to R798.5 million and R394.1 million, respectively.

The Group has no borrowing cost capitalized in 2018 and 2017. Unamortized capitalized borrowing
cost as at September 30, 2018 and 2017 amounted to R208.8 million and R259.4 million with
corresponding deferred tax of R62.6 million and R77.8 million, respectively (see Note 26). The
capitalized borrowing cost is amortized over the estimated useful lives of the qualifying assets to

which it relates.

The amount of depreciation and amortization is allocated as follows:

Note 2018 2017 2016

Cost of sales 22 R448,828 R538,636 R487,429
General and administrative expenses 23 47,455 64,264 64,598
Discontinued operations 279,025 347,939 375,486
R775,308 R950,839 R927,513
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Depreciation and amortization in 2018, 2017 and 2016 includes amortization of software cost of
£4.8 million, R24.8 million and ®13.4 million, respectively.

As at September 30, 2018 and 2017, fully depreciated property, plant and equipment with an
aggregate cost of £519.3 million and R1,494.6 million, respectively, are still being used in operations.

Land at appraised values and its related cost are as follows:

Note 2018 2017
Balance at beginning of year R4,746,047 £4,379,780
Reclassification to asset held for sale (3,414,959) -
Appraisal increase 18 15,403 166,516
Reclassification 13 27,531 (14,717)
Additions 2,605 214,468
Balance at end of year R1,376,627 R4,746,047
At cost R769,617 R841,279

As part of the Proposed Sale Transaction in 2018, the land where the Group’s sugar and milling
operations in Batangas are located were presented as held for sale as of September 30, 2018. In 2018,
reclassification pertains to land previously held for lease and classified as investment property but
was owner-occupied starting in 2018. In 2017, reclassification pertains to land which was owner-
occupied but was held for lease and classified as investment property starting in 2017.

As at September 30, 2018 and 2017, the revaluation of land is based on the appraised values using a
market data approach, as determined by Philippine SEC accredited independent appraisers. Market
data approach considers the sales and listings and other market data of comparable properties
registered within the vicinity of the property being valued. Factors such as location, size, shape of lot,
highest and best use estimate were also taken into consideration in order to estimate the fair value
of the property. The revalued amount has been categorized as level 2 (directly or indirectly observable
inputs). The latest appraisal reports were made on various dates in 2018.

Certain property, plant and equipment and assets held for sale with a carrying amount of 8,183.2
million as at September 30, 2018 and 2017 were mortgaged and used as collateral to secure the loan
obligations with the local banks (see Note 15).

Assets held for sale and discontinued operations

On May 23, 2018, the Group entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement with URC for the sale of the
Group’s sugar milling and refining operations in Batangas. The consummation of the Proposed Sale
Transaction is subject to the parties being able to secure the requisite regulatory approvals, corporate
approvals, and other third party consents. As of January 14, 2019, the Proposed Sale Transaction is
still under review by the PCC. The PCC review is customary for similar transactions. However,
management is committed to the Proposed Sale Transaction and expects it to be completed after PCC
approval is secured.

The assets held for sale represent CADPV's operations which are included as part of the sugar operating
segment until September 30, 2018. With CADPI's operations being classified as discontinued
operations, these are no longer presented as part of sugar operating segment disclosures in Note 32.
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Assets held for sale as of September 30, 2018 are as follows:

Land R3,414,959
Machinery and equipment 2,379,373
Buildings and improvements 548,149
Furniture fixture and other improvements 64,104
Transportation equipment 11,707
Investment properties 1,433
Construction in-progress 105,347

£6,525,072

Deferred tax liability directly associated with the assets held for sale amounted to R1,024.5 million as
of September 30, 2018.

Revaluation increment on land held for sale amounted to R2,390.4 million as of September 30, 2018.

The results of operations of CADPI’s sugar and milling operations are shown in the table below:

2018 2017 2016
Revenue

Sale of goods : 26,816,298 R5,194,349 R4,126,252
Sale of services 97,214 243,546 252,979
6,913,512 5,437,895 4,379,231
Cost of sales and services’ (6,466,514) (4,639,292) (3,600,524)
Gross income 446,998 798,603 778,707
General and administrative expenses (195,526) (204,749) (114,532)
Selling expense (73,013) (49,250) (46,995)
Interest expenses (301,351) (270,960) (190,557)
Other income - net 55,022 46,546 55,233
Income (loss) before income tax (67,870) 320,190 481,856
Income tax expense (benefit) 17,490 (118,346) (144,166)

Net income (loss) from discontinued
operations (#50,380) R£201,844 R337,690

The restatement of the 2017 and 2016 consolidated statements of income as a result of the
discontinued operations are presented below:

Balances

Attributable to
2017 Balances as Discontinued 2017 Balances after
Previously Reported Operations Restatement

Revenue

Sale of goods R10,665,192 R5,194,349 RS5,470,843
Sale of services 282,341 243,546 38,795
10,947,533 5,437,895 5,509,638
Cost of sales and services (9,533,250) (4,639,292) (4,893,958)
Gross income 1,414,283 798,603 615,680
General and administrative expenses (965,345) (204,749) (760,596)
Selling expenses (57,858) (49,250) (8,608)
Interest expense (444,257) (270,960) (173,297)
Share in net earnings of an associate 67,777 - 67,777
Other income 93,796 46,546 47,250
Income (loss) before income tax 108,396 320,190 (211,794)
Income tax benefit (expense) 11,644 (118,346) 129,990
Net income (loss) R120,040 R201,844 (R81,804)
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Balances
Attributable to
2016 Balances as Discontinued 2016 Balances after
Previously Reported Operations Restatement
Revenue
Sale of goods R11,764,540 R4,126,252 R7,638,288
Sale of services 285,694 252,979 32,715
12,050,234 4,379,231 7,671,003
Cost of sales and services (11,011,367) (3,600,524) (7,410,843)
Gross income 1,038,867 778,707 260,160
General and administrative expenses (861,570) (114,532) (747,038)
Selling expenses (69,440) (46,995) (22,445)
Interest expense (382,770) (190,557) (192,213)
Share in net earnings of an associate 212,258 - 212,258
Other income 89,504 55,233 34,271
Income (loss) before income tax 26,849 481,856 (455,007)
Income tax benefit (expense) 74,742 (144,166) 218,908
Net income (loss) R101,591 R337,690 (R236,099)
Net increase (decrease) in cash provided by CADPI’s discontinued operations follow:
2018 2017 2016
Net cash provided by operating activities 21,925,360 R737,336 (R853,701)
Net cash provided by investing activities (292,430) (223,318) (327,848)
Net cash provided by financing activities (1,255,482) 911,032 1,516,638
Earnings per share from discontinued operations follow (see Note 27):
2018 2017 2016
Basic (R0.03) RO.14 RO.24
Diluted (0.03) 0.14 0.24
13. Investment Properties
Movements in investment properties are as follows:
Note 2018 2017
At fair value:
Balance at beginning of year R349,267 £320,812
Fair value adjustment 25 27,531 13,406
Reclassifications 12 (27,531) 14,717
Reclassification to asset held for sale 12 (1,433) -
Others (243) 332
R347,591 R£349,267

Investment properties pertain to land of the Parent Company, NAVI, CADPI and SCBI held for rental
and capital appreciation.

Rent income from the lease of agricultural land of NAVI amounted to 5.4 million, 6.8 million and
£7.7 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note 25). Direct operating expenses amounted
to R0.8 million, 0.7 million and R0.6 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively, which mainly
pertain to real property taxes.
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The fair value of investment properties is based on the appraised value of the property using a market
data approach, as determined by a professionally qualified independent appraiser. Market data
approach considers the sales and listings and other market data of comparable properties registered
within the vicinity of the property being valued. Factors such as location, size, shape of lot, highest
and best use estimate were also taken into consideration in order to estimate the fair value of the
property. The fair value measurement for land has been categorized as Level 2 (directly or indirectly
observable inputs). The latest appraisal reports were made on various dates in 2018.

14.

Short-term Borrowings

This account consists of unsecured short-term loans obtained from various local banks for the working
capital requirements of the Group. The short-term borrowings are payable within 30 to 90 days and
bear interest ranging from 4.25% to 7.00% in 2018 and from 3.50% to 5.75% in 2017.

Total interest expense arising from short-term borrowings amounted to £120.5 million, #99.5 million

and R98.3 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note 15).

15.

Long-term Borrowings

The Group obtained various loans from local banks. Outstanding long-term borrowings are presented

below:
Outstanding Balance
Facility Terms Collateral 2018 2017
£2,645.0 million dated Payable in equal quarterly amortization for seven Suretyship R1,983,750 £2,314,375
August 5, 2014 years beginning November 2016 and bears agreement and
fixed interest of 4.50% for three years subject mortgage trust
to repricing thereafter indenture (MTI1)
£1,227.0 million dated Quarterly principal repayment amounting to Suretyship 982,000 1,178,000
September 10, 2014 £49.0 million starting September 2017 until agreement and
June 2021 and a lump sum payment of the MTI
remaining balance on September 10, 2021 and
bears fixed interest of 4.50% subject to change
as agreed by the parties
#1,400.0 million dated Quarterly principal repayment amounting to Clean loan 1,133,328 1,400,000
December 1, 2016 £66.7 million starting December 2017 until
December 2022 and bears floating interest
£800.0 million dated Quarterly principal repayment amounting to Suretyship 400,000 800,000
August 12, 2016 £100.0 million starting November 2017 until agreement and
December 2019 with one year grace period MTI
and bears fixed interest rate of 4.50% subject
to change as agreed by the parties
£380.0 million dated Quarterly principal repayment amounting to Suretyship 325,736 380,000
May 27, 2014 £13.6 million starting December 2017 until agreement and
June 2021 and a lump sum payment of the MTI
remaining balance on September 10, 2021 and
bears fixed interest of 4.50% subject to change
as agreed by the parties
£1,500.0 million dated Payable in 15 equal consecutive quarterly Suretyship - 236
February 14, 2008 installment beginning November 5, 2014 until agreement and
amended on May 5, 2018 and bears fixed interest of 5.5% MTI
February 6, 2012
Others 41 756
4,824,855 6,073,367
Unamortized transaction costs (11,742) (18,032)
4,813,113 6,055,335
Current portion (4,813,113) (1,234,803)
Noncurrent portion - £4,820,532
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Suretyship Agreements and MTI

The Group entered into various suretyship agreements and MTI with local bank creditors that secure
the Group’s obligations in solidarity against all the properties of RHI, CADPI, CACI and RBC, including
28,549,365 HP Co. shares. Property, plant and equipment with a carrying amount of £8,183.2 million
were mortgaged and used as collateral to secure the loan obligations with the local bank creditors
(see Note 12).

Loan Covenants
The foregoing loan agreements are subject to certain covenants, such as but not limited to:

e maintenance of debt service coverage ratio (DSCR) of at least 1.25 times and debt-to-equity ratio
of not more than 70:30;

e prohibition on purchase of additional equipment, except in pursuance of its sugar expansion and
ethanol project, unless the required financial ratios are maintained;

e prohibition on any material change in ownership or control of its business or capital stock or in
the composition of its top level management; and

e prohibition on declaration or payment of dividends or any other capital or other asset distribution
to its stockholders, unless the required financial ratios are maintained.

The Group is required to maintain a maximum debt-to-equity ratio of 2.33:1 and minimum DSCR of
1.25:1 by its creditor banks. As of September 30, 2018, the Group did not meet the minimum required
DSCR but received the approved bank waivers on minimum DSCR requirement as of September 30,
2018 on December 17, 2018, January 11, 2019 and January 14, 2019. Accordingly, the Group classified
its long-term borrowings as current liability on its consolidated statement of financial position.
However, the lender-banks have not called the loan as of report date.

The maturities of the long-term borrowings based on the original terms of the loan agreements are
as follows:

2018 2017

Less than one year R1,248,433 R1,234,803
Between one to two years , 1,405,576 2,667,717
Between two to five years 1,840,221 1,840,221
Between five to eight years 330,625 330,626
R4,824,855 R6,073,367

Interest Expense
Interest ranges from 4.55% to 5.54%, 3.00% to 5.79% and 3.00% to 5.50% in 2018, 2017 and 2016,
respectively. Interest expense arises from the following borrowings:

Note 2018 2017 2016

Continuing operations:
Long-term R269,254 R273,717 R213,742
Short-term 14 232,819 164,080 169,028
Convertible debt 18, 19 - 6,460 -
Discontinued operations 301,352 270,960 190,557

R#502,073 R444,257 R382,770
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16. Trade and Other Payables

This account consists of:

Note 2018 2017
Trade R1,230,454 R549,474
Accruals for: ‘
Construction in progress 358,059 6,545
Sugar and molasses purchase 181,919 172
Interest 45,794 37,987
. Payroll and other employee benefits 30,643 38,935
Others 100,195 141,209
Due to:
Related parties 19 96,295 103,724
Planters 5,935 19,630
Provision for probable losses 23,28 R7,550 R96,572
Payable to government agencies for
taxes and statutory contributions 73,293 29,953
Customers’ deposits 8,163 12,957
Others 141,466 151,409
R2,279,766 R1,188,567

Trade payables are noninterest-bearing and generally settled within 30 to 60 days.
Construction in progress represents the amount accrued based on capital expenditure budget.

Sugar and molasses purchase pertains to the purchases of sugar and molasses which invoice has not
been received yet but the sugar and molasses were already delivered as part of the inventories.

Payables to government agencies contributions for taxes and statutory and other payables are
noninterest-bearing and are normally settled in the next 12 months.

Customers’ deposits represent noninterest-bearing cash deposits from customers, which will be
applied against future deliveries of refined sugar.

Other payables include advances from previous related parties of SCBI to fund SCBI’s working capital
requirements totaling #128.9 million as at September 30, 2018 and 2017, which are noninterest-

bearing, unsecured and payable on demand.

Rollforward of provision for probable losses in September 30, 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

Note 2018 2017
Beginning balance R96,572 222,000
Addition 23 - 74,572
Payment (89,022) -
Ending balance R7,550 296,572

AN
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17. Retirement Benefits

The Parent Company and its subsidiaries, namely: CACI, CADPI and SCBI, have individual and separate
non-contributory defined benefit plan covering all qualified employees. RBC estimates its retirement
benefits under R. A. No. 7641, Philippine Retirement Pay Law. A defined benefit plan is a retirement
plan that defines an amount of retirement benefit to be provided, usually as a function of one or more
factors such as age, years of service or compensation. The plans are generally funded through
payments to trustee-administered funds as determined by periodic actuarial calculations.

Retirement Benefits

Net retirement benefits expense recognized in the consolidated statements of income included in
salaries and wages and employee benefits under “Cost of sales” and “General and administrative
expenses” account are as follows:

2018 2017 2016

Current service cost R50,601 R54,102 R46,332
Net interest cost 14,229 11,849 6,158
Past service cost - - (6,966)
Adjustment due to curtailment (53) - 3,209
R64,777 P65,951 R48,733

The remeasurement losses (gains) recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income are as follows:

2018 2017 2016
Remeasurement losses (gains) on:
Defined benefit obligation due to:
Changes in financial assumptions (R124,582) (R36,468) R24,776
Changes in demographic
assumptions (7,223) 2,221 -
Experience adjustments (744) (3,893) (15,883)
(132,549) (38,140) 8,893
Return on plan assets 18,508 5,894 47,766
(114,041) (32,246) 56,659
Deferred tax 33,792 9,370 (14,845)
(R80,249) (R22,876) R41,814

Retirement Assets and Liabilities
Retirement assets and liabilities recognized in the consolidated statements of financial position
are as follows:

2018 2017
Net retirement liabilities (V (R249,953) (R316,758)
Net retirement assets @ 44,938 62,129
Net retirement liabilities (R205,015) (R254,629)

A Pertain to net retirement liabilities of CADPI, RBC and SCBI.
@ Pertain to net retirement assets of the Parent Company and CACI.
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Components of net retirement liabilities:

2018 2017
Present value of defined benefit obligation (R448,205) (R569,065)
Fair value of plan assets 243,189 314,436
(R205,016) (R254,629)
The movements in net retirement assets (liabilities) are as follows:
2018 2017
Net Net Net Net
Retirement Retirement Retirement Retirement
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Balance at beginning of year £62,129 (P316,758) R106,835 (R327,952)
Remeasurement gain (loss) recognized
in other comprehensive income (9,692) 123,733 (40,710) 72,956
Retirement benefits expense (7,849) (56,928) (3,996) (61,955)
Benefits paid from Group funds 350 - - 193
Balance at end of year £44,938 (R249,953) R62,129 (R316,758)
Changes in the Present Value of the Defined Benefit Obligation
2018 2017
Net Net Net Net
Retirement Retirement Retirement Retirement
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Balance at beginning of year £90,183 #478,882 R86,952 R473,060
Current service cost 6,617 43,984 6,027 48,075
Remeasurement losses (gains) due to:
Changes in financial assumptions (23,868) (100,714) (5,623) (30,845)
Experience adjustments (1,648) 904 458 (4,351)
Changes in demographic
assumptions (1,987) (5,236) - 2,221
Benefits paid (1,317) (65,386) (1,391) (29,253)
Interest cost 4,546 23,245 3,760 19,975
Balance at end of year £72,526 #375,679 R£90,183 R478,882
Changes in the Fair Value of Retirement Plan Assets
2018 2017
Net Net Net Net
Retirement Retirement Retirement Retirement
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Balance at beginning of year #152,311 #162,125 R193,785 R145,110
Remeasurements (37,195) 18,687 (45,874) 39,980
Benefits paid (967) (65,333) (1,391) (29,061)
Interest income on plan assets 5,617 7,944 5,791 6,096
Balance at end of year #119,766 £123,423 R152,311 R162,125
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The expected return on plan assets were determined based on a reputable fund trustee’s yield rate
for risk portfolio similar to that of the fund with consideration to the funds’ past performance.

The categories of the plan assets are as follows:

2018 2017

Cash 18.7% 39.2%
Receivables 62.9% 17.3%
AFS financial assets 18.3% 14.0%
Investmentsth in properties 0.0% 0.1%
Investments in government securities 0.1% 29.4%
100.0% 100.0%

As at September 30, 2018 and 2017, plan assets include investments in 27.4 million shares of stock of
the Parent Company with a fair value amounting to £82.0 million and #120.4 million, respectively.

The principal assumptions used in determining the retirement assets and liabilities of the Group are
shown below:

Discount Rate Salary Increase Rate

2018 2017 2018 2017
RHI ' 8.0% 4.8% 4.0% 4.0%
CADPI 8.0% 4.2% 4.0% 4.0%
CACI 8.0% 4.3% 4.0% 4.0%
RBC 8.7% 4.8% 4.0% 4.0%
SCBI 8.2% 5.0% 4.0% 5.0%

As at September 30, 2018, the Group’s discount and salary increase rates are as follows:

Salary

Discount Rate Increase Rate

RHI 8.0% 4.0%
CADPI 8.0% 4.0%
CACI 8.0% 4.0%
RBC 8.7% 4.0%
SCBI 8.2% 4.0%

The Group does not expect to contribute to their respective retirement funds in 2019.

The sensitivity analysis based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions as at
September 30, 2018 and 2017 is presented below.

Effect on Retirement

Change Assets/Liabilities
in Assumption 2018 2017
Discount rate +1.0% (R31,506) (R46,724)
-1.0% 35,984 54,176
Salary Rate +1.0% 37,091 54,124
-1.0% (32,938) (47,527)
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Each sensitivity analysis on the significant actuarial assumptions was prepared by remeasuring the
retirement liability at the end of each reporting date after adjusting one of the current assumptions
according to the applicable sensitivity increment or decrement (based on changes in the relevant
assumption that were reasonably possible at the valuation date) while all other assumptions remained
unchanged. The corresponding change in the retirement liability was expressed as a percentage
change from the base retirement liability.

The schedule of projection of benefit payments expected to be paid out of the retirement fund is as

follows:
Period 2018 2017
Less than one year R59,657 R39,066
Between one and five years 231,310 273,146
Over five years . 2,509,220 2,158,186

R2,800,187 R2,470,398

As at September 30, 2018 and 2017, the average duration of the defined benefit obligation at the
end of reporting period is 12.2 years and 14.4 years, respectively.

18. Equity
a. Capital stock and treasury stock

Details of capital stock and treasury stock follow:

2018 2017 2016
Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount

of Shares (i Thousands) of Shares _(in Thousands) of Shares _(in Thousands)
Authorized common shares “Capital A” at R1.0 par value
Balance at beginning of year 2,000,000,000 #2,000,000 1,500,000,000 R1,500,000 1,500,000,000 R1,500,000
Additions - - 500,000,000 500,000 - .
Balance at end of year 2,000,000,000 #2,000,000  2,000,000,000 £2,000,000 1,500,000,000 R1,500,000
Issued common shares “Class A”
Balance at beginning of year 1,564,599,146 R1,564,599 1,439,442,161 £1,439,442 1,169,288,884 R1,169,289
Issuances 980,133 980 125,156,985 125,157 270,153,277 270,153
Balance at end of year 1,565,579,279 1,565,579 1,564,599,146 1,564,599 1,439,442,161 1,439,442
Treasury stock (17,643,480) (52,290) (17,643,480) (52,290) (17,643,480) (52,290)
Issued and outstanding 1,547,935,799 1,513,289 1,546,955,666 £1,512,309 1,421,798,681 R1,387,152

In May 2016, the Parent Company issued 266,753,974 common shares from stock rights offering
at R4.19 a share Offer Price amounting to R1,117.7 million, net of transaction costs of
R4.4 million (see Note 1). The net proceeds from the stock rights offering were used to partially
pay the loan obligations of RPBC and to acquire certain equipment for sugar milling and refining
facilities of the Group.

On July 14, 2017, the Parent Company’s application for increase in authorized capital stock using
the convertible debt securities as payment for subscription was approved by SEC.
On November 9, 2017, the PSE approved the listing of these newly subscribed 125,000,000
common shares.

O
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b. Other equity items and reserves

Details follow:

Note 2018 2017 2016
Equity reserves:
Revaluation Increment on Land 12
Balance at beginning of year R2,772,367 R2,657,525 R2,476,063
Reclassification of revaluation increment
on land under held for sale (2,390,419) - -
Appraisal increase, net of tax 10,422 114,842 181,462
Balance at end of year 392,370 2,772,367 2,657,525
Cumulative Remeasurement Loss on Net
Retirement Assets and Liabilities 17
Balance at beginning of year (173,261) (196,091) (154,073)
Remeasurement gain (loss), net of tax 80,120 22,830 (42,018)
Balance at end of year (93,141) (173,261) (196,091)
Share in Revaluation Increment on Land
of an Associate 11
Balance at beginning of year 207,492 207,492 207,492
Remeasurement gain, net of tax 56,813 - -
Balance at end of year 264,305 207,492 207,492
Cumulative Share in Remeasurement Loss on
Retirement Liability of an Associate 11
Balance at beginning of year (9,166) (9,205) (6,175)
Share in remeasurement gain (loss) on
retirement liability of an associate 1,501 39 (3,030)
Balance at end of year (7,665) (9,166) (9,205)
Total equity reserves 555,869 2,797,432 2,659,721
Other equity items
Excess of Consideration Received over Carrying
Amount of Net Assets of a Subsidiary Transferred
to the Parent Company 577,148 577,148 577,148
Effect of Change in equity Interest in Subsidiaries 44,567 44,567 44,567
Total other equity items 621,715 621,715 621,715
Total other equity items and reserves R1,177,585 R3,419,147 R3,281,436
Revaluation increment on land under
assets held for sale (see Note 12) R2,390,419 R= R—

Following the Reorganization Program as approved by the SEC on December 11, 2001, RHI was
transformed into a diversified holding and investment corporation, while its subsidiary, CADP
Group Corporation (CADPGC), emerged as a holding and investment company with specific focus
on sugar milling and refining business. In 2008, RHI increased its equity ownership in CADPGC
from 89.28% to 89.36% when CADPGC re-acquired portion of its shares of stock. On
December 11, 2008, RHI acquired CADPGC's sugar-related operating subsidiaries (CADPI, CACI,
CADPI, CFSI, CCSI, JOMSI, NAVI) and an associate (HP Co.), including certain assets and liabilities
of CADPGC. On January 23, 2009, RHI sold its investment in CADPGC to Roxas & Company, Inc.
Effective June 29, 2009, upon approval by the SEC on June 23, 2009, CADPGC, as the surviving
entity, merged with Roxas & Company, Inc. through a share swap, wherein 11.71 CADPGC's shares
of stock were exchanged for every share of stock of Roxas & Company, Inc. On the same date,
the SEC approved the change in corporate name of CADPGC to RCl.
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The acquisition by RHI on December 11, 2008 of the sugar-related operating subsidiaries and an
associate from CADPGC was made for a total consideration of #3,838.0 million, which represents
the cost of CADPGC's investments in subsidiaries and an associate amounting to R4,101.0 million,
reduced by the net liabilities transferred by CADPGC amounting to R263.0 million. As a result, RHI
increased its effective equity ownership in the sugar-related operating subsidiaries and
recognized the effect of the change in equity ownership in subsidiaries and an associate in view
of the reduction of non-controlling interests in subsidiaries of R44.6 million and presented as a
separate component of the total consolidated equity.

On January 23, 2009, following the acquisition of the sugar-related operating subsidiaries and an
associate from CADPGC, RHI sold its investment in CADPGC to RCI for a total consideration of
£3,927.3 million. The excess of consideration received from RCl over the carrying amounts of net
assets of CADPGC amounted to R577.1 million. This is presented as a separate component of
equity under “Other equity reserves”.

Track record of registration

On March 16, 1994, the Parent Company registered with the SEC its 1,000,000,000 shares,
consisting of 600,000,000 Class “A” shares and 400,000,000 Class “B” shares at a par value of
R1.0 a share equivalent to #£1,000,000,000, and representing the entire capital stock of the Parent
Company. Moreover, the SEC licensed the sale or offer for sale of the Parent Company’s
477,750,000 shares (inclusive of its present subscribed capital stock of 382,200,000 shares), out
of which 95,550,000 shares were sold at 3.0 a share.

On September 4, 1995, the SEC licensed the sale or offer for sale of 174,400,000 shares in an initial
public offering at an offer price between R5.0 to 8.0 a share. The said shares consist of 100.0
million shares from the Parent Company’s registered but unlicensed and unissued capital stock
for primary offering and 74,400,000 shares owned by selling shareholders for secondary offering.

On January 28, 1997, the Parent Company declared stock dividend at the rate of 30% payable to
stockholders of record as at February 28, 1997.

On November 24, 1999 and December 15, 1999, the Parent Company declared stock dividend at
the rate of 30%, consisting of 225,322,500 common shares at R 1.0 a share, payable to
stockholders of record as at February 15, 2000.

On January 30, 2003, the SEC approved the Parent Company’s increase in authorized capital stock
from £1,000,000,000 to #1,500,000,000, divided into 1,500,000,000 common shares. Of the total
increase in authorized capital stock, 192,779,459 common shares at par value of 1.0 a share or
total of 192,779,459 common shares, were fully paid through the declaration of stock dividend at
the rate of 20% to stockholders of record as at February 28, 2003.

On April 3, 2003, the PSE approved the listing of additional 192,779,459 common shares, at a par
value of R281.0 a share, representing the 20% stock dividend declaration discussed in the
foregoing. Moreover, the Parent Company’s listed shares were reduced by 188 common shares
representing fractional shares arising from the 30% stock dividend declared in 1997 and 30% stock
dividends declared in 2000, which were paid for in cash.
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On February 15, 2017, the shareholders approved the amendment of the Parent Company’s
articles of incorporation to increase the authorized capital stock from ®1,500,000,000 to
#2,000,000,000 divided into 2,000,000,000 with par value of 1.0 per share. On the same day,
the shareholders approved the subsequent conversion of the convertible note to be issued out of
the increase in authorized capital stock at a conversion rate of #4.19 for every common share, or
a total of 125,000,000 new common shares.

On July 14, 2017, the Parent Company’s application for increase in authorized capital stock was
approved by SEC. On November 9, 2017, the PSE approved the listing of these newly subscribed
125,000,000 common shares.

Retained earnings

Portion of retained earnings not available for dividend declaration

Note 2018 2017

Deferred tax assets 26 R638,142 R472,740

Accumulated earnings of subsidiaries 298,714 302,827
Cumulative unrealized gain on changes in fair

value of investment properties, net of tax 26 185,596 158,064

Treasury stock 52,290 52,290

R1,174,742 R985,921

Accumulated earnings of the subsidiaries are not yet available for dividend distribution to the
Parent Company’s stockholders, unless received as cash dividends from the subsidiaries and an
associate.

Share prices

The principal market for the Parent Company’s shares of stock is the PSE. The high and low trading
prices of the Parent Company’s shares of stock for each quarter within the three fiscal years are
presented in the table below.

Quarter High Low
October 1, 2017 through September 30, 2018
First R4.13 R4.00
Second 3.42 3.28
Third 2.86 2.82
Fourth 2.19 214
October 1, 2016 through September 30, 2017
First 3.04 298 -
Second 3.00 2.87
Third 3.83 3.67
Fourth 4.19 4.10
October 1, 2015 through September 30, 2016
First 5.86 443
Second 6.19 4.00
Third 4.65 401
Fourth 3.98 3.19
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19. Related Party Transactions and Balances

In the normal course of business, the Group has transactions with related parties as follows:.

Net Amount  Net Amount

Transactions Trade Trade Due from Due to Related
during the  Receivables Payables Related Parties Parties
Related Party Relationship Nature of Transaction Year Year (Note 8) (Note 16) _ (see Note 8) (see Note 16)
CADP Retirement Fund, Retirement Fund  Noninterest-bearing advances 2018 B- o= B~ #36,973 R13,149
Inc. (CADPRFI) of CADPI payable on demand 2017 24,354 - - 57,425 14,118

RHI Retirement Fund,  Retirement Fund
Inc. (RHIRFI) of RHI Noninterest-bearing advances 2018 - - - 6 55,000
payable on demand 2017 6 - - 6 55,000

CACl Retirement Fund, Retirement Fund
Inc. (CACIRFI) of CACI Noninterest-bearing advances 2018 - - - 138 28,146
payable on demand 2017 138 - - 138 28,146
Roxas Foundation, inc.  Other related Noninterest-bearing advances 2018 - - - 252 -
party” payable on demand 2017 252 - - 252 -
HP Co Associate Sale of raw sugar 2018 113,003,729 - - - -
2017 381,483 2,106 - - -
Purchase of raw sugar 2018 121,007 - - - -
2017 125,383 - - - -
Purchase of molasses 2018 46,126 - - - -
2017 236,418 - - - -
Purchase of bagasse 2018 44,063 - 1,603 - -
2017 12,856 - - - -
Dividend income 2018 - - - - -
2017 109,916 - - -

FPNHR Stockholder Interest-bearing convertible

debt securities (Note 1) 2018 - - - - -
Interest expense 2017 6,460 - - - 6,460
Total 2018 - R1,603 #37,369 196,295
2017 2,106 - 57,821 103,724

*Other related party pertains to an entity under common control of the RHI Group management

a.

The Group made advances to RHIRFI, CADPIRFI and CACIRFI for a portion of the retirement
payments made to the Group’s qualified retired employees under defined benefit plan. As at
September 30, 2018 and 2017, advances to RHIRFI, CADPRFI and CACIRFI are included in “Trade
and other receivables” account. The Group’s retirement funds hold RHI shares amounting to
R82.0 million and #120.4 million as of September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively (see Note 17).

Due to related parties, which are presented as part of “Trade and other payables” account,
represents noninterest-bearing payable arising from advances and rent of office space from
CADPRFI.

As at September 30, 2018 and 2017, total amount of trade and non-trade receivables and
payables with related parties eliminated during consolidation amounts to R7,796.9 million and
R 14,652.2 million, respectively, while revenue and expense eliminated amounts to
#3,042.9 million, R3,477.0 million and R2,572.5 million as at September 30, 2018, 2017 and 2016,
respectively.

Outstanding balances of transactions with related parties at yearend are unsecured and settlements are
made in cash. The Group did not recognize any provision for impairment loss in 2018, 2017 and 2016.
This assessment is undertaken each financial year by reviewing the financial position of the related party

and

the market in which the related party operates.
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Key management personnel compensation:

Note 2018 2017 2016

Salaries and wages and other short-
term benefits R100,095 R92,519 R88,498
Retirement benefits 18,805 19,306 15,281
Employee stock option 20 1,642 1,917 712
R120,542 R113,742 R104,491

20. Employee Stock Option Plans (ESOP)

The BOD of the Company approved the establishment of its first and second ESOP on May 8, 2013
and January 16, 2014, respectively. The ESOPs cover all employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries, namely: CACI, CADPI and RBC, who have rendered at least six months of service at the
time of grant, subject for approval by the Senior Vice President, Human Resource, and the designated
administrator. Employees are given the option to purchase the shares allocable to them over an
exercise period of five years from the effectivity date of ESOP. The share options vest each year over
the five-year term of ESOP. The offer price of the shares is based on the average quoted price during
the 30-trading days prior to exercise date less a 15% discount. About 35.0 million and 30.0 million
common shares of the Company’s unissued shares have been initially reserved under the first and
second ESOP, respectively.

Movements of the number of share options for the first and second ESOP are as follows:

First ESOP Second ESOP
2018 2017 2018 2017
Balance at beginning of year 15,650,483 16,110,376 22,953,725 24,460,832
Forfeited or expired (14,670,350) (302,908) (6,249,869) (1,507,107)
Exercised (980,133) (156,985) ' - -
Balance at end of year - 15,650,483 16,703,856 22,953,725
Exercisable at end of year - 11,409,605 13,363,085 11,145,620

In 2018, the Company issued 980,133 common shares pertaining to the exercise of stock option of
employees under First ESOP amounting to R2.4 million (see Note 18). In 2017, the Company issued
156,985 common shares pertaining to the exercise of stock option of employees under First ESOP
amounting to R0.4 million (see Note 18). The weighted-average share price at the date of exercise for
share options under the First ESOP was R3.44.

The fair value of the First and Second ESOP was estimated at the date of grant using Black Scholes-
Merton model with the following inputs as follows:

First ESOP
Options Vesting After
Year One Year Two Year Three Year Four Year Five
Spot price R2.80 R2.80 R2.80 #2.80 R2.80
Strike price ' R2.49 R2.49 £2.49 R2.49 R2.49
Expected volatility 38.83% 39.10% 36.59% 39.61% 42.46%
Risk-free rate 2.71% 2.98% 3.29% 3.60% 3.36%
Dividend rate as a percentage of
spot price 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
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Second ESOP

Options Vesting After

Year One Year Two Year Three Year Four Year Five

Spot price £6.90 R6.90 R6.90 R6.90 R6.90

Strike price R5.32 R5.32 R5.32 R5.32 R5.32

Expected volatility 33.46% 39.77% 39.71% 37.65% 39.95%

Risk-free rate 2.86% 2.82% 3.15% 3.90% 3.38%
Dividend rate as a percentage

of spot price 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

The weighted average fair value of the share options granted in 2013 (First ESOP) and 2014 (Second
ESOP) amounted to R0.9 and R3.0, respectively. The volatility rate is determined as the historical
volatility of the returns on the stock over a period similar to the vesting period of the option.

The weighted average remaining contractual life of the outstanding stock options is 0.58 years and
1.25 years as at September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

The employee stock option expense recognized for employee services received amounted to
7.8 million, 5.3 million and R1.4 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively, presented as part of
“Personnel costs” account (see Note 24).

21. Revenue

The components of revenue are as follows:

2018 2017 2016
Sale of goods:

Alcohol R3,244,918 R3,602,242 R4,201,952
Raw sugar 1,469,426 1,695,517 3,174,684
Molasses 117,376 155,010 77
Carbon dioxide 9,856 10,526 8,215
Refined sugar 7,703 7,548 253,360
4,849,279 5,470,843 7,638,288

Sale of services:
Power 29,564 16,366 30,966
Farm services 18,436 22,429 1,749
Tolling fees 498 - -
48,498 38,795 32,715
R4,897,777 B5,509,638 R7,671,003
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22. Cost of Sales and Services

Note 2018 2017 2016
Direct materials used 9 ®1,575,808 R2,086,688 R4,259,743
Planters’ subsidy and productivity
assistance 28 569,964 801,984 1,119,019
Depreciation and amortization 12 448,828 538,636 487,429
Fuel and oil 358,664 400,294 616,623
Personnel costs 24 233,449 196,185 171,374
Repairs and maintenance 217,312 299,300 206,453
Rent 28 197,222 86,400 115,894
Materials and consumables 127,118 122,828 76,710
Communication, light and water 109,711 72,782 72,375
Taxes and licenses 84,542 81,121 84,561
Outside services 73,218 88,175 81,748
Others 9 94,502 119,565 118,914
R4,090,338 R4,893,958 R7,410,843

23. Operating Expenses
General and Administrative Expenses

The components of general and administrative expenses are as follows:

Note 2018 2017 2016
Personnel costs 24 R395,236 R363,056 R277,655
Taxes and licenses 70,692 95,790 74,727
Outside services 61,275 46,188 67,442
Depreciation and amortization 12 47,455 64,264 64,598
Professional fees 24,164 32,514 31,795
Rent 28 21,345 27,582 27,715
Communication, light and water 21,067 22,169 34,038
Travel and transportation 16,638 18,342 25,982
Organizational activities 9,881 9,571 9,064
Repairs and maintenance 6,811 8,962 9,846
Entertainment, amusement and
recreation 6,662 3,296 3,783
Provision for (reversal of provision for)
impairment losses on receivables 8 6,272 67 6,098
Corporate social responsibility 3,857 3,177 5,409
Materials and consumables 3,020 3,695 28,543
Provision for (reversal of provision for)
probable losses 16, 28 - 20,770 3,916
Others 9 40,630 41,153 76,427
R735,005 R760,596 R747,038

Others mainly pertain to training and development, transfer cost and bank charges.
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Selling Expenses

Selling expenses, representing mandatory fees paid to various regulatory agencies prior to sale of
sugar, mainly pertains to delivery charges, sugar liens and dues and monitoring fees totaling #20.8
million, #8.6 million and R22.4 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

. Personnel Costs

Personnel costs include:

Note 2018 2017 2016

Salaries, wages, allowances and other :
employee benefits R580,125 R511,081 R417,446
Retirement benefits 17 40,800 42,903 30,143
Employee stock option 20 7,760 5,257 1,440
R628,685 R559,241 R449,029

The amount of personnel costs are allocated as follows:

Note 2018 2017 2016
Cost of sales 22 R233,449 R196,185 R171,374
General and administrative expenses 23 395,236 363,056 277,655
R628,685 R559,241 R449,029
. Other Income
This account consists of:

Note 2018 2017 2016
Storage, handling and insurance fees R23,545 R23,013 R12,734

Fair value adjustment of investment
properties 13 27,531 13,406 27,529
Sales of scrap 8,846 15,047 344
Interest income 7,8 2,437 3,182 2,877
Others 7,802 (7,398) (9,213)
R70,161 R47,250 R34,271

Others mainly pertain to income from conversion rights, woodchips and reversals of various accruals.

0
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26. Income Taxes

a. The components of the recognized net deferred tax assets and liabilities represent the tax effects
of the following temporary differences:

2018 2017
Net Deferred Net Deferred Net Deferred Net Deferred
Note Tax Assets®t) Tax Liabilities® Tax Assets®)  Tax Liabilities

Deferred tax assets on:

NOLCO R282,158 R8,123 R153,762 R48,246
Retirement liabilities 17 107,846 323 90,959 279
Various accruals 86,064 15,495 41,451 13,759
Unamortized past service cost 23,782 29,308 -

Allowances for:
Impairment losses of receivables 8 28,121 - 26,150 -
Inventory losses and obsolescence 9 10,885 - 9,011 -
Excess MCIT 47,946 6,602 33,725 5,845
Employee stock option 13,794 4,973 13,910 4,271
Customer’s deposits 2,030 - 2,064 -
602,626 35,516 400,340 72,400

Deferred tax liabilities on:
Unamortized capitalized interest 12 (62,648) (4,678) (73,153) (4,678)
Revaluation increment on land,
depreciable assets, and asset

transferred to subsidiaries (54,910) (204,914) (51,154) (1,227,815)
Unamortized transaction cost (3,179) (344) (4,947) (462)
Retirement assets 17 (41,072) (9,681) (247) (18,530)
Deferred milling costs - (1,692) - (1,056)

(161,809) (221,309) (129,501) (1,252,541)
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) R440,817 (P185,793) R270,839 (R1,180,141)

) Recognized net deferred tax assets of CADPI, CAC, and ADC
12 Recognized net deferred tax liabilities of RHI, RBC, SCBI, NAVI and NPSC

Details of other deductible temporary differences for which no deferred tax assets were
recognized as management believes that it may not be probable that sufficient future taxable

profits will be available against which the other deductible temporary differences can be utilized
are as follows:

2018 2017

NOLCO R25,852 R34,242
Allowance for impairment losses of receivables 3,679 4,716
Provision for inventory losses and obsolescence 3,752 3,752
R33,283 R42,710

b. Details of carry forward benefits arising from NOLCO and excess MCIT are as follows:

NOLCO
Balance as at Balance as at
September 30, September 30,
Year Incurred 2017 Additions Applied 2018 Available Until
Recognized:
September 30, 2018 R- R#554,585 R- £554,585 September 30, 2021
September 30, 2017 94,671 - (47,779) 46,892 September 30, 2020
September 30, 2016 491,146 - (99,166) 391,980 September 30, 2019
September 30, 2015 121,785 - (121,785) - September 30, 2018
#£707,602 554,585 (R268,730) #993,457

O



-58-

Excess MCIT
Balance as at Balance as at
September 30, September 30,
Year Incurred 2017 Additions Applied Expired 2018 Available Until
Recognized:
September 30, 2018 8- 21,102 R- 8- £21,102 September 30, 2021
September 30, 2017 31,847 - - - 31,847 September 30, 2020
September 30, 2016 1,599 - - - 1,599 September 30, 2019
September 30, 2015 6,124 - - (6,124) - September 30, 2018
#39,570 822,102 - (6,124) #54,548

The reconciliation between the income tax expense (benefit) computed at the applicable

statutory tax rate and income tax expense (benefit) presented in the consolidated statements of
income is as follows:

2018 2017 2016
Income tax expense (benefit) at statutory
tax rate (P26,932) R32,519 28,055
Tax effects of:
Net income subject to income tax
holiday (ITH) (117,086) (58,482) (23,482)
Share in net earnings of an
associate (16,750) (20,333) (63,677)
Nondeductible expenses 26,232 16,864 17,726
Interest subject to final tax (146) (1,015) (361)
Effect of 5% statutory tax rate of
SCBI (28,453) 1,704 (10,873)
Unallowable interest expense 21 68 53
Adjustments resulting from
derecognition of deferred tax assets 8,700 8,604 -
Others 9,139 8,427 (2,182)
(P145,275) (R11,644) (R74,741)

The current income tax expense of the Group in 2018, 2017 and 2016 pertains to RCIT, or MCIT,

whichever is higher, except for RBC and SCBI, which are entitled to ITH and 5% gross income tax,
respectively.

Registration with the Board of Investments (BOI) of RBC

On October 24, 2008, the BOI approved the registration of RBC as a New Producer of Bioethanol
(Anhydrous) and Potable (Hydrous) Ethanol on a Pioneer and Non-Pioneer Status under the
Omnibus Investments Code of 1987 or Executive Order (E.O.) No.226

On October 22, 2014, the BOI approved the amendment of registration of RBC from a New
Producer of Bioethanol (Anhydrous) under E.O. No. 226 to Renewable Energy (R.E.) Developer of
Biomass Resources under the Republic Act (R.A.) No. 9513. The registration as a New Producer of
Potable Ethanol is maintained under E.O. No. 226.

As a registered enterprise, RBC is entitled to certain tax incentives, which include, among others:

o ITH for the first seven years from December 3, 2013 until December 3, 2020;

e Duty-free importation of machinery, equipment and materials including control and
communication equipment within the first ten years from the issuance of the BOI certificate
of registration until October 23, 2018;
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¢ Realty and other taxes on civil works, equipment, machinery, and other improvements
actually and exclusively used for R. E. facilities shall not exceed one and a half (1.5%) of the
original cost less accumulated depreciation or net book value;

¢ NOLCO during the first three years from the start of commercial operation shall be carried
over as a deduction from gross income for the next seven consecutive taxable years
immediately following the year of such loss is unused;

e Corporate tax rate of 10% on its net taxable income after seven years of ITH;

¢ If RBC did not avail of the ITH, the plant, machinery and equipment that are reasonably
needed and actually used for the exploration, development and utilization of R. E. resources
may be depreciated using a rate not exceeding twice the rate which would have been used
had the annual allowance been computed; and

® Zero percent value-added tax rate on its purchase of local supply of goods, properties and
services needed for the development, construction and installation of its plant facilities.

Total tax incentives availed of amounted to #31.8 million, 18.5 million and 7.7 million in 2018,
2017 and 2016, respectively.

e. Income Tax Regime of SCBI

SCBI is registered with the Philippine Economic Zone Authority (PEZA) as an Agro-industrial
Ecozone Enterprise under Registration Certificate No.09-01-Al dated September 23, 2009.

The following are the mutual covenants and undertaking of SCBI pursuant to Registration
Agreement with the PEZA:

i. The registration as an Agro-Industrial Ecozone Enterprise entitles SCBI to conduct and
operate its business inside the San Carlos Ecozone.

ii. The scope of SCBI’s registered activity is limited to the production of bioethanol fuel and its
by-products, power/electricity, carbon dioxide, and carbon emission reduction (known as
carbon credits) and importation of raw materials, machinery, equipment, tools, goods,
wares, articles or merchandise directly used in its registered operations at the San Carlos
Ecozone.

iii. SCBI is not entitled to a separate ITH incentive. The incentives entitlement of SCBI is the
remaining ITH period granted in its registration with the BOI until December 2014. Upon
expiry of the ITH under BOI registration, SCBI is entitled to the 5% Gross Income Tax (GIT)
incentive, in lieu of paying of all local and national internal revenue taxes, and other
incentives under Article 77, Book VI of E.O. No. 226.

The PEZA approved SCBI’'s amendment in its registered activity to include the production of syrup

from sugarcane, which will be subjected to 5% gross income tax, until October 1, 2015. The results
of operations from said registered product thereafter is subjected to national taxes.
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27. Earnings per Share

Earnings per share is computed as follows:

2018 2017 2016
Basic Diluted Basic Diluted Basic Diluted
Net income attributable to the equity holders
of the Parent Company (a) R47,664 R47,664 R119,777 R£119,777 £101,244 £101,244
Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding for basic EPS 1,565,337 1,565,337 1,449,038 1,449,038 1,421,798 1,421,798
Average incremental number of shares
under ESOP - - - 29,867 - 18,716
Weighted average number of common shares
adjusted for effect of dilution (b) 1,565,337 1,565,337 1,449,038 1,478,905 1,421,798 1,440,514
Earnings per share (a/b) £0.03 R0.03 £0.08 £0.08 £0.07 £0.07

Earnings per share for discontinued operations (Note 12) is computed as follows:

2018 2017
Basic Diluted Basic Diluted Basic Diluted
Net income (loss) attributable to equity
holders of the Parent Company from
discontinued operations (a) (R50,380) (R50,380) £#201,844 £201,844 #337,690 #337,690
Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding for basic EPS 1,565,337 1,565,337 1,449,038 1,449,038 1,421,798 1,421,798
Average incremental number of shares
under ESOP - - - 29,867 - 18,716
Weighted average number of common shares
adjusted for effect of dilution (b) 1,565,337 1,565,337 1,449,038 1,478,905 1,421,798 1,440,514
Earnings per share (a/b) (®0.03) (R0.03) £0.14 £0.14 £0.23 £0.23

28. Commitments and Contingencies

a. Milling Contracts

CACI and CADPI (the “Mills”) have milling contracts with the planters, which provide for a 35%
and 65% sharing between the Mills and the planters, respectively, of sugar, molasses and other
sugar cane by-products, excluding bagasse, produced every crop year.

In December 2017, milling contracts of CADPI with the planters were revised to provide fora 32%
and 68% sharing between CADPI and the planters, respectively. This agreement is effective until
crop year 2017 to 2018. Renewal is upon mutual consent of both parties thereafter.

b. The Group has in its custody the following raw and refined sugar owned by third parties:

2018 2017
Estimated Estimated
Total Volume  Market Value Total Volume Market Value
(in Thousands) (Amounts  (in Thousands) (Amounts
(LKg*) in Millions) (LKg*) in Millions)
Raw sugar 185 #299 426 R511
Refined sugar 333 727 443 841

*Equivalent to 50 kilogram bag unit.
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The foregoing volume of sugar is not reflected in the consolidated statements of financial position
since these are not considered as assets of the Group. These raw sugar held on behalf of the third
parties are also supported by quedans. The Group is accountable to the third parties for the value
of trusted sugar or their sales proceeds.

Sales Contracts

CADPI and RBC entered into various sales contracts with its major customers for the sale of raw
sugar, refined sugar and molasses. Outstanding sales contracts for refined sugar amounted to
#1,407.4 million for 672,344 lkg bags, R765.0 million for 335,773 lkg bags and R575.6 million for
231,622 lkg bags as at September 30, 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively, and R415.0 million for
7,511,654 liters, R897.8 million for 19,240,000 liters and #63.8 million for 1,051,000 liters for
anhydrous alcohol as at September 30, 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Crop Loan and Contract Growing Agreements

RADC entered into crop loan and contract growing agreements with various planters for
the scheduled delivery of sugar cane for the crop year 2017 to 2018. Advances made to planters
related to these agreements as at September 30, 2018 and 2017 amounted to R34.4 million and
P23.6 million, respectively, which are included as part of “Due from planters and cane haulers”
under “Trade and other receivables” account (see Note 8).

Leases

The Group has various lease agreements for a period of one year covering heavy loading
equipment and service vehicles with various trucking and heavy equipment service companies,
which are used in transloading, hauling and other milling operations. The lease agreements are
renewable annually upon mutual consent of both parties.

Moreover, the Group, as a lessee, leases its office space from a third party for a period of five
years until May 31, 2021, which is renewable upon mutual agreement of the parties.

Future minimum lease payments on its office space as at September 30, 2018 and 2017 are as
follow:

2018 2017

Within one year R11,178 R15,939
After one year but not more than five years 37,667 48,845
R48,845 R64,784

Total rent expense from the related contracts amounted to #248.3 million, R210.8 million and
R184.4 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Hauling Services Contracts

The Group has an agreement for hauling services for the transport of sugarcane from the
plantations to milling facilities. Related hauling expenses, which are presented as part of
“Planters’ subsidy and productivity assistance” account under “Cost of goods sold”, amounted to
R758.2 million, R1,034.0 million and R1,343.6 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively
(see Note 22).
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8- Emission Reduction Purchase Agreement (ERPA)

On January 14, 2009, RBC and World Bank Group signed a $3.2 million ERPA for the purchase of
carbon emission credits under the Clean Development Mechanism of the Kyoto Protocol. The
ERPA will also avoid at least 50,000 metric tons of carbon dioxide each year with a crediting period
of 10 years starting 2010. As part of the ERPA, portion of the revenue for the purchase of the
credits will be used to finance the RBC's community development projects.

h. Fuel Ethanol Supply Agreement (FESA)

SCBI has an existing FESA with Petron Corporation, wherein SCBI will exclusively supply fuel
ethanol from the integrated ethanol distillery to Petron Corporation for a period of 10 years until
2018. The pricing, delivery, acceptance and payment terms are set out in the FESA.

i. Unused Credit Lines

The Group has unused lines of credit with various local banks amounting to #310.7 million and
£800.0 million as at September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

j- Contingencies

The Group has several pending claims and assessments, the expected ultimate outcome of which
is based on management’s judgment in consultation with its legal counsel.

Outstanding provision for losses for disputed claims and assessments amounted to R7.6 million
and R96.6 million as at September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, presented under “Trade and
other payables” account (see Note 16).

29. Financial Instruments

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash, trade and other receivables, and trade and
other payables, which arise directly from its operations, and short and long-term borrowings. The
Group has other financial instruments such as restricted cash and dividends payable.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are liquidity risk, credit risk and interest
rate risk. The Group monitors the market price risk arising from all financial instruments. The Group’s
operations are also exposed to commodity price risk, particularly from sugar prices. Risk management
is carried out by senior management under the guidance and direction of the BOD of the Parent
Company.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that the Group may encounter difficulties in raising funds to
meet maturing obligations.
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The Group’s objective is to maintain sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities. Due to the dynamic nature of the business, the Group
aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping track of daily cash flows and maintaining committed
credit lines available. As of September 30, 2018, the Group has an APA for the Proposed Sale
Transaction (Note 12), the proceeds of which will be used to repay the long-term debts and reduce
short-term debt to levels sufficient for its working capital needs.

The tables below summarize the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities based on
contractual undiscounted payments and the related financial assets used for liquidity management.

2018
Less than Over One Over Two Over Four Over
On Demand One Year  to Two Years  to Four Years to Five Years Five Years Total
Short-term borrowings* R6,583,508 B- B- R R- B- P6,583,508
Trade and other payables** 78,366 2,120,555 - - - - 2,198,921
Current portion of long-term borrowings* - 1,447,850 - - - - 1,447,850
Noncurrent portion of long-term borrowings* - - 990,883 2,179,369 421,345 339,040 3,930,637
R6,661,874 13,568,405 #990,883 12,179,369 R421,345 #339,040 214,160,916
Cash and cash equivalents R292,001 R~ [ R~ [ R~ #292,001
Trade receivables*** 440,516 2,337,450 - - - - 2,777,966
Due from employees*** 55,962 - - - - - 55,962
Due from related parties 37,369 - - - - - 37,369
Other receivables*** 56,073 - - - - - 56,073
881,921 2,337,450 R- - - R~ £3,219,371
*Include d future /or short- term and long-term borrowings amounting to R372.7 million and R546.6 million, respectively.
** Excludes payables to g to £73.3 million and provision for losses amounting to R7.6 million.
***Net of related allt for i t losses g R44.1 million.

As of September 30, 2018, the long term loans are presented as part of current liabilities due to breach
of a loan covenant (see Note 15). However, the Group received waiver subsequent to report date,
and the bank has not called the loan in default. Thus, the contractual undiscounted payments are
based on the original terms of the loan agreements.

2017
Less than Over One Over Two Over Four Over

On Demand One Year to Two Years  to Four Years to Five Years Five Years Total

Short-term borrowings* #4,840,424 £ o - - - £4,840,424
Trade and other payables** 767,466 294,576 - - - - 1,062,042
Current portion of long-term borrowings* - 1,729,101 - - - - 1,729,101
Noncurrent portion of long-term borrowings* - - 2,706,374 1,637,604 694,777 - 5,038,755
£5,607,890 £2,023,677 R2,706,374 £1,637,604 R£694,777 - #12,670,322

Cash £570,337 - - [ f- - #570,337
Trade receivables*** 440,516 1,554,504 - - - - 1,995,020
Due from employees*** 61,345 - - - - - 61,345
Due from related parties 57,821 - - - - - 57,821
Other receivables*** 59,577 - - - - - 59,577
#1,189,596 #1,554,504 £ £— 8- £- £2,744,100

‘Includes expected future interest payments for short-teml and long-term borrowings amounting to R232.1 million and R712.5 million, respectively.
** Excll yables to g g to R30.0 million and provision for losses amounting to R96.6 million.

***Net of related allowances for impairment losses totalmg R29.5 million.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that the Group will incur financial loss through default by counterparties in
performing their obligations.

Concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables is limited due to the large number of
customers comprising the Group’s customer base and their dispersion across different geographic
areas. It has policies in place to ensure that sales of goods are made to customers with an appropriate
credit history.

The Group has established a credit quality review process to provide early identification of possible
change in the creditworthiness of counterparties, including regular collateral revisions.
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Counterparty credit limits are established by the use of a credit risk classification system, which
assigns each counterparty a qualitative risk rating. Risk ratings are subject to regular revision. The
credit quality review process allows the Group to assess the potential loss as a result of the risks to
which it is exposed and take corrective action.

Maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of any collateral and other credit
enhancements

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk of the Group shown at gross before the
effect of mitigation through collateral agreements.

2018 2017

Cash R292,001 #570,337
Trade receivables* 2,777,966 1,995,020
Due from employees* 55,962 61,345
Due from related parties 37,369 57,821
Other receivables* 56,073 59,577
3,219,371 R2,744,100

*Net of all for imp losses ling R44.1 million and R29.5 million in 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Collaterals and other credit enhancements

The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the
counterparty. Guidelines are implemented regarding the acceptability of types of collateral and
valuation parameters. As at September 30, 2018 and 2017, the Group did not hold collateral from any
counterparty.

Credit quality per class of financial assets

The credit quality of receivables is managed by the Group through its Marketing Department. High
grade accounts are those receivables from counterparties with whom collections are made without
much effort. Standard grade accounts consist of receivables from its distributors, related parties and
employees with good financial condition and with relatively low defaults. Substandard grade
accounts, on the other hand, are receivables from other counterparties with history of defaulted
payments.

The tables below show the credit quality of financial assets which are neither past due nor impaired
and an aging analysis of past due but not impaired accounts.

2018
Past due but not impaired

Neither past due nor impaired

High Standard Substandard Over 30 Over 90 Over 180
Grade Grade Grade Days Days Days Impaired Total
Cash £292,001 L L R~ B~ - [ #292,001
Trade receivables 963,451 1,767,012 - 5,672 3,379 38,452 33,118 2,811,084
Due from employees - 55,962 - - - - 2,084 58,046
Due from related parties - 37,369 - - - - - 37,369
Other receivables - - - - - 56,073 8,858 64,931
R1,253,452 11,860,343 R~ RS,672 #3,379 R94,525 R44,060 #3,263,431

2017
Neither past due nor impaired Past due but not impaired

High Standard Substandard Over 30 Over 90 Over 180
Grade Grade Grade Days Days Days Impaired Total
Cash #570,337 R~ R- B~ B- - L #570,337
Trade receivables 617,010 1,179,467 - 78,312 31,009 89,223 18,731 2,013,752
Due from employees - 61,345 - - - - 1,929 63,274
Due from related parties - 57,821 - - - - - 57,821
Other receivables - - - - -~ 59,577 8,858 68,435
R1,187,347 #1,298,633 R— R78,312 £31,009 £148,800 R29,518 #2,773,619
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Impairment assessment
The main consideration for impairment assessment includes whether there are known difficulties in

the cash flow of the counterparties. The Group assesses impairment in two ways: individually and
collectively.

First, the Group determines allowance for each significant receivable on an individual basis. Among
the items that the Group considers in assessing impairment is the inability to collect from the
counterparty based on the contractual terms of the receivables. Receivables included in the specific
assessment are the accounts that have been endorsed to the legal department, non-moving accounts
receivable and other accounts of defaulted counterparties.

For collective assessment, allowances are assessed for receivables that are not individually significant
and for individually significant receivables where there is no objective evidence of individual
impairment. Impairment losses are estimated by taking into consideration the age of the receivables,
past collection experience and other factors that may affect their collectibility.

Commodity price risk

The Group is exposed to commadity price risk from conventional physical sales and purchase of sugar
and alcohol managed through volume, timing and relationship strategies. The Group does not enter
into commodity derivatives.

The Group’s sales commitments are contracted at fixed prices, and thus have no impact on the
consolidated cash flows in the next 12 months.

Interest rate risk
The primary source of the Group's interest rate risk relates to interest-bearing financial liabilities. The
interest rates on these liabilities are disclosed in Notes 14 and 15.

The loans amounting to R1,133 million and £1,400.0 million as at September 30, 2018 and 2017,
respectively, bear floating interest and expose the Group to interest rate risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity analysis to a reasonably possible change in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s income before income tax (through the
impact of floating rate borrowings) and equity in 2018 and 2017. The estimates are based on the
outstanding interest bearing liabilities of the Group with floating interest rate as a
September 30, 2018 and 2017. :

2018 2017
Effect on Income Effecton Effectonincome Effecton
Increase (Decrease) before Tax Equity before Tax Equity
0.25% (R2,833) (P1,983) (R3,500) (R2,450)
(0.25%) 2,833 - (1,983) 3,500 2,450

Interest on financial liabilities with fixed interest rate is fixed until the maturity of the instrument
(see Notes 14 and 15).

The other financial instruments of the Group that are not included in the foregoing tables are
noninterest-bearing and are therefore not subject to interest rate risk.

A
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Capital Management
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains strong credit
and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder value.

The Group’s dividend declaration is dependent on availability of earnings and operating requirements.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustment to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes for the years ended September 30, 2018 and 2017.

Management considers the total consolidated equity (excluding noncontrolling interest) amounting
to R10,731 million and R10,491 million as of September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, reflected in
the consolidated statements of financial position as its capital. The Group monitors its use of capital
using leverage ratios, specifically, debt-to-equity ratio. It also monitors its DSCR to ensure that there

would be sufficient amount of cash flow available to meet annual interest and principal payments on
debt.

30.

Fair Value Measurement

The Group has assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis in the
consolidated statements of financial position after initial recognition. Recurring fair value
measurements are those that another PFRS requires or permits to be recognized in the consolidated
statements of financial position at the end of each reporting period. These include investment
properties and land under property and equipment at revalued amount.

The Group does not have nonrecurring fair value measurements in the consolidated financial
statements. The Group’s management determines the policies and procedures for recurring fair value
measurement.

External valuers are involved for valuation of investment properties and land under property and
equipment. Involvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by management. Selection
criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are
maintained. Management decides, after discussion with the Group’s external valuers, which valuation
techniques and inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities
which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Group’s accounting policies. For this
analysis, management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the
information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents with relevant
external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities approximate their fair values due
to their short-term nature or the interest rates that they carry approximate the interest rate on
comparable instruments in the market. For the long term loans, these are subject to both fixed and
floating rates.

O
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The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial
instruments.

Cash, trade receivables, due from planters and cane haulers, due to and from related parties, due from
employees, other receivables, trade and other payable and short-term borrowings, current portion of
long-term borrowings and dividends payable. The carrying amounts of these instruments
approximate fair values due to their short-term maturities.

Long-term borrowings. The carrying value of long-term borrowings as at September 30, 2018 and
2017 approximates its fair value as they carry interest rates of comparable instruments in the market.

The following tables present fair value hierarchy of the Group’s financial liabilities, investment
properties and land under property, plant and equipment:

Fair Value
based on significant
observable
inputs
Date of valuation: various dates in 2018 Carrying Value (Level 2)
Assets measured at fair value
Land under property, plant and equipment (see Note 12) ®1,376,627 R1,376,627
Investment properties (see Note 13) 347,591 347,591
Liabilities for which fair value is disclosed
Fixed interest rate loan (see Note 15) 1,707,736 1,738,612
Fair Value
Significant
observable inputs
Date of valuation: various dates in 2017 Carrying Value (Level 2)
Assets measured at fair value
Land under property, plant and equipment (see Note 12) R4,746,047 R4,746,047
Investment properties (see Note 13) 349,267 349,267
Liabilities for which fair value is disclosed
Fixed interest rate loan (see Note 15) 2,358,107 2,362,759
31. Note to Statement of Cash Flows
In 2018, changes in liabilities arising from financing activities are as follows:
Amortization
Interest  of Transaction
2017 Cash Flows Expense Costs 2018
Current interest-bearing loans and borrowings #4,608,359 21,602,498 - R- P6,210,857
Noncurrent interest-bearing loans
and borrowings 6,055,335 (1,242,222) - - 4,813,113
Interest on loans and borrowings 37,987 (494,266) 494,266 7,807 45,794
Total liabilities from financing activities £10,701,681 (R133,990) R494,266 #87,807 R11,069,764
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32. Segment Reporting

The Group has two reportable segments: sugar and alcohol. The Group’s sugar segment consists of
four operating subsidiaries: CADPI, CACI, NAVI and RABDC that manufacture and sell raw and refined
sugar, molasses and provides tolling and farm operations services. The alcohol segment consists of
two operating subsidiaries: RBC and SCBI that manufactures and sells bio-ethanol fuel.

The Group has only one geographical segment as all of its assets are located in the Philippines. The
Group operates and derives principally its revenue from domestic operations. Thus, geographical
business information is not required.

The Group’s senior management regularly reviews the operating results of the business units to make
decisions on resource allocation and assess performance. Segment revenue and segment expenses
are measured in accordance with PFRS. The presentation and classification of segment revenue and
segment expenses are consistent with the consolidated statements of income.

In 2018, 2017 and 2016, R2,628.0 million (or 35%), #3,132.7 million (or 37%) and R3,272.7 million
(or 27%), respectively, of the Group's total revenue were derived from two customers.

The following tables present information about the Group’s operating segments:

2018
Sugar Alcohol Eliminations Consolidated
Revenue:
External customers R#1,505,790 R3,391,987 R- P4,897,777
Inter-segment 1,430,501 1,146,120 (2,576,621) -
Cost of goods sold:
Direct materials used 1,279,512 2,873,499 (2,577,203) 1,575,808
Planters’ subsidy and productivity assistance 533,163 36,801 - 569,964
Fuel and oil 44,112 314,552 - 358,664
Depreciation and amortization 273,349 175,479 - 448,828
Interest expense 200,719 2 - 200,721
Segment profit (loss) (424,492) 505,757 (26,597) 54,668
Other disclosures:
Capital expenditures 863,041 322,290 - 1,185,332
Investment in associate 642,690 - - 642,690
Sugar Consolidated
(As restated, (As restated,
Note 12) Alcohol Eliminations Note 12)
Revenue:
External customers £1,781,884 83,727,754 R- #5,509,638
Inter-segment 2,155,054 845,996 (3,001,050) -
Cost of goods sold:
Direct materials used 1,819,126 3,241,005 (2,973,443) -
Planters’ subsidy and productivity assistance 741,962 60,022 - 801,984
Fuel and oil 57,546 342,748 - 400,294
Depreciation and amortization 300,181 238,455 - 538,636
Interest expense 231,345 4,329 (62,377) 173,297
Segment profit (loss) 80,919 181,652 (142,531) 120,040
Other disclosures:
Capital expenditures 868,920 272,064 - 1,140,984
Investment in associate 606,768 - - 606,768
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2016
Sugar Consolidated
(As restated, (As restated,
Note 12) Alcohol Eliminations Note 12)
Revenue:
External customers #3,469,051 4,201,952 - #7,671,003
Inter-segment 2,541,083 31,419 (2,572,502) -
Cost of goods sold:
Direct materials used 4,233,819 2,596,195 (2,570,271) 4,259,743
Planters’ subsidy and productivity assistance 1,108,731 10,288 - 1,119,019
Fuel and oil 62,694 553,929 - 616,623
Depreciation and amortization 273,056 206,518 7,855 487,429
Interest expense 114,749 77,464 - 192,213
Segment profit (loss) 63,634 37,957 - 101,591
Other disclosures:
Capital expenditures 599,888 311,944 - 911,832
Investment in associate 684,868 - . 684,868

A
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Roxas Holdings, Inc.

14th Floor, Net One Center

26th cor. 3rd Avenue, Bonifacio Global City
Taguig, Metro Manila

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the consolidated financial
statements of Roxas Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries as at and for the years ended September 30, 2018 and
2017, included in this Form 17-A, and have issued our report thereon dated January 14, 2019. Our audits
were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The
schedules listed in the Index to the Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules are
the responsibility of the Company’s management. These schedules are presented for purposes of
complying with Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, As Amended (2011) and are not part of the basic
financial statements. These schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, fairly state, in all material respects, the information
required to be set forth therein in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.
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ROXAS HOLDINGS, INC.

“STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS”

The management of Roxas Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries {the “Group”) is responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements as of and for the years
ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, including the additional components attached therein, in
accordance with the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes designing
and implementing internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, selecting and

applying appropriate accounting policies, and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in
the circumstances.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements and submits the same to the
stockholders.

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co., the independent auditors and appointed by the stockholders, has
examined the financial statements of the Company in accordance with Philippine Standards on
Auditing, and in its report to the stockholders and has expressed its opinion on the fairness of
presentation upon completion of such examination.
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ROXAS HOLDINGS, INC.

ROXAS HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 (With Comparative Audited Figures as at September 30, 2018)
and for the Three-Month Periods Ended December 31, 2018 and 2017
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ROXAS HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2018
(With Comparative Audited Balances as at September 30, 2018}
{Amounts in Thousands)

September 30,
December 31, 2018
2018 (As restated —
Note {Unaudited) Note 2)
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 550,462 295,149
Trade and otber receivables 4 3,075,430 3,040,355
inventories 5 2,011,775 2,646,188
Other current assets 6 1,436,186 1,204,288
7,073,853 7,185,980
Assets Held for Sale g 6,525,072 6,525,072
13,598,925 13,711,052
Noncurrent Assets
Investment in an associate 7 658,690 642,650
Property, plant and equipment: 8
At cost 7,508,943 7,595,865
At revalued amount 1,376,627 1,376,627
investment properties 347,412 347,591
Goodwill 1,079,615 1,079,615
Retirement assets — net 43,867 44 938
Deferred tax assets —net 550,362 440,817
Other noncurrent assets 291,978 291,423
11,857,494 11,819,566
#25,456,419 25,530,618
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Short-term borrowings 9 R7,043,511 £6,210,857
Current portion of long-term borrowings 10 4,501,676 4,813,113
Trade and other payables 11 1,882,603 2,279,766
Income tax payable - 2,350
13,427,790 13,306,086
Liability directly associated with the assets held for sale 1,024,465 1,024,465
14,452,255 14,330,551
Noncurrent Liabilities
Retirement liabilities ~net 264,609 249,953
Deferred tax liabilities - net 172,631 185,824
Other noncurrent liabilities 1,300 1,300
438,540 437,077
Total Liabilities 14,890,795 14,767,628

{Forward)
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December 31, September 30,

2018 2018
{As restated —
Note (Unaudited) Note 2)
Equity Attributable to the Equity Holders
of the Parent Company 12
Capital stock #1,565,579 £1,565,579
Additional paid-in capital 2,840,370 2,840,370
Treasury stock (52,290} {52,250)
Revaluation increment on tand under assets held for sale 2,390,419 2,390,419
Other equity items and reserves 1,177,585 1,177,585
Retained earnings 2,584,650 2,781,474
10,506,313 10,703,137
Non-controlling Interests 59,311 59,853
10,565,624 10,762,990
£25,456,419 225,530,618

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Fin ancial Statements.
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ROXAS HO|DINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

INTERIM CONDENSEL CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
FOR THE THREE MONTH PERIODS ENDED

DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
(Amounts in Thousands, except Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share Data)

December 31, bDecember 31,
2018 2017
Notes (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
REVENUE 15
Sale of goods 21,539,399 £993,340
Sale of services 728,047 2,707
2,267,446 996,047
COST OF SALES 16 (2,251,706} (937,825)
GROSS INCOCME 15,740 58,222
OPERATING EXPENSES 17 (186,453) (165,117)
INTEREST EXPENSE {55,708} (51,131)
SHARE IN NET EARNINGS OF AN ASSOCIATE 16,000 -
OTHER tNCOME (EXPENSE) — Net 19 {(2,894) 7,652
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX (213,315) (150,374)
INCOME TAX BENEFIT
Current 1,690 287
Deferred 102,538 59,725
104,228 60,012
NET LOSS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS {109,087) {90,362)
NET LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 8 (88,279) (19,694)
NET LOSS (2197,366) (£110,056)
Net income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company {P196,824) {#110,671)
Non-controlling interests (542) 615
(R197,366) {R110,056)
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT COMPANY
Basic (80.13) {RO.07)
Diluted (R0.13) (R0.07)

See accormpanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ROXAS HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE THREE MONTH PERIODS ENDED

DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
{Amounts in Thousands)

December 31,

December 31,

2018 2017
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
CAPITAL STOCK P1,565,579 1,564,599
ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL 2,840,370 2,826,554
TREASURY STOCK (52,220) {52,290}
REVALUATION INCREMENT ON LAND UNDER ASSETS
HELD FOR SALE 2,390,419 -
OTHER EQUITY RESERVES 1,177,585 3,419,147
RETAINED EARNINGS
Balance at beginning of the period:
As previously reported 2,781,402 2,733,738
Prior period adjustments {Note 2) 72 -
As restated 2,781,474 2,733,738
Net loss {196,824) (110,671)
2,584,650 2,623,067
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
Beginning balance 59,853 52,360
Income (ioss) attributable to non-controlling interests {542) 615
59,311 52,975
TOTAL EQUITY P10,565,624 £10,434,052

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Fin ancial Statements.
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ROXAS HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

{Amounts in Thousands)

December 31,

December 31,

20138 2017
{Unaudited) (Unaudited)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before income tax from continuing operations {R213,315) (R150,374)
Loss before income tax from discontinued operations {113,256) (28,135)
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization 219,179 247,934

Interest expense 144,781 121,958

Retirement expense 15,727 16,675

Share in net earnings of associate (16,000} -
Operating income before changes in working capital 37,116 208,058
Decrease (increase) in:

Trade and other receivables (35,074) 429,189

Inventories 634,413 (117,748)

Other current assets {231,902) (27,703)
increase in trade and other payables (392,826} (194)
Net cash flows generated from operating activities 11,727 491,602
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to:

Property, plant and equipment (132,078) (99,758)
Decrease in other noncurrent assets (555) 2,538
Net cash flows used in investing activities (132,633} {97,220)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net availments of short-term borrowings 832,654 {214,887)
Payments of:

Long-term borrowings (311,437) (310,201)

Interest {144,998) (159,945)
Net cash flows provided by {used in) financing activities 376,219 {685,033}
NET INCREASE {DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 255,313 (290,651}
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD 295,149 571,377
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD £550,462 £280,726

See accompaonying Notes to Financial Statements.
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ROXAS HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Corporate Information

Roxas Holdings, Inc. (RHI or the Parent Company), doing business under the name and style of
CADP Group, was organized in the Philippines and registered with the Philippine Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) on October 30, 1930 for the purpose of operating mill and refinery
facilities to manufacture sugar and allied products. The corporate life of the Parent Company
was extended on May 6, 2016 for another 50 years until November 1, 2030.

In July 1996, the Parent Company offered its shares to the public through an initial public
offering. On August 8, 1996, the shares of stock of the Parent Company were listed in the
Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE).

As at September 30, 2015, the Parent Company is 31% owned by Roxas and Company, Inc. (RCI),
a publicly listed company incorporated and domiciled in the Philippines, 27% owned by FP
Natural Resources Holdings B.V. (FPNRH), a Hong Kong based company and a subsidiary of First
Pacific Company, Ltd. (First Pacific}, and 24% owned by First Agri Holdings Corporation (FAHC), a
Philippine affiliate of FPNRH.

RHI completed its stock rights offering in May 2016 for 266,753,974 outstanding common shares
of RHI, with par value of 81.00 a share, on a pre-emptive basis to holders of common shares of
the capital stock of RHI as at May 4, 2016 (the "Record Date") at an offer price of 4.19 per Rights
Share (the “Offer Price”). As a result, the equity interest of FAHC in RHI increased from 24% to
33% while the equity interest of RC! decreased from 31% to 22%.

On February 1, 2017, the Board of Directors (BOD) approved the issuance of convertible debt
securities amounting to £523,750,000 to FPNRH, convertible to 125,000,000 million commen
shares of RHI at the option of the holder and bears annual interest at 3%.

On February 15, 2017, the shareholders approved the amendment of the Parent Company’s
articles of incorporation to increase the authorized capital stock from £1,500,000,000 to P
2,000,000,000 divided into 2,000,000,000 with par value of £1.00 per share. On the same day,
the shareholders approved the subsequent application of the convertible note as subscription to
125,000,000 common shares arising from the increase in authorized capital stock at a conversion
rate of £4.19 for every common share.

On July 14, 2017, the SEC approved the Parent Company’s application for increase in authaorized
capital stock using the convertible debt securities as payment for subscription. Accordingly,
EPNRH interest on the Parent Company increased from 27% to 32%.

The corporate office of the Parent Company is located at the 14th Floor, Net One Center, 26th
cor. 3rd Avenue, Bonifacio Global City, Taguig, Metro Manila while the manufacturing plants of
its operating subsidiaries are in Barrio Lumbangan, Nasugbu, Batangas, Barrio Consuelo, La
Carlota City, Negros Occidental and San Carlos Ecozone, San Carlos City, Negros Occidental.

The interim condensed consclidated financial statements of the Parent Company and its
subsidiaries {collectively, the Group) for the thre-month period ended December 31, 2018 were
authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on
February 12, 2019.

7ifage



2.

Basis of Preparation and Basis of Consolidation

Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared on a historical cost basis,
except for land and investment properties that are measured at fair value. The consolidated
financial statements have been presented in Philippine Peso, which is the functional currency of
the Group. All amounts are rounded to the nearest thousands, except for number of shares and
uniess otherwise indicated.

The interim condensed financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Philippine
Accounting Standards (PAS) 34, Interim Financial Reporting.

The unaudited interim condensed financial statements do not include all the information and
disclosures required in the annual audited financial statements and should be read in
conjunction with the Company’s annual audited financial statements as at and for the year
ended September 30, 2018, which have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards {PFRS).

Adoption of New and Revised PFRS
The Group adopted the following amendments and improvements to PFRS effective
October 1, 2018 as summarized below.

e PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, establishes a new five-step model that will
apply to revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under PFRS 15, revenue is
recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services 1o a customer. The principles in PFRS
15 provide a more structured approach to measuring and recognizing revenue. The new
revenue standard is applicable to all entities and will supersede all current revenue
recognition requirements under PFRSs. Entities can choose to apply the standard using
either a full retrospective approach, with some limited relief provided, or a modified
retrospective approach.

The adoption of this standard resulted to recognition of revenue and cost from milling
services amounting to B722.4 million as at December 31, 2018 and prior period adjustments
to the beginning balance of retained earnings amounting to 0.1 million.

e PFRS 9, Financial instruments, reflects all phases of the financial instruments project and
replaces PAS 39 and all previous versions of PFRS 9. The standard introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement, impairment, and hedge accounting.
Retrospective application is required, but providing comparative information is not
compulisory. The adoption of PFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and
measurement of the Group’s financial assets and impairment methodology for financial
assets, but will have no impact on the classification and measurement of the Group’s
financial liabilities. The Group does not expect that PFRS 9 will impact the classification of its
financial instruments. However, the Group anticipates impact on the adoption of the
expected credit loss.

e« Amendments to PAS 40, Investment Property, Transfers of Investment Property, clarifies
when an entity should transfer property, including property under construction or
development into, or out of investment property. The amendments state that a change in
use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment
property and there is evidence of the change in use. A mere change in management’s
intentions for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use. The
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amendments should be applied prospectively to changes in use that occur on or after the
beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendments.
Retrospective application is only permitted if this is possible without the use of hindsight.
The Group is currently assessing the impact of adopting these amendments.

Amendments to PFRS 2, Share-based Payment - Classification and Measurement of Share-
based Pagyment Transactions, address three main areas: the effects of vesting conditions on
the measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction; the classification of a
share-based payment transaction with net settlement features for withholding tax
obligations; and the accounting where a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-
based payment transaction changes its classification from cash settled to equity settled.

On adoption, entities are required to apply the amendments without restating prior periods,
hut retrospective application is permitted if elected for all three amendments and if other
criteria are met. Early application of the amendments is permitted.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of adopting these amendments.

Amendments to PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts - Applying PFRS 9, Financial Instruments, with
PFRS 4, address concerns arising from implementing PFRS 9, the new financial instruments
standard before implementing the new insurance contracts standard. The amendments
introduce two options for entities issuing insurance contracis: a temporary exemption from
applying PERS 9 and an overlay approach. The temporary exemption is first applied for
reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. An entity may elect the overlay
approach when it first applies PFRS 9 and apply that approach retrospectively to financial
assets designated on transition to PFRS 9. The entity restates comparative information
reflecting the overlay approach if, and only if, the entity restates comparative information
when applying PFRS 9.

The amendments are not applicable to the Group since the Group does not have any
activities related to insurance contracts.

Amendments to PAS 28 - Measuring an Associate or Joint Venture at Fair Value

The amendments clarify that an entity that is a venture capital organization, or other
qualifying entity, may elect, at initial recognition on an investment-by-investment basis, to
measure its investments in associates and joint ventures at FVPL. They also clarify that if an
entity that is not itself an invesiment entity has an interest in an associate or joint venture
that is an investment entity, the entity may, when applying the equity method, elect to
retain the fair value measurement applied by that investment entity associate or joint
venture to the investment entity associate’s or joint venture’s interests in subsidiaries. This
election is made separately for each investment entity associate or joint venture, at the later
of the date on which (a) the investment entity associate or joint venture is initially
recognized; {b) the associate or joint venture becomes an investment entity; and (c) the
investment entity associate or joint venture first becomes a parent. The amendments should
be applied retrospectively, with earlier application permitted. The Group is currently
assessing the impact of adopting these amendments.

Philippine Interpretation based on International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee (IFRIC) 22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration, clarifies
that in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income {or part of it}] on the derecognition of a nonmonetary asset or
nonmonetary liability arising from advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the
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date on which an entity initially recognizes the nonmonetary asset or nonmonetary liability
arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, then the entity must determine a date of the transactions for each payment or
receipt of advance consideration. The interpretation may be applied on a fully retrospective
basis. Entities may apply the interpretation prospectively to all assets, expenses and income
in its scope that are initially recognized on or after the beginning of the reporting period in
which the entity first applies the interpretation or the beginning of a prior reporting period
presented as comparative information in the financial statements of the reporting period in
which the entity first applies the interpretation. The Group is currently assessing the impact
of adopting this Interpretation.

Effective for Fiscal Year 2020

* Amendments to PFRS 9, Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
The amendments to PERS 9 allow debt instruments with negative compensation prepayment
features to be measured at amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income. Earlier application is permitted. The Group is currently assessing the impact of
adopting these amendments.

e PFRS 16, Leases, sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, preseniation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-statement
of financial position model similar to the accounting for finance leases under PAS 17, Leases.
The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees - leases of ‘low-value’ assets
(e.g., personal computers) and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months
or less). At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognize a liability to make
lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset).

Lessees will be required to separately recognize the interest expense on the lease liability
and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will be also required to
remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events (e.g., a change in the
lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
used to determine those payments). The lessee will generally recognize the amount of the
remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

Lessor accounting under PFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from today’s accounting under
PAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in
PAS 17 and distinguish between two types of leases: operating and finance leases.

PERS 16 also requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under
PAS 17. Early application is permitted, but not before an entity applies PFRS 15. A lessee can
choose to apply the standard using either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach. The standard’s transition provisions permit certain reliefs.

The Group is currently assessi‘ng the impact of adopting the new standard on its office spaces
lease agreements.

e Amendments to PAS 28, Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures, clarify that
entities should account for long-term interests in an associate or joint venture to which the
equity method is not applied using PFRS 9. Earfier application is permitted. The Group is
currently assessing the impact of adopting these amendments,
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Philippine interpretation IFRIC 23, Uncertainty over income Tax Treatments

The interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve
uncertainty that affects the application of PAS 12, Income Taxes, and does not apply to taxes
or levies outside the scope of PAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to
interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments.

The interpretation specifically addresses the following:

e Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately

e The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation
authorities

» How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused
tax credits and tax rates

s How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances

An entity must determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or
together with one or more other uncertain tax treatments. The approach that better
predicts the resolution of the uncertainty should be followed. The Group is currently
assessing the impact of adopting this Interpretation.

Effective for Fiscal Year 2021

PFRS 17, Insurance Contracts, establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of Insurance contracts within the scope of the Standard. The
objective of is to ensure that an entity provides relevant information that faithfully
represents those contracts. This information gives a basis for users of financial statements to
assess the effect that insurance contracts have on the entity's financial position, financia!
performance and cash flows.

Some contracts meet the definition of an insurance contract but have as their primary
purpose the provision of services for a fixed fee. Such issued contracts are in the scope of
the standard, unless an entity chooses to apply to them PFRS 15 and provided the following
conditions are met:

(a) the entity does not reflect an assessment of the risk associated with an individual
customer in setting the price of the contract with that customer;

{b) the contract compensates the customer by providing a service, rather than by making
cash payments to the customer; and

(c) the insurance risk transferred by the contract arises primarily from the customer’s use of
services rather than from uncertainty over the cost of those services

PFRS 17 is not applicable to the Group since the Group does not have any insurance
contracts.

Deferred Effectivity

Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture
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The amendments address the conflict between PFRS 10 and PAS 28 in dealing with the loss of
control of a subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture. The
amendments clarify that the gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that
constitute a business, as defined in PFRS 3, between an investor and its associate or joint
venture, is recognized in full. Any gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution of
assets that do not constitute a business, however, is recognized only to the extent of
unrelated investors’ interests in the associate or joint venture.

On January 13, 2016, the FRSC postponed the original effective date of January 1, 2016 of the
said amendments until the International Accounting Standards Board has completed its
broader review of the research project on equity accounting that may result in the
simplification of accounting for such transactions and of other aspects of accounting for
associates and joint ventures.

Basis of Consolidation .

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Parent Company
and its subsidiaries, which it controls as at September 30 of each year. The Parent Company has
control over the investee when the Parent Company is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee.

Presented below is the list of the subsidiaries.

Percentage of Qwnership MNoncontroliing interest Principal Place of
2018 2017 2016 2018 2017 2016 Nature of Business Business
Central Azucarera Don Pedro, inc. 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% - - - Production and selling of raw Taguig City and
{CADPI) and refined sugar, molasses Nasughu, Batangas
. and refated products
Central Azucarera de la Carlota, Inc. 100.00% 100.00% 100,00% - - - Production and selling of raw Taguig City and
{CAcC!) sugar ahd molasses Megros Occidental
CADP Insurance Agency, Inc. {CIAI) 100.60% 100.00% 100.00% - - - Tnsurance agency Makati City
Roxol Bioenergy Corp. [RBC) a 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% - - - Production and seliing Negros Occidental
of bioethanol fuel and trading of
goods such as sugar
and refated products
CADP Port $Services, tnc. (CPS1) 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% - - - Providing ancillary services Makat] City
RHI Agri-Business Deveiopment 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% - - - Agricultural business Makati City
Corparation (RABDC) P
Roxas Pacific Bioenergy 300.00% 100.00% 100.00% - - - Holding company for Negres Occidental
Corparation {RPBC] bivethanol investments
RHI Pacific Compmercial Corp. 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% - - - Selling arm of products Makati City
{RHIPCC) & of RHI Group
San Carlos Bioznergy, Inc. (SCBI) ® ©3.35% 93.35% 93.35% 6.65% 6.85% 6.65% Production Nagros Occidental
and selling of bioethanol fuel
Najalin Agrl Ventures, Inc. (NAVI) 95.82% 95.82% 26.91% 4.18% 4.18% 13.09% Agriculturat and industrial Negros Occidental
development
Roxas Power Corporation {RPC) 50.00% 50,80% 50.00% S0% 50% 50% Sale of electricity Nasugbu, Batangas
Northeastern Port Storage 100.00% 100.00% - - - - Owning the depot and storage Negros Occidental

Corporation [NPSC) ™

@ pirect ownership of 20.53% and indirect ownership through CADPI of 78.47%.
As ot September 30, RHIPCC has not yet started commercial operations.

12)

B Acquired in April 2015 through RPBC.

4]

indlirect ownership through RPBC,

facilities used by SCBI

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets of NAVI, RPC and
SCBI not held by the Group, directly or indirectly, and are presented separately in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income and within the equity section of the
consolidated statement of financial position and consolidated statement of changes in equity,
separately from the Parent Company’s equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed to the
portion held by the Group and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit.
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3. Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account consists of:

December 31, September 30,
2018 2018
{Unaudited) (Audited)
Cash on hand B538 P3,148
Cash in banks and cash equivalents 549,874 292,001
R550,462 £295,149
Cash in banks earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates.
Trade and Other Receivables
This account consists of:
December 31, September 30,
2018 2018
{Unaudited) (Audited)
Trade B2,866,327 $£2,811,084
Due from:
Planters and cane haulers 113,558 159,717
Employees 54,092 58,046
Related parties 67,190 37,369
Others 65,055 64,931
3,166,222 3,133,147
Allowance for impairment losses (90,792) {90,792}
B3,075,430 £3,040,355
Inventories
This account consists of:
September 30,
December 31, 2018
2018  (Asrestated —
(Unaudited) Note 2)
At NRV:
Materials and supplies RB5%26,996 B560,676
Molasses 654,620 -
Alcohol 110,401 46,227
At cost:
Refined sugar 394,021 1,383,012
Raw sugar 229,334 108,996
Molasses - 488,323
Others 26,403 58,954
R2,011,775 £2,646,188
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Cost of inventories valued at NRV is shown below:

December 31, September 30,
2018 2018
(Unaudited) {Audited)
Molasses ®655,384 -
Materials and supplies 632,838 B600,713
Alcohol 129,731 63,948
R1,417,953 £664,661
Other Current Assets
This account consists of:

December 31, September 30,
2018 2018
(Unaudited) (Audited)

Creditable withholding taxes, net of allowance for
probable losses of B12.2 million R801,152 £704,453
Deferred milling costs 419,703 59,320
Input VAT 112,780 37,550
Advances to suppliers 59,127 261,040
Prepayments 25,577 35,932
Refundable deposits 14,369 14,410
QOthers 3,478 1,583
P1,436,186 1,204,288

Input VAT, which includes deferred input VAT, mainly arises from purchases of capital goods and
services for operations.

Investment in an Associate

Movements in investment in an associate are as follows:

December 31, September 30,
2018 2018
(Unaudited) {Audited)
Acquisition cost Rp127,933 £127,933
Accumulated share in net earnings:
Balance at beginning of period 258,117 280,509
Share in net earnings 16,000 (78,226}
Dividends declared - 55,834
Balance at end of the period 274,117 258,117
Cumulative share in remeasurement loss
on retirement liability
Balance at beginning of period {(7,665) (9,166}
Share in remeasurement loss - 1,501
Balance at end of the period (7,665) {7,665)

(Forward)
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December 31, September 30,
2018 2018
(Unaudited) {Audited)

Share in revaluation increment of land:
Balance at beginning of period 264,305 207,492
Share in revaluation increment - 56,813
Balance at end of the period 264,305 264,305
k658,690 2642,690

The Parent Company has 45.09% ownership interest in Hawaiian-Philippine and Company
{(HPCo), an entity incorporated in the Philippines, which is engaged in manufacturing and trading
of raw and refined sugar, molasses and other sugar by-products.

Summarized financial information of HPCo are as follows:

December 31, September 30,

2018 2018

(Unaudited) (Audited)

Current assets £778,602 $£743,060
Noncurrent assets 1,333,543 1,360,903
Current liabilities 881,552 (887,343)
Noncurrent liabilities 280,249 (324,419)
Net assets 950,344 892,201
December 31, December 31,

2018 2017

{Unaudited) (Unaudited}

Revenue £418,110 £81,901
Net income 35,485 -

8. Property, Plant and Equipment

Acquisitions and disposals
During the three months ended December 31, 2018, the Group acquired assets amounting to
p132.1 million excluding property under construction.

The Group also started several capital expenditures. The projects with carrying amount of
£695.8 million are expected to be completed within a year.

Certain property, plant and equipment with a carrying amount of R9,044.0 million were
mortgaged and used as collateral to secure the loan obligations with the local banks
{see Note 10).

Assets held for sale and discontinued operations

On May 23, 2018, the Group entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement with URC for the sale of
the Group’s sugar milling and refining operations in Batangas. The consummation of the
Proposed Sale Transaction is subject to the parties being able to secure the requisite regulatory
approvals, corporate approvals, and other third party consents. As of January 14, 2019, the
Proposed Sale Transaction is still under review by the PCC. The PCC review is required for similar
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transactions. However, management is committed to the Proposed Sale Transaction and expects
it to be completed after PCC approval is secured.

The assets held for sale represent CADPI’s operations which are included as part of the sugar
operating segment until December 31, 2018. With CADPl's operations being classified as

discontinued operations, these are no longer presented as part of sugar operating segment
disclosures in Note 21.

Assets held for sale as of December 31, 2018 are as follows:

Land £3,414,959
Machinery and equipment 2,379,373
Buildings and improvements 548,149
Furniture fixture and other improvements 64,104
Transportation equipment 11,707
Investment properties 1,433
Construction in-progress 105,347

£6,525,072

Deferred tax liability directly associated with the assets held for sale amounted to £1,024.5
million as of December 31, 2018.

Revaluation increment on land held for sale amounted to £2,350.4 million as of
December 31, 2018.

The results of CADPI’s sugar and milling operations are shown in the table below:

December 31, December 31,
2018 2017
Revenue
Sale of goods £1,941,674 B1,072,896
Sale of services - 4,754
1,941,674 1,077,650
Cost of sales and services (1,807,038) (991,438)
Gross income 34,636 86,212
Operating expenses (54,109) (55,217}
Interest expenses (89,073) {70,827}
Other income (expense} - net {4,710} 11,697
l.oss before income tax {113,256) (28,135)
income tax benefit 24,977 8,441
Net loss from discontinued operations (B88,279) (R19,694)

9. Short-term Borrowings

This account consists of unsecured short-term loans obtained from various local banks for
working capital requirements of the Group. The short-term borrowings are payable within 30 to

90 days and bear interest ranging from 4.25% to 7.00% for the periods ended December 31, 2018
and September 30, 2018,

Total interest expense arising from short-term borrowings amounted to R37.5 million and
£30.0 million for the three-month periods ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
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10. Long-term Borrowings

The Group obtained various loans from local banks. Total outstanding payable arising from loan
agreements are as follows:

Outstanding Balance

December 31, September 30,
Facility Terms Coliateral 2018 2018
R2,645.0 million dated  Payable in equal quarterly amortization for Suretyship P1,901,084 R1,983,750
August 5, 2014 seven years beginning November 2016 agreement
and bears fixed interast of 4.50% for and mortgage
three years subject to repricing frust
thereafter indenture
(MTH
R1,227.0 million dated  Quarterly principal repayment amounting Suretyship 933,000 982,000
September 10, 2014 to R49.0 million starting September agreement
2017 until June 2021 and a iump sum and MTI
payrment of the remaining balance on
September 10, 2021 and bears fixed
interest of 4.50% subject to change as
agreed by the parties
1,400.0 million dated  Quarterly principal repayment amounting Clean loan 1,066,660 1,133,328
December 1, 2016 o R66.7 million starting December 2017
until December 2022 and bears floating
interest
R800.0 million dated Quarterly principal repayment amounting  Suretyship 300,000 400,000
August 12, 2016 to R100.0 million starting November agreement
2017 until December 2019 with one and MTI
year grace period and bears fixed
interest rate of 4.50% subject to change
as agreed by the parties
B380.0 million dated Quarterly principal repayment amounting  Suretyship 312,170 325,736
May 27, 2014 to B13.6 million starting December 2017  agreement
until June 2021 and a lump sum and MTI
payment of the remaining balance on
September 10, 2021 and bears fixed
interest of 4.50% subject to change as
agreed by the parties
Others 37 41
4,512,924 4,824,855
Unamortized transaction costs (11,248) {11,742)
4,501,676 4,813,113
Current portion {4,501,676) (4,813,113)
Noncurrent portion B— B-
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Suretyship Agreement and Mortgage Trust Indenture

The Group entered into various suretyship agreements and MTI with local bank creditors that
secure the Group's obligations in solidarity against all the properties of RHI, CADPI, CACI and RBC,
including 28,549,365 HP Co. shares. Property, plant and equipment with a carrying amount of
£9,044.0 million were mortgaged and used as collateral to secure the loan obligations with the
local bank creditors. Carrying amount was determined by a professionally qualified independent
appraiser in June 2016.

Loan Covenants
The foregoing loan agreements, except for the Omnibus Loan and Security Agreement (OLSA)
dated December 21, 2006, are subject to certain covenants, such as but not limited to:

e maintenance of debt service coverage ratio (DSCR) of at least 1.25 times and debt-to-equity
ratio of not more than 70:30;

o prohibition on purchase of additional equipment, except in pursuance of its sugar expansion
and ethanol project, unless the required financial ratios are maintained;

« prohibition on any material change in ownership or control of its business or capital stock or
in the composition of its top level management, and

« prohibition on declaration or payment of dividends or any other capital or other asset
distribution to its stockhoiders, unless the required financial ratios are maintained.

The Group is required to maintain a maximum debt-to-equity ratio of 2.33:1 and minimum DSCR
of 1.25:1 by its creditor banks. As of September 30, 2018, the Group did not meet the minimum
required DSCR but received the approved bank waivers on minimum DSCR requirement as of
September 30, 2018 on December 17, 2018, January 11, 2019 and January 14, 2019. Accordingly,
under PAS 1, the Group classified its long-term borrowings as current liability on its consolidated
statement of financial position. However, the lender-banks have not called the loan as of report
date.

The maturities of the long-term borrowings are as follows:

December 31, September 30,

2018 2018

(Unaudited) (Audited)

Less than one year R1,147,576 £1,248,433
Between one to two years 1,405,576 1,405,576
Between two to five years 1,711,803 1,840,221
Between five to eight years 247,969 330,625
£4,512,924 £4,824,855
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11. Trade and Other Payables

This account consists of:

December 31, September 30,
2018 2018
{Unaudited) (Audited)
Trade R950,151 R1,230,454
Accruals for:
Construction in progress 358,059 358,059
Offseason costs 95,284 -
Interest 45,577 45,794
Payroll and other employee benefits 19,213 30,643
Sugar and molasses purchase - 181,919
Others 125,241 100,195
Due to:
Related parties 96,993 96,295
Planters 12,278 5,935
Payable to government agencies for taxes and
statutory contributions 57,732 73,293
Customers’ deposits 39,330 8,163
Provision for probabie loss 5,000 7,550
Others 71,745 141,466
P1,882,603 £2,279,766
12. Equity
Details of capital stock and treasury stock follow:
December 31, 2018 September 30, 2018
(Unaudited) {Audited}
Number Amount Number Amount
of Shares {in Thousands} of Shares {in Thousands}
Authorized - common shares “Class A”
at P1.0 par value 2,000,000,000 £2,000,000 2,000,000,000 £2,000,000
Issued common shares “Class A”
Balance at beginning of period 1,564,599,146 £1,564,559 1,564,599,146 #1,564,599
Issuances 980,133 980 980,133 280
Bajance at end of period 1,565,573,279 1,565,579 1,565,579,279 1,565,579
Treasury stock {17,643,480} (52,230) {17,643,480) {52,290}
Issued and outstanding 1,547,935,79% 1,513,289 1,547,935,799 1,513,289

On February 15, 2017, the shareholders approved the amendment of the Parent Company’s
articles of incorporation to increase the authorized capital stock from 1,500,000,000 to
2,000,000,000 divided into 2,000,000,000 with par value of #1.00 per share. On February 17,
2017, EPNRHBV exercised its conversion rights in respect of the convertible debt securities to be
issued out of the increase in authorized capital stock at a conversion rate of 4.19 for every
common share, or a total of 125,000,000 new common shares.

On July 14, 2017, the Parent Company’s application for increase in authorized capital stock was
approved by SEC. On November 9, 2017, the PSE approved the listing of these newly subscribed

125,000,000 common shares.
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13.

Related Party Transactions and Balances
In the normal course of business, the Group has transactions with related parties as follows:

a. The Group made advances jo RHIRF!, CADPIRFI and CACIRFI for a portion of the retirement
payments made to the Group’s qualified retired employees under defined benefit plan.
Advances to RHIRFI, CADPF;F! and CACIRF! are included in “Trade and other receivables”
account.

b. Due to related parties, which are presented as part of “Trade and other payables” account,
represents noninterest-bearing payable arising from advances and rent of office space from
CADPRFI.

Outstanding balances of transactions with related parties are unsecured and settlements are made
in cash. The Group did not recognize any provision for impairment for the three-month periods
ended December 31, 2018 and 2017. This assessment is undertaken each reporting period by
reviewing the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party
operates.

14.

Employee Stock Option Plans (ESOP)

The BOD of the Company approved the establishment of its first and second ESOP on May g8, 2013
and lanuary 16, 2014, respectively. The ESOPs cover all employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries, namely: CACI, CADP{ and RBC, who have rendered at least six months of service at the
time of grant. Employees are given the option to purchase the shares allocable to them over an
exercise period of five years from the effectivity date of ESOP. The share options vest each year
over the five-year term of ESOP. The offer price of the shares is based on the average quoted price
during the 30-trading days prior to exercise date less a 15% discount. About 35.0 million and

30.0 million common shares of the Company’s unissued shares have been initially reserved under
the first and second ESOP, respectively.

Movements of the number of share options for the first and secohd ESOP are as follows:

First ESOP Second ESOP
December 31, September 30, December 31, September 30,
2018 2018 2018 2018
Balance at beginning of year - 15,650,483 16,703,856 22,953,725
Forfeited or expired - (14,670,350) (55,760) (6,249,869}
Exercised e (980,133) - -
Balance at end of year - - 16,648,096 16,703,856
Exercisable at end of year - - 13,318,477 13,363,085

The Company issued nil and 980,133 common shares pertaining to the exercise of stock option of
employees under First ESOP amounting to nil and P04 million, respectively, in 2018 and 2017
(see Note 12). The weighted-average share price at the date of exercise for share options under
the First ESOP was R3.44,

20| Page



The fair value of the First and Second ESOP was estimated at the date of grant using Black Sholes-

Merton model with the following inputs:

First ESOP
. Options Vesting After
Ygar One Year Two  Year Three Year Four Year Five
Spot price T R2.80 B2.80 £2.80 £2.80 £2.80
Strike price p2.49 B2.49 B2.49 £2.49 £2.49
Expected volatility 38.83% 39.10% 36.59% 39.61% 42.46%
Risk-free rate 2.71% 2.98% 3.29% 3.60% 3.36%
Dividend rate as a percentage
of spot price 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Second ESOP
Options Vesting After
Year One Year Two Year Three Year Four Year Five
Spot price £6.90 £6.20 26.90 B6.90 £6.90
Strike price B5.32 B5.32 B5.32 £5.32 B5.32
Expected volatility 33.46% 39.77% 39.71% 37.65% 39.95%
Risk-free rate 2.86% 2.82% 3.15% 3.90% 3.38%
Dividend rate as a percentage
of spot price 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

The weighted average fair value of the share options granted in 2013 {First ESOP) and 2014
{Second ESOP) amounted to £0.9 and #3.0, respectively. The volatility rate is determined as the
historical volatility of the returns on the stock over a period similar to the vesting period of the

option.

The weighted average remaining contractual life of the outstanding stock options is 0.58 years as

at September 30, 2018.

15. Revenue

The components of revenue are as foliows:

December 31, December 31,
2018 2017
(Unaudited) {Unaudited)
Sale of goods:

Raw sugar Rr915,822 P709,590
Alcohol 606,939 283,215
Molasses 13,918 -
Carbon dioxide 2,720 535
1,539,399 993,340

Sale of services:
Milling revenue (see Note 2} 722,399 -
Power 3,326 1,054
Farm services 2,322 1,653
728,047 2,707
B2,267,446 £996,047
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16. Cost of Sales

December 31, December 31,
2018 2017
{Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Direct materials used R1,254,212 £34,696
Planters’ subsidy and productivity assistance 339,802 238,377
Depreciation and amortization 171,422 236,289
Repairs and maintenance 136,939 119,972
Fue!l and oil 108,033 70,253
Personnel costs 77,839 70,071
Rent 43,326 30,796
Quiside services 20,148 38,841
Communication, light and water 33,082 20,694
Taxes and licenses 3,850 27,256
Others 63,053 50,580
R2,251,706 £937,825
17. Operating Expenses
December 31, December 31,
2018 2017
{(Unaudited) {Unaudited)
General and administrative expenses R177,744 £160,360
Selling expenses 8,709 4,757
E136,453 P165,117
General and Administrative Expenses
The components of general and administrative expenses are as follows:
December 31, December 31,
2018 2017
{Unaudited) {Unaudited)
Personnel costs 92,364 £83,734
Qutside services 22,341 13,254
Taxes and licenses 17,448 19,417
Depreciation and amortization 8,788 9,417
Communication, light and water 3,785 3,037
Rent 4,105 2,872
Transportation and travel 4,016 3,059
Repairs and maintenance 3,731 4,551
Others 21,166 21,019
R177,744 £160,360

Others mainly pertain to cost incurred for organizational activities, corporate social
responsibility, office supplies among others.

Selling expenses mainly pertains to sugar liens and dues, delivery charges and monitoring fees
paid to various regulatory agencies prior to sale of sugar.
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18. Personnel Costs

The amount of personnel costs are allocated as follows:

December 31,

December 31,

2018 2017

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

Costs of goods sold R77,839 270,071
General and administrative expenses 92,364 83,734
R170,203 £153,805

19. Other Income (Expense) - Net

This account consists of:

December 31,

December 31,

2018 2017

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

interest income R1,034 P2,006
Sales of scrap 26 6,016
Others (3,954) {370)
(R2,894) R7,652

20. Financial Instruments

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise of cash in banks, trade and other
receivables, and trade and other payables, which arise directly from its operations, and short and
long-term borrowings. The Group has other financial instruments such as dividends payable.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are liquidity risk, credit risk and
interest rate risk. The Group monitors the market price risk arising from all financial instruments.
The Group’s operations are also exposed to commodity price risk, particularly from sugar prices.
Risk management is carried out by senior management under the guidance and direction of the
BOD of the Parent Company.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that the Group may encounter difficulties in raising funds
to meet maturing obligations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain sufficient cash and cash in banks and the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. Due to the dynamic nature
of the business, the Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping track of daily cash
flows and maintaining committed credit lines available.

The tables below summarize the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities based on
contractual undiscounted payments and the related financial assets used for liquidity
management.
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December 31, 2018 (Unaudited)

iessthan Over One Over Two Quer Four Over
On Demand One Year to Two Years o Four Years to Five Years Five Years Total
Short-term borrowings* RB— R7,290,024 - R— R R- £7,250,034
Trade and other payables** 736,510 1,083,361 - - - - 1,829,872
Current portion of long-term berrowings™® - 1,346,722 - - - - 1,346,722
Noneurrant portion of long-term
barrowings* — - 1,527,625 1,534,653 354,705 255,324 3,673,367
R736,510 R9,720,117 W1,527,625 R1,534,653 #354,705 R256,384 R14,129,994
Cash in banks R549,874 R- R- B ' - R549,874
Trade receivables*** 152,464 2,680,744 - - - - 2,833,208
Due from employess™*** 52,008 - - - - - 52,008
Due from related parties 67,190 - - - - - 67,150
Other receivables*** 56,197 - - = - - 56,197
377,733 R2,680,744 R— R R R R3.558,477
*including expected future interest payments for short-term and long-term borrowings ¢mounting to R263.8 millien and B518.4 million, respectively.
¥ Lyeludes payables to government agencias amounting to R57, 7 mitlion and provision for probable losses amaunting to 5.0 miftfon.
w*uniat of refated alfowances for impairment losses totoling R44.1 milfion,
September 30, 2018 (Audited)
Less than QverOne Over Two Over Four Cver
On Demand One Year to Two Years to Four Years to Five Years Five Years Totai
Short-tertn borrowlngs® #6,583,508 R - L 8- - #6,583,508
Trade and other payables** 78,366 2,120,555 - - - - 2,198,821
Current portion of long-term bormowings® - 1,447,850 - - - - 1,447,850
Noncurrent pertion of lang-term
horrowings* - - 550,883 2,175,368 421,345 338,040 3,930,637
RE,661,874 R3,568,405 £0630,383 22,179,368 R421,345 R339,040 14,160,916
Cash in banks 292,001 B - - - f- R282,001
Trade receivables*** 440,516 2,337,450 - - - - 2,771,966
Due from employeas*** 55,982 - - - - - 55,962
Due from related parties 27,369 - - - - - 37,368
Other raceivables*** 56,073 - - - - - 56,073
881,921 2,337,450 R— R - - £3,219,371

*inciudes expected future interest payments, for short-term and long-term boryowings amounting to R372.7 million and R546.8 milfien, respectively.
*+ Eyrludes payshles to government agendies amounting to R73.3 million and provision for fosses amounting to R7.6 miliion.
w+upjet of refatad wliowances for impairment Josses totaling R44.1 mifion.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that the Group will incur financial loss through default by counterparties in
performing their obligations.

Concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables is limited due to the large number
of customers comprising the Group’s customer base and their dispersion across different
geographic areas. It has policies in place to ensure that sales of goods are made to customers
with an appropriate credit history.

The Group has established a credit quality review process to provide early identification of
possible changes in the creditworthiness of counterparties, including regular collateral revisions.

Counterparty credit limits are established by the use of a credit risk classification system, which
assigns each counterparty a gualitative risk rating. Risk ratings are subject to regular revision.
The credit quality review process allows the Group 1o assess the potential loss as a result of the
risks to which it is exposed and take corrective action.

Maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of any collateral and other credit
enhancements

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk of the Group shown at gross before
the effect of mitigation through collateral agreements.
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December 31, September 30,

2018 2018

(Unaudited) (Audited)

Cash in banks R549,874 £292,001
Trade receivables* 2,833,208 2,777,966
Due from employees* 52,008 55,962
Due from related parties 67,190 37,369
Other receivables* 56,197 56,073
R3,558,477 £3,219,371

*Net of allowarnce for impairment losses totaling #44.1 million as at December 31, 2018 and September 30, 2018, respectively.

Callaterals and other credit enhancements

The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the
counterparty. Guidelines are implemented regarding the acceptability of types of collateral and
valuation parameters. As at December 31, 2018 and September 30, 2018, the Group did not hold
collateral from any counterparty.

Credit quality per class of financial assets

The credit quality of receivables is managed by the Group through its Marketing Department.
High grade accounts are those receivables from counterparties with whom collections are made
without much collection effort. Standard grade accounts consist of receivables from its
distributors, related parties and employees with good financial condition and with relatively low
defaults. Substandard grade accounts, on the other hand, are receivables from other
counterparties with history of defaulted payments.

The tables below show the credit quality of financial assets which are neither past due nor
impaired and an aging analysis of past due but not impaired accounts.

December 31, 2018 {Unaudited)

Neither past due nor impaired Past due but not impaired
High Standard Substandard Over 30 QOver 20 Over 180
Grade Grade Grade Days Days Days Impaired Total
Cash In banks 548,874 [ o . R B— R~ ®549,275
Tratle recelvables 1,067,713 1,606,531 - 39,619 25,036 94,309 33,119 2,866,327
Dug from employees - 52,008 - - - - 2,084 54,092
Due from refated parties - 67,190 - - - - - 67,190
Other receivables - 56,197 = = - - 2,858 55,055
Total W1,617,587 R1,781,926 B R39,619 k25,036 #34,308 44,061 #3,602,538
September 30, 2018 {Audited)
Nelther past due nor impaired Past due but net impaired
High Standard Substandard Qver 30 CQver 90 Over 180
Grade (Grade Grade Days Days Days Impaired Total
Cash in banks #292,001 - R- B B - B ®292,001
Trade receivables 963,451 1,767,012 - 5,672 3,379 38,452 33,118 2,811,084
Due from ernployees - £5,362 - - - - 2,084 58,046
Due from related parties P 37,369 - - - - - 37,369
Other receivables — - - - - 56,073 8,858 64,931
Total R1,253,452 21,860,343 R R5,672 23,379 £94,525 £44,060 #3,263,431

Impairment assessment

The main consideration for impairment assessment includes whether there are known difficulties
in the cash flow of the counterparties. The Group assesses impairment in two ways: individually
and collectively.

First, the Group determines allowance for each significant receivable on an individual basis.
Among the items that the Group considers in assessing impairment is the inability to collect from
the counterparty based on the contractual terms of the receivables. Receivables inciuded in the
specific assessment are the accounts that have been endorsed to the legal department, non-
moving accounts receivable and ather accounts of defaulted counterparties.
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For collective assessment, allowances are assessed for receivables that are not individually
significant and for individually significant receivables where there is no objective evidence of
individual impairment. Impairment losses are estimated by taking into consideration the age of
the receivables, past collection experience and other factors that may affect their collectibility.

Commaodity price risk

The Group is exposed to commodity price risk from conventional physical sales and purchase of
sugar managed through volume, timing and relationship strategies. The Group does not enter
into commodity derivatives,

The Group’s sales commitments are contracted at fixed prices, and thus have no impact on the
consolidated cash flows in the next 12 months.

Interest rate risk
The primary source of the Group's interest rate risk relates to interest-bearing financial liabilities.
The interest rates on these liabilities are disclosed in Notes 9 and 10.

The loans amounting to £1,067 million and #1,133 million as at December 31, 2018 and
September 30, 2018, respectively, bear floating interest and expose the group to interest rate
risk.

Interest on financial liabilities with fixed interest rate is fixed until the maturity of the instrument.

The other financial instruments of the Group are noninterest-bearing and are therefore not
subject to interest rate risk.

Capital Management
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is 1o ensure that it maintains strong
credit and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder value.

The Group’s dividend declaration is dependent on availability of earnings and operating
requirements. The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustment to it, in light of
changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for the periods ended
December 31, 2018 and September 30, 2018.

Management considers the total consolidated equity reflected in the consolidated statement of
financial position as its capital. The Group monitors its use of capital using leverage ratios,
specifically, debt-to-equity ratio. It also monitors its DSCR to ensure that there would be
sufficient amount of cash flow available to meet annual interest and principal payments on debt.

Fair Values
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities approximate their fair values
due to their short-term nature or the interest rates that they carry approximate the interest rate

on comparable instruments in the market. For the long term loans, these are subject to both
fixed and floating rates.

The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair value of each class of
financial instruments.
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Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, due to and from related parties, due from
employees, other receivables, trade and other payables, short-term borrowings, current portion
of long-term borrowings and dividends payable. The carrying amounts of these instruments
approximate fair values due to their short-term maturities.

Long-term borrowings. Fair values of long-term borrowings as at December 31, 2018 and
September 30, 2018 were determined based on Level 2 in which the inputs are based on the
discounted interest rate of the prevailing comparable instrument in the market.

21.

Segment Reporting

The Group has two reportable segments: sugar and alcohol. The Group’s sugar segment consists
of four operating subsidiaries: CADPI, CACI, NAVI and RABDC that manufactures and sells raw
and refined sugar, molasses and provides tolling and farm operations services. The alcohol
segment consists of two operating subsidiaries: RBC and SCBI that manufactures and sells
bioethanol fuel.

The Group has only one geographical segment as all of its assets are located in the Philippines.
The Group operates and derives principally its revenue from domestic operations. Thus,
geographical business information not required.

The Group’s senior management regularly reviews the operating results of the business units to
make decisions on resource allocation and assess performance. Segment revenue and segment
expenses are measured in accordance with PFRS. The presentation and classification of segment
revenue and segment expenses are consistent with the consolidated statements of income.

The following tables present information about the Group’s operating segments:

Three-Month Period Ended December 31, 2018 (Unaudited)

Sugar Alcohol Eliminations Consolidated

Revenue:

External customers R1,564,594 R702,852 B- ®2,267,446

Inter-segment 279,610 164,248 (443,858) -
Cost of goods sold:

Direct materials used 1,129,162 566,751 {441,701} 1,254,212

Planters’ subsidy and productivity assistance 333,546 6,256 - 339,302

Depreciation and amortization 135,179 36,243 - 171,422

Fuel and oil 3,732 104,301 - 108,033
Interest expense 49,520 6,188 - 55,708
Segmaent profit {loss) {115,355) 6,268 - {109,087)

Three-Month Period Ended December 31, 2017 {Unaudited)
Sugar Alcoho! Eliminations Consolidated

Revenue:

External customers R696,083 R299,964 = 995,047

Inter-segment 110,318 117,412 (227,737) -
Cost of goods sold:

Direct materials used 38,300 222,136 {225,740) 34,695

Planters’ subsidy and productivity assistance 237814 563 - 238,377

[bepreciation and amortization 175,868 60,421 - 236,289

Fuel and oil 29,085 41,168 - 70.253
Interest expense 51,131 - - 51,131
Segment profit {loss} {126,831) 36,469 - (90,362}
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION

The following Management Discussion and Analysis should be read in connection with the submitted
Unaudited Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements as ot and for three-month periods

ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.

Financial Highlights and Key Performance Indicators

December 31, September 30,
2018 2018 Increase {Decrease}
Amounts in Millions except Shares (Unaudited) (Audited) Amount %
Balance Sheet
Fixed assets P15,758 B15,845 (87) {1%)
Goodwill 1,080 1,080 - -
Total assets 25,456 25,531 {75) (0%)
Shareholders’ equity 10,566 10,763 (197) (29)
Net debt ™ 10,995 10,729 266 2%
Equity ratio 41.5% 42.2% (0.7%) (2%}
Net debt as % of equity 1.04x 1.00x 0.04 4%
Shares
Market capitalization 4,133 4,644 (511) (11%)
Total shares issued 1,548 1,548 - -
Closing price per share 2.67 3.00 (0.33) (11%)
Three Months Ended
bPecember 31 (Unaudited) Increase {Decrease)

Amounts in Millions except Operational Data 2018 2017 Amount %
Revenue and Earnings
Revenue £4,209 B2,074 £2,135 103%
Gross profit 50 144 (94) (65%)
Depreciation 219 256 (37) (14%)
Operating expenses 241 221 20 9%
Interest expense 145 121 24 20%
Net income {187} (110} (87) (79%)
EBITDA 37 191 (154)  (819%])
EBITDA margin @ 1% 9% (8%) {89%)
Return on equity (1.9%) {1.1%) (0.8%) {73%)
Loss per share {0.13) (0.07) (0.06) (86%)
Cash Flow and Investments
Cash flow provided by operations 12 492 (480} (98%])
Investment in fixed assets 132 100 32 32%
Operational Data (volume in thousands}
Tons cane milled 859 903 (44} (5%)
Production:

Raw sugar {Lkg) 1,572 1,609 (37) (2%}

Ethanol {liters) 11,708 8,344 3,364 40%

{1) Net debt is derived by deducting cash and cash equivalents from totel debt (short-term borrowings and long-term debt,

including current portion).

(2) EBITDA margin for the period is measured as EBITDA divided by reveniues.
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The Group’s financial performance is determined to a large extent by the following key results:

1.

Raw sugar production —a principal determinant of consolidated revenues and is computed as the
gross amount of raw sugar outpyt of CADPI and CACI as consolidated subsidiaries.

Refined sugar production — the most important determinant of revenues and computed as the
gross volume of refined sugar produced by the CADPI refinery both as direct sales to industrial
customers and traders or as tolling manufacturing service, limited by production capacity and by
the ability of the Group to market its services to both types of customers.

Ethanol production — a measure of ethanol production yield compared to unit and cost of input
and is computed as ethanol produced (in liters) from each ton of molasses undergoing distillation
and dehydration processes.

Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) ~ the measure for cash
income from operations and computed as the difference between revenues and cost of sales and
operating and other expenses, but excluding finance charges from loans, income taxes and
adding back allowances for depreciation and other non-cash amortization.

Return on equity — denotes the capability of the Group to generate returns on the sharehoiders’
funds computed as a percentage of net income to total equity.

Company Overview

Roxas Holdings, Inc. (RHI), a sugar and energy company, is the largest integrated sugar business and
the biggest ethanol producer in the Philippines. The Company started operating as a sugar milling
company in Nasugbu, Batangas in 1927 and was then known as Central Azucarera Don Pedro. The
Company’s subsidiaries include the following:

Central Azucarera Don Pedro, Inc. (CADPI), located in Batangas, provides the refined sugar
requirements of traders and industrial customers such as multinational food and beverage and
pharmaceutical companies in Luzon.

Central Azucarera de La Carlota, Inc. (CACH), based in La Carlota City, Negros Occidental where
there is substantial sugar activity and also near the port for export, meets the raw sugar
requirements of customers in the Visayas.

Roxol Bicenergy Corporation (RBC), also based in La Carlota City, Negros Occidental, is the
bioethanol unit of RHI. It operates as a standalone ethanol production facility.

San Carlos Bioenergy, Inc. (SCBI), located at San Carlos Ecozone, Barangay Palampas and Punao,
San Carlos City, Negros Occidental, operates integrated sugar mill and bioethanol distillery
complex.

Najalin Ventures, Inc. (NAVI), based in Negros Occidental, is engaged in agricultural and industrial
development.

RHI Agri-Business Development Corporation {RHIADC), located in Batangas City, manages and
operates agricultural land and planting and cultivation of sugar cane and other farm products,
has started commercial operations as at September 30, 2016.

RHI also holds 45% stake in affiliate Hawaiian-Philippine Company in Silay, Negros Occidental.
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Results of Operations

Revenues
Three Months Ended December 31 Increase (Decrease)
2018

Amounts in Millions Continuing Discontinued Total 2017 Amount %
Refined sugar B- 21,053 R1,053 B827 p226 27%
Raw sugar 916 733 1,649 940 709 75%
Molasses 14 156 170 15 155 91%
Tolling - - - 5 (5) (100%)
Milling revenue 722 - 722 - 722 100%
1,652 1,942 3,594 1,787 1,807 101%
Alcohol 607 - 607 283 324 114%
Others 8 - 8 4 4 100%
R2,267 21,942 £4,209 B2,074 £2,135 103%

Consolidated revenues for the three months ended December 31, 2018 amounted to £4,209 million,
22,135 million or 103% higher than the 22,074 consolidated revenues reported in the same period in
2017, primarily due to increase in volume sold and revenue from milling services arising from
adoption of new accounting standards.

Sugar — Revenue from sugar operations increased by £1,807 million or 101% against last year's
revenue of B1,787 million, primarily due to increase in volume sold and revenue from milling
services. Raw sugar sales volume increased by 301 Lkg or 38% this year from 785 Lkg in 2017 while
refined sugar sales volume increased by 80 Lkg or 19% versus last year's sales volume of 431 Lkg.
Average selling prices per Lkg of raw and refined sugar in 2018 amounted to 21,518 and 22,063,
respectively, from £1,195 and B1,919 in 2017, respectively.

Alcohol — Revenue from alcohol operations amounted to 2607 million and 2283 million in 2018 and
2017, respectively. The increase of B324 million or 114% is due to higher seliing price in 2018 by 33%.

Other income — Other revenues pertains to sale of power and CO; of SCBI and sale of sugar cane and
farm services of ADC.

Gross Profit

The Group’s gross profit for the three months ended December 31, 2018 amounting to B50 million is
294 million or 65% lower than the R144 million in 2017. The decrease in gross profit is attributable
to lower production volume at higher manufacturing cost brought about by the challenges
encountered in the operations and unfavorable impact of weather conditions and stiff competition
on cane supply.

Sugar — The sugar operation’s gross profit of 5 million is down by £83 million or, 94% from

£88 million reported in the same period in 2017 due to higher manufacturing costs. Gross profit rate
decreased to 1% in 2018 from 5% in 2017 due to decrease in the number of canes milled from 903
million tons in 2017 to 859 million tons in 2018. Raw sugar production decreased from 1,609 million
50 lkg in 2017 to 1,572 million 50 tkg in 2018.
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Alcohol — The gross profit of alcohol for the three months ended December 31, 2018 amounted to
PA8 million, 20% down from 860 million in the same period in 2017. Gross profit rate decreased to
5% in 2018 from 14% in 2017 due to increase in manufacturing costs. Ethanol production for the
three months ended December 31, 2018 increased by 0.3 million liters or 40% of the 8.3 million liters
production in 2017.

Operating Expenses

Three Months Ended December 31 Increase (Decrease)
2018

Amounts in Millions Continuing Discontinued Total 2017 Amount %

Salaries, wages and other
employee benefits pa2 R19 R111 2102 B9 9%
Qutside services 22 5 27 19 8  42%
Taxes and licenses 17 2 19 22 (3) (14%})
Selling expenses 9 20 29 23 6 26%
Depreciation and amortization 9 2 11 12 (1) (8%)
Professional fees 5 1 6 4 2 50%

Communication, light and
water 4 1 5 4 1 25%
Rent 4 1 5 4 1 25%
Transportation and travel 4 1 5 4 1 25%
Repairs and maintenance 4 1 5 6 (1) (25%)
Others 16 1 17 21 (4) (19%)
2186 B54 R240 B221 £19 9%

Consolidated operating expenses for the three months ended December 31, 2018 increased by
R19 million or 9% compared to the same peried in 2017.

Interest

Interest expense amounted to 2144 million for the three months ended December 31, 2018, which is
19% or 223 million higher than the R121 million reported in the same period in 2017, due to short-
term loans availed and higher interest rates in 2018,

Share in Net Earnings of an Associate

Share in net earnings of an associate amounted to 216 million for the three months ended
December 31, 2018, against nil reported in 2017, due to net income results of Hawaiian-Philippine
Company arising from higher sugar selling prices.

Net Income

Consolidated net loss for the three months ended December 31, 2018 amounted te R197 million,
which is 287 million or 79% lower than the B110 million reported in the same period in 2017. Loss
per share is 20.13 and £0.07 for the three months ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

EBITDA

Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization (EBITDA) amounted to 237 million for
the three months ended December 31, 2018, which is B154 million or 81% lower than 2191 million
reported in the same period in 2017.

31|FPage




Financial Condition

Consolidated total assets as at December 31, 2018 amounted to 825,456 million, which is

P75 million or 1% higher than the £25,531 million as at September 30, 2018. Current assets went
down by 1% or R112 million from £13,711 million as at September 30, 2018 to ®13,599 miilion as at
December 31, 2018. Receivables increased by #35 million and inventories decreased by B634 million
in 2018 due to increased sales to customers.

During the three months ended December 31, 2018, the Group availed of 83,388 million short-term
loans and repaid a total of 2311 million in long-term borrowings.

Trade and other payables amounted to 81,883 million as at December 31, 2018, which is B397 million
tower than 2,280 million as at September 30, 2018.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Group is not aware of any material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations
{including contingent obligations), and other relationships with unconsolidated entities or other
persons created during the reporting period.

32jPage




1.

2.

10.

11

OTHER INFORMATION

New projects or investments in another project, line of business or corporation;
None far the period.

Composition of Board of Directors;

Name Position

PEDRO E. ROXAS Chairman
MANUEL V. PANGILINAN Vice Chairman
HUBERT D. TUBIO President and CEQ
CHRISTOPHER H. YOUNG Director

RAY C. ESPINOSA Director

ALEX ERLITO S. FIDER Director
SANTIAGO R. ELIZALDE Pirector
OSCAR J. HILADO Independent Director
DAVID L. BALANGUE Independent Director

Performance of the corporation orresult or progress of operations;

See interim condensed consolidated financial statements and management’s
discussion and analysis of results of operations and financial conditions

Suspension of operations; Cease and Desist Order issued and implemented to RBC on
November 16, 2017 which was lifted on December 6, 2017.

Declaraticn of dividends; None for the period

Contracts of merger, consolidation or joint venture; contract of management, licensing,
marketing, distributorship, technical assistance or similar agreements; None for the period

Financing through loans; None for the period

Offering of rights, granting of Stock Options and corresponding plans therefore; None for the
period

Acquisition of other capital assets or patents, formula or real estates; None for the period

Any other information, event or happeriing that may affect the market price
of the Company's shares; None for the period

Transferring of assets, except in the normal course of business; None for the period
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ROXAS HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

ANNEX A. AGING OF TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2018
{Amounts in Thousands)

Past due but not impaired

Over 60

Current 1-30 days 31-60 days days Subtotal Impaired Total

Trade B2,539,852 R228,701 R12,089 R52,566 £293,356 £33,112 82,866,327
Due from:

Planters 66,827 - - - - 46,731 113,558

Employees 52,008 - - - - 2,084 54,052

Related parties 67,190 - - - - - 67,190

Other receivables 56,197 - - ~ - 8,858 65,055

R2,782,074 B228,701 212,089 R52,566 B293,356 800,792 23,166,222




ROXAS HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

ANNEX B. FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS

DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
(Amounts in Thousands)

December 31

2018 2017
Current ratio Current assets/Current liabilities 0.94 0.83
Debt to equity ratio Total liabilities/Total equity 1.41 1.23
Asset to equity ratio Total assets/Total equity 241 2.23
Return on assets Net income/Total assets (0.78%) (0.47%)
Return on equity Net income/Total equity (1.87%) (2.05%)
Book value per share Total equity/Qutstanding shares 6.8 6.74




